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City of Lake Elmo
City Council Workshop
3800 Laverne Avenue North
Lake Elmo, MN 55042
July 19, 2011

5:30 p.m. — 6:30 p.m. (?7)

Proposed Agenda*

Agenda
1. Permanent Water Chlorination

2. Fire Department Issues

3. Adjourn

Future Workshop Ideas:

Establishing an EDA Solid Waste Collection
Home Occupation Ordinance

Environmental Issues — Council Member Emmons
Special Activities and Events Ordinance

Highway 36 Corridor Joint Discussion with Oak Park Heights City Council
(Proposed August meeting)




AMENDED AGENDA City of Lake Elmo

G

3800 Laverne Avenue North
Lake Elmo. Minnesota

July 19, 2011

7:00 p.m.
CALE TO ORDER
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
ATTENDANCE: Johnston  Emmons, Park Pearson Smith

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: (The approved agenda is the order in which the City
Council will do its business.)

ORDER OF BUSINESS: (This is the way that the City Council runs its meetings
so everyone attending the meeting or watching the meeting understands how the
City Council does its public business.)

GROUND RULES: (These are the rules of behavior that the City Council
adopted for doing its public business.)

. ACCEPT MINUTES:
1. Accept July 5, 2011 City Council Minutes

PUBLIC COMMENTS/INQUIRIES: In order to be sure that anyone wishing to
speak to the City Council is treated the same way, meeting attendees wishing to
address the City Council on any items NOT on the regular agenda may speak for
up to three minutes.

CONSENT AGENDA: (Items are placed on the consent agenda by City staff and
the Mayor because they are not anticipated to generate discussion. Items may be
removed at City Council’s request.)

2. Approve payment of disbursements and payroll
3. 2011 Seal Coat Pay Request No. 1,
4a. 2010 Street & Water Utility Improvements Final Payment
b. 2011 Street & Water Quality Improvements Pay Request No. 1
5. Award Contract for the 2011 Rain Gardens (13 total)
6. Ordinance No. 08-048 Relating to the State Building Code to Include the
National Electrical Code
7. Electrical Inspection Services Agreement
8. 2011 Fee Schedule Amendment
9. Approve Variance for 9940 59" Street Court to allow a 3,800 sq.ft. building to
be internally flood-proofed
10. Approve Engineering Services Agreement



J. REGULAR AGENDA:

11, Recognizing Jim Sachs Retiring from the Lake Fimo Fire Dept.

12. Accept Audit Report

13, HEARING: Appeal from Robert and Jodi Konop, 12418 Marquess
Way North re:denial of a fence permit

14. Request for extension to file a Preliminary Development Plan related to a
Senior-Living/Farm School Project at 9434 Stillwater Blvd.

15, Variance for 5761 Keats Avenue to allow the construction of a second
agricultural farm building

16. Hotel/Motel Commercial Water Rates — Update/Discussion

17. Lake Elmo Library Services — Update/Discussion on Taxing District

18. Consider Ordinance to apply “No Wake” Zone

K. REPORTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS:
(These are verbal updates and do not have to be formally added to the agenda.)
* Mayor and City Council
s Administrator — Update on Springsted
* City Engineer
¢ Planning Director

L. Adjourn

**A social gathering may or may not be held at the Lake Elmo Inn following the
meeting, **
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City of Lake Elmo
City Council Meeting Minutes

July 5,2011

Mayor Johnston called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.

PRESENT: Mayor Johnston and Council Members Emmons, Park, Pearson, and Smith
Also Present: Administrator Messelt, Attorney Sandstrom, and City Engineer Griffin,
Planning Director Klatt, Finance Director T. Bouthilet, Parks and Public Works
Superintendent M. Bouthilet, Recording Secretary Luczak

APPROVAL OF AGENDA,;

Mayor Johnston suggested that the discussion on the commercial water rates be
continued at the July 19,2011, Council Workshop.

Council Member Smith requested that the Staff involved in the billing of the water bills be
in attendance to answer any questions and concerns,

Council Member Park requested that this item should then be placed on the July 19,
2011, Council Workshop and then Council Agenda for final action,

MOTION: Council Member Emmons moved to approve the July 3, 2011 City Council
Agenda as amended by deleting Commercial Water Rates and Library Services. Council
Member Pearson seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0,

ACCEPTED MINUTES:

The June 21, 2011, City Council minutes were accepted as amended by consensus of the
City Council.

PUBLIC COMMENTS: None,

CONSENT AGENDA:

MOTION: Council Member Pearson moved to approve Items 3 & 4 as presented on the
Consent Agenda. Council Member Emmons seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

e Accepted Susan Dunn’s Resignation from the Parks Commission and move John

Ames to Full Voting Member and Steve DeLapp to First Alternate
o Authorized Purchase of Animal Control Equipment
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REGULAR AGENDA;

Approve Payment of Disbursements in the Amount of $64,261.64

Council Member Smith updated the City Council regarding the Fire Equipment and
Repair claims. She asked about City policy regarding prepayment of services not yet
provided to FXL, Inc., the repair work at the VFW Field and the City Hall Annex.
Finance Director T. Bouthilet provided clarification regarding the claims.

MOTION: Council Member Smith moved to approve Payment of Disbursements in the
amount of $64,261.64. Council Member Park seconded the motion. Motion passed 5-0.

Huff n’ Puff Proclamation

Council Member Pearson read the‘Lake Elmo Jaycees Proclamation proclaiming August
11-14, 2011, as Huff n* Puff Days in the City of Lake Elmo.

Consider Approval of a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for Lake Elmo Jaycees Huff
n’ Puff Days and Waive the Fees for the Ligquor License and Lions Park Ball Field Lights

City Adminisirator Messelt requested the City Council to consider its annual 1 to 4 day
temporary On-Sale liquor license for the Lake Elmo Jaycees Huffn’ Puff Days, and to
also waive the liquor license fee and the fee for the Lions Park ball field lights.

The Lake Elmo Jaycees informed the City Council that this was their 35™ Annual Huff o’
Puff Days, and registration for the Softball Tournament had already begun. The Jaycees
have also received National level awards for the adult flashlight Easter Egg Hunt for
Relay for Life, and will again be participating in the Lake Elmo Fall Festival with a Cake
Walk. '

MOTION: Council Member Smith moved to approve the temporary On-Sale liguor
license for the Lake Elmo Jaycees Huff n’ Puff Days, August 11-14, 2011, and waive the
Jees for the liquor license and Lions Park ball field lights. Council Member Pearson
seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.

Review of Code Interpretation Concerning a Proposed Covered Walkway as 7955 Hill
Trail Court; Resolution No. 2011-024 '

Planning Director Klatt requested the City Council, acting as the Board of Appeals,
conduct an Appeal Hearing regarding Stafl’s interpretation of the City Code related to
the applicant’s proposed construction at 7955 Hill Trail Court, and specifically, whether
or not the proposed project is in conformance with the existing regulations as written.
He explained to the City Council that the applicants’ proposal to construct a modified
entrance to their home is in conflict with City Code standards regarding allowable
encroachments into the setback area. He further explained that historic street vacation
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actions have resulted in an unusual situation that has created the issue with Stafl’s
interpretation of “front yard”,

Mayor Johnston stated he concurred with the applicants regarding the health and safety
issue of the covered steps. '

Council Member Smith inquired as to whether the applicants could proceed with a
zoning variance application under the new variance standards recently adopted by the
legislature and proposed for adoption by the City later on the Agenda,

Council Member Park suggested that the Council could define the proposed
improvements as steps rather than a deck and therefore become an allowable
encroachment.

Couneil Member Emmons commented that the proposed action may be better as a
variance to overcome issues of precedent for the Staff.

Aftorney Sandstrom stated that the issue before the Council appears to be more of a
variance matter than a Staff interpretation.

Appeal Hearing opened at 7:49 p.m.

City Planner read info the record a letier from the adjoining neighbors, Veronica and
Allen Siedle, in support of the applicants® proposal.

Property owner Jim Norton stated that they had a survey done and another improvement
to their home in recent years and no mention was made of setback issues or yard
definition.

Property owner Pam Beytien further advised that the proposal to cover the proposed
entry steps was to overcome ice buildup on the steps.

Appeal Hearing closed at 7:58 p.m.

Council Member Smith stated that this situation was unique but that Staff interpretation
was correct based on the City Code and prior similar interpretation by Staff. She said
she would prefer that the City Council handle this as a variance,

City Attorney Sandstrom said he agreed that if the improvements were called steps rather
than a deck, this issue could be handled without a variance.

The Council reviewed the current configuration of the lot and determined that, based on
the historical platting of this area and the current location of the home, that the northern
property line should continue to function as the front property line for purposes of
determining building setbacks.

LAKE EILMO CITY COUNCIL MEETING JULY 5, 2011 3



MOTION: Council Member Smith moved to approve Resolution No. 2011-024, stating
Findings of Fact related to an Appeal and overturning the Staff determination that the
western property line is in the front lot line and instead specifying that the northern
property line is the front property line for this parcel. Council Member Park seconded
the motion. Motion passed 5-0.

Variance Ordinance Amendments

Planning Director Klatt requested City Council approval of proposed changes to the
Administrative Section of the Zoning Ordinance. The proposed update of the section of
code reflects the recent changes the Minnesota State Legislature made to the City’s
statutory authority to grant variance.

"MOTION: Council Member Park moved to approve Ordinance No., 08-047 amending the
“ddminisirative” section of the Zoning Ordinance concerning Variances as
recommended by ihe Planning Commission and Resolution No. 2011-025 allowing
summary publication of the Ordinance. Council Member Smith seconded the motion.

The motion passed 5-0.

City Engineering Services — Discussion of Discontinuation of Services

City Administrator Messelt requested the City Council provide direction regarding the
recent notification by TKDA, effective immediately, of their intention to discontinue
Engineering Services to the City, with a transition. He also presented options for City
engineering services, including a scoring of the several options.

Mayor Johnston stated that there is a value with long term relationships with city
consultants. He suggested that any new relationship entered into by the City for
engineering services extend to the end of this year but include a City option for a 3 year
extension,

MOTION: Council Member Emmons moved to direct City Staff to initiate a transition

and selection initiative for City Engineering Services, as agreed upon ai the July 5, 2011,
Council meeting. Mayor Johnston seconded the Motion. Motion passed 5-0.

City Council Meeling Calendar For August 2011

City Administrator Messelt requested the City Council discuss the scheduled mecting
dates for August 2011 due to recent changes by the Council relating to Workshops, the
five Tuesdays in August, accommodating the summer activities and schedules. The City
also received a request from the City of Oak Park Heights City Council to convene a joint
meeting to discuss the Highway 36 Corridor,

City Council Smith stated she could have a potential conflict on August 9, 2011, proposed
meeting date and would prefer August 3™ and 23™ as meeting dates,
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MOTION: Mayor Johnsion moved to modify and approve the Lake Elmo City Council
Calendar to schedule a Workshop and Regular Meeting for both Augusi 9" and 23 and
to cancel the previously scheduled Augusi 3" Meeting. Council Member Park seconded
the motion. Motion passed 5-0.

The Council directed Administrator Messelt to contact the Oak Park Heights
Administrator and provide them alternate dates adopted by the Council.

Replace and Upgrade Field Lighting at Lions Park

Public Works Director Bouthilet requestied authorization to contract for replacement and
upgrade to the ball field lighting at Lions Park. The equipment and lights are over 35
years old, and CIP funds are available.

Council Member Pearson asked if grants were available for this project.

Parks and Public Works Superintendent M. Bouthilet responded that there probably were
but were for LED lights only, and LLED lights are not suitable for recreation fields.

MOTION: Council Member Park moved to authorize a contract with Weber Electric for
814,900 to replace the lights and conirol junction boxes at Lions Park. Council Member
Pearson seconded the Motion. Motion passed 5-0.

City Council Reports;

Council Member Emmons reported that he had met with the Fire Dept.

Council Member Smith asked Parks and Public Works Superintendent M. Bouthilet about
possible No Parking signs being posied by Carriage Station Park. She expressed safety
concerns for residents leaving their private driveways,

Parks and Public Works Superintendent M. Bouthilet stated signs were available.

City Administrator Messelt said that this matter would be placed on a Consent Agenda at
a future meeting.

Council Member Smith also requested a report on the total cost of the monument sign on
Keats Avenue.

Administrator Messelt said a report would be prepared for the Council now that all the
costs are known.

Council Member Pearson requested tracking information on responses to the Lake Elmo
Park Reserve,

Council Member Park thanked the Administration regarding the library matters.
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City Planner Klaft informed the Council that an Appeal Hearing and two variance
applications had been received,

City Engineer Griffin updated the Council that the 2011 Street Project had the first level
already down, and the Rain Gardens had received final plans from the Washington
County Conservation Distriet.

The City Council adjourned the meeting at 8:43 p.m.

Respectfully submitted by Carole Luczak, Recording Secretary 7
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CETY OF

LAKE

MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 07/19/2011
CONSENT
ITEM # 2

MOTION  as part of Consent Agenda

AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Disbursements in the Amount 6f $ 225,848.80
SUBMITTED BY: Tom Bouthilet, Finance Director
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City AdministratorﬁﬁuJ\

REVIEWED BY:  City Staff

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: As part of its Consent Agenda, the City Council
is asked to approve disbursements in the amount of $225,848.80 No specific motion is needed, as
this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the Consent Agenda.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The City of Lake Elmo has fiduciary authority and
responsibility to conduct normal business operation. Below is a summary of current claims fo be
disbursed and paid in accordance with State taw and City policies and procedures.

ount _ Description
7,571.75 | Payroll Taxes to IRS 07/14/2011
1,275.07 | Payroll Taxes to MN Dept. of Revenue 07/14/2011
3,867.07 | Payroll Refirement to PERA 07/14/2011
25,203.23 | Payroll Daied 07/14/2011 (Direct Deposit)
17,269.44 | Payroll Dated 07/14/2011
170,662.24 | Accounts Payable Dated 07/19/2011

ACH

DD3425 - DD3461
37257 - 37264
37265 -37314

o2 || || 2|

~page 1 -~
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City Council Meeting Approval of Disbursemenis
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Item #2

STAFF REPORT: City staff has complied and reviewed the attached set of claims. All appears
to be 1n order and consistent with City budgetary and fiscal policies and Council direction

- RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council approve as part of the
Consent Agenda proposed disbursements in the amount of $225,848.80

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda or a particular claim from this item and further discuss and deliberate prior to taking
action. If done so, the appropriate action of the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to approve the July 19th, 2011, Disbursements, as

presented fand modified] herein.”

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Accounts Payable Dated 07/19/2011

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda):

- Questions from Council to Staff .........cccoovecirvrvririencererenens Mayor Facilitates
- Call for MOMON c.oeeriere e ceieecneriene s csesmsee e e s snsns Mayor & City Council
= DISCUSSION ...cviueriiririneerereseariestsesseseessnesssrenssrssesserserenns Mayor & City Council
- Action 00 MOtION......covciiririenii e see e PR Mayor Facilitates

- page 2 —




Accounts Payable
To Be Paid Proof List

User: joan 2
Printed: 07/(4/2011 - 12:36 PM
Batch: 002-07-201 |

invoige # Iny Daie

Amount Quantity PmtDate Description Reference Task Type PO# Close POLine #
ALEXAIR Alex Alr Apparatus, Inc o
wile 07/13/2011 70.08 .00 07/19/2011  Replacement parts for SCBA's - Ho 0000
101-420-2220-44040 Repairs/Maint Eqpt
20116 Tetal: 70.08
ALEXAIR Total: 70.08
AMDAHL Amdahl Chiis ]
8233 07/04/2011 83.48 000 ©07/19/201%1 6 Primus Keys = No 0000
101-410-1940-44010 Repairs/Maint Contractual Bidg
8233 Totak 8340
AMDAHL Total: £3.40
ANCOM ANCOM COMMUNICATIONS, INC, ‘ )
23301 06/30/2011 105.00 0.00  07/19/2011 Pager Repaiv = MNo 00400
101-420-2220-43230 Readio )
23311 Total: 105.00
ANCOM Total: 105.00
ARAM Aramark, Inc.
6207274413 06/30/2011 21.29 000 07192011 Uniforms - No 0000
101-430-310044170¢ Uniforms
629-7274413 Total! 2128
629-7276202 07/04/2011 11538 0.00  07/1%2011 Linen City Hall - No Q000
101-410-1940-44010 Repairs/Maint Contractual Bidg
£29-7276202 Total: 11538
629-7280913 471412018 75.99 000 07/19/2011  Sonthly rug service, station #2 - No 0000
101-420-2220.44010 Repairs/Maing B ldg
~ 629-7280913 Toml: 75.99
629-7280914 07/1 12011 75.31 £0.00  07/1972011 Monthly rug service, station #1 - Mo 0000
101-420-2220-44010  RepatrsiMaint Blig ‘
629-7280914 Total: 75.31

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoice # Inv Date

Amount (uaniity PmiPate Description Refergiice Task Type PO#  Close POLine #
© ARAM Total: 28797
ASPENMI Aspen Mills; Ine. )
105900 02/2i2 1 42,59 0.00 071972001 Coliar Brass - No 0000
101-420-2220-44170  Uhniforms
165900 Total: 42,59
ASPENMI Total: 42 59
BIFFS Biffs inec.
Multiple 06/29/2011 612.89 0.00  07/19/2011 Portable Restrooms - No 0606
101-450-5200-44120  Reritals - Buildings
~ Multiple Total: 61289
BIFFS Tota) 612.59
BURBBLAC Butber] Black Dirt, Ine.
13610 07/06/2011 5130 060 07192011 Black Dirt VFW - No 0000
101-450-5200-42250  Landscaping Materials :
13610 Total 51.30
BURBBLAC Toal; 51.30
Cé&l CONS C & I Consulting Services, LLP o ) ‘
06-2011 07/052011 4,887 50 .00 071972011 Monthly Acctg Services - hine 2011 - No 0000
101-410-1520-43150 Contréict Services S
06-2011 Totak 4,887.50
C&J CONS Total; 4,287.30
CARQUEST Car Quest Autc Parts ) ‘
2055-226848 06/29/2011 17.40 0.00 071972011 €ap & Stat 8410, - No 0080
101-420-3120-42210 Equipment Parts
2055-226846 Total: 17.40
2055-227013 06/30/201 1 125.81 6.00 077192011 Equipment Parts - No 0000
101-430-3120-42210 Equipment Parts
2055-227013. Total: 125 8} 3
2055-227344 07/05/2011 11.56 0.00 071972011 Fusl Filter - No 0000
101-430-3120-42210 Equipmient Parts
2055227344 Totak 12.5% _ _
2055-227460 §7/06/2011 340.65 0.00 0741972011 Fuel Pump No 0000
£01-430-3120-42210  Equipment Parts
2055-227460 Totak: 340,63 _ . .
2055-227661 0T/ 12.78 000 07/19/2011  Bulbs & Silicone - No 0000

101-430-3120-42210 Equipment Parts

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Tuvoice # Tnv Thite Amotmt Quantity Pmt Date Description Reférence Task Type PO #  Close POLine #
2055-227661 Total: 12.78
CARQUEST Total: 58920
COMCAST COMCAST . .
D6/27/201 1 06/27/201 1 7.90 G.00  07/19/20611  Monthly Setvice - No 000¢
101-426-2220-44300  Miscellaneous
06/2772011 Total: 7.90
COMCAST Total: 7.90
COMPENSA Compensation Consultants, Lid .
July 2011 07/072011 40.00 g.o0D 071972011 Rorthly Admin Fee - July 2011 - Nog Q000
101-410-1320-44300 Miscellaneous
Jily 2011 Total: 40.00
COMPENSA Total: 40.00
COVERALL Coverall of The Twin Cities
7070166952 07/0172011 480.94 000 07192011 Cleaning City Hall - Mo 0000
101-410-1940-44010  Repairs/Maint Contractuz! Bldg
7070166952 Total: 480.94
COVERALL Total: 480.94
CTYBLOOM City of Bleomington . _
June 2011 © BE/2972011 $0.00 000 07/19/2011  Lab Bacteris Tests - No 000
601-494-9400-42270  Utility System Maintenance
June 2011 Total: 90.00
CTYBLOOM Total: 90,00
CTYROSEV City of Roseville
(214882 07/07/2011 1.551.58 0.00  OF19/2011  Monthly IT Services - July 2011 - No a60g
101-410-1450-43180 Information Technology/Web
0214882 Total: 1.551.58
CTYROSEV Total: 1.551.58
EARLANDE Earl F. Andersen, inc.
0096016-IN 06/3072011 : 62.37 000 OWI%/2011  Teénnis Court Straps - Mo 0000
101-430-3100-44030  Repairs/Maint Imp Not Bldgs
0096016-IN Total: 62.37
EARLANDE Totah 62.37

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07714711 = 12:36 PM)
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Inveice # Inv Date Amount Quantity PmtDate Deseription Reference Task Close PQLine #
ECKBERG Eckberg Lamers Briggs Wolff
062011 06/30/201 1 3,760.04 0.00  07/19/2017  Legal Services - Prosecution June 2011 - No 0000
101-420-2150-43045  Attomey Criminal
Gb 2011 Total: 3,760.04
112774 067307201 ! 11,270.17 0.00 071972001 Legal Services - Civii - No 0000
101-410-1320-43040  Legal Services o _
112774 06/30/201 1 84330 0.00  07/19/2011 Legal Services = Development - No 0000
203-490-3070-43040  Legal Servioes - ,
i12774 06/30/201 1 78,00 000 07/19/201]  Legal Services - Infrastruchite - No 0000
413-480-8000-43040 Legal Sérvices ‘
112774 Totai: 11,991.67
ECKBERG Total: 1575171
EMMONS A Emmons Alex
07/11/2011 071172011 55.00 .00 07/19/201)  Planning Commission Meg - July 11, - No 0000
101-410-1450-43620 Cable Operatioas 2011 ‘
071172611 Total: 5500
EMMONS A Total: 55.00
ENVENTIS ENVENTIS
737300 07/01/20¢ 1 45580 0.00 0711972011 Teléplione/Data Service - PW July - No 0000
101-430-31G0-43210  Telephone 2011
737500 Total: 45340
738507 07/017201 4 569.24 0:00  OWI1%2011  Telephone/Dars Sarvice CH - July - No 0000
101-410-1940-43210  Telephone 2011
738507 Total; 56924
ENVENTIS Total: 1,025.04
HAGBERGS Hagbergs Country Market _
06/30/2011 06/30/2011 14,90 400 0771972011  Rehab Supplies and Fi/Gouiicil - No 0000
101-420-2220-44300  Miscelldriecs Whshp
08/30/2011 Total: 14.90
HAGBERGS Total: 14.90
HAWKINS Hawkins, [ne.
3236134 06/23/2011 21550 .00 07192011 Clilorine - No 0000
501-494-9400-42160 Chemicals
3236134 Total 215.50
HAWKINS Total:

215.50

AP = Td Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Inveice # Inv Date Amount uantity Pmt Date Description Reference Task Type PO#  (lose POLine #
HERITAGE Heritage Printing
2712 a7/07/2011 82.08 0.00 07192011 2 part paper for Bldg application forms - No ]
101-420-2400-42000  Office Supplics o
20712 Totak 82.08
HERITAGE Total: 82.08
KDV Kem DeWenter Viere Lid
130752 06/30/2011% 1.093.30 0.:00  07/19/201)  Fihaicial Sérvices - fune 2011 - No 0000
101-410-1520-43150 Contract Services i
130752 Toiah 1.093.50
KDV Total: 1,093.50
LINNER Linner Electric Compaity, Inc. N _ ,
21661 06/30/2011 104.00 .00 071972011 Well House i VD Failure - No 0000
o01-494-9400-44030 Repairs\Maint Imp Not Bldgs
21661 Total: 104.00
LINNER Total: 104.00
LOFF Loffier Companies, Inc. _
1268224 477052011 344 49 0.00 0719201t Copy Machine Overdge & Base - July - No 0000
101-410-1940-44040 Repzirs/Maint Contractual Eqpt 2011
1268224 Total: 244 .49
LOFF Total 244 .45
MARONEYS Maroney's Sanitation, Inc
00003951 14 06/30/2011 108.30 000 07/19/2011 Waste Removal - City Hall < No GG00
101-410-1940-43840 Refise
(000395114 06/30/2011 47.68 0.00  07/1%/2011 Waste Removal - Fire - No o0a0
101-420-2220-43840 Refiise o _
0000395114 06/30r2011 207.82 0.00  07/19/2011 Waste Removal - Public Works - Mo G000
101-420-2220-43840 Refuse
0000395114 06/30/201 1 207.82 000  07/192011  Waste Removal - Prrks - Ne 0000
101-420-2720-43840 Refise
0000395114 Total: 571.62
MARONEYS Total: 575.62
MARVS Marv's Proiesssional Tools
238901 06/30/201} 35.52 00 071972011 Spill Frée Funnel - No 0000
101-430-3100-42400 Smail Tools & Minor Equipment
238901 Total: 33.52

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07714411 - 12:36 PM}
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Inveice # fnv Date Amount Quantity PmtDaté Deseription Reéferénce Task Type PO# Close POLine #
MARVS Total: 3552
MENARDST Menards - Stillwater _ ‘
96795 47/4%2011 71.05 000  071%/2011 Siation Repairs and Cleaning Supplics - Na 00900
101-420-2220-44010 Repairs/Maint Bldg
96795 07/09/2011 20.91 0.00 0711972011  Vehicle creeper for Maint Tnspectioiis - - Mo 0600
101-420-2220-42400  Small Tools & Equipment _
95795 Totak 91,96
MENARDST Total: 91.96
METCOU Metropolitan Couneil . )
964742 07/06/2011 1,282.9% 0.00  07/19/2011 Monthly Wasiéwater Service - Aug - No 6000
602-495-9450-43820  Sewer Utility - Met Council 2011
964742 Total: 1,282.98
METCOU Total: 1.282.98
MILLEREX Miller Excavating, Inc. )
15570 06/30/2011 1,019.70 0.00  07/19201) Grading Grave! Roads - No 0000
101-430-3120-43150 Contract Services ‘ ,
15570 06/30/2011 1,36¢.00 008 07/19/2011 Haul & Dispose Street Swedpirig. - No 0000
603-4606-9500-44010  Street Swesping
15570 Total: 2318.70
MILIEREX Totak 2,319.7¢
MILLSCOL Miiis Cole . o
67/05/2011 07/95/2011 27.50 000 07/1972011 775711 €C Workshop - No 0080
101-410-1450-43620 Cszbie Operations ‘ :
0FA15/2011 Total: 2750
MILLSCOL Totak 21.50
MNUNEMPL MN Dept Economic Security )
07973555 07/08/2011 510.57 000 07/19/20611  Unemployment Insurance “ No onag
101-410-132041420 Unemployment Benefits
07973555 Total: 510.57
MNUNEMPL Total: 510.57
MSFCB MN Fire Service Cert. Board .
974 0740512011 150.00 0.60 077192011 FFH Test X2 . No 000d
101-420-2226-44330  Dues & Subscriptions
974 Tatal: 150.00

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoice # Inv Date Amount Quantity Pwmt Date Description Heferenee Task Fype PO# Close POLine &
MSFCB Total: 150.00
MTI MTI Distzibuting Inc,
795626-00 06/23/2011 83.64 0.00  @ir19/2011  Mower Blades - No 0000
101-450-5200-42210 Equipment Parts ‘
7956326-00 Total: 83.64
MTI Total: 83.64
NORTHL Northiand Trust Services, Inc.
ELMOG4A 08£07/2011 £4.633.75 0.00  07/19/2011 [nterest - GO Cap boprv Bond 2004A - No 0004
313-480-8000-46]1 10  Bond lnterest _
ELMO04A Total: B4,633.75 A
LKELI0A 06072011 9,265.78 0.00 07197201 Intérest - GO Impr Bond Series 20098 - No 0000
317-470-7000-46110 Bond Interest
LKELIOA Totl: 92585718
NORTHL Total: 73.899.53
ONECALL Gopher State One Call
15023 ariol20 214.90 0.0¢ 07/19/2011 Line Locates - Jurie 201 - Mo Q000
i01-430-3100-43150 Contract Services
15023 ‘Total: 714,90
ONECALL Total: 21490
PITNEY Pitney Bowes
397219 080272011 211.83 Q.00 07/19/2011 Postage Machiie Rerital - No 0000
101-410-1940-44010 Repairs/Maint Contractual Bldg
397219 Total: 21183
PITNEY Totai: 211.83
PLANTH PLANT HEALTH ASSOCIATES, INC
1051-11 07/13/2011 2,100.00 0.60 0711972041 Forester Services - June 2011 - No 0000
101-430-3250-43150  Contract Services
10SE-11 Totak 2,100.00
PLANTH Total: 2,100.00
POMPS Pomp's Tire Service; Inc.
519197 ‘ 06/30/2011 400.15 0.00 0719720171 Tires for tofo 4000 D - No 9000
101-450-5200-44040 Repairs/Maint Eqpt
519197 Towl 400.15

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/1 1 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoige # Inv Date Amount Quantity PmtDate Description Reference Task Type PO#  Close POLiné #
POMPS Total: 40(.15
PRESSA Anastasia Press ‘
07/05/2011 077952011 535,00 G060  07/19/2011  City Coungil Mg - 7/5/11 - No {000
01-410-1450-43620 Cable Qperations
07/05/2011 Total: 55.00
PRESSA Total: 55.00
RIVRCOOP Rivet Country Cooperative )
06/30/2011 06/3072011 1,143.02 0.80 0771972011 Fuyel a Ne 0000
1031-420-2220-42120 Fael, O and Fluids
06/3(/2011 Totak 1,143.02
RIVRCOOP Total: 1,143.02
S&T S&T QOffice Products, Ing:
010R1287 06/30/2011 44.67 0.00 071972011 Office Supplies - No 0400
101-410-1320-42000  Office Supplies
010R1287 Totak 4457
0I0R1612 47/0172011 336 0.00 071972011 Ink Cartridge for printér/oopier - No 0000
131-420-2220-42000 Office Supplies ‘ '
010R1612 Total: 21.36
S&T Total: 66.03
SAMSCLUB Sam's Club
07/01/2011 07/0172011} 19.80 000 0119/2011  Supplies for Fite Dept = No 0040
101-420-2920-24010 Repairs/Maint Bldg
07/01/2011 Total: 19.80 _ _
071122011 071272011 37.856 0.00  07/19/2011 Rehab Suppiies - N¢ 0ogo
1H1-420-2220-44300 Miscellanebus
07/12/2011 Toiak 37.86
SAMSCLUB Total: 57.66
STCRTREE 8t. Croix Tree Service _
65624 D6/30/2011 470.25 0:00 071972011  Cut & Remove Foplar Lisbon Ave - No 00600
101-430-3250-43150 Contract Services
65624 Total: 470.25
STCRTREE Total:

470:25

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (D7/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoice #

Inv Date Amount  Onantity  Pmt Date  Déscripfion Referénce Task Type PO# LClose POLipe #
S¥mbol Symbol Arts
0149901-iN 06/21/2011 82.50 0.00 07/19/20i1 Replacement Radge - No 0000
101-420-2220-4473  Uniforms
3149%901-1N Total: 82.50
SYmbol Total: 82.50
TASCH T.A. Schiifsky & Sons fnc B
51498 06/21/2011 510.86 0.00  07/19/2011 Asphalt - No 0800
101-430-3120-42340  Street Maintenance Materidls .
51493 Total: 510.86 ,
51547 06/27/2011 348.67 000 0971942011 Asphalt - No 6000
101-430-3120-42240  Street Mainténance Materials _
51547 Totak 348.67
51596 0710572011 886.35 0.00  07/19/2011  Asphalt - No 0000
101-430-3120-42240 Street Maintepance Materials
31596 Total: 886.33
TASCH Total: 1,745.88
TDS THS METROCOM - LLC
631-779-8882 Q771372011 157.20 0.0¢  07/19/2011 Analog Lines - Fitg - No 0000
1041-420-2220-43210  Telephone
631-779-8882 07/1372014 156.01 0.00 071972011  Analog Lines - Public Woiks - No 0000
101-430-3100-43210  Telephone _
631-779-8882 9771372011 104,76 000 07192011 Anziog Lines -'Li% Station Alarms - No 0040
602-495-9450-43210 Telephone o
651-779-8882 07n13/2011 4224 00 077192011 Aldrm - Well House #2 - No 060
607-494-9400-43210 Telephone )
651-779-8882 Total: 460.21
TDS Total: 46021
TKDA TKDA, lnc. : ‘
0020110¢1796 0771472011 1,363.55 (.00 0771972011 Development - Whistling Vzliey - No Q000
203-490-9070-43030 Fngineering Services
002011001796 Total: 1,363.55
002011001797 07/14/2011 414,73 0060 077192011 Developmert - Sanctuary - No 0000
203-490-9070-4303¢ Enginecring Services
002011001797 Total: 414.73
002011001798 07714/2011 1,850.04 000 D719/2011 1994 to 30th Street » Village Sanitary = Na 000G
413-480-8006-43030 Engineering Services
002011001798 Total: 1,850.04
002011001799 §7/14/2011 2,346.36 0.00  07/19/2011  Iake Elit 2010 Strect & Water - No 000¢
417-480-3000-43030 Engineering Services Quality
(02011001799 Total: 2,346.36

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07714711 - 12:36 PM)
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Inveire # Inv Date Amount Quantity Pmt Date Description Reference Task Type PO# Close POLine#
(02011001800 0711472011 1.426.74 G6.00 071192011 Lake Eimo Water Systems = No 0000
601-494-9400-43030 Fngincering Services Strategies/Fin

002611001800 Tokak: 142674 ‘
002011001801 771442011 13,001.14 Q.00 07/19/200F 2011 Strest Imptoveinents/Water - HNo 0000
418-480-8000-43030 Engineering Services Cuaity

002611001801 Total: 13,001.14
002011001802 07/14/201 | 178.78 0.00 0771972013  Genetal Erigineering - No 0000
101-420-24060-43030  Engineering
002011001802 07/14/2011 30B.88 0.00 97192011 General Bugineering - No 0000
101-430-3100-43030  Engineering Services
(002011001802 07/14/2011 4,151.61 0.00 07/1%72011 General Engineering = No 0006
101-410-1930-43030  Engineering Services
002011001802 07/1472011 194.68 0.00 07192011 General Engiﬁeerin_g_ - Neo Q000
101-410-1910-43030  Engineering Services

002611001802 Total: 4,833.95
002011001803 0771472011 1.295.73 0.00 07192001  Ceneral Engineering - VRA - Mo 0000
101-420-2400-43030 Engingering
002011001803 07/1472011 1,872.30 0.00  7/19/2011 General Engineeting - VR A - Ne 000
101-410-1910-4303¢0  Engineering Services .
002011001803 071472011 3,842.42 009 07/19/2011 Genetal Engineering » VRA . No 0400
101-410-1930-43030  Enginesring Services
002011001803 07/14/2011t 937.62 Q.00 97/19%/2011 Qetieral Enginecring ~- VRA - No 0000
409-480-8000-43030  Engineering Services _ _
00Z01 1001803 67/14/2011 446.00 0.00 071972011 General Engineering - VRA - No 0000
404-430-8000-43030 Engineering Services ‘
002011001803 0771472011 79110 0.00 0711972011 General Engineering = VRA - No 0000
703-430-3120-43030 Engineering Services . .
002011001803 071443011 1,408.96 0.00  07/19/2011 Geiieral Engineéting - VRA - No 0000
$01-494-2400-43030  Engineering Services )
002011001803 0711412011 320.02 009 074192011 Gehéral Engingéring - VRA - No 0000
602-495-9450-43030 Engineering Services : )
002011001803 0771472011 2,994.79 000 §7/192011  Generdl Engineering < VRA - N 0000
603-496-9500-43030 Engineering Services '

002011001803 Toial: 12,908.94
002011001804 0771472011 3,54¢.14 000 07/192011 2011 Seat Coat Projéct. - No Baoo
409-480-800043030 Engineering Services :

(02011001804 Totak: 3.349.14 .
002011001806 07/14/201) 562 62 0:00  07/19/2011 Lake Elmo District Sidetvalk Maint - No boop
409-480-8000-43030 Engiheering Services

002011001806 Total: 562.62 _ .
002011¢01814 077147201 1 1,478.16 0.00  D7/19/2011 Lake Elmo Cri Drafnage Cofréction - No 0000
409-430-8000-4303¢  Enginesting Services

002011001814 Total: 1,478.16

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Inveice # inv Date

Afpoupt Quantity Pint Date  Déscription Reierence Task Type PO#  Close FOLine #
TKDA Total: 43,735.37
VEOLIA Veolia Envirotmental Services i
G350001825694 0672572011 5,833.91 000 071972011 Clean Up Day Waste Remaval 2 No 0000
101-430-3100-44380 Clean-up Days
G50001823694 Total: 5.833.91
VEOLIA Totak: 3,233.91
VISALE4Q VISA
8040 05/30/2011 39536 0.00  OW1%201Y  Lodging - Fire Training - Ne Joco
101-420-7220-44370 Conferences & Trsining
8040 05/306/2011 6.68 000 0HIWI011  Leapue of MM Cities Conference “ No GO0
101-410-1320-44370  Conferences & Training
8040 Toial: 402.24
VISALE40 Total: 402,24
XCEL Xeel Energy
51-0117417-0 07/14/2011 39.69 0.00 077193011 Welcorié Sign - Keats Avenue No 0000
101-430-316043810  Street Lighting
51-0117417-0 Totak 30.69 S
51-4504807-7 0771472001 189.62 400 071972011 Lights at Legion Park - No 000G
101-450-5200-43810  Electtic Utility .
51-4504807-7 07/1472011 86.61 0.00 07192011 Lift Station B No 0000
602-495-9450-43810  Eleetric Utility
51-4504807-7 07/142011 3519 000 §1I2001  Traffic Lights - No 0000
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting
51-4504807-7 Total: 311.42
51.4572045.7 Q771472011 28.03 0.00 07/19/2011 Sireet Lights - No 0000
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting
51-4572945-7 Total: 28.03 ‘
51-4576456-3 07/14/2011 361.45 0.06  ©07/19/2011 Fire Ststion 2 - No G000
101-420-7220-43810  Electric Utility
5§1-4576456.3 Totdk: 36145
31-4580376-3 0771472011 330.25 0.00  07/19/2013  City Hall - No 0000
101-410-1940-43810 Electiic Uti!itj/
5143803765 071147201} 33.98 0.00 077192011  Traffic Lights - Ne 0000
101-430-3160-43810 Street Lighting
51-4580376-5 0771472011 25863 .00 07/1972011  City Hall - Mg 9660
101-410-1940-43810  Eleciric Utility
51-4580376-5 Total: 622,86 ]
51-4733556-8 07/14/2011 10.19 0.00  §7/19/2011  Tehmis Court No 0000
191-450-3200-43810 Electric Utility
51-4733556-8 Total: 10.ig

AP - To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoice # Inv Date

Améunt Quantity PmtDate Description Reierence Task Type PO# Close POLine #

51-5044219-0 07/14/2011 4916 060 07192011 Parks Building - No 0000
101-450-5200-43810  Electric Utility _

51:5044219-0 Total: 49.16 :
51-5275289-3 07/14/2011 9.95 0.00 97192011 Pebble Park - No 0000
101-450-5200-43810  Electrie Ulility

51-5275289-3 Total: 9.95%
51-5356323.8 071472011 2,360.25 0.00  QWIvR011 Wells1&2 - No 0000
601-494-9400-43810  Flectric Utility

51-5356323-§ Totak 236023 _
51-5529332.2 074/2011 4421 000 11972011 Traffic Lights - No gao00
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting

51-5522332.2 Total: 44.21
51-5747685-4 07/14/2011 94.32 0.00 071972011 Ané Center - No 0000
101-450-5200-43810  Elsctiic Usility ‘

51-5747685-4 Total: 94,32
51-5916043-7 U3/14/2011 18.85 000 OM19/2011  Lif Seatioh - No 0000
602-495-9450-43810  Elsetric Utility

51-5916043-7 Total: 18.95 ‘ _
51-6479583-8 07/14/201t 1630 0.00 071972011  Lift Station - No 0009
602-495-9450-43810  Electric Utikity

51-6429583-8 Total: 16.90
51-6433976-2 0711442011 287.81 0.00  07/1%/3011 Fire Station #1 - No 0000
108-420-2220-43810  Eleotric Utility

51-6433976-2 Total: 287:81 ‘
51-6625457-1 07/14/2011 36.27 0.00  07/19/2011  Legion Park - No boog
101-450-5200-43810  Eleciric Utlity

51-6625457-1 Total; 36.27
51-6736544-2 07/14/2011 1,859.81 000 074972011 Street Lights - No 0000
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting

51-6736544-2 Totai: 1,859.31
51-6928283-3 07/14/2011 3197 0.00 077192011 Traffic Lights - Manning . No 0000
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting

51-6928283-3 Total: 31.97
51-6956201:4 07114/2011 53032 0.00 87/1%2011 VFW Balifield Lights e No 0000
101-450-5200-43810  Elechric Utility

51-6956201-4 Total: 330,22 ,
51-7538112-1 07714/2011 466,18 0.00 07192011 Public Woiks - No 0000
141-430-3100-43810  Electrie Utility

51-7538112:1 Total: 46678
51-8126093-5 07714/2011 1870 0:00  07/19/2011  Water Tower §2 - No 0000
601-494-9400-43810 Eleetric Utility

51-8126093:5 Total: 18.70
51-871171%:3 07/1472011 11.39 0.00  07/19/201) Speed Sign Hwy 5 - No 0009
101-430-3160-43810  Street Lighting

51-8711719-3 Total: 1139

AP -To Be Paid Proof List (07/14/11 - 12:36 PM)
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Invoice # Inv [3ate Amount Quantity PmtDate Description Releience TFask Type  PO#  Close POLine #

XCEL Total: 7,201.33

Report Total: 170,622.24

AP - To Be Paid Proof List {§7/14/1 1 ~ 12:35 PM) Page 13



MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7121111
CONSENT
ITEM #: 3

MOTION as part of Consent Agenda
AGENDA ITEM: 2011 Seal Coat Project ~ Authorizing Payment No. 1
SUBMITTED BY: Larry Bohrer, P.E.
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administrator @Q\V\\

REVIEWED BY:  Mike Bouthilet, Public Works
Tom Bouthilet, Finance Director

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is respectfully requested to
approve partial payment to Pearson Bros,, Inc., the Contractor for the 2011 Seal Coat project.
The Contractor submitted Partial Payment Certificate No, 1 in the amount of $69,076.00. This
request has been reviewed and payment is recommended in the amount requested. No specific
motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the Consent
Agenda.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The estimated cost fo seal coat streets in Lake Elmo per the
2011 Seal Coat Project Contract was $73,500. The actual cost was $69,076, resulting in savings
of $4,424. This reduced amount includes savings due to management of quantity. A retainage
of 5% has been withheld per the Contract documents.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information, it is recommended
that the City Council approve as part of tonight’s Consent Agenda.

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda, table this item for future consideration, or further discuss, deliberate and/or, if
appropriate, amend the recommended motion prior to taking action, If the latter is done so, the
appropriate action of the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to authorize Partial Payment No. 1 in the amount of $69,076.00
to be paid from the Street Maintenance Fund
for the 2011 Seal Coat Project. fand amended
and/or modified af tonight’s meeting].”

- page 1 --




P R
City Council Meeting 2011 Beal Coat Acceptance and Payment No. 1
June 21, 2011 Consent Agenda Jtem #

ATTACHMENTS: (1)

1. Payment Certificate No. 1 for the 2011 Seal Coat Project

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda):

Questions from Council to Staff.........cooen...

Call for WIOHOM oeevreeeeeveevrrvsrasererns

IISCUSSION . cveeeesreseneesean

ACHON ON VIOHOI cor it seeeeereee s e ve s e e s vesessieessnnenns

--page 2 -

cverennennnnnnens Mayor Facilitates

crererenenennn Mayor & City Couneil
veerssssnsensnneneene Mayor & City Council

wenvemnees Mayor Facilitates




444 Cedar Street, Sulle 1500

Sainl Paul, MN 55104
TR T ————— prer il
warw lkda.com

1Proj. No. 14816.003 Cert. No. ) St. Paul, MN, __ July 14 , 2011

To City of Lake Elino, Minnesota Owner
This Certifies that Pearson Brothers Contractor
For __ 2011 Seal Coat Project

Is entitled to__ Sixty-Five Thousand Six Hundred Twenty Two Dollars and_ 207100 —csrmamaee ($ 65,622.20)
being _ 1st estimate for partial payment on contract with you dated May 19 L2011
Received payment in full of above Certificate. TEKDA |

Pearson Bros, Inc, | f sy JCQ -

, 2011 Larry D. Qﬂ%‘er, P.E.

RECAPITULATION OF ACCOUNT

CONTRACT
PLUS EXTRAS PAYMENTS CREDITS
Conitract price plus exiras 3 119,200.00
{ All previous payments ' 3 -
All previous credits
: Extra No.
Credit No. 8 .
(13 "
AMOUNT QF THIS CERTIFICATE | 3 65,622.20
| Totals b 119,200.00 | $ 65,622.20| § -
Credit Balance ' $ -
| There will remain unpaid on coniract after
1 payment of this Certificate 3 53,577.80
by 119,200.00 | & 119,200,000 | $ -

An Enployee Bwned Company Promoting Affirmative Aclion and Equal Opporturtiy



TKDA
Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

Engineers-Architects-Planners

PERIODICAL ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENTS

Estimate No, 1 __ Period Ending June 30 ,20_11 Page 1-0f ] Proj. Ne, 14816.003
Contractor Pearson Brothers Original Contract Amount $119.208.00
Project 2011 Sea] Coat Project
Locafion City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota
Total Contract Wetk Completed $ 69,076.00
Total Approved Credits 5 0,00
Total Approved Extra Work Completed $ 0.00
Approved Exfra Orders Amount Completed £ 0.00
Tota] Amowunt Earned This: Estimate $ 69,076,00
Less Approved Credils $ 0.00
Less 5 % Retaimad $ 3:453.80
Less Previous Payments b (.00
Total Deductions $ 3,453.80
Amount Due This Estimate it 65,622.20
Contractor Date
Engineer ﬁyﬁ’m"? -"éz . m Date July 14, 2011

Larry Df)ﬁohrer, P.E,




ESTIMATE NO. 1

2011 SEALCOAT PROJECT

CITY OF LAKE ELMO AND WEST LAKELAND TWP, MINNESOTA

PROJECT NO. 14816.063

ITEM
NC.

1

DESCRIPTION

GITY OF LAKE ELMO & \WEST LAKELAND TOWNSHIP
BITUMINOUS BEAL COAT WITH 1/8" DRESSER TRAP
RGCK

TOTAL ESTIMATE NO. 1

CONTRACT  QUANTITY
UNIT  QUANTITY. ~ TO DATE

8Y  119,200.00 68,076.0

FPERIOD ENDING:

June 30, 2011

.+.f_
DIFFERENCE

(50,124.00) §

UNIT AMGUNT
PRICE TO DATE

1.00 § 69,076.00

§ 69,076.00



MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7119711
CONSENT
ITEM #: ha

MOTION as part of the Consent Agendo

AGENDA ITEM: Resolution accepting work for the 2010 Street Improvement Project and
authorize Payment No. 4(Final).

SUBMITTED BY: Larry Bohrer, P.E.
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administratm’ﬁ {N

REVIEWED BY: Tom Bouthilet, Finance Direclor

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is respectfully requested to
accept the work completed by T.A. Schifsky and Sons, Inc. under the contract for the 2010 Street
and Water Quality Improvement Project. The work has been reviewed by staff and is fully
completed in accordance with the centract, plans, and specifications. Please refer to the
attachments for the Engineer’s Letter of Final Acceptance for the project.

Additionally, the city council is respectfully requested to approve final payment to T.A. Schifsky
and Somns, Inc. for the 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project. T.A. Schifsky and
Seons, Inc. has submitted Payment Certificate No. 4 (Final) in the ameunt of $23,965.29 with all
reguired documentation, including Change Order No. 4 and Compensating Change Order No. 5.
This request has been reviewed and payment is recommended in the amount requested. All work
has been completed per contract documents. The one-year warranty will begin July 19, 2011 and
extend to July 18, 2012,

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: The original construction contract for the 2010 Street and
Water Quality Project was $425,565.41. The actual cost to complete the work was $435,164.12,
The additional cost of $9,598.71 was due to additional material required for proper sub-grade
construction on Jane Road North, and the additional work and delay of work on 57" Street North
due to unforeseen conditions of the road base.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information, it is recommended
that the City Council approve as part of tonight’s Consen: Agenda accepting the Worlk for the
2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project and authorize final payment.

- page | -




City Council Meeting 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project
July 19, 2011 Consent Agenda ltem # 4a

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to table this item for future consideration,
or further discunss and deliberation prior to taking action. If the latter is done so, the appropriate
action of the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to accept the work for the 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project and
autherize payment No. 4(Final) in the amount 0 $23,965.29 to be paid from the Project
“Fund for the 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvements project fand amended and/or
modified ai tonight’s meeting].”

ATTACHMENTS: (3)

1. Engineer’s recommendation for final acceptance, dated July 19, 2011.

2. Payment Certificate No. 4(Final) for the 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement
Project.

3. Change Order No. 4

4, Compensating Change Order No, 5

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda);

- Questions from Council to Staff ...........cccvrvinermevereniecsnrenonn... Mayor Facilitates

- “Call for MoBon .......ceeeeeen. ST rerareeerrnneas Mayor & City Council
- DISCUSSION trreercicr i s sresrernnnessnnsensesssaressessssnnannennnnes. Mayor & City Council
- Action on Motion............... e nr e s e er st aen Mayor Facilitates

" page 2 -
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TKDA

ENGINEERING * ARCHITECTURE = PLANNNG |
"The »ight time, The right peopls, The vight compang

444 Cedar Strest, Suite 1500
Salnt Paul, MK 85101

{651) 292-4400
{651) 202-0083 Fax
- wawikda.com

July 19, 2011

Honorable Mayor and City Council Members
City of Lake Eimo

3800 Laverne Avenue

Lake Elmo, Minnesota 55042

Re:  Engineer's Recommendation of Final Acceptance
2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project
City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota
TKDA Project No. 14504.001

Dear Mayor and City Council Members:

We have reviewed the work under Contract for the 2010 Street and Water Quality Improvement
Project, and find that all of the project has been fully completed in all respects according to the
Contract, Plans and Specifications as prepared by TKDA.

The Improvements for Jane Road, Isle Avemue, and 53™ Street were previously accepted on
February 1, 2011. The one-year Warranty Period for Jane Road, Isle Avenue, and 53% Street
began on November 1, 2010, and will end on October 31, 2011.

The Tmprovements for 57™ Street are. hereby declared to be complete and acceptance.-of the

Contractor’s work (T.A. Schifsky and Sons, Inc.) is recommended. The one year Wartanty
Period for 57" Street will begin July 19, 2011 and will end on July 18, 2011.

Sincerely,

wgl? i ;
Larry Bohrer, P.E,

ce; Bruce Messelt, City Administrator

An Emplayes Owned Gompany Promoling Affirmative Action ard Equal Opporionity
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: l & DA ' 444 Cadar Streat, Suile 1500
— ' Saint Paul, MK 55101-2140

B ENGINEERING * ARCHITECTURE = PL‘ANN\NG?

The vight time, The vight peogle, The right company (661) 292-4400

(651)-202-0083 Fax
www.tkda.com

Praj. No, 14504.001 Cert. No. 4F St. Panl, MN, _ July 13 , 2011
To City of Lake Eling, Minnesota Owner
This Certifies that T.A. Schifsky and Sons, Inc, , Contractor

|For 2010 Street and Water Ouality Improvements

{Is entitled to __Twenty Three Thousand Nine Hundred Sixty Five Dollars and 297100 ($23.965.29)
o FINAL
being _ 4th estimate for-pattial payment on coritract with you dated June 4 _ ,_ 2010
Received payment in full of above Certificate. TKDA
T.A. Schifsky and Sons, Inc. N, '-":ﬂLMﬁf\ 1({9 . /ﬁo—ftfm
, 2011 Larry D. Btﬁf'ﬁ'ez;, PE.

RECAPITULATION OF ACCOUNT

CONTRACT
PLUS EXTRAS PAYMENTS ; CREDITS
Contract price plus exiras 3 425.565.41 :
All previous payments 3 411,198.83
All previous credits
Exira No.
Change Order No, 1 % 8.805.00
Change Order No, 3 5 3,000,55
Change Order No. 4 $ 892.45
Compensating Change Order No 5 b (3,198.29)
15 -
AMOUNT OF THIS CERTIFICATE ¥ 23,965.29
Totals hY 435,164.12 | ¥ 435,164.12 | § -
Credit Balance $ -
There will remain unpaid on contract after
payment of this Certificate $ -
3 435,164.12 | § 435164121 % -

An Employee Owned Gompany Promoting Affirmative Action and Equal Gpportunity



TEKDA
Engineers-Architects-Planners  Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

PERIODICAL ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENTS

Estimate No. 4F  Period Ending July 13 L2011 Page 1 of 1 Proj. No. 14504.001
Contractor T.A. Schifsky and Sons, Inc. QOriginal Confract Amount 425.565.41
Project 2010 Street and Water Quality Tmprovements

Location City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota

Total Centract Work Completed $ 435,164.12
Tatal Approved Credits % .00
Total Approved Extra Work Completed $ 0,60
Approved Extra Orders Amount Completed $ _ 0.00
Totl Amount Earned This Estimate ‘ $ 435,164.12
Less Approved Credits N 0.00
Less 0 % Retained i) 0.00
Less Previous Payments $ 411,198.83
Total Deductions $ 411,198.83
Amount Due This Estimate . b 23,965.29
[
ﬁ s ul / / .
Contractor Date 7 /% / l'

TiA, Schifsky and Sml{sﬁr{/c.

Engineer ﬁdﬁww /& . WMM Date P S5~ 1F

Larty DBohrer, P.E,
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PAY ESTIMATE NO. 4F PERIOD ENDING: June 271, 2011
2010 STREET & WATER QUALITY iIMPROVEMENTS
CITY OF | AKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
. | TKDAPROJEGT NG, 14504.001
TTEM |CONTRACT| QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT
NG. DESCRIPTION UNIT T QUANTITY| TO DATE PRIGE TODATE
JANE NORTH ROAD 1
[] MOBILIZATION L5 i 1.0 [ 3 3,500.00 | § 3.500.00
2 TRAFFIC GONTROL L8 1 1073 309,00 | § 308.00
3 BILT FENCE IF 468 93410 | 8 2.06 % 1,824.04
4 {INLET PROTEGTION EA 2 O B2.40 | § 432.00
5 SALVAGE & RENGIALL- MAILBOX EA 11 1.0 § 66.96 | § 76,45
[ |GLEAR & GRUB TREE EA 2 7.0 | § 206,00 |3 1,442.60
7 SALVAGE & REINGSTALL SIGN EA 3 1 2380 | 8 N
i SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) iF 318 207.0 | 8 103 | % 305.61
9 REMOVE & DISPGSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVE SY 195 8.6 | 1.65 |5 539,40
10 REMOVE & DISFOSE OF EXIST. PAVEMENT (STREETS) 8Y 2487 24870 | § 143 |8 2,810.31
11 REMOVE. & DISPQSE OF EXIST. STORM SEWER MANHGLE EA - 2 20§ 616.00 | § 1,236.00
[ REMOVE & DiSPOSE OF EXIST. STORM SEWER{ALL TYPES & 5t LF 22 220 [ 8 1854 1 | 407,88
13 COMMON EXCAVATION (P) CY 1370 1,370.0 | § 7.3 [ 10,580.10
14 IBUBGRADE PREPARATION RS 18 100 [ § 16085 % 1,860.60"
16 PLACE & GOMPACT RECLAIMED MATERIAL {FROM OTHER SITE: CY 1046 8110 | § 442 | 3 2,517.52
16 2360 TYPE LV 3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE TN 0 2030 [ § 87.57 |8 11,686.71 |
97 [2360 TYPE |V 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE TN 210 2100 | § B7.57 | 12;080.70
18 [BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR JAGK COAT GAL 17 1160 [ § 2.08 | 236.90:]
19 2% 3380 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE gy 195 B0 | § i0.61 | § 3,602.28 |
20 SAW & BEAL STREET (40" INTERVALS) LF 497 4750 | § 1.67 | § 763.25
2t D412 CONCRETE GURB & GUTTER EF 2140 2,300 [ § 793 % 16,800.90
) 12" REP CL. 5 STORM SEWER PIPE LF 22 220 | § 30.90 579:80
=] 46"DIAMETER MANHOLE, TYPE 4068.(0-10° BEPTH) EA 1 1.0 |3 7,266.00 | § 2, 266,00 |
24 GATCH BASIN, TYPE 4645 . EA i 10 [ ;057,00 | § 1,857.00
25 1"PERFORATED PVC EDGE DRAIN WIBAGIFILL & WiRAP 1 4 24.0 | § 9.97 | 222,48
26 EROSION STABILIZATION MAT, GL, 2 §Y 4 LYAE 515 552,354
77 DITCH CHECK EA 3 30§ 412,00 | § 1,236.00
.28 INFILTRATION-DITGH iF 125 126.0- | § 20,80 | § 2,676.00
28 RAIN GARDEN EA 1 10§ 927,00 | GI7.00°}
30 RAIN-GARDEN WiSUIP ] EA P 20 % 144200 | § 2;584.00°
3 MnDOT SEED MIX328 WY FERTILIZER & WOOD FIBER BLANKET BY 175 60 381 A1B.76
SHORT GRASS WOOUS EDGE SAVANNAWENHANCEMENT
ag AND'WOOD FISER BLANKET 8Y 432 2050 | § 464 | § 961-20:
NES] SODDING BY 663 1,0480 [ 5 258 | % 2, 703.84
; SUBTOTAL JANE NOFTH ROAD 3 ‘60,803.08
l 1SLE AVENUE.NORTH
14 [MOBILIZATION i85 1 1.0 | 444400 | % 4,444.00
2 TRAFFIC-GONTRBL LS 1 10 30600 306,00
IE] SILT FENCE LF 185 202.0 1.02 [§ 206,04
4 INLET PROTEGTION EA 3 301§ 81,60 |- 244,80
5 SALVAGE & REINSTALL MAILBGX EA 14 14.0 | § 8,70 | § 1,213.80
8 SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) IF EEE) 2520 |3 19513 ZBDB0-
7 REMOVE-& DISROBE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVENMENT (DRIVE, &Y 134 1560 | § [ 237,18
8 REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (DRIVEW  SY HD 7.0 306 [ § 2142
g BUBGRADE CORRECTIGN [ 4440 1,528,0 3.06 | § 4.576,68.
[0 1LOAD & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL {LV) CY 414 280.0 5.97 1,562.20°
11 REGLAIM EX, BiT. AND BASE MATERIALS 87 6520 G.7470 0.87 5,869.80
12 SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFAGE RS 16 6.0 § 10200 |3 1,632.00
13 2380 TYPE LV 3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE T 517 544.0 | § 56.50 | 30,736.00
{14 2360 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE TN - B17 526,71 | § 56.50 | § 28,704,531
15 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK.GOAT GAL 289 210.0 |3 204 [§ 428.40
8 2" 23680 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING GOURSE, DRIVE SY 1866 7650 |8 L ERE 1,620,065
47 8" CONCRETE DRIVE 8¢ 50 3.0 |5 3162 [ % 84,85
18 SAW & SEAL STREET (40" INTERVALS} LF 1121 11200 | § 965§ 1,848.00
18 D412 CONCRETE CURE & GUTTER LF 5304 3,285.0 | § 7.85 | § 25,180,256
20 SAWGUT INLET EA 3 - TE WBEOH -
21 |CL. 3 RIPRAF W GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC cY 4 4018 PRI 44B.80°
22 EROBION STABILIZATION MAT, G2 BY B 60§ 10.20 1 § 61.20
23 DITCH GRADING g 35 36.0 ERERES 321,80
24 RAIN GARDEN EA 1 1:0 [ZEXNE G18.00
25 IMnDOT SEED MiX 260 Wi FERTILIZER. & WOOD FIBER BLANKET 5Y 78 GA0.0 3.57 2,320.50
26 [SOBDING SY 080 1.707.0 3.06 5.223.42
SUBTOTAL ISLE AVENUE NORTH 779,566,67

Page 1
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PAY ESTIMATE NO, 4F PERIOD ENDING: Iine 21, 2011
|
2010 STREET & WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENTS
CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
TKDA PROJECT NE. 14504,001
ITEM CONTRACT, QUANTHY UNIT AMOUNT
NO.  IDESERIPTION UNIT | QUANTITY [ TO DATE PRICGE TO DATE
63IRD STREET NORTH
i MOBILIZATION 5 i 105 400000 § 4,000.00
2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS i 1.0 308.00 | § 306.60
3 SiLTFENGE LF {06 136.0 2.04 | § 27744
4 INLET PROTECTION E ] 7.0 81.60 | § G71.20.
1B SAWGUT PAVEMENT (ALLTYPES) LF 446 331.0 102 (3 368.02
& REMOVE & DISPOSE CF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVEY &Y 197 198.0 1.53 20088
7 REMOVE & DISFOSE GF EXIST. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (CRIVEW &Y aE - 3.06 | § -
18 REMOVE & DISPOSE CF EXI5T, STORM SEWER MANHOLE EA 2 Z,0 714,00 | § 1,428.00
12 REMOVE & DISPOSE GF BXI5T. STORM SEWER (ALL TYPES & SI LF a0 30.0 714§ 31420
iD SUBGRADE CORRECTION Y 2520 440 3.06 | % 13464
i LOAD & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL (L) [#'5 411 410 1 81273 2.575,32
12 RECLAINTEX. BIT. AND BASE MATERIALS Y 10500 10,700.0 077 1 § 8,239.00
|is SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFAGE RS 3z 320 85.00 2,720.00
14 2360 TYPE LV B BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE ™ 1.084 10427 1% 56,00 56,300:64
5 236D TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING GOURSE TN 876 8000 % 56.00 | § 40,540.00
|e BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACIK COAT GAL 400 3800 | S 2.04 | § 77520
17 2" 2360 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE Y 297 169.0 | % 10.51 | § 1,906.35,
18 6" DONCRETE DRIVE 8Y 35 BRE 3366 | § -
19 REMOVE & REFLACE BITUMINOUS FLUME EA z 2.0 | § {02.00 | § 204,0¢-
20 SAW & SEAL STREET {40 INTERVALS} LF 2005 2.356.0 | ' 1856 | § #,BB7.40
21 CONNECT DRAINTILE TO EXISTING STORM SEWER =) i 1.0 % 306,00 306.00
22 ADJUST CATCH BASIN CASTING & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS “EA [ 80| % 153,00 B18.06
28 12" RCP CL. 5 5TORM SEWER PIRE LF 30 EEAE 27,54 B26.20
24 48" BIAMETER MANHOLE, TYPE 4088 (010 DEPTH) EA 1 1.0 '§ 274400 2.244.00.
25 CATCH BASIN, TYPE 4048 EA 1 101§ 173450 1,734.00
8 4" PERFORATED PVC EDGE DRAIN WIBAGKFILL & WRAP LF 16 20.0 |§ 1530 A08,00.
37 EROSION STABILIZATION MAT, GL, 2 BY 1z 70§ 612 1§ 42 B4
28 RAIN GARDEN EA ? 103§ 1600 | § BI6.60
35 SODDING Y 2570 34360 | § 255 8,766.26
SUBTOTAL 63RD STREET NORTH 162,201.62
87TH STREET NORTH -
1 MOSILIZATIGN g 1 1.0 |- 2,000.00 4,600,00
b TRAFFIC CONTROL L5 1 1.0 [- 208,00 308,00
3 SILT FENGE LE 80 37.0 1 3 204 1. 7548
4 INLET PROTEGTION EA 2 2.0 13 B1.60_ 63.20
5 SAWCUT PAVEMENT [ALL TYPES) LF 198 187,0 | | 0z 9074
2 REMOVE. & DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVE BY BB 89,0 2.04- 61.56
7 SUBGRADE CORRECTION &Y 883 663.0 | - .06 2.068.98
8 LLOAD & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL (V) cY 233 233.0 |- 5,97 4,381,01
8 RECLAIM EX, BIT. AND BASE MATERIALS Y 3,787 3,767.0 [ 3 G.77 2,800.50
10 'SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFACE RS i 1103 B1.60 807.60
11 2360 TYPE [V 3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE T 382 ERES E7.57 | & 27,368.47
12 2360 TYPE V.4 BITUMINO LIS WEARING COURSE T 314 3280 | 5757 |'§ 16,862.80
3 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK GOAT GAL 176 200.0 204 408.00
14 2" 2380 TYPE LV 4 BITUMNOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE gy 80 76.0 10,51 788.76
15 SAW & SEAL STREET (AQ"INTERVALS) F 791 756,0 | § 1.65 1,247 40
18 CONNECT GRAINTILE TO EXISTING STORM SEWER EA q 2.0 266,00 1 § 510,00
17 ADJUST CATCH BASIM CASTING & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA Z 20 153,00 | § 366.00
18 4"BERFORATED PVE EDGE DRAIN W/BACKFILL & WRAP LF 3B0 422.0 | 10.20 [ § 4.30440
18 SODDING 5Y 763 68,0 2,55 | 8 1,705.40
SUBTOTAL 671H STREET NORTH 3 59,715.56
GHANGE ORDER ND, 1
i CL. 5 AGGREGATE BASE TN BET 587.0 | § 16001 § 8 806.00.
SUBTOTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 i 3,006.00°
CHANGE.ORDER NO. 3
1 BITUMINGUS RAMPING OF C.B.S ON 6715 STREET LS 1 181§ 300656 | § 3,000.55
SUBTOGTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 3 $ 3,098,55
CHANGE ORDER NO, 4
1 MOBILIZATION g i 1.0 35000 | & 360.00
2 HYDROBEEDING {SEED MIX 32B) sY 20 20.0 3.28 65.80
3 TOPSOIL BORROW cY 4 3 4.00 18,00 7200
4 DEDUCT FOR RAINGARDEN CORRECTION L8 1 1.0 184516} & {P45.15)
5 MILLING GF ADDITIONAL BITUMINOUS RAMFING ON B7TH ST ¥ 500 5 __ 900,00 150 | 8§ 1,350.00
SUBTGTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 4 $ §02.45
TOTAL PAY EBTIMATE NO. 4F §  435164,12

Page 2



CHANGE ORDER

-TKDA
Engineers-Architects-Planners

Saint Paunl, MN June 21 20__11  Proj. No. 14504.001 Change Order No, 4

To T.A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc., 2370 Hiphway 36 East, North St. Paul, Minnesota 55109

for 2019 Strest & Water Ouality Improvements

for 'Qitv af Lake Ehno, Minnessta

You are hereby directed to make the following change to YOUur confract  dated

June 4 ,20 10 . The change and the werk affected therdby is subject to all contract stipulations and
covenants, ‘This Change Order will (increase) (decreass) (not-change) the contract sum by Eight Hundred Ninety Two
Dollars and 454100 ($.892.45)

CHANGE ORDER

This change order-shows the actual quantities installed af the unit price-bid amounts {sse attached itemization). Additienal re-
seeding topsoil necessary to correct locations where others damaged restoration/milling.

NETCHANGE = 3 89245

Amount of Original Contract & 425,565.41

' Additions approved to date (Nos. 1, 3) $ 11,004.55
Deductions approved todate (Nos. ) 3 -
Contract amount to date 5 43746996
Amount of this Change Order (Add) {Dedust) (Ne-Change) $ 80245
Revised Contract Amount 3 43836241
Approved TIKDA

City of Lake Elma, Minngsota

oy L Joobos_

By

: % Latry D>, Bofier, P.E.
%W -
s
Approved ﬁw White - Owner
}‘/A. Schifsky and Sons, Anc! Pink - Contractor
Blue - TKDA




CHANGE ORDER NO. 4 Period Ending: June 21, 2011

2010 STREET & WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENTS
CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
TKBA PROJECT NO. 14504.001

ITEM CONTRACT QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT
NO). DESGRIPTION UNIT _ QUANTITY _TO BATE PRICE TO DATE
1 MOBILIZATION LS 1.0 10 5 35000 § 350.00
2 HYDROSEEDING (SEED MIX 328) sy 20,0 200 3 328 3§ 65.80
3 TOPSOIL BORROW oY 4.0 4.0 $ 18.00 3 72.00
4 DEDUCT FOR RAINGARDEN CORRECTION LS (1.0) (o) 3 04516 § {946.15)
5 MILLING OF ADDITIONAL BITUMINQUS REAMPING ON 57TH ST LF 500,0 9000 % 150§ 1,350.00
SUBTCTAL . § 592,45

TOTAL CHANGE ORDER NO, 4 5 892.46



T. A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc.

2370 Highway 36 East
North St. Paul, MN 55109
Phone (651) 777-1313
Fax (651) 777-7843

it
y

)
AL,

Worlk-Order Request #6 for the City of Lake Elmo
Project # 10-06
Date: 16.17.11

The following changes were made to contract-tdocoments: Additional restoration items that were caused by vesidents.,

Description Unforseen Adlditional Work

Hem Unit Quantity Unit:Pyice Aot
Moblization LS 1 ‘$350.00 $350.00
SedReplaceneit B 21— $3.006. SB2A0
Hydroseeding (Seed Mix 328) sy A B $3.28 Sroer-( 7 JW
Sovanmatr 8% -6 $4.64 $27:84
Topsoil Borrow Cy 4 $18.00 $72.00

Titala=of606:R8=
e

Prepared by: Accepted by: /J (6 [ e r>
Jonathan Hager Name

Date

Date



e

T. A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc.
2370 Highway 36 East
North St. Panl, MN 55109
Phone (651) 777-1313

Fax (651) 777-7843

Worl Order Request #4 for the City of Lake Eimo
Project# 10-06
Date: 6.17.11

S

The following ¢hanges were made to confract documents: Milling off Pavernent W

edge,
Description Unforseen Additional Work
Ttem Unit Quantity Uit Price Amount
Milling Machine (Based on 36" Mill) LF 200 $1.50 $1,350.00 \/
Totdl =  $1,350.00
Prepared by: Accepted by:
Jonathan Hager Name

Date Date



T. A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc.
2370 Highway 36 East
Noith St. Paul, MN 55109
Phone (651)777-1313

Fax (651) 777-7843

i
Waork Order Reqguest #5 for the City of Lake Elmo
Project-# 10-06
Date: 6.17.11

The following changes were made tocontract docmmnents: Deduet for Rain Water:Gardens

Description Unforseen Acditional Work
Tiem - Unit Quanfity Unit Price Amommt
Defective Rain Garden Correction LS 1 $945.15 $945.15 /
Total Deduct = <$945.-15>
-
Preparved by: Accepted by:
Jonathan Hager Name

Date Date



CHANGE ORDER
TKDA
Engineers-Architects-Planners
Compensating
Saint Paul, MN June 21 20 11 Proj, Mo, 14504,001 Change Order No, 5

To T.A. Schifsky & Sons, Inc., 2370 Highway 36 East, North St. Paul, Minnesota 55109

for 2010 Street & Water Quality Improvements

for City of Lake Blmo, Minnesota

You are hereby directed to make the following change 1o your contract  dated

June 4 ,20_10 , 'The ¢hange and the work affected thereby is subject to all contract stipulations and
covenants, This Change Order will:(inerease).(decrease) (not-change) the contract sum by Three Thousand One
Hundred Ninety Eight Dollars and 29/100 {$3.198.29)

COMPENSATING CHANGE ORDER

This change order-¢hows the actual quantities installed at the unit price bid amounts {see attached itemization):

NET CHANGE = k3 (3,198229)

Amount of Original Contract 5 425,565.41
Additions-approved to date (Nos 1,3, 4) $ 12,797.00
Deductions approved to date (Nos. ) b -
Contract amount todate 5 438,36241
Amount of this Change Order (Add) (Deduct) (No-Change) $ (3,198,299
Revised Contract Anount b 435,164.12

Approved TKDA
City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota

By By 7ty ;{ﬁ M
Larry D. Bohiér, P.E.
VVW ad -

T.A. S’chlfsky and Sons, l’n

By O AT W%

White - Owner
Pink - Contractor
Blue - TKDA

Approved




COMPENSATING GHANGE ORDER NO. §

PERIOD ENDING:

June 21, 2011

|
2010 STREET & WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENTS

CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

TKDA FROJEGT NO. 14504.004

ITEM CONTRACT| QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT NET CONTRACT
NO.  |DESCRIPTION UNIT [ QUANTITY | TO DATE PRICE 0 DATE CHANGE AMDUNT
JANE NORTH ROAD
1 MOBILIZATION L5 1 101§  3,500.00 | % 3,500.00 | § 7§ 5,500:00
2 TRAFFIC CONTROL 1.3 i 107% 308,00 | 3 300,00 | .§ T s 306.00
3 SILT FENCE LF 485 §34.0 2,06 | 1.024.04 | & 06614 | 3 B57.80
4 INLET PROTECTION EA H EXRE 82,40 | § 412,00 | § 547 20 164.80
[ SALVAGE & REINSTALL MAILBOX BA i 1.0 66.95 | § F36.48 | § - 738.45
G GLEAR & GRUBE TREE EA 2 7.0 206:00 | § 1,442.00 [ §  1,030.00 | | 412,00
7 SALVAGE & REINSTALL SIGN EA 3 - |3 123.60 | % - 13 G70.80)] & 870,80
8 SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) i j [ IF 318 297.0 1053 | % 30591 | § BT 2754
g REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVE! &Y 1095 348.0 1,66 | § 630,40 | § 28716 3025
10 REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST.. PAVEMENT (STREETS) 8Y 2487 2A87.0 IRERE 2.810.31 |.§ - 281037
i1 REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. STORM SEWER MANHOLE EA 2 FX(] £18.00 1,236.00 | § M 9,236.00
12 [REMOME & DISPOSE OF EXIST, STORM SEWER.(ALL TYPES &SI LF 22 2201 % 18.54 | § 407.68 | 8 < s 407.68
43 COMMON EXCAVATION (P) CY 1370 1,370.0 | & 7.9 |} 10,580.10 | - | & 10,390.10
14 SUBGRADE PREPARATION RS 10 10,0 169.95 |- 1,609.50 [ 3 - '$ 168950
15 PLACE. & COMPACT RECLAIMEDMATERIAL(FROM OTHER SITES ~ TY 646 1101 8 412 % 251752 | § 7 14,702:20)| §  4,809.62
16 2360 TYPE LV 3 BR UMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE TH 10 203.0 57.57 | $ 11,686.71 | & (40288 § 1208970
17 2360 TYPE LV 4 Bl UMINOUS WEARING COURSE TH 210 2900 1§ 57.57 | '§ 12,0880 | § "% {2,088.70
18 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL Ti7 1150} § 2.06 | 236.80 | $ @2 3 241.02
19 97 2360 TYRE LV-4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE SY i85 346.0°]. 10.61 3,692.28 | § §.623.33 7,068.85
20 BAVW & SEAL STREET (40 INTERVALS) F 487 AIB.0 | § 1.57 | 3 763,26 | % (36,74} § 830,90
21 |D412 CONCRETE CURB &GUTTER LF 140 2130018 753 |8 16,890.90 (7550 §_ 16.970.20
23 12" RGP GL. 5 STORM SEWER PIPE LF 22 22.0 30.00 [ $ &70.80 | § A E &79.80
258 |48 DIAMETER MANHOLE, TYPE 4065 (0“10°DEPTH) EA 1 1.0 2 266:00 | § 2,266.00 | § - Z,266.00_
24 CATCH BASIN, TYPE 4048 EA 1 105 1.957.00 | & 1,067.00 | § - 1,657.00
26 4" BERFDRATED PVC EDGE DRAINVWBACKFILL & WRAP LF 23 78.0 | § D27 | 3 222,48 N 22248
26 EROSION STABILZATION MAT, CL, 2 8Y 49 9.0 1% 515 | 4 PBEA6 | B - 252,36
Fid BITCH CHECK EA E] 30 412,00 | 1,236.00 | § N 1,236.00 |
28 INFILTRATION DITCH LF 25 125.0 20.60- 257500 | § - 367600
26 RAN GARDEN EA A 1.0 |5 027,00 927.00 | § - BZ7.00
30 RAIN GARDEN W/SUMP EA 2 20 | § . 144200 2.084,00 | § FE 386400
31 MnBOT SEED MIX 328 Wi FERTILIZER-& WOOD FIBER BLANKET, 5Y 75 6.0 [§ 361§ A18.76 | § 21295 - 631.75
SHORT GRAS! GE SAVANNA WIENHANCEMENT )
32 AND WOOD FIBER BLANKET BY EEY) 2050 | § 4.84 051,20 | $  (1,06328)[ $  2004.48
a3 SODDING 5Y 663 1,04B.0 |'§ 2.56 270384 | § 993380 | § 171054
TSUBTOTAL JANE NORTH ROAD 3 90,693,08 | § 97123.07 | § BB,770.01
ISLE AVENUIE NORTH ]
1 MOBILIZATION L8 [ 10§ 444400 |'§ 444400 § - 444450
Z [TRAFFIC GONTROL K 1 i0|§ 30600 | % 308.00 | § p 30B.00
3 SILTFENCE LF BT 2020 | § 1.02 |- 206,04 | & T4 3 988,90
4 INLET PROTEGFION EA 3 308 £1.60 | § 244.80 | § R 244.80
5 SALVACE & REINSTALL MAILBOX EA T XA E B86.70 | § 1,213.80 | § - $  1.213.80
[; BAWCUT PAVEMENT {ALL TYPES) ] LF 341 520 118 JR0.50 [§ (f02.35)] § 592,16
7 REMOVE & DISPOSE OF BXIBT, BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT {BRIVE], Y 134 166.0 | 4 153 | § 23716 | § 32.13 205.02
B REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. GONGRE IE PAVEMENT (DRIVEW  8Y 50 7.0 506 [ 242 [ § 1431.58) 153.00
9 BUBGRADE CORREGTTON T sy 1440 1,528.0'} 306 | § 4,675.66 | § 260,28 440640
i LOAD & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL (LV) [} 414 P60.0 587 'y 1,552.20 | § Wioas)| 8 247188
11 RECLAIM EX, BIT. AND BASE MATERIALS Y 6520 B,747.0 0BT | % 5;8B8.80 | § 16748 £,672.40
12 SUGGRADE PREPARATION DF RECLAMMED SURFACE RS 46 160 10200 | § 1,632.003 $ 2 1,632.00
13 Za60 TYPE LV'3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE TN &17 544,0 | 56,50 30,736.00 | 5 1,526.50 26,210:50°
i3 2360 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE TN 517 B2E7 | fi6.50 20,704.81 3 A03:87 | 5 20,210.60
15 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TAGK COAT GAL 288 270.0 |4 204 | 3 43640 |3 {i61.16)| § 5B2.56
18 2 23680 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE g¥ 166 550 |5 1051 | § 15628.05 | § {T0.51)| 163956
17 5" CONCRETE DRIVE Y B0 ELRE 3162 | § B4.B6 |-§  (148644) § 1581.00
8 SAW S SEAL STREET {40 INTERVALS) LF 1121 11200 [ & .65 | § 184800 | § {1.66) $  1,049.86
19 D412 CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER LF 3304 3,085.0 [§ 765§ 75,130.25 |'§ 145.35)| § 2527580
20 SAWCUT INLET EA 3 L 3560 | § - 5 (7650 & 76.50.
21 Cl., 3 RIPRAP W/ GEOTEXTILE FILTER FABRIC cY 4 40 | § 112,20 | § 4880 | B 448.80-
i EROSION STARILIZATION MAT, GL. 2 &Y g 6.0 [ § 10,20 | & B1.20 | § i §1.20
23 DITGH GRADING LF 35 360 REE 321.30 | - - 13 321.30
24 RAIN GARDEN ‘ EA 1 103 91800 1 § 918,00 ST §18.00
25 MIDOT SEED MIX 250 W/ FERTILIZER & WOOD FIBER BLANKET Y 78 600 | § 357 1§ #,320.50 204204 | § 27846
26 SODDING 5Y 1080 i.707.0 | § 3061 % 5,223.42 181862 | §  3,304.80.
SUBTOTAL ISLE AVENUE NORTH $  119,5656.87 3451.39 | § 11610548,
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GOMPENSATING CHANGE ORDER NO. §

PERIOD ENDING:

June 21, 2011

|
2010 STREET & WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENTS

CITY OF LAKEELMO, MINNESCTA

TKDA PROJECT NO. 14504.001

ITEM CONTRACT] QUANTITY UNIT AMOUNT NET CONTRACT

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY! TO-DATE FRICE TO DATE CHANGE AMOUNT
6ARD.STREET NORTH - o

1 MOBILIZATION LS 1 1.0 4,000,00 | % 4,000,00 | § - $ 4,000.00

2 TRAFEIC CONTROL LS 1 E: 306.00 | § 306.00 | § e $ 306,00

3 SILT FENGE LF -10b 1360 20418 744 | 8 B3.24 | $ 214,20

4 INLET PROTECTION EA [:] 7.0 B1.601 % 571.20 | 3 (81.60)] § 852,80

5 SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) LF 446 351.0 1.0278 368,02 (96.80) 464.92

6 |REMGVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVE SY 197 19801 % 1.53 | 5 289.88  § {1.53) 301.41

7 REMCGVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. CONCRETE PAVEMENT {DRIVEW! sY 35 - E 306 | § - [ (107.30) 407.10

8 REMCVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. STORM SEWER MANHCOLE . EA 2 20018 714.00 | § 1.428.00 ; % - 5 1,428.00

9 REMOVE & DISFOSE OF EXIST, STORM SEWER (ALL TYPES & S LF 30 3001 % 744§ 214,20 | & - 214.20

10 SUBGRADE CORRECTION sY 2620 4401 8 306 | B 134.84 | § (7.576.66)] - 711,20

11 LOAG & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL (LV) cY 411 4130 612 | § 251532 | § - i 251622

12 RECLAIM EX. BIT. AND BASE MATERIALS sY 10500 10,7000 | $ 077 | § 8,239.00 | § 154,00 8,0865,00

13 BUBGRADE FREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFACE RS 32 32.0( % ‘B5.00 | § 2,72000 7 § - 2,720.00

14 236¢ TYPE LV 3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE ™ 1,064 1,042.7 56,00 | § 56,380.69 | § (1,183.836)| § 59,684,00

15 2360 TYPE LV4-8ITUMINOUS WEARING COURBE ™ 876 80,0 58.00 | § 49,840.00 ;% 764.00 [ 5 49,058.00

16 BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT QAL 490 3800 | § 2048 776.20 | § (224,40); § 590,80

17 2"--2360 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE 8Y 217 1800 10,61 | & 1,086,30 | § (284.28)] $  2,280.47

18 0" CONCRETE DRIVE ) 8Y 3D - $ 33661 § - k] (1,378.10)| & 1,178,10

19 REMOVE & REPILACE BITUMINOUS FLUME EA 2 2018 102,00 | § 204,00 | § - 204,00

20 SAW & SEAL STREET (40" INTERVALS) iF 2206 23580 | B 1,85 1:4 388740 | § 249,15, 3838.26

2+ CONNECT DRAINTILE TD EXISTING STORM SEWER EA 1 101§ 306,00 | 306,00 | § - 305.00

22 ADJUST GATCH BASIN CASTING & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA ] 4.0 153.00 | § B16.00 - 918,00

23 12" RCP CL, 5 STORM SEWER PIPE LF 30 30.0 | § 27.64 | § B26.20 - 826,20

24 48" DIAMETER MANHOLE, TYPE-4D8S (0"-10' DEPTH) EA 1 1.0 2,244.00 224400 | $ - 2,244.00

26 CATCH BASIN, TYFE 4045 EA 1 1.0 *,r34.00 1734001 % - 1.734.00 |

.28 4" PERFORATED.PYC EDGE DRAIN W/BACKFILL & WRAP LF i 20.0 ] § 15,30 | -308.00 % 76.60 | § 229.50 |

27 EROSION STABILIZATION MAT, CL. 2 sY 12 7.0 612 | § 42841 § {B0.60) § V344

28 RAIN GARDEN EA 2 1.0 | § 918.00 | § 818.00 | ¥ (218.00}] § +,836.00-

Y4 SODDING sY 2,270 3,435.0 | % 2.55 B8,768.25 | § 257076 | § 5,788,500
SUBTOTAL 53RD STREET NORTH h 162,201,682 | % {7,404.79}| §  1569,606.41
87 TH STREET NORTH )

i MOBILIZATION L8 i 1.0 2,000.00 | § 2,000,00 - 2,000,00

2 TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 1 1.0 306.00 | § 306,0G - 30600

3 SILT FENGE LF B0 57.0 204 [ 5 75,48 187,72} 63,20

4 NLET PROTECTION EA 2 2.0 8160 | § 183.20 - 163,20

5 SAWCUT ‘PAVEMENT {ALL TYPES) LF 105 187.0 1.02 | § 180,74 (6,18} 199.92

6 REMOVE-& DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT {DRIVE) 8y a9 820 204 | § 181.56 - 81,56

Fd SUBGRADE CORRECTION 8y BB 683.0 | 506 | § 2,080:98 | - 2,069.98

8 LOAD & HAUL RECLAIMED MATERIAL [LV) Gy ) 2330 | § 65087 | & 1.391.01 | - 1,391,09:

) RECLAIM EX, BIT, AND BASE MATERIALS 8Y 3,767 3,767.0 077 2,800.59 | $ 4 2,900,509

10 SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFAGE RS 11 11.0 81.60 897.60 | % - 897.60

11 2360 TYPE LV 3 BITUMINCUS NON-WEARING COURSE TN 382 371.0 | § 57.67 | § 2136847 1 & {833.27)] - 21,901.74

12 2380 TYPE LV -4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURBE TN 314 3280 57,67 | & 18,882,98 ‘805.98 18,076.98

13 BITUMINCUS MATERIAL:FOR TAGK COAT GAL i78 2000 2.04 408,00 48,08 369.04

14 2"- 2360 TYPE LV 4 BITUMINDUS WEARING COURSE, DRIVE sY 29 T80 [ § 10.61 79B.76 | § {136,63)] 1 936.39

15 SAW & SEAL BTREET (40' INTERVALS) LF 91 758.0 1.885 1.247.40 | § {67,75)] 1,305.15

16 CONNECT DRAINTILE TO EXISTING STORM SEWER EA 4 20 266,00 FMOOD S {510:00) 1,020,00

i ADJUST CATGH BASIN.CASTING & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA e 20 153,00 |4 306.00 { % - 306,00 |

18 4" PERFORATED PVC EDGE DRAIN WIBACKFILL & WRAP LF 380 4220 | % 10,20 4,304.40 | § 428.40 3,876.00

19 SODDING 8Y 763 668.0 | § 255 1§ 1,702.40 | § (2168.76)] % 1,020,156
SUBTOTAL 67TH STREET NORTH $ 69,715.56 | § (367.96)] §  60,083.51
CHANGE ORDER ND., 1 -

1 CL. 5 AGGREGATE BASE ™ BB7 BB7.0 | § 1B.00 | § 8,805.00 | § - 3 8,805.00
SUBTOTAL CHANGE ORDER NC. 1 $ B,805.00 1§ - [] 8,805.00
CHANGE ORDER NO. 3

Al BIT UMINOUS RAMPING OF C.B.'8 ON 657 TH.STREET 18 1 1.0 § 300855 | § 3,098.65 | § - 5 3,089.66
SUBTOYAL CHANGE ORDER-NG..3 $ 3,098.65 | § $ 3,009.65
CHANGE ORDER NOD ., 4

1 MOBILIZATION ¥ 1 1.0 360.00 ) § ‘3E6C.00 - § 360,00 |

2 HYDROSEEDING (SEED-MIX 328} 3Y 20 20.0 328 |G B5.60 - 45.60

3 TOPSOIL BORROW (54 4 $ 4.00 800  § 72.00 - 72.00

4 PEDUCT FOR RAINGARDEN CORRECTION LS 1 1.0 {945.15}] $ {945.15) v {945,15)

[3] MILLING OF ADDITIONAL BITUMINOUS RAMPING ON B7TH 5T LF oop $  900.00 1.50 1§ 1,360.00 $ 1,550.00
SUBTOTAL CHANGE ORDER NO. 4 § 802,45 | § K 092,456
TOTAL COMPENSATING CHANGE ORDER NO. § $ 436,184.12 | 3 (3,198.20)] § 438,382.41

Page 2



MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
CONSENT
ITEM #: 4b

MOTION as part of the Consent Agenda
AGENDATTEM: 2011 Street and Water Quality Improvements — Partial Payment No. 1
SUBMITTED BY: Latry Bohrer, P
THROUGH; Bruce A Messelt, City Administrator

REVIEWED BY:  Tom Bouthilet, Firisnce Director

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is asked to approve partial
payment to Hardrives, Inc., the Contractor for the 2011 Street and Water Quality Improvements
project. The Contractor submitted Partial Payment Certificate No, | in the amowt of
$167,703.49. This tequest has been reviewed and payment is recommended in the amount
tequested. No specific motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall
approval of the Consent Agenda.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 5% of the work completed for Partial Payment Certificate
No. 1 has been retained in the amount of $8,385.17 in accordance with the Contract documents.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above information, it is recommended fhat the City
Council approve as part of tonight’s Consent dgenda Partial Payment No. 1 in the amount of
$159,318.32.

Alternatively, the City Council dees have the authority to table this item for future consideration,
or further diseuss and deliberation prior to taking action, If the latter is done so, the appropriate
action of the Council following such digcussion would be:

“Move to authorize Partial Payment No, 1 in the amount of $159,318.32 to be paid from the
Project Fund for the 2011 Street and Water Quality Improvements project fand amended
and/or modified at tonight’s meeting].”

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Payment Certificate No. 1
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444 Cedar Stredt, Sulte 1500

Sainl Paul, MN 55101
Pha right time, Fho right panyle, The right nolup Egg:;igggggg Fax
viwwitkda.com
| Proj. No. 14732001 Cert. Wo. 1 St Paul, MN, _ July 13 2011
' TJ@ City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota - : . Dwner
This Certifios that Hardeives, Toe. . , Contractor |

1Far 2011 Steetand Water-Quality Improvermesits

Is entitled to __One Hundred Fifty Nige Thousand Three Hunidred Bighteen Dollars and 32/100  ($159.318.32)

boing st ‘eatimate For partial payment.on. conteadt with you dated __ April 19 ) , 2011
Reosived payment. in full 6f above Cettificate, TEDA
Havdrives, Inc. : ﬁgm Aj . %{wm

, 2011 Latry D. Bfihrer, P.E.

RECAPIHTULATION OF ACCOUNT

CONTRACT
PLUSEXTRAS |  PAYMENTS  CREDITS

Cortesct price plus extras . $ 469,524.,99

| All previows payments I K - .-

All previcus credits

Extra ™o,

AMOUNT ©OF THIS CERTIFICATE _ . $ 159,318.32 |

Totals . $ O 469,524.99 | B 159,318.32 | & -

Credit Bilance ' § -

There will remaln unpaid an-contract-after '
payment of this Certificste 3 310,206,67

3 469,524,991 § 469,524.99 || $ -

An Empoyee Bumed-Gompany Promaling Affirmativa Aciien.and Equal Gpporiumly




TKDA
Engineers-Architects-Planners  Saint Paul, Minnesota 55101

PERIODICAL ESTIMATE FOR PARTIAL PAYMENTS

Esftmate No, 1 Period Brding June 30 .20 11 Page 1 of '} Proj. No. 14732001
Contractor Hardrives, Inc, Original Contract Amount $409.524,99
Project 2011 Street and Water Quality Improvementis
Location City of Lake Elmo, Minnesata
Total Coenkract Work Completed $ 167,703 49
Total Approved Credits $ 0.00
Total Approved Extra Work Completad $ 0.00
Approved Bxtra Orders. Amount Completed 3 0.00
Total Amount Barned This Esimate & 167,703.48
Less Approved Credits % 0.00
Less 5 % Retainad 8 8.385.17
Less Previous Payments $ 0.00
Total Dedictions 3 8,385.17
Amount Due This Estimate § 159,318.32
Centractor Date

Engineer fj@ A/-V ‘ M“M&g‘w pate_ 7 /3 /]

Larry ];S/ Boh rex, P.E,



>

ESTIMATE NO. 1

2041 STREET AMD WATER QUALITY IMPROVEMENTS
COLUMBUS, MINNESOTA
TKDA PROJEGCT NO, 14732.001

Dale Jupe 30, 2011

ITEM UNIT CONTRACT QUANTITY  CONTRACT AMOUNT .

NG, DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE QUANTITY _ TO DATE AMOUNT TODATE
TARTAN MEADOWS NEIGHBORHOOD .

|1 |MOBILIZATION L& 4,532,256 1 0.76 $ 463225 | & 347418

2 |TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 268,23 A 0.78 % 968,25 | & 726.17

3 |SILT FENCE LF 2.89 285 4] 766.65 | & -

4 }INLET PROTECTION EA 86,82 4 o 1,365.48 L

5 |SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) LF 245 . 1,002 871 2,175.80 1,442 85

6 |REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVEWAYS) 8Y 4.30 186 289 $ 666.50 1,242,70

7_|REMOVE & DISPOSE OF. EXIST, BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (FLUME) EA B80.6Y 2 4] 3 161.38 | -

B_|REMOVE & DISPRSE OF EXIST, CONCRETE PAVEMENT (DRIVEWAYS) BY 5.88 101 4 543.38 | . 21,52

8 |SUBGRADE CORRECTION SY 2.00 966 o 1.882,00 -

0 |RECLAIM EX. BIT, AND BASE MATERIALS, B:INGH DEPTH Y 0.80 18,284 19294 15,45620 | & 16436,20

1 |HAUL QUT EXCESS MILLINGS fLV) ey 6.00 1,084 978 6,504,008 5,866.00

2 | SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFACE RS 220.03 48 49 5 1078147 | § +0,781.47
13 12360 TYPE LV3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURSE TN 48.85 1,797 1894 § 8796316 82,711.30
4 12300 TYPE LV4 BITUMINOUS: WEARING COURSE ™ - 51,08 1,537 0 5 78478221 -
18 | BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL 2.4 860 1} $ 1,840,40 -
16 [2860 TYPE LV4-BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE, DRIVES 8Y 15.88| 214 0 3 3419.72 -
17 | SAW & SEAL STREET (40' INTERVALS) LF 2.08 3,480 0 ] 7,273.20 | 1 -
18 |ADJUST CATGH BASIN & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA 611,27 13 0 $ 6,646.51 -
19 |REPAIR CASTING AND. ADJUST CATCH BABIN & INSTALL CONCRETE WINSS £A 809.61 1 o] $ 809,61 -
20 |ADJUST MANHOLE EA 458.24 1 0 $ 458.24 | § -
21 |6"CONGRETE DRIVE gY 46,26 134 k) % G, 198,84 | § -
22 |CONCRETE CURB GUT FOR RAIN. GARDEMN EA 263.58 12 0 3 37162.96 | § -
23 |CLASS 3 RIP RAP WIGEOTEXTILE FABRIC CcY 102.21 4 Y] ] 408.84 |.§ -
24 {DITCH GRADING LE 237 210 o 48770 | .8 -
26 JMPORT AND PLAGE TOPSOIL cY 14,52 481 e § 688492 | § -

| 76 }SEEDING, FERTILIZER AND WOOD FIBER BLANKET sY 2,16 148 4} B 376 | & -
27 JSODDING S 2,70 4,354 o . 11,766.80 | § -
SURTOTAL TARTAN MEADOWS NEIGHBORHOOD i § 26213240 [§  134,708,2D
DAVID NELSON ESTATES. NEIGHBORHOOR

1_|MOBILIZATION LS 1,639.88 1 G.756 $ 1,636,808 1.229.81

2 |TRAFFIC CONTROL LS 268,95 1 0.75 e 268,85 2011

3 _[SILT FENCE LF 2,69 160 0 E: 269.00 -

4_[INLET PROTECTION EA 96,858 2 0 IR 183.88 -

6 [SAWCUT PAVEMENT (ALL TYPES) LF 2.15 1683 -89 : #5045 | § 181,35

G_|REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVEWAYS) 8Y 4,30 17 23 i 7310 1§ 12040

7 |REMOVE & [HSPOSE OF EXIST, BITUMINCUS PAVENENT (FLUME) EA 40.649 1 s} 3 80691 % -

8 |REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST. CONCRETE PAVEMENT {DRIVEWAYS) 3Y .34 13 0 ] 6o.42 | $ -

9 |SUBGRADE CORRECTION 8Y 2.00 138 o} 3 226,00 | 8 -
10. [RECLAIM EX, BIT. AND BASE MATERIALS, 8-IWCH DEPTH 8Y 0.80 4,760 2750 $ 220000 | % 2,200.00
11 [HAUL OUT EXCESS MILLINGS (L.V) oY 1.00 101 0 i3 101,00 { § -
12 |SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF RECLAIMED SURFAGE RE 37841 B B b 2.26B.68 | § 2,268.66
13 12380 TYPE V3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COLIRSE TN 50,76 248 272 & 124B6.90 | 8§ 13,806.72
14 [2360 TYPE LV4 BITUMINDUS WEARING COURSE TN 53.89 207 0 $ 111143835 -
15 |BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK COAT GAL 2,14 116 5} $ 248,24 | § -

6 2380 TYPE LV4 BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE, BRIVES 8Y 16,06 gz 1] $ 513.60 | § -

7 [SAW & SEAL STREET (40' INTERVALS) LF 2,08 360 o} § 76240 | % -

8 |ADJUST CATCH BASIMN & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA 560,43 1 4 3 56043 | $ bt
19 [REPAIR CASTING AND ADJUST CATCH BASIN & INSTALL CONCRETE WINGS EA 84189 1 4] § B41.89 | § .
20 [G"CONCRETE DRIVE 8Y 53,79 22 4 % 1,183.38 -
‘21 |CONCRETE GURH CUT FOR RAIN GARDEN EA 295,86 2 4] % §81,72 -
22 |DITCH GRARING LF 10.76 5 4] % 53.00 | § -
23 [IMPORT AND PLACETOPSQIL cY 34.68 @2 [i] $ 2,160,916 | § -
24 |SEEDING, FERTILIZER AND WOOD FIBER BLANKET sY 10.78 25 4] 3 289.00 -
26 |SODDING . 5Y 2,70 631 2] 3 1;483.70 -

SUBTOTAL DAVID NELSON ESTATES NEIGHBDRHODD $ 3988802 20,018.75
6OTH STREET AND KIMBRO AVENUE

1 [MOBILIZATION LS 5;075,66 h] 0.5 g 3076561 8 1.537.78
2 |TRAFFIC CONTROL [R{] -698,30 i 0.5 § 68030 ; § 349.65.
3 |SILTFENCE LF 2.68 100 o} B 269,00 1 § -

4 |CLEAR AND GRUB TREE EA 236,69 20 20 4733803 8% 4,733.80
6 |SAWCUT PAVEMENT {ALL TYPES) LF 2.15 100 o i 21500 1§ -

6 |REMOVE 8 DISPOSE OF EXIST, BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT SY .28 1,067 1067 § 1,376:43 | § 1,376.43
7. |REMOVE & DISPOSE OF EXIST, BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT (DRIVEWAYS) 8Y 30 1 a 3 34.40 | § -

8 _|COMMON EXCAVATION (CV) {P) cY 7.42 288 289 3 2.144.38 | § 2,144.38
9 |SUBGRADE CORREGTION sY 4,03 1,050 1050 3 4,861.60 | § 4,661.60
10 |SUBGRADE PREPARATION OF GRAVEL SURFACE RS 180,00 38 0 % §,640.00 -
11_[PLACE & COMPACGT RECLAIM MATERIAL (FROM OTHER SITES) (LV) CY 1.00 1,238 av8 $ 1,2390.00 a78.00
12 {2360 TYPE L'V3 BITUMINOUS NON-WEARING COURBE T 48.88 1201 0 $ _ 59,006.8B -
13 2380 TYPE Lv4 BITUMINOUS WEARING COURSE TH 50,74 1,201 a & 6003874 |8 -
14_|BITUMINOUS MATERIAL FOR TACK GOAT GAL 2.14) 604 0 $ i.07B.66 | % -
15 {92380 TYPE LV4 BITUMINOUS WEAR COURSE, DRIVES 8Y 15.60 filal} 9 § 566240 18 -
16_|GUARDRAIL, MN/DOT TYPE 8307 OR 83B8 LE 35,50 210 0 5 746000 | 8 L
17 |CLABS B AGGREGATE SHOULDERING - 100% CRUSHED LIMESTONE ™ 17.43 204 4] $ 3,566.72 | § -
18 |DITCH GRADING : LE 10.76 20 [¢] $ 216,20 | % -
19 [SEEDING, FERTILIZER AND WOOD FIBER BLANKET Sy 215 420 4] & 903,60 | § -
20 |STRIPING -4" YELLOW STRIPING LF 0.22 2,320 4] L 61040 | $ -
21 [STRIPING » 4" WHITE STRIPING I.F 0,22 7,440 0 1,636.00 -
22 [INSTALL SIGIM PANEL 8F 32,28 5 0 § 18140 | § -

[SUBTOTAL 60TH STREET AND KIMBRO AVENUE $  167402.87 16,981.54
TOTAL ESTIMATE NO. 1 5 469524,99 [ 1G67,703.49
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 719/11
REGULAR

ITEM #; #0005
MOTION

AGENDAITEM: 2011 Street Improvement Rain Garden Project — Accepting the Quotes
and Awarding the Contract

SUBMITTED BY: Ryan Stempski, Assistant City Engineer
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Adm.inistra’em{ﬁg\ﬂ{

REVIEWED BY:  Jack Griffin, City Engineer
Tom Bouthilet, Finance Dircctor

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED; The City Council is asked to accept quotes and
award a contract for the 2011 Street Improvement Rain Garden Project. Bids were received on
July 8, 2011, Rusty Schmidt, Washington Conservation District, solivited guotes from five
qualified contractors and has prepared the attached recommendation Memorandum dated J uly
14, 2011.

The recommended motion to act on is as follows:

“Move to Accept the Quotes and Award a Contractio Al Weather Services in the amouni of
$25,074.00 for the 2011 Strect Improvement Rain Garden Project per the Washington Couniy
Conservation District Recommendation Memorandum
dated July 14, 2011..”

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND STAFF REPORT: TKDA has coordinated with the
Washington Conservation District (WCD) to prepare rain garden plans to improve water quality
along the 2011 Street and Water Quality Improvement Project. Planting plans were prepared by
WCD and approved by the City of Lake Elmo. The 2011 Strect Improvement Rain Garden
Project plan set is available for review by request.

A total of 13 rain gardens will result from the 20118freet Improvement Rain Garden Project.
These rain gardens will require the contractor to complete all tasks related to the gardens
(grading, soil repair, draintile, concrete curb cuts, muleh, edging, rock retaining walls, planting
and restoration),

- page 1 -
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City Couiicil Meeting 2009 and.2010 Street Improvement Rain Garden Preject

September 21, 2010 Accepting Quotes and Awarding a Contract
, Agenda Ttem # 5

Notice to proceed will be given if award of contract is given by the City Council. A Pre-
Construction Meeting will be held prior to the Contractor commencing any work to coordinate
the project with the contractor, The completion date for the project is August 12, 2011,

All rain gardens will have a residential maintenance agreement.

FUNDING: The contract for the 2011 Sfreet Improvement Rain Garden Project is for an
estimated amount of $25,074.00. Actual quantities paid will be per the unit prices provided for
each item. The City of Lake Elmo received a Valley Branch Watershed District (VBWD)
Community Grant in January of 2011 for up to $13,100.00 in matching funds for water quality
improvements, The estimated post-bid total qualifying costs for water quality improvements on
the 2011 Street Improvemets is $25,074.00, resulting in a $12,537.00 VBWD grant amount,
This would leave a remainder of $12,537.00 for the City of Lake Elmo to be paid from the Storm
Water Utility Fund.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council move to approve the motion by undertaking the following
action:

“Dove to Accept the Quoates and Award u Contract to All Wedather Services in the amount of
$25,074.00 for the 2011 Street Improvement Rain Garden Project per the Washington County
Conservation District Recommendation Mentorandum
dated July 14, 2011.."

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Washington Conservation District Recommendation Memeo dated July 14, 2011
2. Construction Contract
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| 1380 W FRONTAGE RD
H 1 G HWAY 36

|

|
NF STILLWATER, MN 55082
N

GI1T-2785-1136 [PHONE]

RE i 651-275-1284 1 FAX ]
C E IWWW.MNWCD.ORG.

MEMORANDUM

TO: City of Lake Bimo

FROM: Rusty Sehmidt, Washington Conservation Distriot

DATE: Juiy 14, 2011

RE: Recommended Lowet Responsible Bidder for the Raingardens along the 2011 Roadway
Improvement Projects

On June 28", 2011 the WCD in cooperation with the City of Lake Elmo and Valley Branch Watershed District sent
out a prepesal for quetes and bids for the 2011 Raingarden Roadway Projects, This project is to place 13 gardens
along the new roadways within the city limits, The raingardens are to be installed and planted by mid August 2011,
Construetion will include but not Hrdited to grading, edging, mulch, plants, draintile and BOOIPOSE,

The bids were teturned on July 8%, 2011 by 4 pm. Five bids were received with one bid stgnificantly lower than the
rest. Three bids were at the design estimate. And one bid was significantly higher than the rest and 25% higher
then estimate, The low bidder is responsible and has done many projects of similar size and scope, including last
years roadway raingardens. The previons projects have been done competently and successfully. The low bid
confractor’s low bid s due to the location to the project site.

The following are the bid totals:

All Weather Services $25,074.00
Ouldoor Labs $28,343,90
Creative Services $28,952.70
St. Croix Valley Landscaping $29,996.00
Landscape Renovations $35,340.76

I, Rusty Schmidt, recommend giving the project to the lowest bidder who is All Weather Services of Stiliwater.

Thank you,
Rusty Schenidt

] A
NaturabResource Specialist _

SUPERVISORS: LOUISE SMATIIDGE  GARY BAUAANN  TOM MEYER  ROSTAARY WALLACE  SARAH HIFFEAS



State of Minnesota

2011 STREET IMPROVEMENT RAINGARDEN PROJECT

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT
Washiggton County
This Contract, made this day of 2011, by the City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota {(herinafter called the
“Owner™) and jf L 140w Fhic Sépviees . (hereinafter called the “Coniractor”}.

WITNESSETH that the parties heveto dgree as follows:

(A)  The Contractor shall provide all labor, services, materials, equipment and machinety, transporiatior, tools, fuel,
power, light , heat, telephone, water, sanitary facilities, fornporary facilities, and all other Tacilities.and incidentals,
including profit and overhead, necessary for the performance, testing, start-up, and completion of the- work as
deseribed hereim:

| DESCRIPTION OF WORK.:

The seope of work under this contract includes the complete construction of 13 rain gardens in
aceordance with the 2011 Street Improvement Raingarden Project Plan Set issued by the City of
Talke Eimo and dated June 21, 2011, The complete Plan Set consists of 30 sheets,

The complete construction of 13 tain gatdens shall include the grading, sofl repair, mulch, edging,
retaining walls, planting and restoration in the locations shown on the plans and as staked in the field.

This Construction Contract is intended to provide for a fully completed project. and shall be
performed by the Contractor for the total estimated price of * 257 ¢ 14 0O . based upon
the attached Quote Proposal Form. The quantities stated thercin are approximate only, Payment will
be made for the guantities of work ordered and actually installed complete. Any work items
necessary to provide for a fully completed project and not listed as an ifemized quantity on the Quote
Proposal Form shall be considered incidental to the project work.

However, no work shall be allowed to proceed that will result in additional quantities for payment
without the prior written authorization of the City by Lake Elmo.

All work shall be completed within the specified time frame and under the terms and conditions
provided within this Construction Contract, and in accordance with the “General Conditions™ shown
in this contract as follows:

Work will be performed concurrently with the City of Lake Elmo Street Project. The Contractor
shall make every reasonable effort to complete the work prior to the paving of bituminous wear
course. The Final Completion Date is August 12, 2011, Any damage done by the Contracter to the
new bituminous street and/or curb shall be corrected at the Contractor’s expense.

The Owner will make payment for the whole contract, upon acceptance by the Owner of all work
required hereunder and compliance by Contractor with all the terms and conditions of this contract,
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IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have executed this contract as of the date frst abiove written,

R
SO
S ™
{Contractoy) R \\“/
{City of Lake Elmo)
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1L

IV.

VL.

VIL

VIN.

IX.

X1

GENERAIL CONDITIONS

CHANGCES IN WORI. - The Owner may at any time, male changes in the drawings and specifications, within the
genera) scope thereof, T such changes cause an increase or decrease in the amount due under this contract.or in the
time required for its performance, an equitable- adjustment will be made, and this contract will be modified
accordingly by a “Contract Change Otdler”. No charge for any extea work or material will be allowed unless the
same has been ordered on such-contract change orderby the Owner and the price-therefore stated in the order,

INSPECTION OF WORK. - All materigls and wotkmanship will bs subject to inspection, exanination, and test, by
the Qwaer, who will have the right to reject defective material and workmanship or require its eorrection.

COMPLETION OF WORK. - If the. Contractor refuses or fails to complete the wotk within-the time specified in this
coniract, or any éxtension thereof; the Qwner may ferminate the Contractor’s rights to proceed. In.such everit the
Owner may taks over the work and-prosecute the-same to cotnpletion by cotfract or otherwise, and the Contractor
will be Hable for any excess cost oceasioned the Owner thetéby; and the Owner may take possession of and utilize
in completing the work such matetials and equipment as may be on the site of the worlc:and necessary theefore.. If
the Owrner does not terminate the right of the Contract to proceed, the Gontraetor will continue the worl, in which
avent, actual damages for delay will be impossible te determine, and in lieu thereof, the Contractor may be required
to-pay to the Owner the sum of  $100  as liquidated damages for each calendar day of delay, and the Contractor
will be liable .for the amount thereof: Provided, however, that the vight of the Contracter to-proceed will net be
terminated because of delays in the completion of the completion of the work due to unforeseeable causes:beyend
the Contractor’s control and without Contractor’s fault or negligence,

RELBASES. - Prior to final payment, the Contractor will submit evidence that all payrolls, material bills, and other
indebtedness connected with the work have been paid asrequired by the Owner.

OBLIGATION TO DISCHARGE LIENS. - Acceptance by the Owner of the complsted work performed by the
Contractor and paymuent therefore by the Owner will not relisve the Contractor of obligation to the Owner (which
obligation is hereby acknowledged) o discharge any and all liens for the benefit of subcontractors, labovers,
material-person, or any other-persons performiug labor upen the work or fumishing material or machinery for the
‘work covered by this contraet, which have attached to or may subsequently attach.to the property, or interest of the
Ownar,

NOTICES AND APPROVAL IN WRITING, - Any notice, consent, or othier act to be given or done hereunder witl
be valld only if in writing.

CLEANING 1P, - "The Contractor shall keep the premises free from accumulation of waste material and rubbish and
at this complstion of the wotk shall remove from the premises all rubbish, implements and surplus materials.

WARRENTY, - Contractor warrants and guarantees that title to all work, materials, and equipment covered by any
Application for Payment, whether incerperated in the Project or not, will pass to Owner no later than the time of
payment free and clear of all Lisns. I within one year after completion of the work, any work Is fourid to be
defeotive, Contractor shall promptly, without cost to the Owner, correct such defeetive work as approved by the
Owner.

IDEMNIFICATION. - Contractor shall defend and indemnify the city agninst claims brought or aetions filed against
the city or any of its officers, ecriployees or agents for property dammage, bodily injury or death to third persons,
arising out of or relating to contractors work under the contract.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE. - Contracior shall provide a certifieate of insurance showing
evidence of workers’ oompensation coverage or, provide evidence of qualification as a self-insurer of woikers’
compensation.

LIABILITY INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS, - A certificate of insurance accepiable to the City shalt be filed with
the City prior to the commenscement of the work. The cettificate and the required insurance policies shall contain a
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provision that the coverage afforded under the contract will not be canceled or allowed to expire until at least 30
days prior wrltten notice hus basn given fo the oity,

Contractor shall maintain commercial generdl liability (CGL), and if necessary commercial umbrella insoranes, with
a limit-of not less than §1,000,000 each gocurrence, If such CGL insurance vontains a genoral aggregate limit, the
general aggregate mit shall be not lass than $2,000,000 and the aggrogate limit shall apply on a perproject basis,
The CGL insurance shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, prodnsts
completed operations, personal infury and advertising injury, and. contractually-assamed liability. ‘The city shall be
named as an additional insured under the CGL.

Contractor shell meintain-automobile kab ility insurance, ang if necessary, umbrella ligbillty insurance with.a limit.of
not less than $1,000,000 each aceident. If such insurance contains & general agpregate limit, the general aggregate
linvit shali be not Tess than $2,000,000. The Insurance shall cover liabillty arlsing out of any auto, inchiding owned,
hired, and non-owned antos.

Page 4 o 4 City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota
Genere! Conditions for Small Conteacts



~—

2011 LAKE ELMO ROADWAY RAINGARDEN COST ESTIMATE

Materia Q7Y Unit Unit Cogt Amount
Anderson
Plants .
plugs 54,00 $0.00
19 #1 gal, $12.00 $228.00
9 #2 gal, $22.00 $188.00
‘Muich ~ double shredded hardwood 2 cy $30.00 $60.00
Compost ~ MnDOT Grade 2 2 cY $30,00 $60.00
Bullat Edgars 40 L. FL $8.00 $320.00
Relalning Wall - Glacial Fleki Stons 2.5 TON $160.00 $376.00
12054
Excavation 15 cY F11.00 166,00
Sod T20 8F $3.00 $360.00
-Gargen
Plants .
58 plugs $4.00 $162.00
30 #1 gal, $12.00 $360.00
#2 gal, $22.00 $0.00
Mulch - double shredded hardwood 2 cY $30.00 $80.00
Gompoest - MnDOT Grade 2 2 cY $30.00 $80.00
Bulle! Bdgars ‘60 Lo, Rt $8.00 $480.00
Excavation 16 oy $11.60 $166.00
Sod 120 5F $3,00 $380.00
Glbson/ Pike
Plants
33 plugs §4.00 $432.00
42 #1 gal. $12.00 $604.00
#7 gal. $22.00 80,00
Muleh - double shradded. hardwood 2 oY $30.00 $60.00
Gompast - MnDOT Grade 2 i cY $30.00 $80.00
Butiet Edgers 80 tn Ft. $8.00 $480.00
Excavation 15 cY $11.00 $165.00
Sod 120 8F $3.00 $360.00
Hammeariund
Plants
3z plugs $4.00 $128.00

$1,766,00

$1,687.00

$1,761.00



Mujch - double shredded hardwood

~ Gompost - MnPOT Grade 2
Bultet Edgers
Excavation
Bod

Lee
Plaris

Mulch - double shredded hardwood
Compost - MnDOT Grade 2

Buliet Edgers

Excavation

Sod

Linder
Flants

Mulch - double shredded hardwood
Compost - MinDOT Grade 2

Bullet Edgers

Excavation

Sod

Schater
Plants

Mulch - double shredded hardwood
Compost - MnDOT Grade 2
Bullet Edgers

Excavation

42

60
16

120

18
12

60
15

120

35
42

60
15

120

65
86
14

100

16

#1 gal.
#2 gal.

CY

oY

Ln. Ft. -

oY
SF

plugs
#1 gal.
#2 gal,
cY
cY
Ln, Ft,
GY

SF

plugs
#1 gal.
#2 gal.
CY
CY
Ln. Ft.
cY

SF

plugs
#1 gat.
#2 yal,
194
cY

Lo Ft.

oY

$12.00
$22.00

$30.00
$30.00

$8.00
$11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
$30.00
$30.00

$8.00
$11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
F30.00
$30.00

$8.00
$11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
$30.00

$30.00

$8.00

$11.00

$504.00
$0.00

$60.00
$60.00
$480.00
£165.00

$360.00

$72.00
$144.00
$154.00
$60.00
$60.00
$480.00
$168,00

$360.00

$140.00
$504.00
$0.00
$60.00
$60.00
$480.00
$165.00

$360.00

$260.00
$1,032.00
$308.00
$180.00
$60.00
$800.00

$165.00

$1,767.00

$1,406.00

$1,769.00



—

Sed

Schneider
Plants

Mudch - double shiredded hardwood
Compost - MADOT Grade 2

Bullat Edgers

Excavation

Sod .

Schumachaer
Plants

Mulch - double shredded hardwood
Compast - MnDOT Grade 2
Bultet Edgers

Retaining Wall - Glaciai Fisld Stone
12" -24"

Excavation
Sod

Vouller
Plants

Mulch - double shredded hardwood
Compost - MnDOT Grade 2

Bullet Edgers

Excavation

Sod

Wemeier
Plants

130

39
39

78
18

120

40

2.0

15

120

46
37

80
15

120

34
44

SF

piugs
#1 gal.
#2 gl
cY
Cy
fn FL
cYy

SF

phigs
#1 gal,
#2 gal.
cY
cYy
L, B,

TON

cy

SF

plugs
#1 gal.
#2 gel.
cY
cyY
Ln Ft.
cYy

5F

plugs
#1 gal,

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
$30.00
$30.00

$8.00
$11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
$30.00
$30,00
$8.00

$150.00

$11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22.00
$30.00
$30.00

$8.00
$11.00

§3.00

$4.00
$12.00

$390.00

$156.00
$468.00
$0.00
$60.00
$60.00
$624.00
$165.00

$360.00

$0.00
$96.00
$308.00
$80.00
$60.00
§320.00

$375.00

$165.00

$360.00

$164.00
$444.00
$0.00
$80.00
$60.00
$480.00
$188.00

$360.00

$136.00
§528.00

$3,184%.00

$1.883.00

$1,744.00

$1,763.00



Muileh - double shredded hardwood
Compost - MnDOT Grade 2

Bullet Edgers

Excavation

Sod

Whalen
RFlants

Mulch ~ double shredded hardwood
Compost ~MnDOT Grade 2
Bullet-Edgars

Excavation

Sod

Retaining Wall - Glacial Fiald Stone
12t -24"

Mobllization

Tatal Gost Buthmate

70
15

120

5.5
126
28
316

2.5

- 2 gal.

oY
cY
Ln, A,
oY

SF

plugs
#1 gal.
#2 gal.
oY

Y
Ln. Ft
oY

SF

TON

JOB

$22.00
$30.00
$30.00

$8,00
$i11.00

$3.00

$4.00
$12.00
$22,00
$30.90
$30.00
$8.00
$11.00
$3.00

$i60.00

$500.00

N

$0.00
$60.00
$60.00
$560.00
$165.00

$380,00  $1,860.00

$84.00
$708.00
$374.00
$165.00
$165.00
$1,008.00
$308.00
$948,00

375,00  $4,135.00

$300.00 $300.00

$25.074.00  $25,074.00




MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
CONSENT

ITEM #: 6
MOTION

AGENDATTEM:  Approve Temporary Authority for City Electrical Inspections
SUBMITTED BY: Sharon Lumby, City Clerk
THROUGH: Bruce A. Messelt, City Administrator @Pﬁ “/\\V

REVIEWED BY: Karl Horning, Building Official
David Snyder, City Attomey

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: It is respectfully requested that the City Council
receive and approve Ordinance No. 08-048, authorizing inspections of electrical installations
within the City. A sample ordinance was provided by the League of Minnesota Cities. No
specific motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the
Consent Agenda.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Construction projects are being delayed by a lack of
state-provided electrical inspections. Under state law, any new electrical installation in any
construction, remodeling or repair must be inspected for compliance with accepted standards of
construction for safety to life and property. While it’s usually the State that performs these
inspections the State isn’t doing any electrical inspections during shutdown,

STAFF _REPORT: A City can pass an ordinance authorizing inspections of electricat
installations within its jurisdiction. Once the City conveys the adopted ordinance to the
Department of Labor and Industry (DLI), the City can allow inspections to be performed within
the City by individuals licensed by the State as master or journeyman electricians, The League
of Minnesota Cities has learned that the DLI commissioner believes cities do indeed have the
authority to pass such an ordinance for Cities to take over electrical inspections during state
shutdown.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council approve Ordinance No. 08-048 as part of tonight’s Consent
Agenda,
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City Council Meeting a Approve Temporary Authority for City Elw,%rical Inspections
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Item # 6

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda further discuss and deliberate prior to taking action. If done so, the appropriate action of
the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to Adopt Ordinance No. 08-48, An Ordinance amending Chapter 151 by adding the
Minnesota Electrical Act to the Lake Elmo City Code”

ATTACHMENTS: Ordinance No. 08-048

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda):

- Questions from Council to Staff........cccorverrveriiniiinn Mayor Facilitates
- Call o8 MOtON oveereeeiieieeeseiresiererereseeeseessssesersaneesssese | Mayor & City Council
= DISCUSSION..cvirerrirrerreernrerraerersrnssnssrsnesissessnnessiessesssmnsessanassans Mayor Facilitates
= AcCtion 01 MOtION . ioivivieriirereseeerenessessensenesssssesesies e Mayor & City Council
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ORDINANCE NO. 08-048

CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, STATE OF MINNESOTA

AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 151 OF THE CITY CODE OF
LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 151 BY ADDING THE MINNESOTA
ELECTRICAL ACT TO THE LAKE ELMO CITY CODE

The City of Lake Elmo ordains;

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT:

Chapter 151.002 of the Lake Elmo City Code is hereby amended with Ordinance No. (8-
by adding the Minnesota Electrical Act to Chapter 1510f the City Code which shall read
as follows:

Section 1, Authority to inspect. The City of Lake Elmo hereby provides for the
inspection of all electrical instailations pursuant to Minn, Stat. 326B.36.
Subd, 6,

Section 2, Adopted by reference. The Minnesota Elecirical Act, as adopted by the
Commissioner of Labor and Industry pursuant to Minnesota Statutes
Chapter 326B, Sections 326B.31 to 326B.399, The Minnesota Electrical
Act is hereby incorporated into this ordinance as if fully set out herein.
The Minnesota State Building Code incorporates by reference the National
Electrical Code pursuant to Minn, R. 1315.0020. All such odes
incorporate herein by reference constitute the electrical Code of the City
of Lake Elmo.

Section 3, Compliance. All electrical installations shall comply with the
requirements of the electrical code of the Cit of Lake Elmo and this
ordinance,

Section 4, Permits and fees. The issuance of permits and the collection of fees shall
be as authorized in Minnesota Statutes 326B,37. Any inspections or
handling fees will be payable to the City of Lake Elmo,

Section 3. Notice and appeal. All notices of violations and orders issued under this
ordinance shall be in conformance with Minn. Stat. 326B.36, subd, 4.

Section 6, Violations and penalties. A violation of the Minnesota Flectrical Actis a
misdemeanor. (M.S. 326B.082, sub. 16)



Section 7. Sunset. This ordinance shall be revoked without further action of the City
Council once the Department of Labor and Industry is funded for the 2011
fiscal year by legisiative enactment of a stare budget.

SECTION 2. PURPOSE:

The purpose of this amendment is to establish an electrical inspections program in the
City of Lake Elmo that is administered and enforced by the City.

SECTION 3. SUMMARY:

The following official summary of Ordinance No. 08-48 has been approved by the City
Council of the City of Lake Elmo as clearly informing the public of the intent and effect
of the Ordinance,

It is the intent and effect of Ordinance No. 08-048 to establish an electrical inspections

program in the City of Lake Elmo that is administered and enforced by the City, as
permitted in Minn. Stat. 326B.36, subd 6.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE:

Adopted by the City Council of Lake Elmo the 19" day of July, 2011.

Dean A. Johnston, Mayor

ATTEST:

Sharon Lumby, City Clerk
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011

"CONSENT '
ITEM #: 7
MOTION

AGENDA ITEM: Electrical Inspection Services Agreement
SUBMITTED BY: Sharon Lumby, City Clerk

THROUGH: Bruce A. Messelt, City Administrator %?Qj\

REVIEWED BY:  Karl Horning, Building Official
David Snyder, City Attorney

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: It is respectfully requested that the City Council
receive and approve an Electrical Inspection Services Agreement with Joseph Wheaton,
Wheaton Inspections. Mr. Wheaton is the State Electrical Inspector for this area. No specific
motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the Consent
Agenda. '

BACKFROUND INFORMATION: Once the City conveys the adopted ordinance to the
Department of Labor and Industry (DLI), the City can allow inspections to be performed within
the City by individuals licensed by the State as Master or Journeyman Electricians. The League
of Minnesota Cities has learned that the DLI commissioner believes cities do indeed have the
authority to pass such an ordinance for Cities to take over electrical inspections during the State
shutdown.

STAFE REPORT: Currently Joe Wheaton works as a contract employee with the State of
Minnesota to conduct electrical inspection, as required by the National Electrical Code. The City
keeps 25% of the permit fee and passes 75% onto the inspector, which is included in the draft
agreement, The Building Official is pleased with the work performed by Mr. Wheaton, who
provides timely inspection and good customer service, and would like to retain his services on
behalf of the City.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council approve an Electrical Inspection Services Agreement with
Joseph Wheaton, Wheaton Inspections as part of tonight’s Consent Agenda.

--page 1 -




City Council Meeting 9 Electrical Inspection 'ban%ices Agreement
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Item # 7

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda further discuss and deliberate prior to taking action, [f done so, the appropriate action of
the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to Adopt Electrical Inspection Services Agreement with Joseph
Wheaton, Wheaton Inspection, as presented [and modified] herein.”

- ATTACHMENTS: Electrical Inspection Services Agreement

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda);

- Questions from Council to Staff......c.coccovvreninnniiinini Mayor Facilitates
- Call for MOotion .uvveverieieseeeeieeninies s e eesssseesssseens Mayor & City Council
= DASCUSSION ttresvrreereesessse s s e et s e s hs sr s ene s Mayor Facilitates
- Action 00 MOtION. .eeeererrecir s Mayor & City Council
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City of Lake Elmo
Electrical Inspection Services Agreement

This contract is made and entered into between the City of Lake Flmo, hereinafter

identified as “City” and Joseph Wheaton, Wheaton Inspections, hereinafter identified as
“Contractor”.

WHEREAS, the City requires services to be provided for electrical inspections for
electrical permits issued in the City; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor desires to and is capable of providing the necessary services
according to the terms and conditions stated herein.

1. TERMS
The Terms of this Contract shall run from July 20, 2011 to

2. CONTRACTOR’S OBLIGATIONS:

General Description. The Contractor shall provide the following services:

a. Provide qualified personnel to perform elecirical inspections within two work
days of notification by the electrical installer,

b. Enforce the Minnesota Flectrical Act and Rules as adoptéd and amended by the
City and current National Electrical Code,

¢. Submit a report of complete inspections, invoice for completed electrical
inspections with the completed permits.

d. ~Cooperate with the City Building Official to resolve non-complying or incomplete
electrical installations when the installers fail {0 comply with acceptable
standards.

e, Notify the electrical utility for connection or re-connection of all electrical
services installed, replaced or repaired for which an electrical permit is required.
Confractors may call in for hook-ups on residential installations.



3. CITY’S OBLIGATIONS:

General Description. The City shall:

a. Receive and process electrical permits and fees in accordance to its fee schedule.

b. Assign a permit number.

¢. Forward a copy of the permit to the Contractor.

d. Receive and process orders for payments and fees collected for fee shortages and
extra or special inspections. '

e. Adopt the most recent version of the Minnesota Electrical Act.

f.  Adopt Minnesota Rules.

4, PAYMENT:

a. Compensation. The City shall pay the Contractor 75% of the permit fees
collected for completed inspections.

b. Invoices, The Contractor shall submit an invoice and request for payment on an
invoice form acceptable to the City.

c. Time of Payment. The City shall make payments to the Contractor within thirty
days (30) from the date of which the invoice is received. If the invoice is
incorrect, or otherwise improper, the City shall notify the Contractor within ten
days (10) of receiving the incorrect invoice. Upon receiving the corrected invoice
from the Contractor, the City will make payment within thirty days (30).

~d. Payment for Unauthorized Claims. The City may refuse to pay any claim, which
is not specifically authorized by the Contract. Payment of the claim shall not
preclude the City from questioning the propriety of the claim.

5. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND STANDARDS:

a. General. The Contractor shall abide by all federal, state, and local laws, statutes,
ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or hereafter adopted pertaining to
this Contract.

b. Licenses. The Contractor shall procure, at his own expense, all licenses or other

certifications required for the provision of services contemplated by this Contract.
The Contractor shall inform the City of any changes in the above-stated laws,
standards, requirements, rules, etc., within five (5) days of occurrence.



Minnesota Law to Govern. This Contract shall be governed and construed in
accordance with the substantive and procedural laws of the State of Minnesota,
without giving effect to the principles of conflict of laws. All proceedings related
to this Contract shall be venued in the State of Minnesota.

. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS: The Contractor is an
independent contractor and nothing herein contained shall be construed as to
create the relationship of employer and employee between the City and the
Contractor. The Contractor shall at all times be free to exercise initiative,
Jjudgment and discretion as to how to best perform to provide services The
Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the Contractor is not entitled to receive
any benefits received by City employees and is not eligible for worker’s or
unemployment compensation benefits, The Contractor also acknowledges and
agrees that no withholding or deduction for State or Federal income taxes FICA,
FUTA or otherwise, will be made from payments due the Contractor and that it is
the Contractors sole obligation to comply with the applicable provisions of all
Federal and State tax laws.

. INDEMNIFICATION: The Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and
defend the City, its officers and employees against any and all liability, loss,
costs, damages expenses, claims and actions, including attorney’s fees which the
City, its officers or employees may hereafter sustain, incur or be required to pay
arising out of or by reason of any negligent or willful act or adequately perform
the Contractors obligations pursuant to this Contract.

. INSURANCE:

Professional Liability Insurance — The Contractor must provide professional
liability insurance with Jimits of at least $500,000 per occurrence $1,000,000
aggregate for each person performing inspections under this Contract and with the
City as additional insured.

Automobile Liability. The Contractor must provide a certificate of automobile
insurance meeting the minimal requirements of the State for each person
performing inspections under this Contract.

Worker’s Compensation. If applicable, the Contractor shall procure and maintain
a policy that at last meets the statutory minimum.,

Certificates. Prior to concurrent with execution of this Contract, the Contractor
shall file copies with the City,

Failure to Provide Proof of Insurance, The City may withhold payments or
immediately terminate this Contract for failure of the Contractor to furnish proof
of insurance coverage or to comply wit the insurance requirements as stated
above.



f. Non-Waiver. Nothing in this Contract shall constitute a waiver by the City of any
statutory limits or exceptions on liability.

9. SUBCONTRACTING: The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract for
the performance of the services contemplated under this Contract of the City and
subject to such conditions and provisions as are deemed necessary. The
Contractor may have another inspector fill in for him from time to time or in the
case of sickness or while on vacation.

10. TERMINATION:

a. With or Without Cause. This Contract may be terminated with or without
cause by either party upon thirty (30) days written notice.

11. CONTRACT RIGHTS/REMEDIES:

a. Rights Cumulative. All remedies available to either party under the terms of
this Contract or by law are cumulative and may be exercised concurrently or
separately, and the exercise of any one remedy shall not be deemed an election
of such remedy to the exclusion of other remedies.

b.Waiver. Waiver for any default shall not be deemed to be a watver of any
subsequent default. Waiver of Breach of any provision of this Contract
shall not be construed to be modification for the terms of this Contract,
unless stated to be such in writing and signed by authorizeD representative
of the City and the Contractor.
The PARTIES hereto executed this Confract as of the year and date listed below.
City of Lake Elmo, MN

Dated:

By:

Contractor; Joseph Wheaton, Wheaton Inspections

Dated;

By:




MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
CONSENT
ITEM #; 8

MOTION Ordinance No. 08-049
AGENDA ITEM:  Consider Amended 2011 Fee Schedule
SUBMITTED BY: Tom Bouthilet, Finance Director
Karl Horning, Building Official
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administrator 6“&%\

REVIEWED BY:  Sharon Lumby, City Clerk

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The Council is respectfully requested to consider
adopting Ordinance No. 08-049 approving an Amended 2011 Fee Schedule to include City
support fees for electrical inspections. No specific motion is needed, as this is recommended to
be part of the overall approval of the Consent Agenda.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION& STAFF REPORT: City staff prepared an ordinance
revision and, if adopted, would allow the City to contract with Joe Wheaton, Wheaten
Inspections, a private license master electrician, to perform the necessary electrical inspections.

The code amendment involves adoption of the National Electrical Code and aliows the City to
administer the code by issuing permits, collecting fees and requiring inspections, Staff has

created the proper form and will integrate the process into the City’s computer permit issuing
software.

The City needs a mechanism to determine and collect appropriate fees for electrical services,
which are provided in Appendix B. The staff felt it was a good idea for residents/contractors to
have a “one-stop shop” for building permits during the State shutdown.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council consider adopting Ordinance No. 08-049 approving an
Amended 2011 Fee Schedule to include City support fees for electrical inspections. No specific
motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the Consent
Agenda.

--page 1 --




City Council Meeting - ; Consider Amended 2011 Fee Schedule — F %rical Inspections

July 19th, 2011 ConseucAgenda Item # 8

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda further discuss and deliberate prior to taking action. If done so, the appropriate action of

the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to adopt Ordinance No. 08-048 approving Appendix B — Electrical Inspections Fees

amending the 2011 Fee Schedule, as presented herein.”

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Ordinance No. 08-048
2. Appendix B - Electrical Inspection Fees

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda):

Questions from Council 10 Staff......c.vcoveniiiiiiis Mayor Facilitates
Call for MOtOM «.vvereeeerereeeeresssseenseenn S Mayor & City Council
DASCUSSION cvvevevseessereeeeesseeesseesssrosreressasssssssssssrmessnensensneesenions MiBYOT Facilitates
Action 0N MOBOM ...uvrervrecivirsssriieisseessssnna s s Mayor & City Council

-~ page 2 —




CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 08-049
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING MUNICIPAL FEES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2011
The Lake Elmo City Council hereby adopts the following fee schedule for calendar year
2011, applicable as services outlined in Appendix B, and directs that it be added to the Lake
Elmo Municipal Code as Appendix B.

Appendix B— 2011 Fee Schedule — Flectrical Inspection Fees

ADOPTION DATE: Passed by the Lake Elmo City Council on the 19th day of July, 2011.

CITY OF LAKE ELMO

By:
Dean A. Johnston
Its: Mayor
ATTEST
Sharon Lumby
City Clerk

PUBLICATION DATE: Published onthe ¢ .dayof. ....2011.



APPENDIX B

e

N

o omvor } 2800 Laverne Avenue N,

LAKE | Lake Elmo, MN 55042
ELMO

. Building, Official:
1 FAX: (651) 777-9615

L Jll ngw.lageelmo.org

‘Electrical Inspector: (612) 866-3784
(612) 233-5409

Request for Electrical
Inspection (REI) (permit)

Inspection Fee Worksheet

Item Description

Quantity

Fee

Total™*

0 to 400 Amp Power Source

$ 35!source_

0 to 200 Amp Circult or Feeder

1401 - 800 Amp Power Source $ 80/source
Over 800 Amp Power Source $ 100/s0urce
§ 6ifeeder or circuit

Over 200 Amp Clreuit or Fesder

$ 15/eeder or circuit

[New One- or Two-gamlly Dwelling
{up to 30 circuits and feeders per unit)

§ 100/dwelling unit

New One- or Two-Family Dwelling
Aaddltional cireuits over 30 per unit)

$ Bifeeder or circuit

Existing One- or Two-Family Dwelling
ftwhere 15 or more feeders or circuils
are installed or extended per unit)

$ 100/dwelling unit

| Existing One- or Two-Family Dwedling
[{where less than 15 feeders or circuits
‘are instalied or extended per unit)

$ 6ifeeder or circult

|Reconnected Existing Circuit or Fesder (for parelboard replacements)

§ 2/feeder or circuit

'Separate bonding inspection

$ 35finspection

inspection of concrete-encased grounding electrode

$ 35/inspection

Technology circuits & circuits iess than 50 volts

75¢/device or apparatus

Additional inspection trip(s)

$ 35/inspection trip

Investigative Fee (enter values in the Quantity and Fee columns)

{Other..,

Other..,

Cther...

0_!her... _

TOTAL INSPECTION FEE is the fee calculated above,
or $36 multiplled by the number of required inspection trips, whichever is greater,
Enter Inspection Fee Here & on REl >>
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
CONSENT
ITEM #: 9

RESOLUTION 2011-026
AGENDATTEM: Consideration of an application for a variance to allow the construction of
an-accessory building over 500 square feet in size and designed to
internally flood within a Flood Fringe District.
SUBMITTED BY: Nick Johnson, Planning Intern
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administratorg f\

REVIEWED BY:  Planning Commission
Kyle Klatt, Planning Director

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is asked to consider a variance
request from Mr. Douglas Lovett, 9940 59 Street Court North, to rebuild an accessory building,
damaged during the last winter due to snow load, with a design intended to allow the structure to
internally flood. Due to the fact that the barn is currently within a Flood Fringe District and
would be considered nonconforming, the construction requires a variance,

In addition, the applicant has decided to utilize internal flood proofing techniques as opposed
using fill or stilts to raise the structure, which would prove to costly for the applicant. The
variance will allow for the new structure to be larger than the 500 square foot limit allowed for
internal flood proofing. It is important to note that the accessory structure or the home have not
flooded previously. No specific motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the
overall approval of the Consent Agenda.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: For variance applications, the burden is on the applicant
to demonstrate why this situation is unique and necessitates flexibility to code requirements. To
make this case, a variance can only be granted by the city when strict enforcement of the code
would cause “practical difficulties” on a property owner. Therefore, the case must meet the
following four findings:

a. A variance lo the provision of this chapier may be granted by the Board of
Adjusiment upon the application by the owner of the affected property where the
strict enforcement of this chapter would cause practical difficulties because of
circumstances unique to the individual property under consideration and then
only when it is demonstrated that such actions will be in keeping with the spirits
and intent of this chapier;

--page 1 --




City Council Meeting : a Variance;~y§40 59" St. Ct. N.
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Item # 9

b. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner;

c. The proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the locality in
which the property in question is located; and '

d. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to
property adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the
congestion of the public streets or substantially diminish or impair property
values within the neighborhood.

In addition to these requirements, the case must also satisfy the following criteria for variances in
flood zones provided by the Federal Emergency Management Administration:

a. Variances shall not be issued by a community within any designated regulatory
floodway if any increase in flood levels during the base flood discharge would result.

b, Variances shall only be issued by a community upon (i) a showing of good and
sufficient cause, (ii) a determination that failure to grant the variance would result in
exceptional hardship to the applicant, and (iii) a determination that the granting of a
variance -will not result in increased flood heights, additional threats to public safety,
extraordinary public expense, create nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization on the
public, or conflict with existing local laws or ordinances.

¢. Variances shall only be issued upon a determination that the variance is the minimum
necessary, considering the flood hazard, to afford relief.

In reviewing the request against the four criteria listed above, along with careful consideration of
the FEMA variance criteria, staff determined all criteria were met. The request was deemed
reasonable and found to have no ill effect on the character of the locality or adjacent properties.

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: The Planning Commission reviewed the application,
held a public hearing, and recommended approval of the variance request at the regularly
scheduled meeting on July 11, 2011. One Lake Elmo resident was present and spoke in favor of
granting the variance request at the public hearing.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council approve the variance as part of tonight’s Consent Agenda.

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda further discuss and deliberate prior to taking action. If done so, the appropriate action of
the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to approve Resolution 2011-026 approving the requested variance to allow an
accessory building of over 500 square fect to be built as proposed at 9940 59" Street Court
North with internal flood-proofing techniques”

The City Council may also deny the requested variance with findings. If done so, the
appropriate action of the Council following such discussion would be:

-- page 2 --




)
City Council Meeturg : Variance; 9940 59™ St Ct. N,
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Item # 9

“Move to deny the requested variance to allow an accessory building of over 500
square feet to be built as proposed at 9940 59" Street Court Novth Jor the
Jollowing reasons [stated herein].”

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No. 2011-026

. Detailed Staff report analyzing the request
. Application Form

Site plan identifying dimensions of accessory structure

Survey of 9940 59" St, Ct. N.

2
3
4
5. Flood plain map
6
7. Images of old accessory building that was damaged due to snow load
8

. Letter detailing contractor’s flood proofing measutes

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction of Tt ......cocoevreeivvriricnrnsinenieeesesenennn. City Administrator
- Report/Presentation.........ovccmmmveeccorionscnssnionensesssenessien e City Planner
- Questions from Council to Staff ............ccoocevvrccrnerensivneennnn. Mayor Facilitates
- Public Input, if Appropriate........cc.cccecoceervrrinmsnivinverinneennnen . Mayor Facilitates
= Call for MOHON ..oovvivicriiiicnrcreereeinenie s Mayor & City Council
= DISCUSSION...ccovinvisii e Mayor & City Council
- Action 0n MOHOMN...c..cccccivmnieeieiiesisnnsissneens . Mayor Facilitates

-- page 3 ~




CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-026
A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ALLOW THE RECONSTRUCTION OF A
DETACHED ACCESSORY BUILDING OVER 500 SQUARE FEET IN SIZE IN A FLOOD
FRINGE DISTRICT WITH INTERNAL FLOOD PROOFING

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the Staie of Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, Douglas L. Lovett, 9940 59® Street Court North (the “Applicant”) has

- submitted an application to the City of Lake Elmo (the “City”) for a variance to allow an
“accessory building of over 500 square feet to be rebuilt with iniernal flood-proofing techniques in

a Flood Fringe District; and

WHEREAS, notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake Elmo

Zoning Ordinance, Section 154.017; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission held a public hearing on said matter

-on July 11, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission has submitted its report and
recommendation to the City Council as part of a Staff Memorandum dated July 19, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the City Council considered said matter at its July 19, 2011 meeting.
NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, the
City Council makes the following:
FINDINGS

1) That the procedures for obtaining said Variance are found in the Lake Elmo Zoning
Ordinance, Section 154.017.

2) That additional criteria concerning Variances for structures located within a Floodplain
District are found in Section 152.10, Subd. C (3) of the City Code.

3) That ali the submission requirements of said 154.017 and 152.10 have been met by the
Applicant. ,



4) That the proposed variance is to allow an accessory building of over 500 square feet to be
rebuilt with internal flood-proofing techniques in a Flood Fringe District. The proposed
building would replace a slightty larger structure that was damaged and eventually torn
down due to heavy snow loads over the past winter.

5) That the Variance will be located on property legally described as follows:

Legal Description

PART OUTLOT A LYING WESTERLY FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE COMMENGING AT MOST
SOUTHWESTERLY CORNER OUTLOT A THENCE AZ R0DEGSH23" ALONG MCST SOUTHERLY
LINE SAID QUTLOT 233.95 FEET POB LINE DESCRIBED THENGE AZ 28DEG27'40" 202.19
FEET THENCE AZ 38DEG43'28" 193.71 FEET TO POINT ON MOST SOUTHERLY LINE LOT 1
BLOCK 4 SAID PRAIRIE HAMLET 448.88 FEET E OF SOUTHWEST CORNER SAID LOT 1 &
THERE TERMINATING & PART SAID QUTLOT A LYING NORTHERLY & WESTERLY
FOLLOWING DESCRIBED LINE BEGINNING AT MOST SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER SAID LOT 1
BLOCK 4 THENCE AZB1DEGSE8'02" 64.01 FEET TO ANG POINT IN MOST WESTERLY LINE
QUTLOT B SAID PLAT THENCE AZ 40UEG2Z 105" ALONG MOST NORTHWESTERLY LINE SAID
QUTLOT 8 32.78 FEET THENCE AZ 389DEG21'05" 745.88 FEET TO POINT ON MOST
NORTHERLY LINE SAID DUTLOT A 908.87 FEET WEST OF NORTHEAST CORNER SAID -
CUTLOT A & SAID LINE-THERE TERMINATING & LOT 1 BLOCK 4 SAID PLAT SUBJTO EASE
Lot A BubdivisionCd 00255 SubdivisionName FRAIRIE HMAMLET

Commonly known as 5761 Keats Avenue.

6) That the strict enforcement of Zoning Ordinance would cause practical difficulties and
that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted
by an official control. Specific findings:

@) There have been no known previous incidents of flooding of the previous
accessory building or the principal structure on the applicant’s property.

B) The property owner would be allowed to construct the structure with the same
dimensions had it not been located in a flood plain.

¢} An accessory structure of only 500 square feet, which is what is allowed with
internal flood proofing within the Flood Fringe District, is not large enough to
Julfill the needs of the applicants farming activities that currently occur.
Therefore, an accessory structure of this size would significantly limit their
ability to continue their farming activities.

7) That the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner. Specific findings:

a) In 2008, The Federal Emergency Management Agency updated the Lake Elmo
Flood Insurance Rate Map, which resulted in the accessory structure on the
Lovett property being included within a Flood Fringe District where the
structure previously was not designated as such.



pard
s

b) The designated flood plain boundaries extend well beyond the ordinary high
water level of the pond on the applicant’s property, which is not common for
other inland water features within the City.

¢) The damage caused by heavy snow loads made the structure unsafe,
necessitating new construction

8) That the proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the locality in which
the property in question is located. Specific findings:

a) The structure existed in the same location before being included within a Flood
Fringe District.
b) The proposed internal flood-proofing techniques will allow the structure to be
' rebuilt in its historic location.
¢) The structure will not be visible from State Highway 36 or other adjacent
properties. -

9) That the proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to property
adjacent to the property in guestion or substantially increase the congestion of the public
streets or substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.
Specific findings: :

a) Replacing the damaged structure, as opposed to leaving a dilapidated structure
on this property, will ensure that property values do not diminish in the
neighborhood.

10) That with regards to the City’s Floodplain Management ordinance:

a) That the granting of the Variance will not result in an increase in flood levels
during the base flood discharge.

b) That the application has demonstrating good and sufficient cause for the grating
of the Variance.

c) That the failure to grant the variance would result in exceptional hardship to the
applicant.

d) That the granting of a variance will not result in increased flood heights,
additional threats to public safety, extraordinary public expense, create
nuisances, cause fraud on or victimization of the public, or conflict with existing
local laws or ordinances.

e) That the variance is the minimum necessary, considering the flood hazard, to
afford relief.

CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION

Based on the foregoing, the Applicants’ application for a Variance is granted with the following
conditions:



1) The structure must be anchored to resist flotation, collapse, and lateral movement.

2) All portions of the structure located below the Base Flood Llevation (BFE) must be
constructed of flood-resistant materials.

3) The structure be designed to allow for the automatic entry and exit of flood waters.
4) Mechanical and utility equipment must be elevated or flood proofed at or above the BFE,

5) The structure shall comply with the floodway encroachment provisions of the National
Flood Insurance Program (NFIP) Regulations.

6) 'The structure shall be limited to parking and storage.
7) Compliance with these conditions must be satisfied at the time a building permit is issued

for the structure and will be verified during routine inspections required as part of the
building permit. '

Passed and duly adopted this 19" day of July 2011 by the City Council of the City of Lake Elmo,
Minnesota.

Dean A. Johnston, Mayor
ATTEST:

Bruce Messelt, City Administrator



City of Lake Eimo Planning Department
Variance Request

To:

From:
Meeting Date:
Applicant:
Owner:
Location:

Zoning:

-City Council

Nick Johnson, Planning Intern
7/19/2011

Douglas Lovett

Same

9940 59" Street Court North
OP/OS

Introductory Information

Application
Summary:

Property
Information:

Applicable
Codes:

The City of Lake Flmo has received a request from Mr. Lovett to construct and
internally flood proof a 3800 square foot building at 9940 59" Street Court North.
The proposed building is larger than the 500 square foot allowable threshold for
internally flood proofing buildings within a Flood Fringe District and therefore
requires a variance.

The applicant’s property is OP/OS Open Space Preservation District. It is located in
the Northern part of Lake Elmo. There is an existing single family home and accessory
structure located within the Flood Fringe District. The fact that these structures are in
the flood plain is a result of FEMA’s last updates of their flood map in 2008. 1t should
be noted that the extent to which the flood boundary extends is larger than what is
normal, The accessory structure, a barn used for the property owner’s agricultural
activities, was constructed more than 40 years prior. It is important to note that the
structure is not visible from Hwy 36 and does not present a physical or visual nuisance
in any way.

§152.10 ADMINISTRATION (C, 3)

Variances. The Board of Adjustment may authorize upon appeal in specific cases
such relief or variance from the terms of this Ordinance as will not be contrary to
the public interest and only when the applicable criteria of Section 154,017 of the
City Code is met. In the granting of such variance, the Board of Adjustment shall
clearly identify in writing the specific conditions that cxisted consistent with the
criteria specified in this Ordinance, any other Zoning regulations in the City, and in
the respective enabling legislation that justified the granting of the variance. No
variance shall have the effect of allowing in any district uses prohibited in that
district, permit a lower degree of flood protection than the regulatory flood



Vaviance Reguest Lovert; Qwald 38" St Co N,
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Cire Conncil Repore; 7-19.2011

human intervention to open a garage door prior to flooding will not satisfy
this requirement for automatic openings.

§ 152.11 NONCONFORMING USES (A, 3)

The cost of all structural alterations or additions to any nonconforming structure
over the life of the structure shall not exceed 50 percent of the market value of the
structure unless the conditions of this Section are satisfied. The cost of all
structural alterations and additions must include all costs such as construction
materials and a reasonable cost placed on all manpower or labor. If the cost of all
previous and proposed alterations and additions exceeds 50 percent of the market
value of the structure, then the structure must meet the standards of Section 152.04
or 152.05 of this Ordinance for new structures depending upon whether the
structure is in the Floodway or Flood Fringe District, respectively.

Findings & General Site Overview

Site Data:

Lot Size: 17.9 acres

Existing Use: Residential/Agricutture

Existing Zoning: OP/0S Open Space Preservation District
Property Identification Number (PID): 03-029-21-12-0005

Application Review:

Applicable
Definitions:

ACCESSORY BUILDING. A subordinate building, or a portion of the main building,
which is located on the same lot as the main building and the purpose of which is
clearly incidental to that of the principal building.

ACCESSORY STRUCTURE. A use or structure on the same lot with, and of 2
nature customarily incidental and subordinate to, the principal use or structure.

BUILDING. Any structure, either temporary or permanent, having a roof and used or
built for the shelter or enclosure of any person, animal, or movable property of any
kind. When any portion of a building is completely separated from every other patt of
a building by area separation, each portion of the building shall be deemed as a
separate building.

NON-CONFORMITY — NON-CONFORMING USE. Any legal use, structure or
parcel of tand already in existence, recorded, or authorized before the adoption of
zoning regulations or amendments to the zoning regulations that would not have been
permitted to become established under the terms of the zoning regulations as now

written, if the zoning regulations had been in effect prior to the date it was established,
recorded, or authorized.

SoiLand Use\Woriances\9940 3otk 8t Ct ¥iRep CC Lover Yarianes 7190 doe
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Variance Reguest: Lovets; $94(1 5 ot 8 O N > “ Q
Cirv Coumcil Reporey 7-19-2011

Variance
Conclusions:

market value of the structure, as specified in Section 152.11 of the City Code.

The request to rebuild the accessory building that was damaged due to snow load on
the property is a reasonable request. Therefore, staff finds this condition is met.

2. The plight of the landowner is due lo circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner; :

In 2008, FEMA updated the flood map, which resulted in the accessory structure on
the Lovett property being included in the Flood Fringe District. In addition, the area
of the flood plain is substantially larger than normal. Finally, the damage caused by
snow load made the structure unsafe, necessitating new construction. Regarding this
construction, the method of internal flood proofing was the most reasonable option for
the applicant.

Therefore staff finds this condition is met.

3. The proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the locality in which
the property in question is located.

The structure existed in the same location before being included in the Flood Fringe
District. As mentioned before, this structure has never previously flooded. As long as
the appropriate flood proofing techniques are utilized, then there shouldn’t be any
concern as to a shift in the character of the locality. In addition, the applicant has
made it clear that this structure will not be visible to Hwy 36 or other adjacent
properties.

Therefore, staff finds this condition is met.

4. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air lo
property adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the
congestion of the public streets or substantially diminish or impair property values
within the neighborhood.

Repairing the damaged structure should ensure that property values do not diminish in
the neighborhood. In addition, completing the necessary flood proofing would not
diminish the property value in any way. Finally, repairing this structure should not
impair the supply of light or air, or cause any congestion to the public streets.

Therefore, staff finds this condition is met.

Based on the analysis of the review criteria in City Code, the Planning Commission
and City Staff would recommend approval of this variance request with the
conditions and amendments outlined in Resolution 2011-026 for 9940 59™ Street
Court North.

SoiLamel Cset Fortanees 9940 59k 52 T Miflep OC Lovew Varignee 7-15-11 dec
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Variance Request: Lovers: vyd0 59" S G N
Cirv Council Report; 719201

Denial
Motion
Template:

Approval
Motion
Template:

7} The structure must pass additional review to ensure that all of these conditions
have been satisfied.

To deny the request, you may use the following motion as a guide:

I'move to deny the request for the construction of an internally flood proofed
accessory building at 9940 59" Street Court Noth...(please site reasons for the
recommendation)

To approve the request, you may use the following motion as a guide:

I move to approve the request for the construction of an internally flood proofed
accessory structure at 9940 59™ Street Court North based on the findings
provided in the staff report...(or cite your own)

-..with the conditions outlined in the staff report.

cc: Doug Lovett, applicant

S AL Usei Varianeesi V940 39h 52 0 NiRep C0 foven Variance 7-19-1 1 doe
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Fee §
, City of Lake Elmo
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FORM
-] Comprehensive Plan Amendment  [X Variance * (See below) - [ Residential Subdivision
o i
{1 Zoning District Amendment ] Minor Subdivision Prehg:ng?i‘ﬁllgaié:: '
"] Text Amendment [} Lot Line Adjustment O 11-20Lots
' Q 21 Lots or More
[ Flood Plain C.U.P. [] Residential Subdivision [l Excavating & Grading Permit
Conditional Use Permit Sketch/Concept Plan
[J Appeal []PUD

[] Conditional Use Permit (C.UP.)  [J Site & Bnilding Plan Review

appicant: _ Dol L. Lovett 940 S4° gyt (4 M, Lake Elno wo. ot

{Name) (Mailing Address) {Zip)
TELEPHONES: 651,338, 55 7%

{Home) (Work) {Mobile) . (Fax)
FEE OWNER: Dovelas L. Lovett 440 4% Shreet (N, Lake Elme mp, (Codl

{Name)”’ {Malling Address) T (Zhp)
TELEPHONES: _ bS!. 338, ¢TS5

{Home) {Workt} (Moblie) (Fax)

PROPERTY LOCATION (Address and Complete (Long) Legal Description):
4940 59% Streit (4 N_Lake €lmo MN. 55042
See  attache] Leggl Degeription "

DETAILED REASON FOR REQUEST:
Ce¢ attachel  “Detaled Reason Lo ﬁe{%wge “

*VARIANCE REQUESTS: As outlined in Section 301.060 C. of the Lake Blmo Municipal Code, the Applicant must
demonstrate a hardship before a variance can be granted. The hardship related to this application is as follows:

Reducing the ban  <ive Y SO0 sppire Aect  wesld sevesely
Lot jwuf. a‘d-“t\r{ Ao Aarm e mei,} viplete  pur !
1A SV an ce claim  an rorigtat 01:!.?5%-'”,

In signing this application, I hereby acknowledge that I have read and fully understand the applicable provisions of the

Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances and current administrative procedures. | further acknowledpe the fee explanation as
outlined in the application procedures and hereby agree to pay all statements received from the City pertaining to

additional applicationexmense. :
/ ; i 2t~ :rth'\g 2800 Wm: e T * o, :

Signature of Apflicant Date Signature of Applicant . ) Date

JUN 27 70

10712003 City of Lake Eimo - 3800 Laverne Avenue MNorlls » Lake Elmo « 55042 » 651-777-5510 « Fax 651-777-9615
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Detailed Reason for Request

On December 24™, 2010, our barn roof was damaged due to snow load.
In 2008, FEMA updated the Flood Maps and included our barn in a Flood Fringe.

According to the City of Lake Elmo, County of Washington, State of Minnesota, Ordinance No. 08-023,
section 152.05 Flood Fringe District (FF) (B, 2):

“...accessory structures that constitute a minimal nvestment and that do not exceed 500 square

feet at its largest projection may be internally flood proofed in accordance with Section 152.04
{D,5,c}.”

We would like rebuild the barn, making it internaliy flood proofed, in the preexisting footprint which is
targer than 500 square feet.
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Here is a picture of the remaining structure after the damage was removed.

Since one third of the roof collapsed, we were told that the remaining two-thirds of the roof should be
replaced and brought up to code or it could fall down toao.

We were also told that since the collapsed roof was taken down, there is a danger that the walls could
fall down. To reduce this risk, we removed the metal from the side walls but have left the posts, slab,
ptumbing and electric in place.

We have contacted the City of Lake Elmo and are requesting the proper permits to proceed.

We would like to install a new roof which would meet snow load requirements and replace the metal on
the sides which was taken down to mitigate the risk of the walls falling down.

We would like to leave the posts, slab, plumbing and electric but will replace them if it is required by the
building codes.

The insurance company requires us to submit all claim mformatlon by June 28”‘ in order to receive
payment. The mortgage company is requiring that we rebuild the barn in order to protect their
interests,



Here is a picture of the barn with the damaged roof section removed.




On December 24™, 2011, one third of our 40 foot hy 95 foot pole barn collapsed from snow load. We
have 4 children ages 10 and younger so we had an immediate need to make the area safe.




On December 29“‘, 2011, we were issued a building permit of “Class of Work” Repair to remove the
damage and make the buiiding safe. As a first step, we removed the section of collapsed roof.




Kyle Klatt

From: : doug@thelovettfarm.com
“Sent: [Friday, July 01, 2011 3:21 PM
To: Kelli Matzek; Kyle Klatt
Subject: : 9940 59th Street Ct N - Flood Proofing

] have discussed the need to flood proof our barn with our building supplier, Wick Buildings. They told me that
the barn will include the foliowing attributes intended to make it FP-3 or FP-4 compliant: -

Galvanjzed screws

Treated two by eight inch girt

Steal sides

Treated posts -

Posts secured four to five feet deep, eight feet on center
- Ten to sixteen foot openings in front and back of buiiding

onAEwNe

Please let me know if Lake Elmo requires any additional information or changes to the barn design.
Thank you,

Doug Lovett

9940 59" Street Ct N

651.338.8575
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
CONSENT

ITEM #; 10
MOTION

AGENDA ITEM:  City Engineering Services — Consider Agreement with Focus Engineering

SUBMITTED BY: City Council Direction

Tom Bouthilet, Finance Director
Dave Snyder, City Attorney

REVIEWED BY:  Bruce Messelt, City Administrator %D\V"/\

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: Pursuant to July 5th, 2011 City Council direction,
is respectfully requested that the City Council consider the proposed Engineering Services
Agreement with Focus Engineering to provide for Municipal Engineering Services. No specific
motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall approval of the Consent
Agenda.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: In June, the City received notice from TKDA that they
will cease providing municipal Engineering Services to Lake Elmo, effective J anuary 1st, 2012,

To provide for the smoothest possible continuity of services, City Council direction was
provided on July 5th, 2011 with respect to initiating a new Engineer selection effort.

City Council direction was to solicit Engineering Service options that would advance the Council
objectives of: Continuity of Services, Cost Containment/Reduction, Transition of Projects and
Services, and Ability to Provide Required Services. The City Council also directed that the
current Schedule for City contracts be amended to call for annual Renewal of the Engineering
Services Agreement, with a more evaluation moved from 2012 fo 2013 {allowing for a full two-
year-plus timeframe for the newly-selected Engineering Services provider) and, if Council deems
appropriate, an RFP process would be undertaken in 2013, with continued or new services to
begin in January 2014,

STAFF REPORT: Pursuant to City Council direction, the City has received a solicited
proposal from Focus Engineering for the provision of City Engineering Services. Focus
Engineering has been recently formed by Mr. Jack Griffin, former City Engineer for Lake Flmo.
Also anticipated to join Focus Engineering are Mr, Ryan Stempski and Kara Geheren, both with
significant municipal engineering experience; the former including Lake Elmo.

- page 1 -




City Council Meeting ;?‘ City Bngineering Services — Agreement wiw.. %ocus Engineering
July 19th, 2011 Consent Agenda Iiem # 10

The proposed Engineering Services Agreement would meet Council objectives, in particular:
Continuity of Services, Cost Reduction and Transition of Projects/Services. The Firm’s
extensive experience and professional network and contacts appear io adequately address the
objective of 4bility fo Provide Required Services.

The City Attorney, Finance Director and Administrator have reviewed the proposed Agreement
and find it acceptable as to form and content and consistent with applicable laws, regulations and
City policies and procedures.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council consider the proposed
Enginecering Services Agreement with Focus Engineering to provide for Municipal Engineering
Services, No specific motion is needed, as this is recommended to be part of the overall
approval of the Consent Agenda.

Alternatively, the City Council does have the authority to remove this item from the Consent
Agenda further discuss and deliberate prior to taking action. If done so, the appropriate action of
the Council following such discussion would be:

“Move to direct City Staff to with respect to
selection of a new City Engineering Services provider, as agreed upon at
tonight’s meeting.”

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Letter of Interest from Focus Engineering

2. Resumes’ for Focus Engineering
3. Rate Sheet for Focus Engineering
4

. Proposed Engineering Services Agreement with Focus Engineering

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS (if removed from the Consent Agenda):

- Questions from Council to Staff ... Mayor Facilitates
= Call fOT MOTO o.overvriesieeesecnsseessesesseseeresesesessessssessseesess Mayor & City Council
- DISCUSSION cooeiiiiiiitineccsi et errtsieeseanreesraes Mayor Facilitates
- Action 0N MO0 ..o it Mayor & City Council

- page 2 -
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’ FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.

Cara Geheren, P.E. 651.300.4261

fuly 13, 2011 tack Griffin, P.E. 651.300.4264
‘Ryan Stempski, P.E. 651.300.4267

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lake Elmo

3800 Laverne Avenue N.

Lake Elmo, MN 55042

RE:  City Engineering Services Appointment
Dear Mayor and Council Members,

FOCUS Engineering is pleased to submit our statement of gqualifications and respectfully request the
City Council to consider our appointment as your City Engineer at the July 19, 2011 council meeting.
We have enclosed for your consideration an introduction to our firm including the unique
qualifications and benefits that we can provide Lake Elmo; the resumes and bios of Jack Griffin, Ryan
Stempski and Cara Geheren; our hourly rate sheet; and Standard Agreement for Professional Services.

Our team is extremely excited about this opportunity and look forward to creating a long standing
partnership with the Community, City Council and staff. My partners and | have wanted to start our
own business for some time, seeing an opportunity to provide cities a “city engineering” service model
that is responsive to the unique needs of communities like Lake Elmo.

The timing is right. We believe the opportunity to launch this service model is facing us today. With
every budget cycle cities have worked hard to find ways to do more with less and each year it is
becoming more and more difficult to make deeper cuts. Looking ahead there just won’t be much more
that can be done without changing the way that Cities do business. For engineering services, a new
service model is needed with a FOCUS on efficiency and value. Lake Elmo will retain complete
continuity of services at a reduced cost.

Through FOCUS Engineering the City will receive a new City Engineering Service model that provides:
* Increased value through building efficient systems and processes for day-to-day services.

Resource sharing and collaboration to improve efficiencies.

Staff who have dedicated their careers to the role of City Engineer.

Staff that are experts in managing efficient Municipal Infrastructure Systems.

Experts in project management to hire outside consultants to bring the Best Value for the City

for large infrastructure projects (FOCUS Engineering will not have a horse in the race).

More specifically, by retaining Jack Griffin as your City Engineer and Ryan Stempski as your Assistant
City Engineer, the City of Lake Elmo will receive the following additional benefits:
s Complete continuity of services.

www.FOCUSEngineeringinc.com /3973 Northview Terrace, Eagan, MN 55123 / 651.300.4285



e Retention of knowledge of the City's existing and future infrastructure needs, the engineering
department systems and processes, and the communities’ values and character.
e Reduced hourly billing rates that will result in a 12-15% discount compared to current fees.

The FOCUS Engineering team includes (see attached resumes):

e Jlack Griffin, P.E. — over 23 years Municipal Engineering experience.
» Argas of Focused Expertise — infrastructure Planning, Policy and Standards Development, Continuous Process
Improvements, Project Development, and Contract Management.

e Cara Geheren, P.E. — over 13 years Municipal Engineering experience.
= Areas of Focused Expertise — Public Participation, Stormwater Management and Regulations, Residential Street
Projects, and Construction Management.

# Ryan Stempski P.E. ~ over 8 years Municipal Engineering experience.
«  Areas of Focused Experiise — Pavement management, Residential Street Projects, Construction Management,
Permitting, and Site Development.

With Focus we are seeking to create a new option that does not exist today; a business model that is
focused solely on bringing smaller cities leadership and efficiency with a commitment to the shared
resource model, all without a “horse in the race”.

Again we are very excited about this opportunity and ready to forge a long-term relationship with Lake
Elmo. This information has been submitted in summary in order to remain focused on the key issues
and highlights. Should you have more specific questions or require additional information, please do
not hesitate to contact me directly at (651) 600-9305.

Sincerely,

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.

Jack W. Griffin, P.E. Ryan W. Stempski, P.E.
Principal / Sr. Municipal Engineer Principal / Municipal Engineer

Cc: Bruce Messelt, City Administrator
Dave Snyder, City Attorney
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FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.
CARA L. GEHEREN, P.E. | PRESIDENT / SR. MUNICIPAL ENGINEER

Cara Geheren has dedicated her career to serving the public in the role of
City Engineer. She is passionate about working as a team with residents
and business owners to seek practical solutions to everyday problems, in
particular on street reconstruction projects.

Cara was born in Milwaukee, Wisconsin and began her career in Municipal
Engineering while attending the University of Minnesota, Twin Cities
Campus when she was hired as an intern for the City of Maple Grove.
Since graduating in 1998 with a Bachelor’s Degree in Civil Engineering, she
has been working as a Consulting Engineer, serving in the role of City and
Town Engineer for various Minnesota communities.

In her role as City or Town Engineer, she has been responsible for the
management of infrastructure systems including sanitary sewer, water,
storm water and streets. Responsibilities include the development and
implementation of capital improvement programs and pavement
management plans along with compliance and coordination with outside
agency regulations, projects and programs. Ms. Geheren had
considerable experience during the period of high growth reviewing land
use applications, development proposals and construction documents for
consistency with City ordinances and standards.

Professional Registrations
Minnesota and Wisconsin

Associations

American Public Works Association, MN Chapter
City Engineers Association of Minnesota
Minnesota Cities Stormwater Coalition

Education
Bachelors of Civil Engineering, University of Minnesota

Phone: 651.300.4261 Email: cara.geheren@focusengineeringinc.com
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FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.
JACK W. GRIFFIN, P.E. | priNcIPAL/ SR. MUNICIPAL ENGINEER

J

Jack Griffin has 23 years experience as a Municipal Engineering Consultant working
with local governments to plan, finance, develop, and implement municipal
infrastructure systems. He has been the City Engineering Consultant for several
Minnesota Cities, Townships, and Water and Sanitary Sewer Districts. He has
extensive experience in helping growing communities establish and implement
policies, procedures, systems and standards to effectively manage community
growth and development. His most recent work has focused primarily on city
engineering services and major infrastructure projects for the cities of Lake Eimo and
Victoria, Minnesota.

Over the course of his career, Jack also has developed a specific expertise in
municipal water and wastewater infrastructure, focusing primarily on
comprehensive system and capital planning. He has planned and implemented
numerous water and wastewater systems projects for communities throughout
Minnesota. He has also developed a strong understanding and expertise in
infrastructure grant and loan programs, having assisted his clients in obtaining grants
for many of his projects.

Jack is a graduate of the University of Minnesota with a degree from the Institute of
Technology in Civil Engineering and a degree from the College of Liberal Arts in
Economics. He was born and raised in the Twin Cities and now lives in Eagan with

his wife Amy. He has two sons in college attending the University of Minhesota and
The University of Minnesota Duluth.

Professional Registrations

Minnesota and Wisconsin

Associations

American Public Works Association, MN Chapter {APWA)

City Engineers Association of Minnesota (CEAM)
Minnesota Society of Professional Engineers {(MSPE)
American Water Works Association (AWWA)

American Council of Engineering Companies (ACEC). Past Director

Education

Bachelors of Civil Engineering, University of Minnesota
Rachelors of Science. Economics. University of Minnesnta

Phone: 651.300.4264 Email: jack.griffin@focusengineeringinc.com
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FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.
RYAN W. STEMPSKI, P.E. | PRINCIPAL / MUNICIPAL ENGINEER

Ryan Stempski has been working for the past eight years as the Assistant City
Engineer for several municipalities in the Metro Area, including the Cities of
Lake Elmo and Lino Lakes. In this role, Ryan has frequently officed at City
Hall working as an extension of the City staff. He has provided day-to-day
engineering services for each commmity in addition to managing and
supporting several major infrastructure projects, and overseeing the street
maintenance program for each community,

Ryan has a passion for serving the public and being a Municipal Engineer. He
enjoys working with people and helping them to find solutions to their
problems. He has developed a strong expertise in pavement management
strategies, surface water management, capital improvement and budget
planning, permitting processes, and in the review and oversite of private
development projects within a community,

Ryan is from the St. Paul area and has spent most of his life in Minnesota, He
graduated in 2002 from of the University of Wisconsin-Madison with a degree
in Civil Engineering. Throughout his college years, Ryan worked as an intern
first for a geotechnical engineering firm gaining valuable experience in
material testing for sofls and pavements, and later as a construction observer
on various infrastructure projects.

Professional Registrations

Minnesota and Wisconsin

Associations

American Public Works Association, MN Chapter (APWA)
City Engineers Association of Minnesota (CEAM)
Minnesota Society of Professional Engineers {MSPE)

Education

Bachelors of Civil Engineering, University of Wisconsin-Madison

Phone: 651.300.4267 Email: ryan.stempski@focusengineeringinc.com



FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.

Standard Hourly Rate Schedule

Standard Hourly Rates include salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the
cost of customary and statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project
operating costs, and operating margin or profit.

Sr. Municipal Engineer Il - Jack Griffin $118 / hour
Sr. Municipal Engineer | — Cara Geheren $105 / hour
Municipal Engineer Il - Ryan Stempski $90 / hour

Reimbursable Expenses Schedule

e Vehicle Mileage reimbursed at the current Federal IRS Rate.
Outside professional and technical services billed to the Engineer plus 10%.

e identifiable printing and reproduction costs when incurred in the direct performance
of the City's work.

e Other expenses for items and services as may be required by the City to fulfill the
terms of a specific authorization.

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. — Standard Hourly Rate Schedule




FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc.

AGREEMENT
BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
| FOR
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This AGREEMENT is made effective as of the day of , 2011, (“Effective
Date”} by and between the CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA, a Minnesota Municipal corporation
(hereinafter referred to as the “City”), and FOCUS ENGINEERING, incorporated, a corporation
(hereinafter referred to as “Engineer”).

The City intends to engage Englneer to provide Professional Engineering Services and General
Consulting Services, and 1o act as the appointed City Engineer for the City. This AGREEMENT sets
forth the general terms and conditions which shall govern the relationship and performance of the
City and Engineer.

tn consideration of the foregoing recitals and following terms and conditions contained herein, the
City and Engineer agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1: SERVICES OF THE ENGINEER

1.1 Scope of Services: The City agrees to and hereby does retain and appoint Engineer as the
designated “City Engineer”, and Engineer agrees to perform Professional Engineering Services
in connection with the responsibilities of the City Engineer as directed by the City Council and
under the direction of the City Administrator.

A. Provide assistance on day-to-day matters, acting as the City Engineer, and as requested by
the City.

B. Attend meetings of the City Council or other Committees or Commissions to address
Engineering matters,

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. - Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services Page 1 of 9




C. Engineering services will, in general, include studies and reports, design, preparation of
working drawings and specifications; construction administration and construction
observations; utllity mapping, and maintaining engineering records and correspondence;
preparing cost estimates, capital improvement planning, and department budgeting;
maintaining the Municipal State Aid System; maintaining the MS4 NPDES Permit; providing
engineering support to other City departments; guiding and overseeing the design and
construction of public infrastructure systems through private development projects;
preparing Requests for Proposals, and assist with selecting outside Professional Services
Consultants for certain projects, and managing the Professional Services contracts; and
other related tasks of a type normally associated with infrastructure and facility planning,
design, construction, operation and/or maintenance.

D. Under this AGREEMENT the Engineer will provide General Consulting Services in
accordance with the scope of services, engineer's compensation, payment terms, and
other provisions as provided herein. When requested by the City, services for each
additional engagement or Specific Project will be detailed and documented in a duly
executed "Authorization for Professional Services”.

1.2 Procedure for “Authorization for Professional Services”

A. Engineer shall provide the City with an “Authorization for Professional Services” for
specific services or projects when requested by the City. Each Authorization will indicate
the specific task, scope of services, time for performance, deliverabies to be provided, and
the basis of compensation.

B. Individual “Autharizations for Professional Services” shall be mutually approved by the
City and Engineer, Each duly executed Authorization for Professional Services shall be
incarporated and made a part of this AGREEMENT and the General Considerations thereof.

ARTICLE 2: PERIOD OF SERVICE

2.1 Term: Engineer is hereby retained on a continuing basis, subject, however, to termination by
elther party in accordance with ARTICLE 5.9.

2.2 Engineer shall complete its obligations for specific projects and services as set forth in any
“puthorization for Professional Services”.

ARTICLE 3: COMPENSATION

3.1 Basis for Compensation: Compensation to Engineer for day-to-day services shall be on an
Hourly Rate basis in accordance with a Standard Hourly Rate Schedule set forth by the

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. - Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services Page 2 of §




3.2

3.3

Engineer and approved by the City Council on an annual basis. Services described in a specific
“Authorization(s) for Professional Services” shall be on an Hourly Rate basis and/or a Lump
Sum basis as designated in each authorization.

Reimbursable Expenses: The Engineer shall be reimbursed at cost for any Direct Expenses
when incurred in the direct performance of the City’s work in accordance with the Standard
Hourly Rate Schedule,

Payments for Services

A, Preparation and Submittal of Invoices: Engineer shall prepare and submit invoices to the
City on @ monthly basis. Invoices are die and payable within 30 days of receipt,

B. -Unpaid Invoices: All accounts unpaid after 30 days from the date of original invoice shall be
subject to a service charge of 1.5% per month, or the maximum rate of interest permitted by
law, whichever is less. Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to Engineer and
then to principal.

C. Disputed Invoices: If the City contests an invoice, the City shall promptly advise Engineer of
the specific basis for doing so, may withhold only that portion so contested, and must pay
the undisputed portlan.,

D. Right to Suspend Work: Engineer may, after giving ten (10} days written notice to the City,
suspend services under this AGREEMENT until the City has paid in full all amounts due for
services, expenses, and other related charges. The City walves any and all claims against
Engineer for any such suspension.

ARTICLE 4: CITY’S RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1

4.2

4.3

City’s representative: When acting as the “City Engineer”, Engineer shali provide services as
directed by the City Council and under the direction of the City Administrator. For specific
“Authorization for Professional Services”, the City shall designate in writing, a person to act as
City's representatives with respect to the services to be rendered, Such persons shall have
authority to transmit instructions, receive instructions, receive information, interpret and
define City’s policies with respect to Engineer’s services. When no written designation is made
by the City, the City’s representative shall be the City Administrator,

Provide Access: The City shall provide access to, and make all provisions for Engineer to enter
upon public or private property as required to perform their work.

Provide supporting documentation and Services: The City snall provide all necessary
information regarding its requirements as necessary for orderly progress of the work,
including records, data, instructions, and requirements for completeness. The City shall also

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. - Agreement Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services Page 3 of 9




provide services in regards to accounting, fiscal and bond counseling services, insurance, and
legal services as may be reguired .

4.4  The City shall be responsible for, and Engineer may rely upon, the accuracy and completeness
of all requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data, and other information furnished by
the City to Engineer pursuant to this AGREEMENT. Engineer may use such requirements,
programs, instructions, reports, data, and information in performing or furnishing services
under this AGREEMENT,

4.5 Provide prompt Notice and Review: The City shall promptly review and examine all
correspondence, reports, sketches, drawings, specifications and other documents and
communications prepared and presented by Engineer and render decisions pertaining thereto
within a reasonable time so as not to delay the services of Engineer. The City shall also give
prompt notice to Engineer whenever City observes or otherwise becomes aware of any
development that affects the scope or timing of Engineer’s services or any defect in the work.

4.6  The City shall make timely payments to the Engineer as set forth in ARTICLE 3,

ARTICLE 5: GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

51 Standards and Parameters of Performance

A. Standard of Care: The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services
performed or furnished by Engineer under this AGREEMENT will be the care and skill
ordinarily used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar
circumstances at the same time and in the same locality,

B. Consuftants: Engineer may employ such Consultants as Engineer deems necessary to
assist in the performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and
substantive objections by Owner,

C. Reliance on Others: Subject to the standard of care set forth above, Engineer and its
Consultants may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or
customarily furnished by others, including, but not limited to, professional certifications,
contractors, suppliers, manufacturers, and the publishers of technical standards,

D. Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures: Engineer and City
shall comply with applicable Laws and regulations.

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc, - Agreement Batween Dwner and Engineer for Professional Services Page 4 of 9




5.2

5.3

E. Certifications and Signatures: Engineer shall not be required to sign any documents, na

matter by whom requested, that would result in the Engineer having to certify, guarantee,
or warrant the existence of conditions whose existence the Engineer cannot ascertain.

Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any
contractor work, nor shall Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means,
methods, technigues, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any
contractor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety
at the Site, nor for any failure of a contractor to comply with Laws and Regulations
applicable to such contractor’s furnishing and performing its work.

. Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Contractor nor assumes

responsibility for any Contractor’s failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance
with the Contract Documents, or for the acts or omissions of any Contractor,
Subcontractor, or Supplier.

Independent Contractor: Engineer is an independent contractor. The manner in which the
services are performed shall be controlled by Engineer; however, the nature of the services
and the results to be achteved shall be specified by the City. All services provided by the
Engineer pursuant to this AGREEMENT shall be provided by the Engineer as an independent
contractor and not as an employee of the City for any purpose, including but not limited to:
income tax withholding, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, FICA taxes,
and eligibility for employee benefits.

Insurance

A. Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance for protection from claims against it under

worker’s compensation acts {statutory limits), claims for damages because of badily injury
including personal injury, and from claims against it for damages because of injury to or
destruction of property including loss of use resuiting therefrom.

Engineer shall also procure and maintain professional and commercia! general liability
insurance, and auto and excess insurance, for all damages arising out of the performance
of services caused hy an error, omission or negligent act for which Engineer is legally liable.

Certificates of insurance will be provided to the City upon execution of the contract and
thereafter upon request by the City.

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. - Agreemant Between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services Page 5 of &




5.4  Opinions of Cost

A. Engineer’s opinions of probable project cost, construction cost, life cycle cost, alternative
evaluations, and considerations for operations and maintenance costs are to be made on
the basis of Englneer’s experience and qualifications and represent Engineer’s best
judgment as an experienced and qualified professional generally familiar with the
construction industry. It is recognized, however, that Engineer has no control over the
cost of labor, materials, equipment, or services furnished by others, or over contractors’
methods of determining prices, or over competitive bidding or market conditions.
Engineer, therefore, cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids, or actual costs
will not substantially vary from opinions of probable costs prepared by Engineer and
submitted to the City.

B. The services of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs shall be limited to assisting the
Owner in coilating the various cost categories which comprise Total Project Costs.
Engineer assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project Costs.

5.5 Data Practices Act Compliance: Data provided by Engineer or created under this AGREEMENT
shall be administered in accordance with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act,
Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 13,

5.6 Use of Documents

A. All Documents prepared and submitted by Engineer are instruments of service, and
Engineer shall retain an ownership and property interest therein (including the copyright
and the right of reuse at the discretion of the Engineer) whether or not the Project or
Service is completed. The City shall not rely in any way on any Document unless it is
submitted by the Engineer in its final form.

B. At the time of completion or termination of this AGREEMENT or for each “Authorization for
Professional Service,” Engineer shall make available to the City, upon request, copies of all
deliverables, maps, reports, and correspondence, pertaining to the work or a Project
described in an authorization. All such documents are not intended or represented to be
suitable for reuse by the City or others on extensions of the work or Project or to any other
project,  Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by Engineer for the specific
purpose intended will be at the City’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure to
Engineer. In this regard, the City will indemnify and hold harmiess Engineer from any and ail
suits or claims of third parties arising out of such reuse, which is not specifically verified,
adapted, or authorized by Engineer,

C. In the event electronic copies of documents are made available to the City, the Engineer
makes no representations as to long-term compatibility, usability, or readability of such
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documents resulting from_the use of software application packages, operating systems, or
computer hardware differing from those used by the documents’ creator.

Design without Construction Phase Services: The City acknowledges that it Is customary for
the Engineer who is responsible for the desigh of a Project to be employed to provide
professional services during the Construction Phases of that Project. Therefore, the following
provisions apply in the event that the City does not retain the Engineer for Construction Phase
Services. The City waives all claims against the Engineer that may be connected in any way to
Construction Phase englneering or professional services except for those services that are
expressly required of Engineer on the Project.

Conflict of Interest: The Engineer shall use best efforts in the performance of its services and
professional obligations to avoid conflicts of interest and appearances of impropriety in
representation of the City. iIn the event of a conflict, the Engineer, with the consent of the
City, shall arrange for suitable alternative engineering representation. It is the intent of the
Engineer to refrain from handling engineering matters for any other person or entity that may
pose a conflict of interest, or may not be in the best interests of the City,

Termination
A. Either party may terminate this AGREEMENT upon thirty {30) days written notice,

B. ‘Either party has the right to terminate any “Authorization for Professional Services” upon
ten (10} days’ written notice. In addition, the City may at any time, reduce the scope of an
“Authorization for Professional Services”. Such reduction in scope of an authorization
shall be set forth in a written notice from the City to the Engineer.

C. In the event of a reduction in scope of an “Authorization for Professional Services,”
Engineer shall be paid for the wark performed and expenses incurred on the authorization
thus reduced and for any completed and abandoned work for which payment has not
been made.

D. In the event of termination of an “Authorization for Professional Services,” copies of all
documents prepared by Engineer under the authorization shall be made available by
Engineer to the City, pursuant to ARTICLE 5.5, and there shall be no further obligation of
the City to Engineer under the authorization, except for payment of amounts due and
owing for work performed and expenses incurred to the date and time of termination,
plus expenses incurred by Engineer to gather, compile, copy, and transmit all documents
requested by the City.
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E.

in like manner, if the entire AGREEMENT Is terminated, copies of all remaining documents
on file with the Engineer shall also, upen request, be made available to the City pursuant
to ARTICLE 5.6 upon receipt of payment of amounts due and owing Engineer for any
authorized work, plus expenses incurred by Engineer to gather, compile, copy, and
transmit all documents requested by the City.

Controlling Law: This AGREEMENT is to be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.

Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A,

The City and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators,
assigns, and legal representatives of the City and Engineer are hereby bound to the other
party to this AGREEMENT and to the successors, executars, administrators, assigns and legal
representatives of such other party, in respect of ali covenants, agreements, and obligations
of this AGREEMENT,

Neither the City nor Engineer may assign, subiet, or transfer any rights under or interest in
this AGREEMENT, or any portion thereof, without the written consent of the other party.
Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent Engineer from employing such
independent professional associates and consultants as Engineer may deem appropriate to
assist in the performance of services hereunder,

Nothing under this AGREEMENT shall be construed to give any rights or benefits in this

AGREEMENT to anyone other than the City and Engineer.

Dispute Resolution

A,

The City and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a
period of thirty (30} days from the date of notice prior to invoking other provisions of this
AGREEMENT, or exercising their rights under law.

The City and Engineer agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to this
AGREEMENT shall first be submitted to non-binding mediation unless the parties mutually
agree otherwise, thereby providing for mediation as the primary method for dispute
resolution between the parties to this AGREEMENT.

" Notices: Any notice required under this AGREEMENT will be in writing, addressed to the

appropriate party at its address on the signature page and given personally, by registered or
certified mail postage prepaid, or by a commercial courier service. All notices shall be effective
upon the date of receipt.

Survival, Severability, Waiver
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A. Survival: All express representations, waivers, indemnifications, and limitations of liability
included in this AGREEMENT will survive its completion or termination for any reason.

B. Severability: Any provision or part of the AGREEMENT held to be void or unenforceable
under any Laws or Regulations shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall
continue to be valid and binding upeon the City and Engineer.

C. Waiver: A party’s non-enforcement of any provision shall not constitute a waiver of that
p

provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this
AGREEMENT,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the date first above
written,

FOCUS ENGINEERING, inc. CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
By By —
John {Jack} W. Griffin, P.E, Mayor
By
City Clerk
Subscribed and sworn to before me this Subscribed and sworn to before me this
day of , 2011, day of , 2011,
Notary Public Notary Public
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 07/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM #: 11
RECOGNITION

AGENDA ITEM:  Recognition of James Sachs for over 30 Years of Service
SUBMITTED BY: Fire Chief Greg Malmquist
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administrator %N/\

REVIEWED BY:  Sharon Lumby, City Clerk

SUMMARY_AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is respectfully requested to
recognize James Sachs for over 30 years of service to the community and the Lake Elmo Fire
Department. Fire Chief Malmquist will facilitate the Recognition and Presentation.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION & STAFF REPORT: Firefighter James Sachs began his
career on February 26th, 1980 and retired from the Lake Eimo FD on October 31, 2010 with
over 30 years of service.

Over the span of his career, Jim held the positions of Firefighter, Captain and Assistant Chief. He
comes from a long line of Sachs on the FD, his father, brother, in laws and nephews have all
served along side Jim during his career.

RECOMMENDATION: The City Council is respectfully requested to recognize and assist in
the presentation of an award to James Sachs for over 30 years of service to the community.

ATTACHMENTS: None

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction Of TEEIM «....covecviririieieeececcic e et et Mayor
- PresentatlonFlre Chief
- Public or Council Input, if Appropriate...............c.e..uuuee.... Mayor Facilitates

--page 1 -




MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 07/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM #; 12
MOTION

AGENDA ITEM: 2010 Audit Presentation
SUBMITTED BY: Steve McDonald, Abdo, Eick & Meyer
THROUGH: Bruce Messelt % )}\U/\

REVIEWED BY: Tom Bouthilet & Joe Rigdon, KDV

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City has retained the services of Abdo, Eick
& Meyers to audit the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information, which collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City as of December 31, 2010, Enclosed is the
2010 Annual Financial Report with a management letter. The City Council is asked to review
and accept the 2010 year end financial report,

SUGGESTED “Move to Accept the 2010 Year End Financial Report”
MOTION

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Annually, the City engages the services of an independent
outside audit firm to review the financial statements. The accountants are asked to assure that the
financials statements are free of material misstatement to the extent possible. They also review
internal controls of the City.

STAFF REPORT: Steve McDonald from Abdo, Eick & Meyers will present the report and
respond to any inquiries.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above it is recommended that the City Council accept
the 2010 year-end financials by undertaking the following action

“Move to Accept the 2010 Year End Financial Report.”
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City Council Meeting
Tuly 19th, 2011

ATTACHMENTS:

- D 20, %udit Presentation
Regular Agenda Ttem # 12

1. Annual Financial Report for the Year Ended 2010
2. Management Letter for the Year Ended 2010

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:
- Introduction Of HeM ....veccveeeeirecrr it City Administrator
- Report/Presentation...........c.oovvvvis Steve McDonald, Abdo, Eick & Meyets
- Questions from Council to Staff........c.oovrveninnininnenn Mayor Facilitates
- Public Input, if APPropriate........ccovvirinimnviinnimm. Mayor Facilitates
- Call for MOtION ....ocoveeiiircenrnriisniiees e ssnserasenens oern. Mayor & City Council
- DISCUSSION..c.criiirimrnreriirirsnr s s e s Mayor Facilitates
= Action 0N MOtIOI....ccvoinrissieceeiniieie i s Mayor & City Council
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= ABDO
HICK &
YERS

Certified Public Accountants & Constdiants

5201 Fden Avenue
Suile 250
LEding, MN 35436

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota

‘We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota (the City}, as of and for the vear ended
December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the City’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial
statements based on our audit. The prior year comparative information has been derived from the City’s 2009 financial statements
and, in our report dated June 10, 2010, we expressed unqualified opinions on the respective proprietary fund financial statements,

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatement. An andit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinions,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of
the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
City as of December 31, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the
respective budgetary comparison for the General fund for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generaliy
accepted in the United States of America.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and Analysis
on pages 13 through 23 and the Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemployment Benefit Plan on page 79 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic {financial statements, is required by
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion ot provide any assurance.

952,835.9090 * Fax 952.835.3201 -0-
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Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the City’s
financial staterments as a whole. The introductory section, combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, and
supplementary information are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial
statements. The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all
material respects in relation to the financial statements as & whole. The introductory section and supplementary information have
not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not

express an opinion or provide any assurance on them,
(ks Caehy %Moo, LY

June 7, 2011 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Certified Public Accountants

052.835.9090 ¢ Tux 952.835.5261
WWW.ACMCPS.Con)
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Lake Elmo (the City), Minnesota, we offer readers of the City’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activitics of the City for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2010.

Financial Highlights

The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $21,771,853 (net assets}. Of
this amount, $4,632,615 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors.

The City’s total net assets increased by $862,605. The increase can be atiributed to both business-type and governmental
activities.

As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$6,795,517, an increase of $1,859,999 in comparison with the prior vear.

At the end of the cutrent fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance for the General fund was $1,617,211, or 55.4 percent of
the 2011 General fund budgeted expenditures and transfers out. The total General fund balance as of December 31,2010
was $2,686,161, but reserves of $1,055,900 and $13,050 are related to the inter-fund loan with the Village Project fund
and prepaid items, respectively.

The City’s total noncurrent liabilities increased $2,357,561 ar 24.1 percent during the curent fiscal year, The key factor
of this increase was the issuance of the 2010A G.O. Improvement Bonds and 2010B G.O. Capital Improvement Plan
Crossover Refunding Bonds,

Overview of the Financial Statements

'This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements, The City’s basic
financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3)
notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplemental information in addition to the basic financial
statements themselves,
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The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and provide more
detailed data. The statements are followed by a section of combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules that
further explains and supporis the information in the financial statements. Figure 1 shows how the required parts of this annual
report are arranged and relate to one another. In addition to these required elements, we have included a section with combining
and individual fund financial statements and schedules that provide details about nonmajor governmental funds, which are added
together and presented in single columns in the basic financial statements.

Figure 1
Required Components of the
City’s Annual Financial Report

/\

Management's Basic Financial Required
Discussion and Statements Supplementary
Analysis Information
Government-wide Fuand Notes fo the
Financial Financial Financial
Statements Statements Statements
Summary & > Detail
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Figure 2 summarizes the major features of the City’s financial statements, including the portion of the City government they
cover and the types of information they contain. The remainder of this overview section of management’s discussion and analysis
explains the structure and contents of each of the statements.

Figure 2
Major features of the Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide
Statements

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund
Balances

Scope FEntire City government The activities of the City that | Activities the City operates
(except fiduciary funds) and | are not proprietary or similar to private businesses,
the City’s component units fiduciary, such as police, fire | such as the water and sewer

and parks system

Required financial o Statement of Net Assets e Balance Sheet e Statements of Net Assets

statements e Statement of Activities e Statement of Revenues, e Statements of Revenues,

Expenses and Changes in
Fund Net Assets

o Statements of Cash
Flows

Accounting Basis and
measurement focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

Modified accrual accounting
and current financial
resources focus

Accrual accounting and
economic resources focus

when cash is received or paid

the end of the year;
expenditures when goods or
services have been received
and payment is due during
the year or soon thereafter

Type of asset/liability All assets and liabilities, both | Only assets expected to be All assets and liabilities, both
information financial and capital, and used up and liabilities that financial and capital, and
short-term and long-term come due during the year or | short-term and long-term
soon thereafter; no capital
assets included
Type of in flow/out flow All revenues and expenses Revenues for which cash is All revenues and expenses
information during year, regardless of received during or soon after | during the year, regardless of

when cash is received or paid

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s finances, in a
manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial
position of the City is improving or deteriorating,

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed during the most recent fiscal year, All
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of

related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in
future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave),

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenue (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion
of their costs through user feos and charges (business-fype activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, public works, culture and recreation, and interest on long-term debt. The business-type activities of the
City include water, sewer and storm sewer utilities.

The government-wide financial statements start on page 27 of this report,
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Fund Financial Statements

A fimd is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segrogated for specific
activities or objectives. The City, like other State and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into three categories:
governmental fands, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds, The funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-ferm inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a city’s near-term financing requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact by the City’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of rovenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and govermmental
activities.

The City maintains seventeen individual governmental fimds, five of which are Debt Service funds. Information is presented
soparately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes
in fund balances for the General fund, the Debt Service fund, the Village Project fund, and the 2010 Street Improvements fund, all
of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other nine governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated
presentation. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements
or schedules elsewhere in this report.

The City adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the
General fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements start on page 32 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same
functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to
account for its water, sewer and storm sewer utilities. Jnternal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and
allocate costs internally among the City’s various functions. The City uses internal service funds to account for the funding of
equipment replacement for radios, IT, furniture, fixtures, and other equipment. Because these services predominantly benefit
governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements.

Proprictary funds provide the same type of juformation as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail, The
proprictary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water, sewer, and storm sewer utility funds,
The basic proprietary fund financial statements start on page 40 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. Fiduciary funds

are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the
City’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 50 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and
fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements start on page 51 of this report.

Other Information

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds are
presented following the notes to financial statements. Combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules start on
page 82 of'this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earliet, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position, In the case of the City,
assets exceeded liabilities $21,771,853 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the City’s net assets (69.3 percent) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery
and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The City uses these capital assets to
provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the City’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the City’s net assets (9.5 percent) represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how
they may be used. These restrictions are basically obligations for future debt service. The remaining balance of unrestricted net
assets ($4,632,615) may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the
City as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities.

Summary of Net Assets
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Increase Increase
2010 2009 (Deciease) 2010 2009 (Decreasa)
Assets
Current and other assets $ 8,390,795 $ 55992,288 $ 2,398,507 $ 1,274,094 $ 1,147,630 $ 126,464
Capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation) 13,651,257 12,867,731 783,526 11,385,473 11,350,804 34,669
Total assets 22,042,052 18,860,019 3,182,033 12,659,567 12,498,434 161,133
Liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities outstanding 7,424,188 5,033,656 2,390,532 4,712,061 4,745,032 (32,971)
Other liabilities 752,812 618,417 134,395 40,705 52,100 (11,395)
Total liabilities 8,177,000 5,652,073 2,524,927 4,752,766 4,797,132 (44,366)
Net assets
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 8,368,479 7,983,822 384,657 6,713,292 6,644,334 68,958
Restricted 2,057,467 1,399,968 657,499 - - -
Unrestricted 3,439,106 3,824,156 (385,050) 1,193,509 1,056,968 136,541
Total net asseis $ 13,865,052 $ 13207946 $ 657,106 $ 7,906,801 § 7,701,302 3 203,499
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| Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City’s net assets $657,106 thereby accounting for 76.2 percent of
| the total growth in the net assets of the City. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Activities : Business-type Activities
Inerease Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease) 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Revenues
Program revenues
Charges for services 3 352,763 3 292,868 $ 59,895 $ 796,518 $ 673,983 $ 122,535
Operating grants and contributions 168,491 174,433 (5,942) 32,721 30,100 2,621
Capital grants and contributions 1,090,419 798,687 201,732 418,400 776,473 (358,073)
General revenues
Taxes 2,711,067 2,718,691 (7,624) - - -
Grants and contributions not
restricted to specific programs 9,771 8,764 1,007 - - -
Untesiricted investment earnings 113,989 160,679 (46,690} 11,129 15,343 4214)
Gain on sale of capital assets - 8,517 (8,517) - - -
Miscellaneous 17,311 41,827 (24,516) - - -
Total revenues 4,463,811 4,204,466 259,345 1,258,768 1,495,899 (237,131)
Expenses
General government 080,456 971,677 8,779 - - -
Public safety 1,171,158 1,125,464 45,694 - - -
Public works 1,135,351 872,045 263,306 - - -
Culture and recreation 239389 248,856 (9,467) - - -
Intetest on long-term debt 222,404 218,319 4,085 - - -
Water - - - 898,319 857,014 41,305
Sewer - - - 61,513 59,243 2,270
Stottn sewer - - - 151,384 140,365 11,019
Total expenses 3,748,758 3,436,361 312,397 1,111,216 1,056,622 54,594
Change in net assets before transfers 715,053 768,105 (53,052) 147,552 439277 (291,725)
Transfers - capital assets (7.947) {29,177) 21,230 7,947 20,177 (21,230)
Transfers - internal activities (50,000) (100,000) 50,000 50,000 100,000 {50,000)
Change in net assets 657,106 638,928 18,178 205,499 568,454 (362,955)
Net assets, January 1 13,207,946 12,569,018 638,928 7,701,302 7,132,848 568,454
Net assets, December 31 $ 13,865,052 $ 13,207,946 3 657,106 $ 7.906,801 $ 7,701,302 3 205,499
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The following graph depicts various governmental activities and shows the revenue and expenses directly related to those
activities.

Expenses and Program Revenues - Governmental A ctivities
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Management Discussion and Analysis - Continued
June 7, 2011

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City’s net assets by $205,499, accounting for 23.8 percent of the
total growth of the City’s net assets. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

Expenses and Program Revenues - Business-type Activities
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds
As noted earlier, the City uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and
balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s financing reguirements. In particular,

unreserved fitnd balance may serve as a useful measure of & government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the
fiscal year,

Fund Balances (deficits)
December 31

Increase
Major funds 2010 2009 {Decrease)
General : $ 2,686,161 $ 2,435,810 $ 250,351

Revenues exceeded expenditures by $377,201; however, this excess of revenues over expenditures was offset by transfers out
of $126,850 resulting in a $250,351 increase in fund balance.

Debt Service $ 3,605,250 $ 1,422,049 & 2,183,201
Fund balance increased $2,183,201 during 2010 due to transfers in and bonds issued,

Village Project $ (1,146,241) $ (1,016,403) $  (129,838)
The Village Project fund showed an operating decrease in fimd balance of $129,838. The decrease was due to expenditures
incurred on the Village project and interast on the advance from the General fund,

2010 Street Improvements $ 39,669 3 (19,037) % 58,706

The 2010 Street Improvements fund has a fund balance of $39,669 due to bond proceeds exceeding the expenditures incurred
during the vear.

Proprietary fund. The City’s proprietary fund provides the same type of information found in the government-wide financial
statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted to $1,193,509. The total increase in net assets for

the funds was $205,499. Other factors concerning the finances of this find have already been addressed in the discussion of the
City’s business-type activities.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The City’s General fund budget was not amended during the year. The budget called for no change in General fund balance.
Actual net change to the General fund balance was an increase of $250,351. Actual revenues exceeded budgeted amounts and
expenditures were under budget. Revenues were over budget by $142,798 mainly due to licenses and permits which were over
budget by $103,690. Expenditures were under budget by $115,553 during the year. All departments were under budget, but the

largest variances were provided by general government and culture and recreation which were under budget by $48,430 and
$35,555, respoctively.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of December 31, 2010,
amounts to $25,036,730 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, structures,
improvements, machinery and equipment, park facilities, and streets. Governmental activities increased governmental net capital
assets by 6.1 percent while Business-type activities increased this figure by 0.3 percent.

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

&  Acceptance of the Farms of Lake Elmo development, approximately $761,000 from the developer and construction in
progress.

e Completion of 42™ Street Mill and Overlay project.
o 2010 street improvements of approximately $521,000.
s Improvements at Sunfish Lake park and City Hall as well as the purchase of a fire CV2 vehicle.

Additional information on the City’s capital assets can be found in Note 3C starting on page 62 of this report.

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation

Governmental Activitics Business-type Activitics
Increase Increase
2010 2609 (Decrease) 2010 2009 (Dectease)

Land $ 3,439,986 $ 3,388,035 $ 51,051 $ 36,573 $ 36,573 § -
Buildings 2,836,898 2,820,398 16,500 . . .
Improvements other tham buildings 572,840 623,171 (50,331) - - -
Machinery and equipment 1,012,929 1,072,823 (59,894) 166,577 187,215 (20,638)
Infrastructure 3,891,841 3,719,527 172,314 10,774,860 10,728,157 46,703
Construction in process 1,896,763 1,243,777 652,986 407,463 398,859 8,604

Total $§ 13,651,257 $ 12,867,731 § 783,526 $ 11,385473 3 11,350,804 3 34,669

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City had total bonded debt outstanding of $11,990,000. While all of the
City’s bonds have revenue streams, they are all backed by the full faith and credit of the City.

QOutstanding Debt
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Increase Increase
2010 2009 (Decrease) 2010 2009 (Decrease)

Other postemployment benefits payable  $ 28,888 5 14,358 $ 14,530 $ 5,172 $ 2,571 3 2,601
Compensated absences payable 67,747 60,685 7,062 19,070 18,931 139
Unamortized premiwm on bonds 17,553 15,613 1,940 7,819 8,530 (711)
Bonds payable 7,310,000 4,943,000 2,367,000 4,680,000 4,715,000 (35,000)

Total § 7424188 $ 5,033,636 $ 2,390,532 $ 4,712,061 $ 4,745,032 3 (32,971)

The City’s total bonds payable increased $2,332,000 during the current fiscal year, due to the issuance of bonds.
The City bond rating was placed at “Aa2” from Moody’s for its issuance of Bonds in 2010.

Minnesota statutes limit the amount of net general obligation debt a City may issue to 3.0 percent of the market value of taxable
property within the City. Net debt is debt payable solely from ad valorem taxes. The City is currently well within their limit.

Additional information on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 3F starting on page 65 of this repott.
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Fconomic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates
e The City’s taxable market value decreased by 0.6 percent from 2009 to 2010, and decreased 4.9 percent from 2010 to 2011.

« The City’s net taxable tax capacity decreased by 1.3 percent from 2609 to 2010, and decreased 4.4 percent from 2010 to
2011.

e Plans are underway for setving the existing Village area with public infrastructute, and for the future Village area,
including sewer, by 2030. The City accepted a Village Masterplan, which describes a vision of the Tuture Village, in April,
2007. An extensive environmental review of several development scenarios for the Village project was completed. The
City’s comprehensive plan will be amended when a future development scenario is selected and a zoning code is developed
to implement the plan. In addition, the City Council is working with a public financial advisor to determine what fiscal
policies are necessary to implement the infrastructure and amenities called for in the plans. The costs of sewer are planned
to be paid for by developers and foture sewer users of the Cliy’s wastewater services,

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City’s budget for the 2011 fiscal year.

Total property taxes levied for 2011 increased by 1.7 percent over property taxes levied for 2010, The City’s tax capacity rate
increased from 20.479 percent for 2010 property taxes to 21.826 percent for 2011 property taxes.

Requests for Information
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City’s finances for all those with an interest in the City’s

finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the City Finance Director, City of Lake Elmo 3800 Laverne Avenue North, Lake Elmo, Minnesota, 55042,
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CITY OF LAKE EIMO, MINNESOTA

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments $ 4423257 b 594,633 $ 5,017,890
Cash with fiscal agent 2,962,542 - 2,962,542
Receivables:
Current taxes 76,616 - 76,616
Delinquent taxes 99,757 - 99,757
Accrued interest 11,017 - 11,017
Accounts 2,783 473,392 476,175
Special assessments 207,744 73,023 280,767
Due from other governments 418,576 7,607 426,183
Prepaid items 13,050 - 13,050
Deferred charges 175,453 125,439 300,892
Capital assets :
Land and construction in progress 5,336,749 444,036 5,780,785
Depreciable assets (net of accumulated depreciation) 8,314,508 10,941,437 19,255,945
TOTAI ASSETS 22,042,052 12,659,567 34,701,619
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 272,367 19,520 291,887
Accrued salaries payable 34,142 2,583 36,725
Accrued interest payable 71,775 15,908 87,683
Due to other governments 299,528 2,694 302,222
Deposits payable 75,000 - 75,000
Noncurrent liabilities - due within one year:
Compensated absences payable 13,549 3,814 17,363
Bonds payable 344,000 40,000 384,000
Noncurrent liabilities - due in more than one year;
Other postemployment benefits payable 28,888 5,172 34,060
Conpensated absences payable 54,198 15,256 69,454
Unamortized premium on bonds 17,553 7,819 25,372
Bonds payable 6,966,000 4,640,000 11,606,000
TOTAL LIABILITIES 8,177,000 4,752,766 12,929,766
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 8,368,479 6,713,292 15,081,771
Restricted for debt service 2,057,467 - 2,057,467
Unrestricted 3,439,106 1,193,509 4,632,615
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 13,865,052 8  7.906,801 $ 21,771,853

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Functions/Programs

Governmental activities
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Interest on long-term debt

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities
Water
Sewer
Storm sewer

Total business-type activities

Total

CITY 'gF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Program Revenues
Operating Capital
Charges for Granis and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
$ 980,456 $ 18,296 $ - 5 49,556
1,171,158 320,242 40,153 -
1,135,351 3,425 105,369 1,040,863
239,389 10,800 22,969 -
222,404 - - -
3,748,758 352,763 168,491 1,090,419
898,319 562,585 - 261,000
61,513 48,508 - 2,400
151,384 185,425 32,721 155,000
1,111,216 796,518 32,721 418,400
$ 4859914 $ 1,149,281 $ 201,212 $ 1,508,819

General revenues
Taxes
Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Property taxes, levied for debt service
Franchise taxes
Grants and contributions not resiricted to specific programs
Unrestricted investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Transfers - capital assets
Transfers - internal activities

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in net assets
Net assets, January 1

Net assets, December 31

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
5 912,604y § - $  (912,604)
(810,763) - (810,763)
14,306 - 14,306
(205,620) - (205,620)
(222,404) - (222,404)
(2,137,085) - (2,137,085)
- (74,734) (74,734)
- (10,605) (10,605)
- 221,762 221,762
- 136,423 136,423
{(2,137,085) 136,423 (2,000,662)
2,345,626 - 2,345,626
327,716 - 327,716
37,725 - 37,725
9,771 - 9,771
113,989 11,129 125,118
17,311 - 17,311
(7,947) 7,947 -
(50,000) 50,000 -
2,794,191 69,076 2,863,267
657,106 205,499 862,605
13,207,946 7,701,302 20,909,248
$ 13,865,052 § 7,906,801 $ 21771853
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ASSETS

Cash and terporary investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Receivables:

Current taxes
Delinguent taxes
Accrued interest

Accounts

Special assessments
Advance to other funds
Due from other governiments
Due from other funds
Prepaid items

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2010

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Advance from other funds
Deposits payable
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Reserved for:

Debt service
Prepaid items
Advance to other funds

Unreserved

Designated, reported in:
Capital projects funds
Undesignated, reporied in:

General fund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

101 413
Debt Village
General Service Project
$ 1,894,388 $ 643,683 3 -
- 2,962,542 -
76,616 - -
99,757 - -
11,017 - -
- 2,783 -
- 93,992 -
1,055,900 - -
17,205 400,000 -
88,129 - -
13,050 - -
$ 3,256,062 $ 4,103,000 5 -
$ 136,687 $ 3,758 % 20,923
34,142 - -
299,315 - -
- - 63,418
- - 1,055,900
99,757 493,992 -
569,901 497,750 1,146,241
- 3,605,250 -
13,050 - -
1,055,900 - -
1,617,211 - -
- - (1,146,241)
2,686,161 3,605,250 (1,146,241)
$ 3,256,002 $ 4,103,000 ) -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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2010 Other Total
Street Governmental Governmental
Improvemenis Funds Funds

$ 81,221 $ 1,756,231 $ 4,375,523
. - 2,062,542

- - 76,616

- - 99,757

- - 11,017

- - 2,783

- 113,752 207,744

- - 1,055,900

- 1,371 418,576

- - 88,129

- - 13,050

$ 81,221 $ 1,871,354 $ 9,311,637
$ 41,552 $ 47,741 $ 256,661
- - 34,142

- 213 299,528

- 24,711 88,129

. - 1,055,900

- 75,000 75,000

- 113,011 706,760

41,552 260,676 2,516,120

- - 3,605,250

- - 13,050

- - 1,055,900

39,669 1,633,003 1,672,672

- - 1,617,211

- 27,324 27,324
- {(49,649) {1,195,890)

39,669 1,610,678 6,795,517

3 81,221 $ 1,871,354 $ 9311,637




R

THIS PAGE IS LEFT BLANK

INTENTIONALLY

i



‘ CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 31, 2010
Total fand balances - governmental fiinds $ 6,795,517
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore
are not reported as assets in governmental funds,
Cost of capital assets 16,529,346
Less: accumulated depreciation (3,164,415)

Noncurrent ligbilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds.
Noncurrent liabilities at year end consist of:

Other postemployment benefits payable (28,888)

Compensated absences payable (67,747)

Bond principal payable : (7,310,000)
Loss deferred charges, net of accumulated amortization 175,453
Add bond premium, net of accumulated amortization (17,553)

Some receivables are not available soon enough to pay for the current period's expenditures,
and therefore are deferred in the funds.

Delinquent taxes receivable 99,757

Special assessments receivable 207,003

State contributions 400,000
Governmental funds do not report a liability for accrued interest until due and payable. (71,775)

Internal service finds are used by management to charge the cost of services to individual funds.

The assets and liabilities are included in the governmental statement of net assets. 318,354
Total net assets - governmental activities ' $ 13,865,052

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Cl'f'%}{ OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA. D
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

£

101 413
Debt Village
General Service Project
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,409,509 $ 327,716 b -
Licenses and permits 261,450 - -
Intergovernmental 155,293 78,975 -
Charges for services 11,616 - -
Fines and forfeitures 68,897 - -
Special assessments - 81,754 -
Investment carnings 59,7111 20,376 {241}
Miscellaneous 25,333 - -
TOTAL REVENUES 2,991,809 508,821 (241)
EXPENDITURES
Cutrent
General government 921,590 - -
Public safety 1,064,176 - -
Public works 473,293 - -
Culture and recreation 155,549 - -
Capital outlay
General government - - -
Public safety - - -
Public works - - 89,597
Culture and recreation - - -
Debt service
Principal - 313,000 -
Interest and other charges - 176,820 40,000
Bond issuance costs - 48,004 -
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,614,608 537,824 129,597
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 377,201 (29,003) {129,838)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in - 237,848 -
Bonds issued - - -
Refunding bonds issued - 1,970,000 -
Premium on bonds issued - 4,356 -
Transfers out (126,850) - -
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (126,850} 2,212,204 -
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 250,351 2,183,201 (129,838)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY 1 2,435,810 1,422,049 (1,016,403)
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), DECEMBER 31 $ 2,686,161 $ 3,605,250 $ (1,146,241)

The notes 1o the financial statements are and integral part of this statement.
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2010 Other Total
Street Governmental Governmental
Improvements Funds Funds

$ - $ - $ 2,737,225
- - 261,450

- 4,976 239,244

- 10,300 22,416

“ “ 68,897

- 52,503 134,257

(1,735) 34,922 113,033

- 59,527 84,860

(1,735) 162,728 3,661,382

- - 921,590

“ - 1,064,176

- - 473,293

- 13,422 168,971

- 50,178 50,178

- 41,217 41,217

622,983 323,048 1,035,628

- 76,286 76,286

- - 313,000

- - 216,820

26,576 - 74,580
649,559 504,151 4,435,739
(651,294) (341,423) (774,357)
- 76,850 314,698

710,000 - 710,000

- - 1,970,000

- - 4,356
- {237.848) (364,698)

710,000 {160,998) 2,634,356
58,706 (502,421) 1,855,969
(19,037) 2,113,099 4,935,518

$ 39,669 $ 1,610,678 $ 6,795,517




Cl‘lzi’ QOF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA D
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Total net change in fund balances (deficits) - governmental funds $ 1,859,999
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the staiement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated useful lives as depreciation cxpense.
Capital cutlays 929,485
Depreclation expense (529,062)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide curreni financial resoutces are not
reported as revenue in the funds,
Capital assets contributed from developers 421,000
Capital assets transferred to enterprise funds. (7.947)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to govemmental funds, while the
repayment of principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental funds repott
the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
these amount are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities, The amounts below are the
effects of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related jtems,

Debt issued (2,680,000)
Less deferral of bond issuance costs 74,580
Add premium received on bonds issued (4,356)

Principal repayments ' 313,000

Amoriization of deferred charges {14,968)

Interest on long-term debt in the statement of activities differs from the amount reported in the
governmental funds because interest is recognized as an expenditure in the funds when it is due,
and thus requires the use of current financial resources. In the statement of activities, however,
inferest expense is recognized as the interest accrues, regardless of when it is due. (5,584)

Certain revenues are recognized as soon as they are earned. Under the modified accreal basis of
aceounting, certain revenues cannot be recognized until they are available to liquidate Liabilities

of the current period.
Special assessments 6,631
Propetty taxes (26,158)
State contributions 400,000

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefors, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
Other postemployment benefits (14,530)
Compensated absences (7,063)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge cettain costs to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reporied with governmental activities in the

government-wide financial statements. (57,921)
Change in net assets - povernmental activities $ 657,106

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance with
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,392,853 $ 2,392,853 § 2,409,509 5 16,656
Licenses and permits 157,760 157,760 261,450 103,690
Intergovernmental 163,768 163,768 155,293 (8475
Charges for services 5,500 5,500 11,616 6,116
Fines and forfeits 52,000 52,000 68,897 16,897
Investment earnings 60,000 60,000 59,711 (289)
Miscellaneous 17,130 17,130 25,333 8,203
TOTAL REVENUES 2,849,011 2,849,011 2,991,809 142,798
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government 970,020 970,020 921,590 48,430
Public safety 1,069,704 1,069,704 1,064,176 5,528
Public works 499,333 499,333 473,293 26,040
Culture and recreation 191,104 191,104 155,549 35,555
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,730,161 2,730,161 2,614,608 115,553
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 118,850 118,850 377,201 258,351
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out (118,850) (118,850) (126,850) (8,000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 250,351 250,351
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 2,435,810 2,435,810 2,435,810 -
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 § 2435810 § 2435810 $ 2,686,161 $ 250,351

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments
Receivables:
Accounts
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Due from other funds

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Deferred charges

Capital assets
Land
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress

Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of
accumulated depreciation)

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Business-type Activitics - Enterprise Funds

601 602
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 565,407 533,346 29,226 $ 47,474
174,845 105,899 49,093 30,668
72,507 99,902 516 516
56,226 80,154 - -
868,985 819,301 78,835 78,658
125,439 132,857 - -
36,573 36,573 - -
282,860 282,860 - -
11,745,589 11,542,659 346,607 346,607
373,283 351,344 - -
(1,835,300) {1,510,482) (169,190} (160,450)
10,603,005 10,702,954 177,417 186,157
10,728,444 10,835,811 177,417 186,157
11,597,429 11,655,112 256,252 264,815

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued Governmental Activities
603 701, 702, 703
Storm Sewer Totals Internal Service Funds
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
- $ - $ 594,633 b 580,820 % 47,734 § 60,000
249,454 196,968 473,392 333,535 - -
- - 73,023 100,418 - -
7,607 - 7,607 - - -
- - 56,226 80,154 - -
257,061 196,968 1,204,881 1,094,927 47,734 60,000
. - 125,439 132,857 - -
- - 36,573 36,573 - -
- - 282,860 282,860 560,729 552,371
595,833 423,952 12,688,029 12,313,218 - -
34,180 47,515 407,463 398,859 18,512 -
(24,962) {9,774) (2,029,452) (1,680,706) (292,913) {236,096}
603,051 461,693 11,385,473 11,350,804 286,326 316,275
605,051 461,693 11,510,912 11,483,661 286,326 316,275
862,112 658,661 12,715,793 12,578,588 334,060 376,275
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Cl’pY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA.
STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS - CONTINUED

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Accrued interest payable
Due to other funds
Due to other governments
Current portion of compensated absences payable
Current portion of bonds payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Other postemployment benefits payable
Compensated absences payable
Unamortized premium on bonds
Bonds payable

TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Unrestricted

TOTAL NET ASSETS

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

6 602
Water Sewer

2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 12,788 b 10,823 b 2,545 5 1,616
1,589 1,292 355 274
15,908 15,996 - -
2,176 18,418 - -
2,282 2,232 459 460
40,000 35,000 - -
74,743 83,761 3,359 2,350
3,175 1,579 804 399
9,129 8,926 1,836 1,840
7,819 8,530 - -
4,640,000 4,680,000 - -
4,660,123 4,699,035 2,640 2,239
4,734,866 4,782,796 5,999 4,589
5,930,824 5,996,484 177,417 186,157
931,739 875,832 72,836 74,069
§ 6,862,563 $ 6,872,316 $ 250,253 $ 260,226

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

Governmerital Activities

603 701, 702, 703
Storm Sewer Totals Interna! Service Funds
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

4,187 $ 2,685 19,520 $ 15,124 $ 15,706 $ -
639 496 2,583 2,062 - -
- - 15,908 15,996 - -
56,226 80,154 56,226 80,154 - -
518 500 2,694 18,918 - -
1,073 1,095 3,814 3,787 - -
- - 40,000 35,000 - -
62,643 84,930 140,745 171,041 15,706 -
1,193 593 5,172 2,571 - -
4,291 4,378 15,256 15,144 - -
- - 7,819 8,530 - -
- - 4,640,000 4,680,000 “ -
5,484 4,971 4,668,247 4,706,245 - -
68,127 89,901 4,808,992 4,877,286 15,706 -
605,051 461,693 6,713,292 6,644,334 286,326 316,275
188,934 107,067 1,193,509 1,056,968 32,028 60,000
793,985 $ 568,760 7,906,801 $ 7,701,302 $ 318,354 5 376,275
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Cl'lg OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

601 602
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009
OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services 506,238 $ 429,235 $ 48,508 $ 45,146
Water meter sales 11,121 8,020 - -
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 517,359 437,255 48,508 45,146
OPERATING EXPENSES
Personnel services 102,711 99,319 22,996 22,350
Supplies 95,164 16,655 - -
Professional services 37,991 54,756 12,032 11,007
Repair and maintenance 11,550 23,966 12 1,806
Insurance 9,710 9,143 - -
Ultilities 117,801 125,103 17,733 15,341
Depreciation 324,818 312,351 8,740 8,739
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 699,745 641,293 61,513 59,243
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (182,386) (204,038) (13,005) (14,097)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment earnings 10,580 17,056 632 1,535
Connection fees 78,000 55,925 2,400 1,548
Rents 45,226 42,175 - -
Miscellangous - 30,100 - -
Amortization of deferred charges (7,418) (7,418) - -
Interest expense (191,156) (208,303) - -
TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES) (64,768) (70,465) 3,032 3,083
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIC (247,154) (274,503) (9,973 (11,014)
TRANSFERS IN 50,000 - - -
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED FROM DEVELOPERS 183,000 394,000 - -
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED FROM OTHER FUNDS 4,401 17,553 - -
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS (9,753) 137,050 (9.973) (11,014)
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1 6,872,316 6,735,266 260,226 271,240
NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31 6,862,563 $  6,872.316 $ 250,253 5 260,226

The notes to the financial statements are an integtal part of this statement.



Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

Governmental Activities

603 701, 702, 703
Storm Sewer Totals Internal Service Funds
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
185,425 $ 149,347 740,171 $ 623,728 - $ -
- - 11,121 8,020 - -
185,425 149,347 751,292 631,748 - -
39,855 38,410 165,562 160,079 - -
20,752 10,153 115,916 26,808 - -
41,940 85,217 91,963 150,980 - -
33,649 - 45,211 25,772 2,058 -
- - 9,710 9,143 - -
- - 135,534 140,444 - “
15,188 6,585 348,746 327,675 56,819 -
151,384 140,365 012,642 840,901 58,877 -
34,041 8,082 (161,350) (209,153) (58,877) -
(83) (3,248) 11,129 15,343 956 -
- - 80,400 57,473 - -
- - 45,226 42,175 - -
32,721 60 32,721 30,160 - -
- - (7,418) (7.418) - -
- - (191,156) (208,303) - -
32,638 (3,188) (29,098) (70,570) 956 -
66,679 5,794 (160,448) (279,723) (57,921) -
- 100,000 50,000 100,000 - 60,000
155,000 325,000 338,000 719,000 - -
3,546 11,624 7,947 29,177 - 316,275
225,225 442,418 205,499 568,454 (57,921) 376,275
568,760 126,342 7,701,302 7,132,848 376,275 -
793,985 $ 568,760 7,906,801 $ 7,701,302 318,354 $ 376,275
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

601 602
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users $ 475,808 $ 421,164 $ 30,083 $ 25,096
Other income related to operating activities 45,226 72,275 - -
Payments to suppliers (290,641) (216,377) (28,848) {30,659)
Payments to employees (100,565} (97.338) (22,515) (21,796)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 129,828 179,724 (21,280) (27,359)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds 23,928 {32,704) - -
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds - - - -
Transfers from other funds 50,000 - - -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 73,928 (32,704) - -
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets (33,320) (19,247) - -
Connection fees received 78,000 55,925 2,400 1,548
Proceeds of long-term debt, net of issnance costs
and bond premiums - 509,433 - -
Principal paid on long-term debt (35,000) (530,000} - -
Interest paid on long-term debt (191,955) (209,666) - -
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (182,275) (193,535) 2,400 1,548
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on investments 10,580 17,056 632 1,535
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS 32,061 (29,479) (18,248) (24,2776)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (DEFICITS),
JANUARY 1 533,346 562,825 47,474 71,750
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
DECEMBER 31 $ 565,407 $ 533,346 $ 29,226 $ 47,474

The notes to the financial statements are an iniegral part of this statement.
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

Governmental Activities

603 701, 702, 703
Storm Sewer Totals Internal Service Funds
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
125,332 $ 99,942 $ 631,223 $ 546,202 - $ -
32,721 60 77,947 72,335 - -
(94,821) (103,29%) (414,310) (350,335) (2,058) -
(39,221) (37,547) {162,301) (156,681} - -
24,011 (40,844) 132,559 111,521 (2,058) -
- 4,458 23,928 (28,246) - -
(23,928) 80,154 (23,928) 80,154 - -
- £00,000 50,000 100,000 - 60,000
(23,928) 184,612 50,000 151,908 - 60,000
- - (33,320) (19,247 {11,164) -
- - 80,400 57,473 - -
- - - 509,433 - -
- - (35,000) (530,000) - -
- - {191,955) (209,666) - -
- - (179,875) (192,007 (11,164) -
(83) (3,248) 11,129 15,343 956 -
- 140,520 13,813 86,765 (12,266) 60,000
- {140,520} 580,820 494,055 60,000 -
- $ - $ 594,633 $ 580,820 47,734 $ 60,000
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Cl'IQ Y OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Depreciation
Other income related to operations
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable
Special assessments
Due from other governments
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries payable
Due to other governments
Other postemployment benefits payable
Compensated absences payable

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED}
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Capital assets purchased on account
Amortization of deferred charges
Amortization of bond premium

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

601 602
Water Sewer
2010 2009 2010 2009

$ (182,386) § (204,038) % (13,005) §$ (14,097)

324,818 312,351 8,740 8,739

45,226 72,275 - -
(68,946) (25,573) (18,425) (20,103)

27,395 9,482 - 53
(2,183) (1,961) 929 (2,396)

297 310 81 54
(16,242) 15,207 - (109)

1,596 1,579 405 399

253 92 (5) 101
$ 129,828 $ 179,724 $ {21,280) % {27,359

$ 187,401 $ 411,553 $ - $ -
$ 4,148 $ - $ - b -
$ 7,418 b 7418 $ - $ -
$ 711 ¥ 710 $ - $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds - Continued

Governmental Activities

603 701, 702, 703
Storm Sewer Total Internal Service Funds
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

$ 34,041 $ 8,982 $ (161,350) % (209,153) % (58,877 § -
15,188 6,585 348,746 327,675 56,819 -
32,721 60 77,947 72,335 - -
(52,486) {49,405) (139,857) (95,081) - -
- - 27,395 9,535 - -
(7,607) - (7,607) - - -
1,502 (8,320) 248 (12,677) - -
143 105 321 469 - "
18 391 (16,224) 15,489 - -
600 593 2,601 2,571 - -
(109) 165 139 358 - -
$ 24,011 $ (40,844) & 132,559 $ 111,521 $ (2,058) $ -
$ 158,546 $ 336,624 $ 345,947 3 748,177 $ - h 316,275
h) - $ - % 4,148  § - 3 15,706  § -
$ - 8 - $ 7.418 $ 7.418 $ - b -
$ - 8 - $ 711 $ 710§ - $ -
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CIT'Q OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Agency Funds
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investnients $ 315,394
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 13,622
Deposits payable 301,772
TOTAL LIABILITIES $ 315,394

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A.

Reporting entity

The City of Lake Elmo (the City), Minnesota, operates under “Optional Plan A” as defined in the State of Minnescta
statutes. The City is governed by an elected Mayor and a four-member Council. The Council exercises legistative
authority and determines all matters of policy. The Council appoints personnel responsible for the proper
administration of all affairs relating to the City. The City has considered all potential units for which it is financially
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the City are
such that exclusion would cause the City’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has set forth criteria to be considered in determining financial accountability.
These criteria include appointing a voting majority of an organization’s governing body, and (1) the ability of the.
primary government to impose its will on that organization or {2) the potential for the organization to provide
specific benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on the primary government. The City has no component
units,

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) report
information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the City. Governmental activities, which normally ate supported
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-iype activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit
from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
testricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other
items not properly included among program revemnues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental and proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though
the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and
major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting, and financial statement presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenuss are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or scon
enough thereafter to pay iiabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
telated to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Property taxes, franchise taxes, license and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Only the portion of
special assessments receivable due within the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as
revenue of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received by the City.

Revenue rosulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal value, is
recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On a modified accrual basis, revenue is recorded in the
year in which the resources are measurable and become available.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the City receives value without directly giving equal value in return, include
property taxes, grants, entitlement and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in
the year for which the tax is levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the year in
which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility requirements include timing requirements, which
specify the year when the resources are required to be used or the year when use is first permitted, matching
requirements, in which the City must provide local resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure
requirements, in which the resources are provided to the City on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis,
revenue from non-exchange transactions must also be available before it can be recognized.

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satisfied. Grants
and entitlements received before eligibility requirements are met are also recorded as deferred revenue, On the

modified accrual basis, receivables that will not be collected within the available period have also been reported as
deferred revenue in the fund financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

The General fund is the government’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the
City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Debt Service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and interest
on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds.

The Village Project fund accounts for enginecring, planning and financing of the village area developments
and redevelopments.

The 2010 Street Improvements fund accounts for the accumulation of resources and costs associated with the
2010 Street Improvement project.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:
The Water fund accounts for the activities of the City’s water distribution operations.
The Sewer fund accounts costs associated with the City’s sewer system.

The Storm Sewer fund accounts costs associated with the City’s storm sewer system, which are financed by
the storm sewer surcharge.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

Internal service finds are used to account for the replacement of radios, Information Technology (IT), and
Furniture, Fixture, and Equipment (FFE) expenses of the governmental activities. Internal service funds operate
in a manner similar to enterprise funds; however, they accumulate funding primarily from other departments
within the City on a cost reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or as an agent on behalf of others.

The agency funds are custedial in nature and do not present results of operations or have a measurement focus,
Agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. These funds are used to account
for assets that the City holds for others in an agency capacity.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are
followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do
not conflict with or coniradict guidance of GASB. Governments also have the option of following subsequent
private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The
City has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from government-wide financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and contributions, including special
assessments. Internally dedicated resources are repotted as general revenues rather than as program revenues.
Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietaty funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the City’s enterprise funds are
charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the City’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF LAKE EL. MO, MINNESOTA.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
D. Assets, liabilities, and net asseis or equity
Deposits and investments

The City’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and shott-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested, to the extent available, in certificates of deposit and other
authorized investments, Earnings from such investments are allocated on the basis of applicable participation by
each of the funds.

The City may also invest idle funds as authorized by Minnesota statutes, as follows:
1. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.

2. Shares of investment companies registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and
received the highest credit rating, rated in one of the two highest rating categories by a statistical rating
agency, and have a final maturity of thirteen months or less.

3. General obligations of a state or local government with taxing powers rated “A” or better; revenue
obligations rated “AA” or better.

4, General obligations of the Minnesota Housing Finance Agency rated “A” or beiter.
5. Bankers’ acceptances of United States banks eligible for purchase by the Federal Reserve System.

6. Commercial paper issued by United States banks corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of highest
quality category by at least two nationally recognized rating agencies, and maturing in 270 days or less.

7. Repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements with financial institutions
qualified as a “depository” by the government entity, with banks that are members of the Federal Reserve
System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in U.S, government
securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain Minnesota securities broker-dealers.

8. Guaranteed investment contracts (GIC’s) issued or guaranteed by a United States commercial bank, a
domestic branch of a foreign bank, a United States insurance company, or its Canadian subsidiary, whose
similar debt obligations were rated in one of the top two rating categories by a nationally recognized rating
agency.

Investments for the City are reported at fair value. The broker money market investment pool operates in accordance
with appropriate State laws and regulations. The reported value of the pool is the same as the fair value of the pool
share.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESQOTA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED
Properly taxes

The Council annually adopts a tax levy in December and certifies it to the County for collection the following year,
The County is responsible for collecting all property taxes for the City. These taxes attach an enforceable lien on
taxable property within the City on January 1 and are payable by the property owners in two installments. The taxes
are collected by the County Treasurer and tax settlements are made to the City during January, July and December
each year,

Taxes payable on homestead property, as defined by Minnesota statutes, were partially reduced by a market value
credit aid. The credit is paid to the City by the State in lieu of taxes levied against the homestead property. The State
remits this credit in two equal installments in October and December each year.

Delinquent taxes receivable include the past six years” uncollected taxes, Delinquent taxes have been offset by a
deferred revenue liability for taxes not received within 60 days after year end in the fund financial statements.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable include amounts billed for services provided before year end. Unbilled utility enterprise fund
receivables ate also included for services provided in 2010, The City annually certifies delinquent water and sewer
accounts to the County for collection in the following vear. Therefore, there has been no allowance for doubtful
accounts established. :

Special assessmentis

Special assessments represent the financing for public improvements paid for by benefiting property owners. These
assessments are recorded as receivable upon certification to the County. Special assessments are recognized as
revenue when they are received in cash or within 60 days after year end. All governmental special assessments
receivable are offset by a deferred revenue liability in the fund financial statements.

Interfund receivables and payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the
fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
“advances to/from other funds” (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances
between funds are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as
“internal balances.”

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance reserve account
in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable
available financial resources.

Prepaid items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items
in both government-wide and fund financial statements.
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Note 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - CONTINUED

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks,
and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an initial, individual cost
of more than $5,000 (amount not rounded) and an estimated useful life in excess of three years. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

In the case of the initial capitalization of general infrastructure assets (i.e., those reported by governmental activities)
the City chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount. The City was able to estimate
the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through backtrending (i.e., estimating the current
replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using an appropriate price-level index to deflate the cost
to the acquisition year). As the City constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period, including
infrastructure assets, they are capitalized and reported at historical cost. The reported value excludes normal
maintenance and repairs which are essentially amounts spent in relation to capital assets that do not increase the
capacity or efficiency of the item or extend its useful life beyond the original estimate.

Tnterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the City are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following
estimated useful lives:

Useful Lives
Assets in Years
Buildings and improvements 10 - 40
Improvements other than buildings 15-30
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Infrastructure 20 - 60
Compensated absences

It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned but unused personal time off.
An employee leaving the service of the City in good standing will be compensated 100 percent for personal time off
accrued, not to exceed 240 hours, to the day of separation provided the said employee has served at least twelve
consecutive months prior to separation and has given the City at least two weeks notice prior to the effective date of
such separation. In governmental fund types, the cost of these benefits is recognized when payments are made to the
employees. The General fund normally liquidates liabilities for governmental compensated absences, while the
enterprise funds normally liquidate liabilities for business-type compensated absences.
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Postemployment benefits other than pensions

Under Minnesota statute 471.61, subdivision 2b., public employers must allow retirees and theit dependents to
continue coverage indefinitely in an employer-sponsored health care plan, under the following conditions: 1)
Retirees must be receiving (or eligible to receive) an annuity from a Minnesota public pension plan, 2) Coverage
must continue in group plan until age 65, and retirees must pay no more than the group premium, and 3) Retirees
may obtain dependent coverage immediately before retirement, All premiums are funded on a pay-as-you-go basis.
The liability was determined using the alternative measurement method, in accordance with GASB Statement 45, at
Janpary 1, 2009,

Long-tferm obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term
debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable gavernmental activities, business-
type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds repott reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not
available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations of
fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Net assets

In the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements, net assets represent the difference between assets
and liabilities. Net assets are displayed in three components:

&, Invested in capital assets, net of related debt - Consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
reduced by any outstanding debt attributable to acquire capital assets.

b. Restricted net assets - Consist of net assets restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use
through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws or regulations of other governments.

c. Unrestricted net assets - All other net assets that do not meet the definition of “restricted” or “invested in
capital assets, net of related debt”.

Comparative data/reclassifications
Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented only for the individual enterprise funds in the fund
financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the financial position and operations of

these funds. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year have been reclassified in order to be consistent with
the current year’s presentation.
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Note 2: STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary information

Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America for the General fund. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year end. The City does not use
encumbrance accounting.

Tn August of each year, all departments of the City submit requests for appropriations to the City Administrator so
that a budget may be prepared. Before September 15™, the proposed budget is presented to the Council for review.
The Council adopts a preliminary maximum budget. Truth-in-taxation notices are mailed out to residents by
Washington County. The Council holds public hearings and adopts a budget and tax levy in December.

The appropriated budget is prepared by fund, function and department. The City’s department heads may make
transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfors of appropriations between departments require the
approval of the Council. The legal level of budgetary control (i.e., the level at which expenditures may not legally
exceed appropriations) is the department level. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the
Council. No budget amendments were made during 2010.

B. Deficit fund equity

The following funds had deficits at December 31,2010;

Fund Amount
Major
Village Project $ 1,146,241
Nonmajor
Manning Avenue / Highway 36 7,701
2011 Street Improvements 41,948

The City plans to eliminate the deficits through future taxes, assessments, transfers and other revenue collections.
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Note 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS
A. Deposits and investments
Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits and investments is the risk that in the event of & bank failure, the City’s deposits
and investments may not be returned or the City will not be able to recover collateral securities in the possession of
an outside party. In accordance with Minnesota statutes and as authorized by the Council, the City maintains

deposits at those depository banks, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve System.

Minnesota statutes require that all City deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond or collateral. The market
value of collateral pledged must equal 110 percent of the deposits not covered by insurance or bonds.

Authorized collateral in lieu of a corporate surety bond includes:
e  United States government Treasury bills, Treasury notes, Treasury bonds;

e Issues of United States government agencies and instrumentalities as quoted by a recognized industry
quotation service available to the government entity;

o  General obligation securities of any state or local government with taxing powers which is rated “A” or
better by a national bond rating service, or revenue obligation securities of any state or local government
with taxing powers which is rated “AA” or better by a national bond rating service;

e  General obligation securities of a local government with taxing powers may be pledged as collateral against
funds deposited by that same local government entity;

e Irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by Federal Home Loan Banks to a municipality accompanied by
written evidence that the bank’s public debt is rated “AA” or better by Moody*s Investors Service, Inc., or
Standard & Poor’s Corporation; and

¢ Time deposits that are fully insured by any federal agency.

Minnesota statutes require that all collateral shall be placed in safekeeping in a restricted account at a Federal
Reserve Bank, or in an account at a trust department of a commercial bank or other financial institution that is not
owned or controlled by the financial institution furnishing the collateral. The selection should be approved by the
City,

At year end, the City’s carrying amount of deposits was $1,483,489 and the bank balance was $1,485,998. Of the

bank balance, $423,964 was covered by federal depository insurance. The remaining balance was covered by
collateral held in the City’s name.
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Investmenis

Investments are carried at fair value. Investment and dividend income are recognized as revenue when eamned.

At year end, the City’s investment balances were as follows:

Fair Value
Credit Segmented and
Quality/ Time Carrying
Type of Investment Ratings (1) Distribution (2) Amount
Pooled investments .
Brokered money markets N/A Less than 6 months $ 462,258
Non-pooled investments
Brokered certificates of deposit N/A Less than 6 months 485,902
Brokered certificates of deposit N/A 6 months to 1 year 297,167
Brokered certificates of deposit N/A 1 to 3 years 392,638
Brokered certificates of deposit N/A More than 3 years 100,456
U.S. Treasuries AAA 6 months to 1 year 26,132
U.S. Treasuries AAA 1 to 3 years 2,899,379
Municipal bonds AAA Less than 6 months 755,091
Municipal bonds AA2 Less than 6 months 151,112
Municipal bonds AA2 1to 3 years 464,136
U.5. Government Agencies AAA More than 3 years 771,816
Total investments $  6,812.087

(1)  Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies where applicable to indicate associated credit risk.
(2) Interest rate risk is disclosed using the segmented time distribution method.
N/A  Indicates not applicable or available,

The invesiments of the City are subject to the following risks:

o Credit Risk. Credit risk for investments is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an. investment will
not fulfill its obligations. Ratings are provided by various credit rating agencies and where applicable,
indicate associated credit risk. Minnesota Statutes limit the City’s investments to the list on page 54 of the
notes,

o Custodial Credit Risk. The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of investment or
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

o Concentration of Credit Risk. The concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude
of a government’s investment in a single issuer, The City places no limit on the amount that may be
invested in any one issuer.

e Interest rate risk. The interest rate risk for investments is the risk that changes in interest rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

The City does not currently have a formal investment policy that addresses the above mentioned risks.
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A reconciliation of cash and temporaty investments as shown on the Statement of Net Assets for the City follows:

Carrying amount of deposits
Investments
Petty cash

Total

Government-wide
Cash and temporary investments
Cash with fiscal agent

Fiduciary
Cash and temporary investments

Total

Deferred revenue

$ 1,483,489
6,812,087
250

§ 8295826

$ 5,017,890
2,962,542

315,394

5 8295826

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not considered to
be available to liquidate liabilities of the cutrent period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in
connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end of the current fiscal year, the

various components of deferred revenue reported in the governmental funds were as follows:

Fund

General

Delinquent taxes receivable
Dabt Service

Special assessments receivable

Due from other governments - state contributions

Nonmajor governmental
Special assessments receivable

Total

61~

Unavailable
$ 99,757

93,992
400,600

_ 113011
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Note 3: DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS - CONTINUED

C. Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the governmental activities for year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Governmental activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land $ 3,388,035 $ 51,951 $ - $ 3,439,986
Construction in progress 1,243,777 1,221,580 (568,594) 1,896,763
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 4,631,812 1,273,531 {568,594) 5,336,749
Capital assets, being depreciated
Buildings 3,298,644 89,432 - 3,388,076
Improvements other
than buildings 1,139,029 12,000 - 1,151,029
Machinery and equipment 2,573,270 43,265 - 2,616,535
Infrastructure 4,096,425 519,773 - 4,616,198
Total capital assets
being depreciated 11,107,368 664,470 - 11,771,838
Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings {478,246) (72,932) - (551,178)
Improvements other
than buildings (515,858) (62,331) - (578,189)
Machinery and equipment (1,425,786) (177,820) - {1,603,606)
Infrastructure (451,55%9) (272,798) - (724,357
Total accumulated
depreciation (2,871,449) (585,881) - (3,457,330)
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 8,235,919 78,589 - 8,314,508
Governmental activities
capital assets, net $ 12,867,731 $ 1,352,120 $  (568,594) _§$ 13.651,257
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Capital asset activity for the business-type activities for year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance
Business-type activities
Capital assets not being depreciated
Land 36,573 - $ - B 36,573
Construction in progress 398,859 383,414 (374,810) 407,463
Total capital assets
not being depreciated 435,432 383,414 (374,810) 444,036
Capital assets being depreciated
Machinery and equipment 282,860 - - 282,860
Infrastructure 12,313,218 374,811 - 12,688,029
Total capital assets
heing depreciated 12,596,078 374,811 - 12,970,889
Less accumulated depreciation for
Machinery and equipment (95,645) (20,638) - (116,283)
Infrastructure (1,585,061) (328,108) - (1,913,169)
Total aceumulated
depreciation (1,680,706) (348,746) - (2,029,452)
Total capital assets
being depreciated, net 10,915,372 26,065 - 10,941,437
Business-type activities
capital assets, net $ 11,350,804 409,479 $ (3748100 _§ 11,385.473

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the City as follows:

Governmental activities

General government $ 35,622
Public safety 95,818
Public works 389,462
Culture and recreation 64,979

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 585,881

Business-type activities

Water b 324,818
Sewer 8,740
Storm sewer 15,188

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities b 348,746
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Construction commitments

The City has an active construction project as of December 31, 2010. At year end, the City’s commitment with the
coniractor for this project is as follows:

Spent Remaining
Project to date Commitment
Lake Elmo Park Shelter - Stillwater Blvd and 50th Street b 415,352 $ 22,118

D. Interfund receivables, payables and transfers

The composition of interfund balances for the year ended December 31, 2010 is as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Purpose Amount

Due from/to other funds
Business-type Business-type

Water Storm Sewer Fund deficit cash balance $ 56,226
Governmental Governmental

General Village Project Fund deficit cash balance 63,418

General Nonmagjor governmental TFund deficit cash balance 24,711

Total due from/to other funds $ 144,355

Advance to/from other funds
Governmental Governmental

General Village Project Cash flow purposes $ 1,055.900

The City established an interfund loan in the amount of $1,055,900 from the General fund to the Village Project
fund. The loan will then be repaid, with four percent interest through the years 2011 - 2012,

Interfund transfers
Transfer in
Nonmajor
Governmental
Fund Debt Service Funds Water Total
Transfer out
General $ - b 76,850 b 50,000 $ 126,830
Nonmajor Governmental 237,848 - - 237,848
Total =$ 237,848 5 76,850 5 50,000 $ 364,698
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During the year ended December 31, 2010, the City made the following transfers;

The 2009 Street Improvements and Tablyn Park Entrance nonmajor governmental funds were closed by
transferring $29,248 and $8,600, respectively, to the 2009B G.O, Improvement Bonds Debt Service fund.

s The General fund made an $8,000 transfer of donations to the Fall Festival nonmajor governtmental fund,

e A transfer in the amount of $200,000 was made from the City Facilities nonmajor governmental fund to the
2004 G.O. Capital Improvement Plan Bonds debt service fund for a portion of the unused facilities’ bond
proceeds,

e The General fund transferred $68,850 to the Vehicle Replacement fund for future vehicle capital outlay. The
General fund also transferred $50,000 to the Water fimd to aid in offsetting a projected future deficit cash
balance.

E. Long-term debt

General obligation (G.0.) bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
construction of major capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and
proprietary activities. These bonds are reported in the proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from
proprietary fund revenues, Additionally, general obligations bonds have been issued to refund general obligation
improvement bonds and general obligation revenue bonds.

General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City.

General obligation improvement bonds

The G.O. Improvement Bonds have been issued to finance improvements. They will be repaid with special
assessment collections and ad valorem tax levies. Each year the combined assessment and tax levy equals 105

percent of the amount required for debt service. The excess of 5 percent is to cover any delinquencies in tax or
assessiment payments. General obligation improvement bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Authorized Interest Issue Maturity Balance at
Description and Issued Rate Date Date Year End
G.O. Improvement Bonds
G.O. Improvement
Bonds of 2002A $ 340,000 4.50-4.60 % 05/01/02 01/01/12 h 40,000
G.0. CIP Bonds,
Series 2004A 4,090,000 3.10-345 11/01/04 02/01/13 3,375,000
G.0. Refunding Bonds,
Series 2009A 535,000  3.00-3.85 05/01/09 12/01/16 400,000
G.0., Improvement Bonds,
Series 2009B 575,000  2.00-3.05 10/01/09 01/15/20 575,000
G,0. Improvement Bonds,
Series 2010A 710,000  0.75-2.80 11/15/10 02/01/21 710,000
G.0O. Capital Improvement
Plan Crossover Refunding
Bonds, Series 20108 1,970,000  1.00-3.20 11/15/10 02/01/25 1,970,000
Total G.Q, Improvenent Bonds $ 7,070,000
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The annual debt service to maturity for general obligation improvement bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

December 31,

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015
2016-2020
2021-2025

Total

Governmental Activities

Principal Interest Total

$ 300,000 $ 201,939 § 501,939
360,000 208,911 568,911
3,225,000 140,996 3,365,996
335,000 74,708 409,708
350,000 68,773 418,773
1,525,000 238,350 1,763,350
975,000 72,153 1,047,153

$ 7,070000 _$ 1,005830 _$ 8,075,830

General obligation equipment certificates of indebtedness

General obligation equipment certificates of indebtedness are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit
of the City. The bonds have been issued to finance capital acquisitions, They will be repaid with ad valorem tax
levies. General obligation equipment certificates of indebtedness currently outstanding are as follows:

Authorized Interest Issue Maturity Balance at
Description and Issued Rate Date Date Year End
(.0. Equipment Certificates
of Indebtedness,
Series 2006A $ 443,000 3.65-4.00 % 03/08/06 12/01/15 $ 240,000

The annual debt service to maturity for general obligation equipment certificates of indebtedness are as follows:

Year Ending
December 31,

2011
2012
2013
2014
2015

Total

Governmental Activities _
Principal Interest Total
3 44,000 $ 9446 % 53,446
46,000 7,840 53,840
48,000 6,000 54,000
50,000 4,080 54,080
52,000 2,080 54,080
§ 240000 $ 29446 $§ 269446
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General obligation revenue bonds

The City has issued the following G.O. Water Revenue Bonds for improvements to its water system. They will be
repaid with the net revenues of the system. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows:

Authorized Interest Tssue Maturity Balance at
Description and Issued Rate Date Date Year End
G.0. Revenue Bonds
G.O. Water Revenue
Bonds - 2005A § 4,600,000 3.50-438 % 08/10/05 12/01/30 $ 4,200,000
G.0O. Refunding Bonds,
Series 2009A 515,000 3.00-3.85 05/01/09 12/01/21 480,000
Total G.O. Revenue Bonds 3 4,680,000

The annual debt service to maturity for general obligation revenue bonds are as follows:

Year Ending - Business-type Activities
December 31, Principal Interest Total
2011 $ 40,000 $ 190,905 $ 230,905
2012 40,000 189,705 229,705
2013 165,000 188,705 353,705
2014 190,000 183,130 373,130
2015 160,000 176,530 366,530
2016-2020 1,055,000 772,188 1,827,188
2021-2025 1,325,000 540,768 1,865,768
2026-2030 1,675,000 224,600 1,899,600
Total $_ 4680000 _§ 2466531 § 7.146.531
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Changes in long-term Labilifies
Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2010 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Governmental activities
Bonds payable
G.0. improvement bonds $ 4,660,000 $ 2,680,000 $ (270,0000 § 7,070,000 $ 300,000
G.0. equipment certificates

of indebtedness 283,000 - (43,000 240,000 44,000
Total bonds payable 4,943,000 2,680,000 (313,000) 7,310,000 344,000
Unamortized premium
on bonds 15,613 4,356 (2,416) 17,553 -
Other postemployment
benefits payable 14,358 14,530 - 28,888 -
Compensated absences
payable 60,685 57,971 (50,909) 67,747 13,549

Governmental activity
long-term liabilities  _§ 5,033,656 $ 2756857 $  (366,325) _§ 7.424,188 $ 357,549

Business-type activities
Bonds payable
G.0. revenue bonds $ 4,715,000 $ - $ (350000 § 4,680,000 $ 40,000

Unamortized premium

on bonds 8,530 - (711) 7,815 -
Other postemployment

benefits payable 2,571 2,601 - 5,172 -
Compensated absences

payable 18,931 16,318 (16,17%) 19,070 3,814

Business-type
long-term liabilities $§ 4.745.032 $ 18919 § (51.890y $§ 4,712061 £ 43,814

Crossover refumding

On November 15, 2010, the City issued $1,970,000 of General Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Crossover
Refunding Bonds, Series 2010B. Together with transfers from the City, the bonds issued will be used to call
$2,845,000 of the 2004A General Obligation Capital Iniprovement Plan Bonds on February 1, 2013. The proceeds
of the bonds were deposited into an escrow account and will be used to pay issuance costs and to purchase
government obligations. The government obligations will bear interest rates that will provide sufficient funds to
refund the old bonds. The escrow account will also provide debt service payments on the new bonds until the
crossover date. The old bonds are not considered defeased until the crossover date, and therefore will not be
removed from liabilities. As a result of the transfer and crossover refunding issue, the City will save $354,715 in
debt service payments and achieve an economic gain (the present value of the difference between the old and the
new debt service) of $94,158.
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F, Reserved/designated fund balance

I'und balances in the various funds have been reserved and designated for the following purposes as of

December 31, 2010:
Fund- Purpose Amount
Reserved
Debt Service Debt service $ 3,605,250
General Prepaid items 13,050
General Advance to other funds 1,055,900
Total reserved fund balance $ 4674200
Unreserved - Designated
2010 Street Improvements Capital projects $ 39,669
Nonmajor Governmental Capital projects 1,633,003
Total designated find balance § 1672672

Note 4: DEFINED PENSION PLANS - STATEWIDE

A, Plan description

All full-time and certain part-time employees of the City are covered by defined benefit plans administered by the
Public Employees Retirement Association of Minnesota (PERA), PERA administers the General Employees
Retirement Fund (GERF), which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer retirement plan. This plan is established and
administered in accordance with Minnesota, statutes, chapters 353 and 356.

GERF members belong to either the Coordinated Plan or the Basic Plan, Coordinated Plan members are covered by
Social Security and Basic Plan members are not. All new members must participate in the Coordinated Plan,

PERA provides retirement benefits as well as disability benefits to members, and benefits to survivors upon death of
eligible membors, Benefits are established by Minnesota statute, and vest afier three years of credited service. The
defined retirement benefits are based on a member’s highest average salary for any five successive years of
allowable service, age and years of credit at termination of service,

Two methods are used to compute benefits for PERA’s Coordinated and Basic Plan members, The retiring member
teceives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level acerual formula (Method 2), Under
Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is 2.20 percent of average salary for each of the first 10
yeats of service and 2.70 percent for each remaining vear. The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member
is 1.20 percent of average salary for each of the first 10 years and 1.70 percent for each remaining year. Under
Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is 2.70 percent of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.70 percent for
Cootdinated Plan members for each year of service. For all GERF members hired prior to July 1, 1989 whose
annuity is calculated using Method 1, a full annuity is available when age plus vears of service equal 90. Normal
retirement age is 65 for Basic and Coordinated members hired prior to July 1, 1989. Normal retirement age is the
age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at 66 for Coordinated members hired on or after July 1, 1989. A
reduced retiroment annuity is also available to eligible members seeking early retirement.
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There are different types of annuities available to members upon retirement. A single-life annuity is a lifetime
annuity that ceases upon the death of the retiree -~ no survivor annuity is payable. There are also various types of
joint and survivor annuity options available which will be payable over joint lives. Members may also leave their
contributions in the fund upon termination of public service in order to qualify for a deferred annuity at retirement
age. Refunds of contributions are available at any time to members who leave public service, but before retirement
benefits begin.

The benefit provisions stated in the previous paragraphs of this section are current provisions and apply to active
plan participants. Vested, terminated employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound
by the provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

PERA issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for GERF. That report may be obtained on the Internet at mnpera.org, by writing to PERA, 60 Empire
Drive #200, St. Paul, Minnesota, 55103-2088 or by calling (651) 296-7460 or 1-800-652-9026.

B. Funding policy

Minnesota statutes, chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These statutes are
established and amended by the State legislature. The City makes annual contributions to the pension plans equal to
the amount required by Minnesota statutes. GERF Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were
required to contribute 9.1 percent and 6.0 percent, respectively, of their annual covered salary in 2010. In 2010, the
City was required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78 percent for Basic Plan
GERF members and 7.00 percent for Coordinated Plan GERF members. Employer contribution rates for the
Coordinated Plan will increase to 7.25 percent, effective January 1, 2011. The City’s contributions to the General
Employees Retirement Fund for the years ending December 31, 2610, 2009 and 2008 were $52,277, $56,136, and
$57,801, respectively. The City’s coniributions were equal to the contractually required contributions for each year
as set by Minnesota statute.

Note 5: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS

A,  Plan description

The City administers a single-employer defined benefit healthcare plan (“the Retiree Health Plan”), The plan
provides healthcare insurance for eligible retirees and their spouses through the City’s group health insurance
plan until Medicare age, which covers both active and retired members. There are 9 active participants. Benefit
provisions are established by City Council. The Retiree Health Plan does not issue a publicly available financial
report.

B.  Fending policy

The City has historically funded these liabilities on a pay-as-you-go basis. Contribution requirements are
negotiated between the City and union representatives on a per contract basis. At the present time, no retiree
benefits are provided except the allowance to continue health insurance that is mandated by Minnesota Law.
The City does not contribute any of the cost of current-year premiums for eligible retired plan members or their
spouses. For fiscal year 2010, the City did not contribute anything to the plan. Plan members receiving benefits
contribute 100 percent of their premium costs,
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note5: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED

C.

Annual other postemployment benefit cost and net other postemployment benefit obligation

The City’s annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual
required contribution of the employer (ARC). The City has elected to calculate the ARC and related
information using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASB Statement No. 45 for employers in
plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on
an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities
(or funding excess) over a period not to exceed thirty years. The following table shows the components of the
City’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the City’s net
OPEB obligation;

Annual required contribution $ 16,929

Interest on net OPEB obligation 846

Adjustment to annual required contribution (644)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 17,131

Contributions made -
Increase in net OPEB obligation 17,131
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 16,929

Net OPEB obligation - end of year

b 34,060

The City’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, and the net OPEB
obligation for fiscal vears ended 2010 and 2009 follows:

Trend Information
Percentage
Year Annual Annual OPEB Net OPEB
Ending OPERB Cost Contributed Obligation
12/31/10 $ 17,131 - % $ 34,060
12/31/09 16,929 - 16,929

Funded status and funding progress

As of Tanuary 1, 2009, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $112,761, all of which was unfunded. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $892,528, and the ratio of the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability to the covered payroll was 12.6 percent.

The projection of future benefit payments for an ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of reported
amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healtheare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding
the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The
schedule of funding progress, presenied as required supplementary information following the notes to the
financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
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Note5: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS - CONTINUED

E.

Methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood
by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and
the historical pattern of shating of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that aro designed to reduce the effects of short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active employees - Based on the historical average retirement age for the covered group,
active plan members were assumed to retire at age 63, or at the first subsequent year in which the member
would qualify for benefits. In addition, spouses of retired employees were assumed to continue on the plan for
the lesser of eighteen months after the retired employee reaches Medicare age of until the spouse reaches
Medicare age.

Marital status - Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue throughout
retirement.

Mortality - Life expectancies were based on mortality tables from the National Center for Health Statistics. The
2004 United States Life Tables for Males and for Females were used.

Turnover - Non-group-specific age-based turnover data from GASB Statement 45 were used as the basis for
assigning active members a probability of remaining employed until the assumed retirement age and for
developing an expected future working lifetime assumption for purposes of allocating to periods the present
value of total benefits (o be paid.

Healthcare cost trend rate - The expected rate of increase in healthcare insurance premiums was based on
projections of the Office of the Actuary at the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services. A rate of 2.0 percent
initially, raised to an ultimate rate of 6.0 percent after six yoars, was used.

Health insurance premiums — 2008 and 2009 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as the basis for
calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Inflation rate - The expected long-term inflation assumption of 4,09 percent was based on projected changes in
the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and Cierical Workers (CPL-W) in The 2008 Annual Report
of the Board of Trustees of the Federal Old-Age and Survivors Insurance and Disability Insurance Trust Funds
for an intermediate growth scenario,

Pavroll growth rate - The expected long-term payroll growth rate was assumed to equal the rate of inflation.
Based on the historical and expected returns of the City’s short-term investment portfolio, a discount rate of 5.0
percent was used. In addition, a simplified version of the entry age actuarial cost method was used. The

unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open
basis. The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2010, was thirty years.
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Note 6: LAKE ELMO VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTER’S RELIEF ASSOCIATION

A, Plan deseription

All members of the Lake Elmo Fire Department (Department) are covered by a defined benefit plan administersd by
the Lake Eimo Firemen’s Relief Association (Association), The plan is a single employer retirement plan and is
established and administered in accordance with Minnesota statute, chapter 69.

The Association maintains a separate Special fund to accumulate assets to fund the retirement benefits earned by the
Department’s membership. Funding for the Association is derived from an insurance premiurm tax in accordance
with the Volunteer Firefighter’s Relief Association Financing Guidelines Act of 1971 (chapter 261 as amended by
chapter 509 of Minnesota statutes 1980). Funds are also derived from investment income.

The Association issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required

supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to Lake Elmo Firefighter’s Relief Association,
3800 Laverne Avenue North, Lake Elino, Minnesota 35042,

B. Funding policy

The financial requirements of the Special fund are determined in accordance with Minnesota statutes, section
69.772, which requires the payment of pension benefits in a lump sum or optionally in annual installments, The
benefits are payable after age 50, 20 years of service, and 10 years of Association membership or upon death. The
City"s annual pension cost for the current year and related information for the plan is as follows:

Annual pension cost p 55,081
Contributions made
City $ 18,928
State aid 36,153
Actuarial valueation date 12/31/10
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal
Amortization method Level dollar closed

Remaining amortization period

Normal cost 20 years
Prior service cost 10 years
Asset valuation method Fair value

Actuarial assumptions

Investment rate of return 5%
Projected salary increases N/A
Inflation rate N/A
Cost of living adjustments None
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Note 6: LAKE ELMO VOLUNTEER FIREFIGHTER’S RELIEF ASSOCIATION

Note 7:

Three Year Trend Information

Annual Percentage
Year Pension of APC Net Pension
Ending Cost (APC) Coniributed Obligation
12/31/10 $ 55,081 100 % 5 -
12/31/09 36,217 100 -
12/31/08 48,005 100 -
Required Supplementary Information
Assets in
Excess of Pension
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial {Unfunded) Benefit
Valuation Value of Accrued Accrued Funded Per Year
Date Assets Liability Liability Rate of Service
12/31/10 * * * # *
12/31/09 $ 920,405 $ 857,341 $ 63,064 107.4 % $ 3,100
12/31/08 741,317 785,321 (44,004) 94.4 3,100

* Information unavailable at the time of publication.
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANS - STATEWIDE

Plan description

Under Minnesota statute 353.028, subdivision 2, City managers or administrators may elect to be excluded from
membership in PERA. They must choose exclusion within six months of the day they begin employment. The law also
provides for refunds of contributions made before the election. If they elect exclusion, they and their cities may agree
that the cities will defer and contribute additional compensation on behalf of the employees to a deferred compensation
program. The program must meet federal income tax laws. The City contribution cannot exceed the amount it would
have made under the PERA contribution.

The City Administrator is covered by deferred compensation plan 457(b) administered by ICMA-RC. The City
contributed $6,759 and $1,428 for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

In general, any amount of compensation deferred, and any income attributable to the amounts so deferred, shall be
includible in gross income only for the taxable year in which such compensation or other income is paid to the
participant or other beneficiary,

Under federal requirements, a plan meets distribution requirements if under the plan amounts will not be made
available to participants or beneficiaries earlier than (i} the calendar year in which the participant attains age 70 ', (i)
when the participant has a severance from employment with the employer, or (iif) when the participant is faced with an
unforesceable emergency (determined in the manner prescribed by the Secretary in regulations).

ICMA-RC issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary

information for the 457(b) plan. That report may be obtained by writing to ICMA-RC Headquarters, 777 North Capitol
Street, NE Washington, DC 20002 or by calling 202-962-4600.
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Note 8: OTHER INFORMATION
A. Legal debt margin

In accordance with Minnesota statutes, the City may not incur or be subject to net debt in excess of three percent of
the market value of taxable property within the City. Net debt is payable solely from ad valorem taxes and therefore,
excludes debt financed partially or entirely by special assessments, enterprise fund revenues or tax increments. The
market value of taxable property totaled $1,201,213,400 for an allowable margin of $36,036,402. As of December
31, 2010, the City has $240,000 of debt subject to this limit.

B. Risk management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the City carries insurance, The City obtaing
insurance through participation in the League of Minnesota Cities Insurance Trust (LMCIT), which is a risk sharing
pool with approximately 800 other governmental units. The City pays an annual premium to LMCIT for its workers
compensation and property and casualty insurance, The LMCIT is self sustaining throagh member premiums and
will reinsure for claims above a prescribed dollar amount for each insurance event. Settled claims have not exceeded
the City’s coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has oceurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably

estimated. Liabilities, if any, include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNRs). The
City’s management is not aware of any incurred but not reported claims,
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Schedule of Funding Progress for the Postemployment Benefit Plan

Unfinded
Actuarial UAAL asa
Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Percentage
Valuation Value of Accrued Liability Funded Covered of Covered
Date Assels Liability (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
01/01/09 § - $ 112,761 $ 112,761 - % § 892,528 126 %
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

Total
Nommajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments $ 29,484 $ 1,726,747 $ 1,756,231
Receivables:
Special assessments
Current - 741 741
Deferred - 77,548 77,548
Special deferred - 34,176 34,176
Delinguent - 1,287 1,287
Due from other governments - 1,371 1,371
TOTAL ASSETS $ 29.484 $ 1,841,870 $ 1,871,354
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 2,160 $ 45,581 $ 47,741
Due to other governments - 213 213
Due to other fimds - 24,711 24,711
Deposits payable - 75,000 75,000
Deferred revenue - 113,011 113,011
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,160 258,516 260,676
FUND BALANCES
Unreserved
Designated - 1,633,003 1,633,003
Undesignated 27,324 (49,649) (22,325)
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 27,324 1,583,354 1,610,678
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES $ 29,484 $ 1,841,870 $ 1,871,354
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" CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Total
Nonmajor
Special Capital Governmental
Revenue Projects Funds
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ - $ 4976 § 4,976
Charges for services - 10,800 10,800
Special assessments - 52,503 52,503
Investment earnings 735 34,187 34,922
Miscellaneous 9,971 49,556 59,527
TOTAL REVENUES 10,706 152,022 162,728
EXPENDITURES
Current
Culture and recreation 13,422 - 13,422
Capital outlay
General government - 50,178 50,178
Public safety - 41,217 41,217
Public works 28,405 294,643 323,048
Culture and recreation - 76,286 76,286
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 41,827 462,324 504,151
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (31,121) (310,302) (341,423)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 8,000 68,850 76,850
Transfers out - (237,848) (237,848)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 8,000 {168,998) (160,998)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES {23,121) (479,300) (502,421)
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 50,445 2,062,654 2,113,099
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 5 27,324 § 1,583354 $ 1,610,678
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CIT\)OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010
203 204
Fall
Development Festival Total
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments $ 18,133 5 11,351 $ 29,484
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable b 2,160 b3 - $ 2,160
FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, undesignated 15,973 11,351 27,324
TOTAL LIABILITIES
AND FUND BALANCES 5 18,133 $ 11,351 $ 29,484
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NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

203 204
Fall
Development Festival Total
REVENUES
Investment earnings $ 542 $ 193 $ 735
Miscellaneons
Donations - 9,971 9,971
TOTAL REVENUES 542 10,164 10,706
EXPENDITURES
Cutrent
Culture and recreation - 13,422 13,422
Capital outlay
Public works 28,405 - 28,405
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 28,405 13,422 41,827
DEFICIENCY OF REVENUES
UNDER EXPENDITURES (27,863) (3,258) {31,121)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - 8,000 8,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES (27,863) 4,742 (23,121)
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY | 43,836 6,609 50,445
FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31 $ 15,973 $ 11,351 3 27,324
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ASSETS

Cash and temporary investments

Receivables:

Special assessments

Current

Deferred
Special deferred
Delinquent

Due from other governments

TOTAL ASSETS

CITYDOF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable

Due to other governments
Due to other funds
Deposits payable
Deferred revenue

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

Unreserved

Designated
Undesignated

TOTAL FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

AND FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)

-86-

404 409 410
Park Infrastructure Vehicle
Dedication Reserve Acquisition

$ 052,436 $ 52,364 $ 376,387
- 741 -
- 77,548 -
- 34,176 -
- 1,287 -
1,371 - -
$ 953,807 $ 166,116 $ 376,387
$ 4,462 $ 8,960 $ 13,375
- 113,011 -
4,462 121,971 13,375
049,345 44,145 363,012
949,345 44,145 363,012
$ 953,807 $ 166,116 $ 376,387




411 414 413 416 418

Manning 2009 Tablyn 2011
City Avenue/ Street Park Street
Facilities Highway 36 Improvements Entrance Improvements Total
3 278,261 $ 67,299 $ - $ - $ - $ 1,726,747
- - - - - 741
- - - - - 77,548
- - - - - 34,176
- - - - - 1,287
- - - - - 1,371
5 278,261 $ 67,299 $ - s - $ - $ 1,841,870
$ 1,547 $ - $ - $ - $ 17,237 $ 45,581
213 - - - - 213
- - - - 24,711 24,711
- 75,000 - - - 75,000
- - - - - 113,011
1,760 75,000 - - 41,948 258,516
276,501 - - - - 1,633,003
- (7,701) - - (41,948) (49,649)
276,501 (7,701) - - . (41,948) 1,583,354
$ 278,261 3 67,299 8 - $ - $ - $ 1,841,870
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
NONMAJOR CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Special assessments
Investment earnings
Miscellaneous
Refunds and reimbursements

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay
General government
Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out
TOTAL QOTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS), DECEMBER 31

88

404 409 410
Park Infrastructure Vehicle
Dedication Reserve Acquisition

$ 4,976 $ - $ -
10,800 - -
- 52,503 -
16,186 2,553 5,592
- - 49,556
31,962 55,056 55,148
- - 41,217
- 246,379 -
76,286 - -
76,286 246,379 41,217
(44.,324) (191,323) 13,931
- - 68,850
- - 68,850
(44,324) (191,323) 82,781
993,669 235,468 280,231
$ 949,345 $ 44,145 b 363,012




411 414 415 416 418
Manning 2009 Tablyn 2011
City Avenue/ Street Park Street
Facilities Hiphway 36 Improvements Entrance Improvements Total
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - § 4,976
- - - - - 10,800
- - - - - 52,503
8,065 1,105 588 147 (49) 34,187
- - - - - 49,556
8,063 1,105 588 147 (49) 152,022
50,178 . - - - 50,178
- - - - - 41,217
- - 6,300 63 41,899 294,643
- . ; ) ; 76,286
50,178 - 6,300 63 41,899 462,324
(42,113) 1,105 (5,712) 82 (41,948) (310,302)
- - - - - 68,850
(200,000) - (29,248) (8,600) - (237,848)
(200,000) - (29,248) (8,600) - {168,998)
(242,113) 1,105 (34,960} (8,518) (41,948) (479,300)
518,614 (8,806) 34,960 8,518 - 2,062,654
$ 276,501 $ (7,701) § - $ - $ (41,948) § 1,583,354
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments

CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS
DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds
701 702
Radio Replacement IT Replacement
2010 2009 2010 2009

$ 20,334 3 20,000 $ 18,253 b 20,000

NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital assets
Machinery and equipment 99,851 99,851 129,195 129,195
Construction in progress - - - -
Less accumulated depreciation (28,430) (20,109} (68,809) (50,072)
Total capital assets
(net of accumulated depreciation) 71,421 79,742 60,386 79,123
TOTAL ASSETS 91,755 99,742 78,639 99,123
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable - - - -
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets 71,421 79,742 60,386 79,123
Unrestricted 20,334 20,000 18,253 20,000
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 91,755 $ 99,742 3 78,639 $ 99,123
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds - Continued

703
FFFE Replacement Totals

2010 2009 2010 2009

9,147 b 20,000 $ 47,734 $ 60,000

331,683 323,325 560,729 552,371
18,512 . 18,512 -
(195,676) (165,915) (292,915) (236,096)
154,519 157,410 286,326 316,275
163,666 177,410 334,060 376,275
15,706 - 15,706 -
154,519 157,410 286,326 316,275
(6,559) 20,000 32,028 60,000

147.960 5 177,410 3 318,354 b 376,275
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

TOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

QOPERATING EXPENSES
Repair and maintenance
Depreciation
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES
OPERATING LOSS

NONOPERATING REVENUES
Investment earnings

LOSS BEFORE TRANSFERS AND CONTRIBUTIONS

TRANSFERS IN
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTED FROM OTHER FUNDS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS, JANUARY 1

NET ASSETS, DECEMBER 31

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

701 702
Radio Replacement 1T Replacement
2010 2009 2010 2009

- % - 3 2,058 $ -
8,321 - 18,737 -
8,321 - 20,795 -
(8,321) - (20,795) -
334 - 311 -
(7,987) - (20,484) -
- 20,000 - 20,000
- 79,742 - 79,123
(7,987) 99,742 (20,484) 99,123
99,742 - 99,123 -
91,755 $ 99,742 § 78,639 $ 99,123
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds - Continued

703
FFE Replacement Totals
2010 2009 2010 2009

- 3 - 5 2,058 $ -
29,761 - 56,819 -
29,761 - 58,877 -
(29,761) - (58,877) -
311 - 956 -
(29,450) - (57,921) -
- 20,000 - 60,000
- 157,410 - 316,275
(29,450) 177,410 (57,921) 376,275
177,410 - 376,275 -

147.960 $ 177,410 $ 318,354 $ 376,275
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CITY;)OF 1.AKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments to suppliers

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other finds

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL
AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of capital assets

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received on invesiments

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
JANUARY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,
DECEMBER 31

RECONCILIATION OF
OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
TUSED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile
operating loss to net cash
used by operating activities:
Depreciation

NET CASHUSED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SCHEDULE OF NONCASH CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions
Capital assets purchased on account

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

701 702
Radio Replacement IT Replacement
2010 2009 2010 2009

- - % (2,058) § -
- 20,000 - 20,000
334 - 311 -
334 20,000 (1,747 20,000
20,000 - 20,000 -
20,334 20,000 _§ 18,253 $ 20,000
(8,321) - % 20,795y % -
8,321 - 18,737 -
- - 8 (2,058) _8 -
- 79742 _§ - 8 79,123
- - 8§ ) _
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Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds - Continued

703 :
FFE Replacement Totals
2610 2009 2010 2009

- $ - $ (2,058 % -
- 20,000 - 60,000
(11,164) - (11,164) -
311 - 956 -
(10,853) 20,000 (12,266) 60,000
20,000 - 60,000 -
9,147 3 20,000 $ 47,734 3 60,000
29,761y § - $ (58,877) 8§ -
29,761 - 56,819 -
- $ - 8 {2,058) §$ -
- $ 157,410 $ - 5 316,275
15,706 $ - $ 15,706 5 -
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA D
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
REVENUES
Taxes
Property $ 2,355,453 $  2,3554353 $ 237,784 $ 16,331 $ 2,272,949
Franchise 37,400 37,400 37,725 325 36,872
Total 2,392,853 2,392,853 2,409,509 16,656 2,309,821
Licenses and permits
Business 10,260 10,260 15,030 4,770 11,685
Nonbusiness 147,500 147,500 246,420 98,920 213,481
Total 157,760 157,760 261,450 103,690 225,166
Intergovernmental
State
Propetty tax credits 37,518 37,518 7,022 (30,496) 6,015
MSA - maintenance 68,500 68,500 77,347 8,847 88,797
Fire state aid _ 40,000 40,000 36,153 (3,847) 36,217
Other 2,750 2,750 16,183 16,433 : 19,203
County/Local 15,000 15,000 15,588 588 15,476
Total 163,768 163,768 155,293 (8,475) 165,708
Charges for services 5,500 3,500 11,616 6,116 11,433
Fines and forfeits 52,000 52,000 68,807 16,897 54,052
Investment earnings 60,000 60,000 59,711 (289) 72,715
Miscellaneous 17,130 17,130 25,333 8,203 50,327
TOTAL REVENUES 2,849,011 2,849,011 2,991,809 142,798 2,889,222
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOT'A
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
{(With comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With Actual
QOriginal Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts
EXPENDITURES
Current
General goverament
Mayor and Council
Personnel services $ 17,692 $ 17,692 $ 17,692 $ - 8 17,573
Other services and charges 16,300 16,300 17,202 {902} 15,352
Total 33,992 33,992 34,804 {902) 32,923
Election
Personnel services 10,000 10,000 7,836 2,164 -
Supplies 600 600 56 544 161
Other services and charges 1,350 1,350 1,857 (507 940
Total 11,950 11,950 9,749 2,201 1,101
Adminjstration
Personnel services 334,641 334,641 321,808 12,833 302,743
Supplies 8,500 8,500 4,780 3,720 6,671
Other services and charges 67,250 67,250 54,250 13,000 71,746
Total 410,391 410,391 380,838 29,553 381,160
Communications
Personnel services 12,917 12,917 7,463 5,454 9,672
Other services and charges 42,400 42,400 44,214 (1,814) 37,352
Total 55,317 55,317 31,677 3,640 47,024
Building
Supplies 1,550 1,550 943 607 771
Other services and charges 39,200 39,200 34,841 4,359 42,801
Total 40,750 40,750 35,784 4,966 43,572
Professional services
Assessor 45,500 45,500 43,587 1,913 44,280
Accounting and auditing 59,500 59,500 75,371 (15,871) 67,337
Legal 60,000 60,000 55,739 4,261 45,882
Engineering 70,000 70,000 57,927 12,073 55,402
Total 235,000 235,000 232,624 2,376 212,901
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CI'lg OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

GENERAL FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -

EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Cutrent - continued
General government
Planning and zoning
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges

Total
Total general government
Public safety
Police
Contracted services
Fire protection
Personnel services
2% fire aid
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total
Building inspector
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Total
Animal control

Supplies
Other services and charges

Total
Criminal legal

Emergency communications
Other services and charges

Total public safety

BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With Actual
Original Final Amounts Final Budget Amounts

142,870 $ 142,870 135,704 7,166 5 137,882
2,000 2,000 401 1,599 141
37,750 37,750 39,919 (2,169) 73,254
182,620 182,620 176,024 6,596 211,277
970,020 970,020 921,590 48,430 929,960
474,935 474,935 481,243 (6,308) 470,605
218,528 218,528 180,125 38,403 180,180
40,000 40,000 36,153 3,847 36,217
27,200 27,200 22,879 4,321 23,039
149,991 149,991 165,689 (15,698) 136,435
435,719 435,719 404,846 30,873 375,871
79,650 79,650 78,525 1,125 79,637
4,350 4,350 - 4,350 83
11,200 11,200 33,219 {22,019) 6,673
93,200 95,200 111,744 (16,544) 86,393
150 150 - 150 -
12,700 12,700 10,996 1,704 10,345
12,850 12,850 10,996 1,854 10,345
51,000 51,000 48,549 2,451 44,868
- - 6,798 (6,798) -
1,069,704 1,069,704 1,064,176 5,528 988,082




) )
‘ CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010
(With comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2009)

2010 2009
Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance With Actual
Original Final Amouriis Fina! Budget Amounts
EXPENDITURES - CONTINUED
Current - continued
Public works
General
Personnel services $ 209,138 $ 209,138 5 184,356 $ 24,782 8 177,765
Supplies 124,500 124,500 142,304 (17,804) 98,277
Other services and charges 131,695 131,695 107,563 24,132 114,449
Total 465,333 465,333 434,223 31,110 390,491
Trees 10,000 10,000 15,665 (5.665) 17,882
Street lighting 24,000 24,000 23,405 595 22,459
Total public works 499,333 499,333 473,293 26,040 430,832
Culture and recreation
Parks
Personnel services 146,340 146,340 118,478 27,862 128,760
Supplies 12,550 12,550 5,931 6,619 3,907
Other services and charges 32,214 32,214 31,140 1,074 32,977
Total culture and recreation 191,104 191,104 155,549 35,555 165,644
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,730,161 2,730,161 2,614,608 115,553 2,514,518
EXCESS OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES 118,850 118,850 377,201 258,351 374,704
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers out {118,850) (118,850) (126,850) {8,000} {349,735)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - - 250,351 250,351 24,969
FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1 2,435,810 2,435,810 2,435,810 . 2,410,841

FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER. 31 § 2435810 5 2435810 § 2,686,161 $ 250,351

$ 2435810
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2010

312 313 314
2006 G.O.
2002 G.O. Equipment
Improvement 2004 G.O. Certificates of
Bond CIP Bond Indebtedness
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments $ 58,429 $ 465,693 $ 14,847
Cash with fiscal agent - 2,925,511 -
Receivables:
Accounts - 2,783 -
Special assessments

Deferred 21,242 - -

Due from other governments - -
TOTAL ASSETS $ 79,671 $ 3,393,987 3 14,847

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 3,486 5 - 8 -
Deferred revenue 21,242 - -
TOTAI LTABILITIES 24,728 - -
FUND BALANCES

Reserved for debt service 54,943 3,393,987 14,847
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES $ 79,671 $ 3,393,987 $ 14,847
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315 316
2009A G.O. 2009B G.O.
Refunding Improvement
Bond Bond Total
- $ 104,714 643,683
- 37,031 2,962,542
- - 2,783
- 72,750 93,992
400,000 400,000
400,000 $ 214,495 4,103,000
- $ 272 3,758
400,000 72,750 493,992
400,000 73,022 497,750
- 141,473 3,605,250
400,000 $ 214,495 4,103,000
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

REVENUES
Property taxes
Intergovernmental
MSA contributions
Special assessments
Investment earnings

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Principal
Interest and other charges
Bond issuance costs

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF
REVENUL OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in
Refimding bonds issued
Premium on bonds issued
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

FUND BALANCES, JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCES, DECEMBER 31

~162-

312 313 314
2006 G.O.
2002 G.O. Equipment
Improvement 2004 G.O. Certificates of
Bond CIP Bond Indebtedness
$ - 8 220,000 $ 56,716
23,538 - -
1,326 18,247 289
24,864 238,247 57,005
40,000 165,000 43,000
3,640 137,095 11,016
- 48,004 -
43,640 350,099 54,016
(18,776) (111,852) 2,989
- 200,000 -
- 1,970,000 -
- 4,356 -
- 2,174,356 -
(18,776) 2,062,504 2,989
73,719 1,331,483 11,858
$ 54,943 $ 3,353,987 $ 14,847




315 316

2009A G.O, 2009B G.O.
Refunding Improvement
Bond Bond Total

- $ 51,000 8 327,716

78,975 - 78,975
- 58,216 81,754
- 514 20,376
78,975 109,730 508,821
65,000 - 313,000
13,975 11,094 176,820
- - 48,004
78,975 11,094 537,824
- 98,636 (29,003)
- 37,848 237,848
- - 1,970,000
- ; 4,356
- 37,848 2,212,204
- 136,484 2,183,201
- 4,989 1,422,049

- $ 141,473 $ 3,605,250
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
AGENCY FUND
COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010

Escrow
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Yellow Ribbon
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments (deficits)

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Total
ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

Balance Balance
January 1 Additions Deductions December 31
$ 325,694 $ 110,460 $  (120,632) _§ 315,522
$ 20,455 $ 110,711 $ (1174160 $ 13,750
305,239 96,400 (99,867) 301,772
$ 325,694 $ 207,111 $  (217283) 8 315,522
8 - $ 545 $ (673) % {128)
$ - $ 1,205 $ (1,333) _§ (128)
$ 325,694 $ 111,005 $ (121,305 § 315,394
$ 20,455 $ 111,916 $ (118,749 % 13,622
305,239 96,400 (99,867) 301,772
$ 325,694 $ 208,316 $ (218616) 8 315,394
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(UNAUDITED)

CITY OF LAKE ELMO
LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA
SUMMARY FINANCIAL REPORT
REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR GENERAL OPERATIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2010 AND 2009

Percent
Total Increase
2010 2009 {Decrease)
REVENUES
Taxes $ 2,737,225 § 2,685,894 1.91 %
Licenses and permits 261,450 225,166 16.11
Intergovernmental 239,244 288,881 (17.18)
Charges for services 22,416 11,433 96.06
Fines and forfeits 68,897 54,052 2746
Special assessments 134,257 73,013 83.88
Investment earnings 113,033 160,679 (29.65)
Miscellaneous 84,860 61,533 3791
TOTAL REVENUES $  3.661,382 $ 3,560,651 2.83 %
Per Capita $ 440 $ 424 3.61 %
EXPENDITURES
Current
General government $ 921,590 § 929,960 (0.90) %
Public safety 1,064,176 988,082 7.70
Public works 473,293 459,703 2.96
Culture and recreation 168,971 180,965 (6.63)
Capital outlay
General government 50,178 49,132 213
Public safety 41,217 57,262 (28.02)
Public works 1,035,628 808,098 28.16
Culture and recreation 76,286 83,539 (8.68)
Debt service
Principal 313,000 361,000 (13.30)
Bond issuance costs 74,580 45,056 65.53
Interest and other charges . 216,820 229,175 (5.39)
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 3 4435739 § 4,191,972 582 %
Per Capita $ 333 % 500 6.62 %
Total Long-term Indebtedness $ 7,310,000 $ 4,943,000 47.89 %
Per Capita 878 589 49.01
General Fund Balance - December 31 $ 2,686,161 $ 2,435,810 10.28 %
Per Capita 323 290 i1.11

The purpose of this repott is to provide a summary of financial information concerning the City of Lake Elmo to interested
citizens. The complete financial statements may be examined at City Hall, 3800 Laverne Avenue North. Questions
about this report should be directed to the City Finance Director at (651) 777-5510.
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OTHER REQUIRED REPORTS

CITY OF LAKE ELMO
LAKE ELMO, MINNESOTA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2010
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IERSur

Certified Public Accountants & Consultents

5201 Eden Avenue
Suite 250
Felina, MN 53436

REPORT ON MINNESOTA LEGAL COMPLIANCE

Honorable Mayor and Council
City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota (the City), as of and for the year ended

December 31, 2010, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents, and have issued
our report thereon dated Tune 7, 2011.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Ametica and the
provisions of the Minnesota Legal Compliance Audii Guide for Local Government, promulgated by the Minnesota Office of the
State Auditor pursuant to Minnesota statute 6.65. Accordingly, the audit included such {ests of the accounting records and such
other auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

The Minnasota Legal Compliance Audit Guide for Local Governmeni covers seven main categories of compliance to be tested:
cantracting and bidding, deposits and investments, conflicts of interest, public indebtedness, claims and disbursements, tax
increment financing, and miscellaneous provisions. Our study included all of the listed categories except that we did not test for
compliance in tax increment financing because the City has not established a tax increment financing district.

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the City complied with the material terms and conditions of applicable
legal provisions.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Council, management and the Minnesota Office of the State
Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Oy b Waguo LU

June 7, 2011 ABDO, FICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Certifled Public Accountanis
052.835.9090 + Fax 952,835.3261 o111
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Certified Pubite Accountanis & Consullants June 7,201 1

5201 Bden Avenue
Suile 250
icdina, MN 55436

Management, Honorable Mayor and Council
City of ILake Elmo, Minnesota

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Elmo, Minnesota (the City), for the year ended Decemnber 31, 2010.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing
standards, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing on our audit, We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated December 29, 2010, Profossional standards also require that we commumicate to you the
following information related to our audit.

CGur Responsibility under Auditing Standards Generally Accepted in the United States of America

As stated in our engagement letter, our responsibility, as described by professional standards, is to express opinions about whether
the financial statements prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material respects, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of the financial statements does not
relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

Our responsibility is to plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. As part of our audit, we considered the internal control over financial reporting of the City. Such
considerations were solely for the purpose of determining our audit procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such
internal control over financial reporting. We are responsible for communicating significant maiters related to the andit that are, in
our professional judgment, relevant to your responsibilities in overseeing the financial reporting process. However, we are not
required to design procedures specifically to identify such matters,

Significant Audit Findings

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financiat reporting that might be significant deficiencies or
material weakmesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all such deficiencies have been identified. We did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
managemment or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or combination of deficiencies in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected
and corrected on a timely basis.

O52.835.9090 * fhx 952.835.8261
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City of Lake Elmo
June 7,2011
Page 2

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we
performed tests of compliance with certain provisions of Minnesota statutes. However, the objective of our tests was not to
provide an opinion on compliance with such provisions. We noted no instances of noncompliance with Minnesota statutes.

Summary of Prior Year Findings
2010-1 Limited Segregation of Duties Over Utility Billing

Condition: During our audit we reviewed procedures over transaction cycles related to utility bilting and
found the City to have limited segregation of duties related to those procedures.

Criteria: There are four general categories of duties: authorization, custody, record keeping, and
reconciliation. In an ideal system, different employees perform each of these four major
functions. In other words, no one person has control of two or more of these responsibilities,

Cause: The City has hired an outside company to perform utility billing and the finance department
reviews the utility billing registers. The finding is no longer considered a significant
deficiency.

Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit
We performed the audit according to the plarmmed scope and timing previously communicated to you.
Qualitative Aspects of Aecounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant accounting policies used
by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of
existing policies was not changed during the year. We noted no transactions entered into by the City during the year for which

———there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant {ransactions have been recognized in the financial statements
in the proper period. )

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on management’s
knowledge and experience about past and current cvents and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are
particulatly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events
alfecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were
capital asset basis, depreciation, other postemployment benefits payable and the allocation of payroll expenses,

Management’s estimate of depreciation is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets. For some infrastructure assets, the
basis was estimated by deflating current values of similar assets to the year of acquisition. Other postemployment benefits payable
and the actuarial accrued liability were determined by the alternative measurement method allowed for plans with less than 100
memibers. Allocations of gross wages and payroll benefits are approved by Council within the City’s budget and are derived from
each employee’s estimated time to be spent servicing the respective functions of the City, We ovaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop these accounting estimates in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements
taken as a whole.

The disclosures in the financial statements are neutral, consistent, and clear, Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly
sensitive because of their significance to financial statement users.

952.835.9090 « Fax 952.836.3201
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City of Lake Elmo
June 7,2011
Page 3

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.
Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those
that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all such misstatements.
In addition, none of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either
individually or in the aggregate, o the financial statements taken as a whole,

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s
report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested cortain representations from management that are included in the management representation letter dated
June 7, 2011,

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and acconnting matters, similar to
obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an accounting principle to the City’s
financial statements or a determination of the type of anditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional
standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants,

Other Audit Findings or Issues
We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards, with

management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions occurred in the normal course of our
professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our retention.

0528359000 * Fax 052.835.22G1
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City of Lake Elmo
June 7,2011
Page 4

Financial Position and Results of Operations

Our principal observations and recommendations are summarized below. These recommendations resulted from our observations
made in connection with our audit of the City’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2010.

General Fund

The General fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government, which are not required legally or
by sound principal management to be accounted for in another fund. The General fund balance increased $250,351 from 2009,
The fund balance of $2,686,161 is 92 percent of the 2011 budgeted expenditures. We recommend the fund balance be
maintained at a level sufficient to fund operations until the major revenue sources are received in June. We feel a reserve of
approximately 50 percent of planned expenditures and transfers out is adequate to meet working capital and small emergency
needs.

Minnesota cities must maintain substantial amounts of fund balance in order to meet their liquidity and working capital needs
as an operating entity. That is because a substantial portion of revenue sources (taxes and intergovernmental revenues) are
received in the last two months of each six-month cycle. Considering the general fund has advanced monies to other funds, the
unreserved fund balance of $1,617,211 is 1 better measure of funds available to meet the needs of the City, This amount is 55
percent of the 2011 budgeted expenditures.

The Office of the State Auditor (the OSA) has issued a Statement of Position relating to fund balance stating “a local
government should identify find balance separately between reserved and unreserved fund balance. The local government may
assign and report some or all of the fund balance as designated and undesignated.” The Office OSA also recommends local
governments adopt a formal policy on the level of unreserved fund balance that should be maintained in the general and special
revenue funds. This helps address citizen concerns ag to the use of fund balance and tax levels.

The purposes and benefits of a strong fund balance are as follows:

»  Expenditures are incurred somewhat evenly throughout the year, However, property tax and state aid revenues are not
received until the second half of the year. An adequate fund balance will provide the cash flow required to finance the
General fund expenditures until these revenue sowrces are received.

o The City is vulnerable to legislative actions at the State and Federal level. The State continually adjusts the local
government aid and property tax credit formulas. An adequate fund balance will provide a temporary buffer against
those aid adjustments and levy limits,

*  Hxpenditures not anticipated at the time the annmal budget was adopted may need immediate Council action. These
would include capital outlay, replacement, lawsuits and other items, An adequate fund balance will provide the
financing needed for such expenditures.

e A strong fund balance will assist the City in maintaining, improving or obtaining its bond rating. The result will be
better interest rates in future bond sales,

052.835.9000 = Tax 952.835.3261
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City of Lake Elmo

June 7,2011
Page 5
A table summarizing the general fund balance in relation to budget expenditures and transfers out follows:
Percent of Percent of
Total Unreserved General Total Fund Unreserved
TFund Balance Fund Balance Budget Fund Balance to Fund Balance
Year December 31 December 31 Year Budget Budget to Budget
2006 $ 2,272,328 § 1,768,505 2007 $ 3,551,355 64 % 50 %
2007 2,254,950 1,251,127 2008 2,932,718 T 43
2008 2,410,841 1,395,088 2009 3,241,795 74 43
2009 2,435,810 1,403,240 2010 2,849,011 85 49
2010 2,686,161 1,617,211 2011 2,919,223 92 55
Fund Balance as a Percent of Next Year's Budget
$4,000,000
3.551.355
$3,500,000 A §32441,793
S
“\%{\?_\'2.“?_ 718 o g e $2 $9.919223
$3,000,000 S e
. Dp— 7
92%
74%
5%
64% 77% i
$2,000,000 7
43% 0
43% 49%
$1,500,000 .\ ﬂ__..-/-
50% \.__f —i
$1,000,000 T . . .
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
==$==Total Fund Balance ====Unreserved Fund Balance ==fe=PBudget —|

We have compiled a peer group average derived from information available on the website of the Office of the State Auditor
for cities of the 4™ class which have populations from 2,500 to 10,000. In 2009, the average General fund balance as a
percentage of expenditures was 63 percent. Based on comparison to the peer groups, the City’s General fund balance is higher

than average.
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A summary of the 2010 operations is as follows:
Final Variance with
Budget Actual Final Budget
Revenues $ 2,849,011 $ 2,991,809 $ 142,798
Expenditures 2,730,161 2,614,608 115,553
Excess of revenues over expenditures 118,850 377,201 258,351
Other financing uses
Transfers out (118,850) {126,850) (8,000}
Net change in fund balance - 250,351 250,351 .
Fund balances, January 1 2,435,810 2,435,810 -
Fund balances, December 31 § 2435810 $ 2,686,161 $ 250,351

The City did not amend the General fund budget during the vear. Actual operations of the fund provided an increase of
$250,351. Revenues were over budget and expenditures were under budget.

¢ Revenues were $142,798 over budget during 2010, The main factor of this positive variance relates to licenses and
permits which were $103,690 over budget. The number of homes purchased as well as the amount of remodel-type
projects was more than anticipated during the year. Other revenue variances occurred with taxes and fines and forfeit
revenuss which were over budget by $16,656 and $16,897, respectively.

o Expenditures were $115,553 under budget during 2010. All functions had expenditures that were less than budgeted.
The major reason for the expenditures being under budget was that the City budgeted for personnel expenditures that
were not incurred. Overall, the City was under budget by approximately $120,000 relating to personnel expenses in the
General fund,

952.835.9090 * Fax 952.835.5261
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A more detailed comparison of General fund revenue with the prior years is as follows:
Percent of Per
Source 2008 2009 2010 Total Capita

Taxes $§ 2,146,818 $ 2,309,821 $ 2,409,509 80.6 % $ 289
Licenses and permits 242,074 225,166 261,450 8.7 31
Intergovernmental 179,888 165,708 155,293 52 19
Charges for services 15,623 11,433 11,616 0.4 1
Fines and forfeitures 60,919 54,052 68,897 23 8
Investment earnings 78,028 72,715 59,711 2.0 7
Miscellaneous 28,365 50,327 25,333 0.8 3
Total revenues $ 2,751,715 $ 2,889,222 $ 2,991,809 100.0 % $ 358

The revenues summarized above are presented graphically as follows:
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A more detailed comparison of expenditures with the prior years is as follows:
Peer Group
Percent of Per Per
Program 2008 2009 2010 Total Capita Capita
General government $ 1,057,492 $ 929,960 § 921,590 336 % § 111 $ 129
Public safety 933,380 988,082 1,064,176 38.8 128 206
Public works 435,277 430,832 473,293 17.3 57 113
Culture and recreation 141,520 165,644 155,549 5.7 19 50
Capital outlay 19,655 - - - - 22
Transfers out 8,500 349,735 126,850 4.6 15 -
Total expenditures

and transfers $ 2,595,824 $ 2,864,253 $ 2,741,458 100.0 % _§ 330 $ 520

The above chart compares the amount the City spends per capita, in comparison to a peer group. We have compiled peer
group average fund balance information from approximately 120 fourth class cities (populations of 2,500 to 10,000). The
peer group average is derived from information available on the website of the Office of the State Auditor.

The expenditures and transfers summarized above are presented graphically as follows:
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Debt Service Funds

Debt service funds are a type of governmental fund to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of interest
and principal on debt (other than enterprise find debt).

Debt service funds may have one or a combination of the following revenue sources pledged to retire debt as follows:

s Property taxes - Primarily for general City benefit projects such as parks and municipal buildings. Property taxes
may also be used to fund special assessment bonds which are not fully assessed.

« Capitalized interest portion of bond proceeds - After the sale of bonds, the project may not produce revenue (tax
increments or special assessments) for a period of one to two years, Bonds are issued with this timing difference
considered in the form of capitalized interest.

o Special assessments - Charges to benefited properties for various improvements.

In addition to the above pledged assets, other funding sources may be received by Debt Service funds as follows:

»  Residual project proceods from the related capital projecis fund
o Investment earnings
e  State or federal grants
o  Transfers from other funds
December 31, 2010 Final
Total Total Bonds Maturity
Debt Description Cash Assets Outstanding Date
312 2002 G.O. Improvement Bond $ 58,429 § 79,671 $ 40,000 2012
313 2004 G.O. CIP Bond 3,391,204 3,393,987 3,375,000 2013
314 2006 G.0. Equipment Ceriificates of Indebtness 14,847 14,847 240,000 2015
315 2009A G.0. Refunding Bond - 460,000 400,000 2016
316 2009B G.O. Improvement Bond 141,745 214,495 575,000 2020
N/A 2010A G.O. Improvement Bond - - 710,000 2025
N/A 2010B G.O. CIP Crossover Refuding Bond - - 1,970,000 2025
Total All Debt Service Funds $ 3,606,225 $ 4,103,000 $  7.310,000

The 2004 G.O. CIP Bond has been refunded by the 2010B G.O. Crossover Refunding Bond. The cash with fiscal agent
balance is primarily set aside for the future principal payment of $2,845,000 in 2013.

952.835.9090 * Fax 952.835.3201
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Special revenue funds are used to account for revenue derived from specific taxes or other earmarked revenue sources, They
are usually required by Minnesota statute or local ordinance to finance particular functions or activities of government, A

summary of fund balances follows:

Fund Balances
December 31, Increase
Fund 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Nonmajor
Development $ 15,973 $ 43,836 $ (27,863)
Fall Festival 11,351 6,600 4,742
Total b 27,324 b 50,445 $ {23,121)

The decrease in the Development fund was mostly due to public works capital outlay expenditures. The Fall Festival fund

remained stable during 2010.

Capital Projects ¥unds

These funds accumulate resources to finance major capital acquisition and construction projects, A recap of each fund and

fund balances (deficits) follows:

Fund Balances (Deficits)

December 31, Increase
Fund 2010 2009 (Decrease)
Major
Village Project 5 (1,146241) $ (1,016,403) §  (129,838)
2010 Street Improvements 39,669 (159,037) 58,706
Nonmajor
Park Dedication 949,345 993,669 (44,324)
Infrastructure Reserve 44,145 235,468 (191,323)
Vehicle Acquisition 363,012 280,231 82,781
City Facilities 276,501 518,614 (242,113)
Manning Avenue/Highway 36 (7,701) (8,8006) 1,103
2009 Street Improvements - 34,960 {34,960)
Tablyn Park Entrance - 8,518 (8,518)
2011 Street Improvements (41,948) - (41,948)
Total $ 476,782  $ 1027214  §  (550,432)

As projects are completed the City should transfer the remaining resources to the original funding source or to a permanent
reserve fund. As mentioned above, all funds should maintain a balance sufficient to provide for project costs. A deficit

indicates a shortfall and Council should monitor the original financing plans.

052.835.9000 + Vax 952.835.3261
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Enterprise Funds
The Water Utility, Sewer Utility and Storm Sewer Utilities make up this fund type.
Water Utility Fund
A three year comparison for the Water Utilities fund follows:
2008 2009 2010
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent
Operating revenues $ 441,543 100.0 % $ 437,255 100.0 % $§ 517,359 100.0 %
Operating expenses 640,515 145.1 641,293 146.7 699,745 1353
Operating loss (198,972) (45.1) (204,038) (46.7) (182,386) (35.3)
Nonoperating expenses (112,887) (25.6) (70,465) (16.1) (64,768) (12.5)
Transfers in - - - - 50,000 9.7
Capital contributions 669,031 151.5 411,553 94.1 187,401 36.2
Change innetassets ~ _$ 357,172 80.8 % _§ 137,050 313 % 8 (9.753) (1.9) %
Cash and temporary
investments $ 562,825 $ 533,346 $ 565407
Bonds payable $ 4,730,000 $ 4,715,000 $ 4,680,000
Water Utility Fund
$5,000,000
$4,000,000
$3,000,000
$2,000,000
$1,000,000
o | el |
2008 2009 2010
[ W Operating revenues B Operating expenses 1 Cash and temporary investments ® Bonds payable

Net assets of the Water fund remained relatively stable when compared to the prior year; however, developer contributions
and asset contributions from other funds have been decreasing. The fund incurred an operating loss for the sixth consecutive
year. Cash increased approximately $30,000 due to cash provided by operations and interfund activity. Annual cash payments

for debt service are above $225,000. We recommend that an annual rate study be completed to determine the adequacy of
rates related to costs of the fund.

952.835.9090 * Fax 932.835.3261

www.aemepas.com



City of Lake Elmo

June 7, 2011
Page 12
Sewer Utility Fund
A three year comparison for the Sewer Utility fund follows:
2008 2009 2010
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent
Operating revenues $ 44,568 100.0 % $ 45,146 100.0 % $ 48,508 100.0 %
Operating expenses 63,400 142.3 59,243 131.2 61,513 126.8
Operating loss (18,832) (42.3) (14,097) (31.2) (13,005) (26.8)
Nonoperating revenues 2,636 5.9 3,083 6.8 3,032 6.3
Change in net assets (16,196) (36.4) % (11,014) (24.4) % (9,973) (20.5) %
Cash and temporary
investments $ 71,750 $ 47,474 $ 29,226
Sewer Utility Fund
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$60,000
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000
-

2008 2009

2010

L B Operating revenues B Operating expenses ~ © Nonoperating revenues

B Cash and temporary investments

The Sewer fund showed an operating loss for the fourth consecutive year and a decrease in cash and temporary investments
for the third consecutive year. The City needs to ensure their current rate structure is sufficient to cover operations of the fund.
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Storm Sewer Utility
A three year comparison for the Storm Sewer Utility fund follows:
2008 2009 2010
Total Percent Total Percent Total Percent
Operating revenues § 134,674 100.0 % § 149347 100.0 % § 185425 100.0 %
Operating expenses 123,902 92.0 140,365 94.0 151,384 81.6
Operating income 10,772 8.0 8,982 6.0 34,041 18.4
Nonoperating revenues
(expenses) (3,426) (2.5) (3,188) (2.1) 32,638 17.6
Transfers in - - 100,000 67.0 - -
Capital contributions 85,900 63.8 336,624 225.4 158,546 85.5
Change in net assets $ 93,246 69.3 % $ 442418 296.3 % § 225225 1215 %
Cash and temporary
investments (deficits) § (140,520) $ - $ -
Due to other funds $ - $ 80,154 3 56,226
Storm Sewer Utility Fund
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Operating income increased as a result of revenues increasing at a higher rate than operating expenses, but the change in net
assets was lower than the prior year due to less capital contributions. Although the fund is showing operating income, the fund
has no cash balance. This improvement from a deficit cash balance in 2008 is a result of an interfund loan from the Water
fund. The City needs to review operations of the fund to ensure the future of the fund is positive.
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Ratio Analysis

The following captures a few ratios from the City’s financial statements that give some additional information for trend and peer
group analysis. The peer group average is derived from information available on the website of the Office of the State Auditor for
City’s of the fourth class, which have populations from 2,500 — 10,000. The majority of these ratios facilitate the use of economic
resources focus and accrual basis of accounting at the government-wide level. A combination of solvency (ability to pay its long-
term obligations), funding (comparison of financial amounts and economic indicators to measure changes in financial capacity
over time) and common-size (comparison of financial data with other cities regardless of size) ratios are shown below.

Ratio Calculation Source 2007 2008 2009 2010

Debt to assets Total liabilities/total assets Government-wide 37.8% 34.2% 33.3% 37.3%
36.2% 33.5% 33.5% N/A

Debt service coverage Net cash provided by operations/  Enterprise funds 25.5% 38.1% 75.0% 57.2%
enterprise find debt payments 180.9% 163.3% 261.3% N/A

Debt per capita Bonded debt/population Govermment-wide § 1275 $ 1,155 $ 1,151 S 1,440
$ 2,673 8 2,677 $ 2713 N/A

Taxes per capita Tax revenues/population Government-wide S 262 § 310 § 320 § 321
5 382 5 401 8 399 N/A

Current expenditures per capita Governmental fund current Governmental funds § 331 b 316 S 305 $ 316
expenditures / population $ 553 3 663 $ 625 N/A

Capital expenditures per capita Governmental fund capital Governmental funds s 297 § 109 S 119 S 145
expenditures / population 3 409 b 323 § 310 NA

Capital assets % left to Net capital assets/ Government-wide 84.2% 83.2% 81.8% 79.9%
depreciate - Governmental gross capital assets 70.4% 70.0% 68.3% N/A

Capital assets % left to Net capital assets/ Government-wide 90.8% 89.0% 87.1% 84.9%
depreciate - Business-type gross capital assets 68.3% 66.6% 67.3% NA

Represents the City of Lake Elmo
Peer Group ratio

Debt-to-Assets Leverage Ratio (Solvency Ratio)

The debt-to-assets leverage ratio is a comparison of a city’s total liabilities to its total assets or the percentage of total assets that
are provided by creditors. It indicates the degree to which the City’s assets are financed through borrowings and other long-term
obligations (i.e. a ratio of 50 percent would indicate half of the assets are financed with outstanding debt).

Debt Service Coverage Ratio (Solvency Ratio)

The debt coverage ratio is a comparison of cash generated by operations to total debt service payments (principal and interest) of
enterprise funds. This ratio indicates if there are sufficient cash flows from operations to meet debt service obligations. Except in
cases where other nonoperating revenues (i.e. taxes, assessments, transfers from other funds, etc.) are used to fund debt service
payments, an acceptable ratio would be above 100 percent.
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Bonded Debt per Capita (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total bonded debt by the population of the city and represents the amount of
bonded debt obligation for each citizen of the city at the end of the year. The higher the amount, the more resources are needed in
the future to retire these obligations through taxes, assessments or user fees.

Taxes per Capita (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total tax revenues by the population of the city and represents the amount of taxes
for each citizen of the city for the year. The higher this amount is, the more reliant the city is on taxes to fund its operations.

Current Expenditures per Capita (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total current governmental expenditures by the population of the City and
represents the amount of governmental expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since this is generally based on
ongoing expenditures, we would expect consistent annual per capita results.

Capital Expenditures per Capita (Funding Ratio)

This dollar amount is arrived at by dividing the total governmental capital outlay expenditures by the population of the City and
represents the amount of capital expenditure for each citizen of the City during the year. Since projects are not always recurring,
the per capita amount will fluctuate from year to year.

Capital Assets Percentage (Common-size Ratio)

This percentage represents the percent of governmental or business-type capital assets that are left to be depreciated. The lower
this percentage, the older the city’s capital assets are and may need major repairs or replacements in the near future. A higher
percentage may indicate newer assets being constructed or purchased and may coincide with higher debt ratios or bonded debt per
capita.
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Utility Billing Adjustments

Condition:

Criteria:

Cause:

Effect:

Recommendation:

Management Response:

952.835.0090 » Fax 932.835.3261
W, BEICas.con

During analysis of revenues, we noted approximately $79,000 of adjustments recorded to the
City’s utility billing system in 2010, including one adjustment of nearly $41,000 1o a single
commercial utility customer who had been inadvertently over-billed for usage and then billed
penalties for late payment. Roughly $13,000 was from delinquent bills certified to the County for
collection, and approximately $21,000 was identified as necessary adjustments to correct other
mechanical errors (ex. meter malfunction, software error from calculating usage, correction of
estimated usage, etc.). There does not appear to be a clear written policy or procedure regarding
how these adjustments are caleulated or approved.

Internal controls should include standardized procedures on how adjustments are made as well as a
process to catch these errors prior to the bills being sent.

Lack of defined monitoring process.

As evident in the amount of adjustments made in 2010, the City is exposed to the risk of billing
error. Also, significant time has been spent by staff to identify and correct these errors.

We recommend a documented procedures policy be adopted to ensure proper monitoring is in
place, This has become more important as the City’s utility function continues to grow and evolve.
A few procedure to consider would be 1) setting a dollar limit of adjustments needing prior
approval from the Finance Director, City Administrator, or even Council prior to being entered
into the system, 2) having either the Finance Director or City administrator approve a monthly
report of billing adjustments, and 3) review billing register summariss for reasonableness
compared to previous register summaries prior to mailing the billing statements.

Management acknowledges that utility billing errors occur and are corrected via billing
adjustments. Staff will work on internal controls to prevent these types of errors before they occur
in the future and proper policies are documented and followed. Management will also review the
above recommendations taking into consideration costs versus benefits.
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Future Accounting Standard Changes

The following Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statements have been issued and may have an impact on
futwre City financial statements:

GASB Statement No. 54 - Fund Balunce
This statement was issued in March of 2009 and is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010.

This new standard is intended to improve the usefulness of information provided to financial report users about fund balance
by providing clearer, more structured fund balance classifications, and clarifying the definitions of existing governmental fund

types.

GASB No. 54 distingnishes fimd balance between amounts that are considered non-spendable, such as fund balance
associated with inventories, and other amounts that are classified based on the relative strength of the constraints that confrol
the purposes for which specific amounts can be spent.

The following classifications and definitions will be used:

®  Restricted - amounts constrained by external parties, constitutional provision, or enabling legislation
Committed - amounts constrained by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority
Assigned - amounts a government infends to use for a particular purpose

Unassigned - amounts that are not constrained at all will be reported in the general fund.

In addition to the classifications of fund balance, the standard clarified the definitions of individual governmental fund types,
for example, special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital project funds.

GASB Statement No. 59 — Financial Instruments Omnibus
Summary

"The objective of this Statement is to update and improve existing standards regarding financial reporting and disclosure
requirements of certain financial instruments and external investment pools for which significant issues have been identified
in practice, This Statement provides for the following amendments:

e Statement 31 is clarified to indicate that a 2a7-like pool, as described in Statement 31, is an external investment pool
that operates in conformity with the Securities and Exchange Commission's (SEC) Rule 2a7 as promulgated under
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

e Statement No. 40, Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosures, is amended to indicate that interest rate risk information
should be disclosed only for debt investment pools—such as bond mutual funds and external bond investment
pools—that do not meet the requirements to be reported as a 2a7-like pool.

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning after June 15, 2010, Earlier
application is encouraged.
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How the Changes in This Statement Wil Improve Financial Reporting

The requirements of this Statement will improve financial reporting by providing more complete information, by improving
consistency of measurements, and by providing clarifications of existing standards. Emphasizing the applicability of SEC
requirements to 2a7-like external investment pools provides practitioners with improved guidance. Finally, limiting interest
rate risk disclosures for investments in mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments to debt
investment pools provides better guidance regarding the applicability of interest rate risk disclosures.

L N ]

This report is intended solely for the information and use of City Council, management, and the Minnesota Office of the State
Auditor and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Our audit would not necessarily disclose all weaknesses in the system because it was based on selected tests of the accounting
records and related data. The comments and recommendations in the report are purely constructive in naiure, and should be read
in this context,

If you have any questions or wish to discuss any of the items contained in this letter, please feel free to contact us at your
convenience. We wish to thank you for the opportunity to be of service and for the courtesy and cooperation extended to vs by

your staff,

(ks Euthe 7 Mo, LU
June 7, 2011 ABDO, EICK & MEYERS, LLP
Minneapolis, Minnesota Ceriified Public Accountants
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM: 13
PUBLIC HEARING

RESOLUTION 2011027
AGENDAITEM:  Appeal Hearing on Denial of a Fence Permit Application for a Proposed 6
Foot High Solid Fence in the Side Yard of the Property at 12418 Marquess
Way North. -
SUBMITTED BY: Kelli Matzek, City Planner

THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administraton%xx\’\)\

REVIEWED BY:  Dave Snyder, City Attorney
Kyle Klatt, Planning Director

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The Board of Appeals is respectfully requested to
determine whether Staff’s interpretation of the City Code related to the applicant’s proposed
fence construction at 12418 Marquess Way North, is in conformance with the existing
regulations, as written. The property owner, Mr. Konop, has requested to build a solid 6 foot
high fence around the perimeter of his rear yard.

The applicants ask that the Board of Appeals consider Staff’s interpretation of Section 154.120
Fence Height and Location and Section 154.125 Fences as Screening and Security, As Reguired,

The recommended motion to act on this is as follows:

“Move to approve Resolution 2011-027 confirming staff’s denial of a fence permit to allow a
solid, six foot high fence along the side property lines adjacent to other residential properties
at 12418 Marquess Way North.”

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: On June 7%, 2011, the City Council approved, by a vote
of 4 to 1, to approve amendments to the Fence Ordinance. One applicable change to the
ordinance added the following language:

Section 154.120 (C) 2. “When the rear property line of a through lot abuts a
ublic street classified as either a principal arterial, A minor arterial. or B minor
arterial in the City’s Transportation Plan, a fence parallel to that property line may
be constructed up to 72 inches in height, but is not required to be open to light and

-~ page [ -
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air. A corner lot must continue to meet safety requirements of 96.03 (B) 19
regarding the obstruction of view of traffic.”

This alteration in code allows a specific exemption to the requirement that fences in rear yards
could be built up to 72 inches in height (6 feet), but that any portion of such fence above 42
inches measured from grade shall be open to light and air over 75 percent of the surface area.

(Existing language, not changed at the June 7t meeting)

Section 154.120 (B) Fence height in interior yards.

“No fence shall be constructed exceeding 72 inches in height measured from
grade in interior yards; and, any portion of such fence above 42 inches measured
from grade shall be open to light and air over 75% of the surface area.”

AND

(Existing language, with minor changes at the June 7™ meeting): - -
Section 154.120 (C) 1. Lots with frontage along improved public streets at both
the rear yard and the front yard (through lots) may apply the standards of division
(B) above for fences paralleling the rear yard.

Another section of code regulates when solid fences are allowed for screening purposes as
required by code, Examples of such are when residential lots share a common property line with
commercial uses or when equipment and outside items such as boats must be screened.

(Existing language, not changed at June 7t meeting):
Section 154.125 Fences as Screening and Security, as Required

“A)  Generally. The Lake Elmo City Code and this chapter include prescribed
physical circumstances of a site where screening of uses, equipment, and outside storage
is required. In those prescribed circumstances, fence not fo exceed 72 inches in height
measured from grade may be installed, subject to the following standards:

(1) Required fences for screening and security purposes in Agricultural and
Residential zoning districts shall be set back from all property lines equal to the required
structure set back of the zoning district in which they are located, except where
residential zoned lots share a common property line with commercial uses, or
commercial zoning districts and only on the common property line between the
residential and commercial parcels.”

This last section of code does not apply to Mr. Konop’s property with regards to the side
property lines adjacent to other residential property. IF it did apply, the fence would not be
allowed to be constructed along the property line as requested, but would need to be 10 feet off
the property line (the applicable structure setback).

-- page 2 --
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STAFF REPORT: The Board of Adjustment and Appeals is asked to examine the finding of
noncompliance with the existing code which resulted in denial of the fence permit.
Determination that staff erred in interpreting the code, and that the fence permit should be issued
for 12418 Marquess Way N without a variance, must be substantiated by findings of fact. When
conducting this review, the Board is asked to keep the following in mind:

1. This is not a policy decision by the Board of Adjustment and Appeal; it is a determination
as to whether the City Code has been properly interproted as written with regards to fence
heights allowed in specific yard types.

2. The Board of Appeals cannot find the proposed fence is conforming to code based on
what may or may not be present on other property within the City. The proposed fence
either conforms to code as written or it does not.

3. This is not a policy decision about the clarity or appropriateness of zoning code sections
related to the proposed fence. The Board of Appeals and Adjustments is not a policy
making body. Such a finding must have no bearing on the determination as to whether
the structure is conforming or nonconforming with current codes as written. Please note
that the Board may recommend that the City Council direct staff to make changes to the
ordinance to address any identified concerns or the Planning Commission to further
review the ordinance,

Mr. Konop has requested to build a solid 6 foot high fence around the perimeter of his rear yard,
Staff has read and interpreted the City Code to not allow his request and therefore, denied his
fence permit application for the following reasons:

1. A solid fence constructed in the interior side yard, adjacent to other residential properties
would be allowed to be constructed up to 72 inches in height and any portion of such
fence above 42 inches measured from grade shall be open to light and air over 75 percent
of the surface area. Referencing Section 154.120 B,

2. The fence proposed along the rear property line (adjacent to State Highway 5) would be
permitied by City Code up to 72 inches in height as a solid wall. State Highway 5 is
considered an A Minor Arterial by code and would therefore be considered for this
cxception. This portion of the fence would be permitted. Referencing Section 154.120
(C) 2.

3. The fence proposed along the property line adjacent to the property used for commercial
purposes could be constructed up to 72 inches in height as a solid wall.

In addition, it should be noted, that if Mr, Konop would proceed with applying for a fence (of
any size) to be constructed within a City easement, an Basement Encroachment Apgreement
would be required to be signed by the applicant and approved by the City Council prior to
construction of the fence.

Should the City Council agree with staff that the ordinance does not permit the fence Mr. Konop
is proposing, an alternate option would be for Mr. Konop to apply for a variance, A variance
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allows an exception to the rules in unique circumstances whereas an appeal states that staff is
interpreting the city code incorrectly.

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council confirm Staff’s interpretation that the proposed fence would
not be allowed to be constructed up to 72 inches in height around the rear yard of Mr. Konop’s
property at 12418 Marquess Way N by undertaking the following action:

“Move to approve Resolution 2011-027 confirming staff’s denial of a fence permit to allow a
solid, six foot high fence along the side property lines adjacent to other residential properties
at 12418 Marquess Way North.”

Should the Board of Appeals agree with Staff’s finding, the applicants are still able to apply for a

variance to allow the proposed fence.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Applicants’ Submittals

2. Copy of Letter from Planning Director Klatt Denying Permit; 6-20-11
3. Applicable Sections of Code
4, Resolution 2011-027

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction of Jtem ......c.ccovvvrmrermernarernnnas rereeerereeeaseeraenaes City Administrator
- Report/Presentation......coueeeeieresiennereconssreesnencssresesnensssanes Planning Department
- Questions from Council to Staff ..o Mayor Facilitates
- Public Hearing as Board of Appeals...........ccceueevenrnnnccnnnen. Mayor Facilitates
- Call for MOtON .ooveieecreecierecivesrer e seee e evaesee e cansaes Mayor & City Council
e DHSCUSSION .eeeevrreeniirerionreaesesvreeaserseeereessseesitbesissssbosbesanss Mayor & City Council
- Action 0n MOtON ... Mayor Facilitates
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~ FENCE PERMW APPL; FION | Date
. Lake Elmo City Hall : Fee
3800 Laverne Ave. No. ‘ Receipt #
Lake Elmo, MN 55042 s
Voice: 651-777-5510 “Fax: 651-777-9615
. Rppos

Applicant(s) Y haa e X RNy T | VALUES |2 b
Property Address 19 L% }ﬁ"( fY\(Mpz; AR 85 \A)(;U&) T ) |
Phone Numbers &S | ""\BD"’Q%?‘—' (") 651 -a95- Ki 7% CC-)

4

Comments = M 5.2&_& S%Q:M&-{«LO LL?{‘AL(“D‘ ) Yo \J?m&“jﬁa mr)"!'m HUJ 5
Ovmer(s) Ry ¥ \&m%\;

Describe
Material wood O] Metal O chainink O Otner &N V
Describe
Purpese| Privacy & Ssecurty ®| Containment @ Other O
. ] ¥ . 'L ’J i’ L i’
Height in Feet| 12} )2 2 72 7, )
Yo C op Funr BT ar ) Side 1l A Bids 3 P v P
Width in Feet, 3.3’ N 15 39 27 i

* A Certificate of Survey by a Licensed Land Surveyor showing parcel boundaries may be required, *

| hereby acknowiedge the folowing:
I have received, réad; end titiderstand the réquiremerits of Lake Eiro Ordinaiics 303 regardmg the
construction and maitifenance of fences. I will build my fence in accordanee with the Grdinance. I will
- build my perwiitied fense enfirely ofi ry prepetty, and the fence will not encroach: oi adjacent Properties.
 Wheii msiallmg ariy part of thils petmitted ferice within a dedicated easefnisnt; Wn!cten perrmssmn of the
graritor of the easetignt i§ taquitted.
By grantmg this dermit, the City is not guaranieeing the accuragy of the survey of . reproseritation of
the apphca.n’ts regarding foéation of 16t boindaries.

- Signatire of @wner(s@ /—-"*‘/

Fences will be inspected ONCE: 1) FINAL Inspection.
Call the Building Dept. at ieast 24 hours in advance of an inspection request, 651-777-5510

To avoid underground ufilities, telephone Gopher State One Call at 454-0002 before vou digl

Signature - / % ﬁ Date é‘/ ‘} / 4 /




Chesterfield Gates

Personalize your fence design with decorative
clements from Bulftech, Designed to coordinate
with our 6 Chesterfield style fence, Bufftech
concave -and convex siyle gales combine
Victorian elegance with a durable design.
Buffiech’s premium gate includes heavy-duty
internal aluminum frame and safety leatures
such as sell-closing hinges and lockable latches.

Coirvex

Cancave

CHESTERFIELD STRAIGHT
(NOT sHOWN), CONCAVE

AND CONVEX GATE
Straight Heights: 4, 5' & 6'
Straight Colors: White, Clay,

Tan & Almond
Concave and Convex Height: &
Concave and Convex Color: White




avgilable in
Smoath finish:

CHESTERFIELD WITH LATTICE' ACCENT

Heights: 4' 8" plus 1' 4" Accent & 3' 8" plus 1' 4" Accent
Celors: White, Tan & Almond
Picket Style: 7/8" x 7' Tongue & Groove

TN T

CHESTERFIELD WITH HUNTINGTON ACCENT
Heights: 4' 8" plus 1' 4" Accent

Colors: White & Tan

Picket Styles: 7/8" x 7" Tongue & Groove and 1-1/2" Square

Swaap destgn with
New England Cap

CHESTERFIELD WITH VICTORIAN ACCENT
Heights: 4' 8" plus 14" Accent

Colors: White & Tan

Picket Style: 7/8" x 7 Tongue & Groove and 7/8" x 1-1/2"

%

CHESTERFIELD WITH ‘WESTMINSTER ACCENT
Helghts: 4' 8" plus 1' 4" Accent

Colors: White

Picket Style: 7/8" x 7" Tongue & Groove

© S Cmrve design
with Gothic Cap

e

ormulation
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Julie Palmer
12432 Marguess Way N
Lake Elmo, MN 55042-4428

July 15, 2011

Kyle Kiatt

Director of Planning and Development
City of Lake Eimo

3800 Laverne Avenue North

Lake Eimo, MN 55042

RE: Konop Fence Permit Application
Dear Mr. Klatt,

Recently our neighbors, Rob & Jodi Konop informed us of their desire to build a
fence in their backyard. They have a young son, Carson who enjoys playing in the
backyard on his jungle gym. They also recently added a puppy to their family. They
explained to us that the desire to build a six foot privacy fence has become a longer
process than anticipated due to changes in the city ordinances and need to appeal the
permit rejection to get a permit to build. Two of the three lots in Carriage Station that
directly abut Highway 5 have existing six foot privacy fences that were built before the
ordinance changed.

In our conversation, they told us the biggest concern they had was for the safety
of their son and new puppy. Although many large pine trees along the back lot line
provide some privacy, a secure six foot fence is needed to ensure the safety of children
and animals in the backyard. They asked us our opinion on the six foot fence to ensure
that we felt it would not be an obstruction or distract from the aesthetically pleasing
view of the neighborhood. As their lot is a walkout, the fence in the backyard would not
be in view from the street or front of the house which is where the neighbors often
gather socially. We also feel that allowing a 6 foot privacy fence in the back along the
road but require them to install a 42 inch privacy fence on the sides would create a
fence that is not appealing. We told Rob & Jodi that we would have no issues with a
complete six foot privacy fence and feel that it would fit in with the already existing
structures along the lots of Carriage Station abutting Highway 5.

We are wiriting this letter in support of Rob & Jodi Konop's request to build a six
foot privacy fence. Please consider our thoughts as you address this issue.

Sincerely,

Julie Palmer



—

Robert and Jodi Konop

12418 Marquess Way N
Lake Elmo, MN 55042-4428

June 23, 2011

Kyle Klatt

Director of Planming and Development
City of Lake Eimo

8800 Laverne Avenue North

Lake Elmo, MN 55042

RE: Konop Fence Permit Application

Dear Mr. Klatt,

Recently our neighbors, Rob & Jodi Kenop informed us of their desire to build a fence in their backyard,
They have a young son, Carson who enjoys playing in the backyard on his jungle gym. They also recently added a
puppy to their family. They explained to us that the desire to build a six foot privacy fence has become a longer
process than anticipated due to changes in the city ordinances and need to appeal the permit rejection to get a permit
to build, Two of the three lots in Carriage Station that directly abut Highway 5 have existing six foot privacy fences
that were built before the ordinance changed.

In our conversation, they told us the biggest concern they had was for the safety of their son and new puppy.
Although many large pine trees along the back lot line provide some privacy, 4 secure sty foot fence is needed to
ensure the safety of children and animals in the backyard. They asked us our opinion on the six foot fence to ensure
that we felt it would not be an obstruction or distract from the aesthetically pleasing view of the neighborhood. As
their lot is a walkout, the fence in the backyard would not be in view from the street or front of the house which is
where the neighbors often gather socially. We also feel that allowing a 6 foot privacy fence in the back along the
road but require them to install a 42 inch privacy fence on the sides would create a fence that is not appealing. We
told Rob & Jodj that we would have no issues with a complete six foot privacy fence and feel that it would fit in with
the already existing structures ziong the lots of Carriage Station abutting Highway 5.

We are writing this letter in support of Rob & Jodi Konop's request to build a six foot privacy fence. Please
consider our thoughts as you address this issue.

Sincerely,



) - : F10.00

ht 2011, Washington Cotinty

ig

© Copyr

i

;\ N T . o a r i {2 | H 23 ¥ %
¢ Peposed) Ferde » :

M : g "SQT&“-J‘“:%’@ Sliembbitomal -ty THIS DRAWING IS THE RESULT OF A COMPLATION AND REPRODUCTION OF @
] W-Recpase TEGEND =) SR R LAND REGORDS AS THEY APFEAR IN YARIGUS WASHINGTON GOUNTY OFFIGES z
—_ gm;aimm'szuaug POPEITY CEMTFCATORRMIERFoRway asoccnsy  WASHINGTON COUNTY 1S NOT PESPONSIBLE FOR ANY NAGGLIACISS i

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT memsmarummeems. DHR, PROTEGTED WATERS | __! ._J B o e B e PHOPEF.?W”LWE.’: Al S}PJW\' A;'?E FOR REFERENGT RURAPOSES AR 1Y 1o ;
SURVEY AND LAND MANAGEMENT DIVISION Ce -+ - DNRPROTEGTED WETLAND . — - = 5_'-:& - '::T ’“:"E'L _%*1 :r::s: REPREEENT ACTUAL (O0ATIONS 3
14969 62t Sheo! Noth, .0, Box 8 - DR PROTECTED WATEACOURSE N O H TH 0102821 oo asuzsza| zx MAP LAST UPDATED, Jaruiary 26, 2071 g
Stiitwater, Minnasola 65082-0005 MUNICIPAL BOUNDARY - {0001} < A P properry | g
1651) 4306675 FARK BOUNDARY R P s MO AGDITIONAL GHANGES HAVE BEEN REPORTED T0 GATE £
strvayorgoo. washington. mn.ue BCALE: 1 inch = 30 foe! |12“2921 0702920, 0802820 . z
WA.Ca,washington,mn.ue [ I A DATE OF CONTOURS: Aprl, 2000 DATE OF PHOTOGRAPHY: Apes, 2306 i




CCITY OF (.
LAKE
 ELMO

City of Lake Eime 651/777-5510

J _ 3800 Laverne Ayenue North / Lake Elmo, MN 55047

June 20, 2011

- Robert Konop
12418 Marquess Way North
Lake Elmo, MN 55042

RE: FENCE PERMIT APPLICATION

Dear Mr. Konop:

Our office has reviewad your request to construct a six-foot solid wall privacy fence within the

proposed fence do not comply with the City’s fence regulations. Section 154.120 through
Section 154.128 of the City Code {which was recently revised) specifies the requirements for
fences, and includes the following provisions:

¢ [Section 154.120, Subd. B] Fence height in interior yards. No fence shall be constructed

exceeding 72 inches in height measured from grade in interior yards; and, any portion of
such fence above 42 inches measured from grade shall be open to light and air over 75%
of the surface area,

[Section 154,120, Subd. C} Fences on through lots.

(1) Lots with frontage along improved public streets at both the rear yard and the front
vard (through iots) may apply the standards of division {B) above for fences
paralieling the rear yard.

(2) When the rear property line of a through iot abuts a pubiic street classified as either

a principal arterial, A minor arteriai, or B minor arterial in the City’s Transportation
Plan, a fence parallel to that property line may be constructed up to 72 inches in

LA ,
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height, but is not required to be open to light and air. A corner lot must continue to
meet safety requirements of 96.03 (B) 19 regarding the obstruction of view of
traffic.

Based on this language, you would be allowed to construct a solid-wall privacy fence up to six
feet in height along or near your property boundary with Minnesota State Highway 5 (which is
classified as an “A-minor Arterial Road in the City’s Transportation Plan), but you could not
construct such a privacy fence within any other portion of your lot. There are additional
provisions in the Fence Ordinance that allow for a screening fence to be installed along the
border between commercial and residential zoning districts; however, the site plan you
submitted does not show any portion of the proposed fence extending to the commercial
property line that abuts your parcel.

As depicted on your site pian, the fence that is planned along the eastern portion of your
property (at the edge of the existing evergreen landscaping) is permitted; however, the
additional portions of the fence that are shown along the property line separating your lot from
the adjacent Lot 5, Block 1 of Carriage Station and additional extensions of this fence that
woulid connect between the side property lines and your principal structure are not aliowed to
exceed 42 inches in height as a solid wall.

For the reasons noted above, your request for permission to construct a six-foot high solid wall
privacy fence at 12418 Marquess Way North is hereby denied.

Please contact me at 651-233-5402 if you have any questions about the City Code, to further
discuss the provisions cited in this letter, or if you would like to discuss options for bringing this
request into compliance with the City Code.

Sincerely,

1-

Kyle Kiatt
Planning Director

cc: Karl Horning, Acting Building Official
Dave Snyder, City Attorney
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
STATE OF MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 08-044A
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE FENCE REQUIREMENTS OF
SECTION 154,120 THROUGH SECTION 154.128 TO ALLOW

SOLID FENCES IN CERTAIN SITUATIONS AND TO CLARIFY
THE INTENT OF OTHER SECTIONS

SECTION 1. The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo hereby amends Title XV:
Land Usage; Chapter 154: Zoning Code, by amending the following language:

§ 154.120 FENCE HEIGHT AND LOCATION.

(A)  Fence height in street setbacks. No fence shall be constructed exceeding 42
[ inches in height measured from grade within any front, side (corner), or rear street
setback. Fences constructed within the presoribed street setback areas shall be at least
50% open to air and light. (See Figure 154.120)

Figure 154.120: Height of Fencing
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(B) Fence height in interior yards. No fence shall be constructed exceeding 72
inches in height measured from grade in interior yards; and, any portion of such fence
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above 42 inches measured from grade shall be open to light and air over 75% of the
surface area,

(C) Fences on dowblefrontthrough lots. -

(N Lots with frenting-frontage alonp improved public streets at both the rear
yard and the front yard (through lots) may apply the standards of division (B) above for
fences paralleling the rear yard.

(2)  When the rear property line of a through lot abuts a public street classified
as either a principal arterial, A minor arterial, or B minor arterial in the City’s
Transportation Plan, a fence parallel to that property line may be constructed up to 72
inches in height, but is not reguired to be open to light and air. A corner lot must
continue to meet safety requirements of 96.03 (B) 19 regarding the obstruction of view of
traffic.

(D) Grade defined. The grade from which fence height measurements are calculated
shall only be from either natural grade or grade modified responsive to a grading plan
approved by the city; and, shall not include the height of berms or introduced increases in
ground elevation that would raise the effective fence height over that which would be
otherwise permitted by this subchapter, except that a combination of raised grade and
fence that would exceed in sum the fence height permitted by this section may be
specifically approved by the City Council as an element of a subdivision plat or
commercial site plan approval establishing specific property grading and topography.

(BY Easement encroachment. Where allowed by other divisions of the fence
ordinance and other applicable sections, a fence may be constructed up to one foot off a
property line unless an easement is present or it is determined a fence would obstruct a
drainage area. An Easement Encroachment A greement., along with a fence permit,
allows a fence to be constructed within a city easement after it has been reviewed and

approved by the City Engineer and City Council and the applicable fee has been received.

(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)
[#§ 154.121 MATERIALS.

(A)  Permitted fence materials. Permitted fence materials shall be limited to brick,
stone, wood planks, split rail, wrought iron, and as regulated by § 154.123. Vinyl or
composite material fences shall also be permitted.

(B) Finished face of fence. That side of the fence considered to be the face
(finished side as opposed to struciural supports and frame) shall face abutting property
and public streets,

(C)  Chain link or cyclone fences. Chain link, and wire mesh fences are permitted to
a maximum height of 72 inches measured from grade. No chain link, cyclone or wire




Ordinance 08-044}4 ity Council Version) S City Council: 8/7/11

| mesh fence shall be permitted in any front, side {corner), or rear street setback. (See
Figure 154.121)

Figure 154.121: Cyclone/Chain Link Fencing
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(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)

13§ 154.122 FENCES IN THE SHORELAND OVERLAY DISTRICT.

No fence shall be permitied in the OHW setback of any parcel located in Shoreland, as
defined by §-11.01, except where the principal structure is entirely located within the
OHW setback. Where the principal structure is at least partially located within the OHW
setback, fences complying with the standards of § 154.120(B) may be constructed within
the side yard area of the principal structure, but not extending beyond the front and rear
exterior walls of the principal structure. Decks, porches and landings of any type shall
not be considered a part of the principal structure for the purpose of determining
allowable fence.

(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)
#§ 154.123 TEMPORARY FENCES.

(A} Defined. For the purposes of this subchapter temporary fences are those that
are installed and removed on a seasonal basis, such as snow fences and garden fences,
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Temporary fences shall be open to light and air over not less than 40% of the fence
surface area.

(B) Duration and limitation. No snow fence shall or posts therefore shall be
installed prior to November 1, and must be removed prior fo Apnl 15,

(C) Height and location. Temporary fences shall comply with the fence and fence
location standards of § 154.120, except that snow fences shall be set back at least 50 feet
from any south or east property line, or such additional distance as may be required o
prevent the accumulation of snow on public streets or adjoining property, as determined
by the Building Official.

(Ord. 97-137, passed §-4-2004)

3§ 154.124 AGRICULTURAL EXEMPTION.

Fences constructed on parcels in excess of 5 acres for the keeping of horses; and
fences constructed on parcels in excess of 10 acres for the keeping of other livestock, as
defined by § 11.01, are specifically exempted from the provisions of this subchapter.
Any such agricultural fencing shall be at least 75% open to air and light.

(Ord. 97-137, passed §-4-2004)

@§ 154.125 FENCES AS SCREENING AND SECURITY, AS
REQUIRED.

(A) Generally. The Lake Elmo City Code and this chapter include prescribed
physical circumstances of a site where screening of uses, equipment, and outside storage
is required. In those prescribed circumstances, fence not to exceed 72 inches in height
measured from grade may be installed, subject to the following standards:

(1) Required fences for screening and security purposes in Agricultural and
Residential zoning districts shall be set back from all property lines equal to the required
structure set back of the zoning district in which they are located, except where
residential zoned lots share a common property line with commercial uses, or commercial

zoning districts and only on the common property line between the residential and
commercial parcels.

(Am. Ord. 97-169, passed 5-2-2006)

(2) The provisions of § 154.120 regarding fence height measurement from grade
shall apply. No combination of earthen berm and fence may exceed the 72-inch
maximum height for screening.

(3) Materials used for screening shall be limited to those specified by § 154.121.
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(4)  No such screening shall be roofed or covered in any manner,

(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)

(5)  Solid fence not to exceed 72 inches in height measured from grade may be
installed, subject to the foliowing standards:

(a) The tota] area of any parcel enclosed by solid fencing shall not exceed the
maximum allowable area for an accessory structure in the zoning district in which the
parcel is located, less the sum of the area of any accessory structures located on the same
tax parcel.

(b} The area enclosed by screen fencing shall maintain a ratio of width to
length of no greater than 2:1. (See § 154.093).

(¢} _ A screening fence that is not enclosed may be allowed provided the total
length of said fence does not exceed the perimeter of the largest accessory building
permitted in the zoning district in which the parcel is Jocated, less the sum of the area (or
perimeter) of any accessory structures locaied on the same tax parcel.

(B)  Ouitdoor living area extensions. Solid fencing to a maximum height of 72
inches may be used to enclose outdoor extended living areas of a principal structure,
subject to the following standards:

(1)  The area enclosed by outdoor extended living area fencing shall not exceed
an enclosed area of 500 square feet.

(2)  Fence utilized to enclose an outdoor extended living area shall be extended to
a point nof more than 6 inches from the principal structure at 1 fence termination point,

(3)  Fence utilized to enclose an outdoor extended living area shall not extend
into side yard of a lot beyond the existing building line of the existing principal structure,
nor shall such fences be located in any side or front street yard. (See Figure 154.125)

Figure 154.125: Fencing for Outdoor Living Area
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(Am. Ord. 97-155, passed 4-19-2005)
[4§ 154.126 PERMITS REQUIRED.

(A) Except as noted herein, installation of all fences requires a fence permit issned
by the City of Lake Elmo. This permit shall be applied for on such forms, include such
documentation, and include such fees to the city for processing as may be prescribed
from time to time by the City Council. Fences exempt from requiring an installation
permit are limited to the following:

(1)  Fences of any type installed for the sole purpose of the keeping of domestic
farm animals, as defined by § 11.01, and regulated by § 154.104(E) of this Code. All
such fences shall be removed by the property owner within 6 months of the termination
of the keeping of domestic farm animals, unless an extension is specifically authorized by
City Council action; and

(2) Fences of any type installed by municipal, county or state governments and
public utilities for facility security or the delineation and/or protection of public rights-of-
way.

(B)  Failure to obtain a city fence permit prior to the installation of any fence subject
to this regulation shall result in an automatic double permit fee, in addition to any
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corrective measures to bring the fence into compliance with the standards for fences
prescribed by this chapter.

(Ord, 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)

il§ 154.127 FENCES AS NON-CONFORMING/HAZARDOUS
STRUCTURES.

Fences shall be considered to be structures for the purposes of applying the terms of
the non- conforming structure provisions of this chapter, and the hazardous structures
provisions of city code and state statute,

(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)

3§ 154.128 OTHER PROVISION S; CONFLICTS.

To the extent that provisions of this chapter may conflict with other provisions of the

city code regarding the regulation of fences and screening, the provisions of this chapter
only shall apply.

(Ord. 97-137, passed 8-4-2004)

SECTION 3. Effective Date

This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication in the
official newspaper of the City of Lake Elmo.

SECTION 4. Adoption Date
This Ordinance No. 08-044 was adopted on this 7 day of June 2011, by a vote of _i

Ayesand _| Nays, (5??\1‘\“\6\)
N OX

Mayor Dean A. Johnston

ATTEST:

A WA/%

Bruce Messelt
City Administrator




CITY OF LAKE ELMO
Washington County, Minnesota

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPEALS
RESOLUTION NO. 2011-027

A RESOLUTION STATING FINDINGS OF FACT

RELATED TO AN APPEAL ON THE DETERMINATION NOT TO APPROVE A FENCE

PERMIT FOR PROPERTY AT 12418 MARQUESS WAY NORTH

WHEREAS, the owners of property at 12418 Marquess Way North, Robert and Jodi Konop,
. made application for a fence permit to construct a solid, 6 foot high fence in the rear yard of their

property and;

WHEREAS, the City staff determined that the fence permit could not be approved due to the
following circumstances:

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

The residential property 12418 Marquess Way North abuts two residential
properties along the interior side property lines — Lot 5, Block 1 to the north and
Lot 3, Block 1 to the south, The applicant’s property also abuts State Highway 5 to
the east and has a small segment of property line on the north that is adjacent to
property used for non-residential purposes.

The fence ordinance requires fences on through lots to follow those requirements
of interior yards when listed exemptions do not apply.

When the listed exemptions apply, a solid fence is permitted to be constructed up
to 72 inches in height.

The allowed exemptions are when screening is required by code or when a rear
property line abuts a principal arterial, A minor arterial, or B minor arterial road in
the City’s Transportation Plan.

The listed exemptions do not apply to the proposed fence not parallel with State
Highway 5. Therefore, a fence is allowed to be constructed up to 72 inches in
height with any portion of such fence above 42 inches measured from grade and
shall be open to light and air over 75% of the surface area in those areas.

As the proposed fence not parallel to State Highway 5 is proposed to be 72 inches
in height and a solid fence, staff informed the applicants on June 20, 2011, that the
fence permit could not be approved.

WHEREAS, the applicants submitted an appeal to the Board of Adjustments and Appeals
regarding the determination not to issue the fence permit for the proposed fence, and request that the
Board find that the permit should be issued; and




WHEREAS, the Board heard the applicants and the City’s staff and counsel on July 19, 2011,
and considered the facts of this case.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Appeals and Adjustments of the City of
Lake Elmo, that the Board concurs with the reasons not to approve the issuance of the building
permit for the proposed fence at 12418 Marquess Way North, as stated in 1) through 6) above,

ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF ADJUSTMENTS AND APPRALS of the City of Lake Elmo this
5% day of July, 2011.

Dean A. Johnston, Mayor
Attest:

Bruce A. Messelt, City Administrator




MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNI CATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM #: 14
MOTION

AGENDA ITEM:  Request to extend the deadline for submission of a Preliminary
Development Plan related to a Senior Living/Farm School development at
9434 Stillwater Boulevard

SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Klatt, Planning Director

THROUGH: Bruce Messelt, City Administrator %}Q’,\

REVIEWED BY: Kelli Matzek, City Planner

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is respectfully asked to
consider a request by Tammy Malmquist, 8549 Ironwood Trail North, for an extension to the

“Move to approve a request to extend the deadline for submission of Preliminary Development
Plan for the PUD/OP Development related to a senior living/farm school project at 9434
Stilbwater Boulevard North Jrom July 20, 2011 until July 20, 20217

General Concept Plan related to Senior Living/Farm School development, which contains g

significant amount of the background information concerning this request, including the findings
documented by the City Council at the time of approval.

In addition to the concept plans, the City Council previously approved a Comprehensive Plan
amendment and a Zoning Text amendment to allow the application to proceed at its proposed
location. Should the City Council either deny the preliminary or final plans (or conversely allow
the one-year deadline for filing the preliminary plans expire) the Comprehensive Plan
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City Council Meeting % . Senior Living/Far% school Extension Request
July 19th, 2011 Regular Agenda ftem # 14

amendment would no longer be valid as well due to the conditions imposed on the applicant
when the amendment was approved. A brief timeline of the City approvals that were granied to
move this development forward is as follows:

June 1, 2010 Comprehensive Plan Amendment to amend the future land use map
designation of the subject property to RAD?2 (Rural Agricultural Density —
2 units per acre)

June 1, 2010 Adoption of an Ordinance adding an OP-2 Open Space Overlay District to
the City Code.

July 20,2010  Approval of an OP - Open Space Development Concept Plan and a
Planned Unit Development General Concept Plan related to Senior
Living/Farm School development

The City Code establishes the deadlines related to the approval of a Concept Plan for both an OP
and PUD development as follows:

Limitation of approval. Unless an OP development preliminary plan is submitted within
12 months from the date on which the City Council approved the OP development
concept plan, the concept plan approval shall expire. The City Council, in its sole
discretion, may extend the filing deadline for an OP development preliminary plan and
conditional use permit if an application for extension is filed and approved by the City
Council before the OP development concept plan approval expires.

Limitation of approval. Unless a Development Stage Plan covering at least 10 dwelling
units or the area designated in the General Concept Plan as the first stage of the PUD,
whichever is greater, has been filed within 12 months from the date Council grants
General Concept Plan approval, or in any case where the applicant fails to file
development stage and final plans and to proceed with development in accordance with
the provisions of this chapter and of an approved General Concept Plan, the approval
shall expire. The Council, at its discretion, may extend the filing deadline for a
development stage plan, when, for good cause shown, the extension is necessary.

STAFF REPORT: The City’s consideration of the applicant’s request for an OP/PUD
Development Plan included a very lengthy review period to not only process the concept plans,
but also the Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments that were necessary for this
project to move forward. The concept plan approval also included a long and detailed list of
conditions associated with the approval, all of which will require significant effort by the
applicant to prepare. Given the complexity of the original application and review, Staff does not
believe that it would be unreasonable to grant the requested extension.

The current market conditions have certainly not been favorable for the applicant, either, who is
frying to promote a project that fits a very unique and specific niche within the local (and
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City Council Meeting ‘ o Semwr Living/Farm School Extension Request
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regional) housing market. It would have been beneficial to neither the City nor the applicant for
an application to be rushed for submission to comply with the deadlines noted above, especially
since the City code only notes that an application has to be submitted (or filed) by the application
deadline. '

RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background information and staff report, it is
recommended that the City Council grant the request to extend the deadline for filing an
application for a Preliminaty Development plan by undertaking the following action

“Move te approve a request to extend the deadline for submission of Preliminary Development
Plan for the PUD/OP Development related to a senior living/farm school project ar 9434
Stillwater Boulevard Novth from July 20, 2011 until July 20, 2021

Alternatively, the City Council may consider the following options as it deems appropriate:
¢ Grant an extension for an amount of time that differs from what has been requested by
the applicant. Staff would suggest a timeline of three months (until October 20,2011) or

until the end of the year (December 31, 2011) as reasonable alternatives.

* Deny the extension request based on reasons that the Council specifies at its meeting,

ATTACHMENTS:
L. Letter from Applicant Requesting Extension of Deadline for PUD Plan Application
2. Resolution No. 2010-036A

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction of Hem ....ocvuveuveeeeicecece e City Administrator
- Report/Presentation........couuvervvicvvcvcesinncreccnnnnnnnonnnsinnnn.n. City Administrator
- Questions from Council to Staff.........cooeeveevrerreresoesseon) Mayor Facilitaies
- Public Input, if ApPropriate .........ceveveeeveeveeereeeroooo, Mayor Facilitates
= Call for MOtON wocvvreeeeeeerecteiiececo oo, Mayor & City Council
= DASCUSSION ...creiiieeecrrtiesteecte s, Mayor & City Council
= ACtIOn O MOTION oottt eee e s Mayor Facilitates
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July 12, 2011

Honorable Mayor and Council Members,

This correspondence is regarding the PUD and Open Space preliminary plat
deadlines for my Senior Living/Farm School project located at 9434 Stillwater
Bivd.

Since receiving City approval, great strides have been made to move the project
forward. | have assembled a strong development team comprised of my general
contractor, architect, engineer and sales/marketing. | also had a market analysis
done to identify supply and demand, as well as what kind of housing options

seniors are currently looking for. Finally, our team created a Broker Book to help

attain financing.

| am currently pursuing financial options that include grants and private investors
to continue moving this project forward. As you can well imagine, given the
current economic climate this is taking longer than expected. At this time |
respectfully request a 12 month extension, which will allow time to secure

financing.

Thank You for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely, ,

Tammy Malmquist

i




CITY OF LAKE ELMO

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-036A

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AN OP — OPEN SPACE DEVELOPMENT CONCEPT PLAN
AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT GENERAL CONCEPT PLAN RELATED TO A
SENIOR LIVING/FARM SCHOOL DEVELOPMENT

WHEREAS, Tammy Malmquist, 8549 fronwood Trail North (“Applicant”) has
submitted an application to the City of Lake Elmo (“City”) for a OP — Open Space Development
Concept Plan and General Concept Plan for a Planned Unit Development (PTUD), a copy of
which is on file in the Lake Elmo Planning Department; and

WHEREAS, the proposed OP — Open Space Development Concept Plan and General
Concept Plan for a PUD is to construct a senior living complex consisting of a multifamily
residential struciure and separate townhouse units along with a farm-themed preschool that also
preserves an existing single family residence and farm outbuildings on a 24.4 acre parcel at 9434
Stillwater Boulevard North; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission held a public hearing on May 11,
2010 and continued this hearing until its May 25, 2010 and June 14, 2010 meetings to consider
the OP Development Concept Plan and General Concept Plan for a PUD; and

WHEREAS, on June 14, 2010 the Lake Elmo Planning Commission adopted a motion to
recommend that the City Council approve the OP Development Concept Plan and General
Concept Plan for a PUD with conditions; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Eimo Planning Commission submitied its report and

recommendation to the City Council as part of a memorandum from the Planning Department
dated July 13, 2010; and '

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed the recommendation of the Planming
Commission and the OP Development Concept Plan and General Concept Plan for a PUD ata
workshop meeting held on July 13, 2010 and at its regular meeting on July 20, 2010,

NOW, THEREFORE, based upon the testimony elicited and information received, the
City Council makes the following:

FINDINGS

[) That the procedure for obtaining approval of said OP Development Concept Plan is found
in the Lake Elmo City Code, Section 150.182.

2) That the procedure for obtaining approval of said General Concept Plan for a PUD is
found in the Lake Elmo City Code, Section 154.074.




3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

8)

9)

That all the requirements of said City Code Sections150.182 and 154.074 related to the
OP Development Concept Plan and General Concept Plan for a PUD have been met by
the Applicant.

That the proposed Concept Plan would allow the construction of a senior living complex
consisting of a multifamily residential structure and separate townhouse units along with
a farm-themed preschool that also preserves an existing single family residence and farm
outbuildings on property legally described on the attached Exhibit “A” and commonly
known as 9434 Stillwater Boulevard North.

That the proposed OP — Open Space Development Concept Plan:

a) Isin conformance with the Comprehensive Plan for the City and that the uses
proposed are consistent with the RAD2 — Rural Agricultural Development (2 units

per acre) land use designation shown for the area on the official Comprehensive Land
Use Plan.

b) Satisfies the intent and purpose of City’s land use, zoning, and subdivision
regulations, with certain exceptions to these regulatlons as permitted in accordance
W1th the City’s PUD requirements.

c) Would not negatively affect the public health, safety, and general welfare of
occupants of surrounding lands.

That the proposed General Concept Plan for a PUD:
a) Is consistent with the goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan.,
b) Is consistent with the purpose of Section 150.175 et seq. of the City Code.

c) Complies with the development standards of Section 150.175 et seq. of the Clty
Code.

That the proposed PUD will allow a more flexible, creative, and efficient approach to the
use of the land than if the applicant was required to conform to the standards of the
existing zoning districts on this property.

That the uses proposed in the PUD will not have an adverse impact on the reasonable

enjoyment of neighboring property and will not be detrimental to potential surrounding
uses.

That the PUD is of sufficient size, composition, and arrangement that construction,
marketing, and operation are feasible as a complete vnit, and that provision and
construction of dwelling units and open space are balanced and coordinated.




10) That the PUD will not create an excessive burden on parks, schools, streets, and other
public facilities and utilities, which serve or are proposed to serve the development.

11) That the PUD is designed in such a manner as to form a desirable and unified
environment within its own boundaries.

CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION

Based on the foregoing, the Applicant’s OP — Open Space Development Concept Plan and
General Concept Plan for a senior living complex consisting of a multifamily residential
structure and separate townhouse units along with a farm-themed preschool that also
preserves an existing single family residence and farm outbuildings is hereby approved,
subject to the following:

a. The Applicant shall provide the City with a statement of acknowledgement and consent
from the holder of the power line casement that runs along the northern portion of the
development site granting permission for the placement of a community septic system
and trails within this easement. As an alternative, the Applicant may provide an
agreement that permits certain encroachments into the easement. The homeowner’s
association must be made aware of any issues as part of its articles of incorporation that
could require future maintenance or repairs (or other actions that could have financial
implications) to the drainfield area because of its location within said easement.

b. The applicant shall submit a storm water and erosion and sediment control plan as part of
the preliminary plan submissions that complies with the City’s recently adopted Storm
Water and Erosion and Sediment Control Ordinance.

c. All storm water facilities and access required as part of the Storm Water Management
Plan for the site that the City Engineer recommends be maintained by the City shall be
platied as outlots and deeded to the City. The size and location of the outlots shall be
sufficient to provide an adequate level of buffering from adjacent properties to the
satisfaction of the City Engineer. The pond areas shall be counted as part of the reguired
open space for the project.

d. Inorder to meet requirements for fire protection and adequate water service levels for the
proposed buildings, the utility plans shall provide for an adequately sized connection
back to an existing City water main. The plans for this connection will be subject to
review and approval by the City Engineer. The developer shall be responsible for all
costs associated with providing a minimum water service size of etght inches to an
existing main of a larger size. The final plans and financing, including any potential
oversizing above eight inches requested by the City, shall be included as part of a
developer’s agreement for the project.

e. The applicant shall provide a secondary vehicular access fo the proposed development in
the form of a private road connection to JTamaca Court North, to be devised and




devé:lopad in conjunction with the City Planner and City Engineer. The applicant shall
also provide an easement for a future road connection to the property immediately to the
north of the project site.

The applicant shall be responsible for the installation of all improvements to Stillwater
Boulevard North (State Highway 5) required by MnDOT and specified in a letter to the
City of Lake Elmo dated April 19, 2010. These improvements shall be included as part
of the construction plans submitted as part of a developer’s agreement for the project.

. The interior City Streets shall meet all concerns provided by the City of Oakdale Fire

Chief, acting on behalf of the City’s emergency services personnel, in a letter to the City
dated April 14, 2010.

. The preliminary plans shall incorporate appropriate Buffers, Setbacks and Building
Heights, as determined by the Planning Commission and City staff, taking into
consideration the necessity of a secondary vehicular access, the proposed massing of
development structures, and the impact of such on adjoining properties, including, but not
limited to, the following specific issues:

1) Front yard setbacks to the proposed roads within the development area.

2) Buffering between the proposed development and open space preservation arcas
and neighboring properties.

3) Setbacks from the proposed animal buildings and neighboring parcels.

Any buildings required as part of the community septic system shall be screened from
view from adjacent properties.

The keeping of animals associated with the agricultural activities on the site shall comply
with all applicable City and Minnesota Pollution Control Agency requirements for the
keeping of domestic farm animals.

. The open space preservation areas shall be reviewed for potential inclusion as part of a
conservation easement protected by the Minnesota Land Trust.

The preliminary plans shall incorporate the calculation of proposed development density
calculations NOT utilizing right-of-way area dedicated for State Highway 5.

. The Planned Unit Development (PUD) and/or Development Agreement shall include
specific definitions for Senior Housing and Farm Schoo! and incorporate provisions for
any future changes regarding such uses to be reviewed and acted upon by the City
Council as amendments to the PUD.

. The Planned Unit Development (PUD) and/or Development Agreement shall include
specific development phases and/or expectations for timely onset of development and



construction activity, beginning no later than 1 (one) year following final City approval

of said development, and provision for any future changes regarding such to be reviewed
and acted upon by the City Council and to include any future requirement(s) for :
participation in program designed by the City to transfer density or development rights in
accordance with the Comprehensive Plan, Zoning and related ordinances, and
development programs in effect at that time.

. A part of the preliminary (development stage) plans, the applicant will;

1) Maximize the setback of the communal septic system from nei ghboring property

lines and provide necessary fencing and an additional landscape buffer around the
perimeter of the drainfield site,

2) Maximize the road and structure setbacks from the property lines adjacent to the
development as much as possible, focusing on the area west and southwest of fhe
proposed townhouses and along the eastern property lines. The City will consider
flexibility and variation for interior setbacks to facilitate the above exterior buffer
setback minimizations.

3) Augment the vegetative buffer provided along external property lines.

4) Demonstrate the ability to provide adequate grazing areas for the animals that will
be housed on the site in addition to providing suitable access to these areas,

The maximum size permitted for the new barn structure shall be limited to 3,000 square
feet consistent with the maximum accessory building size permitted in a Rural
Residential zoning district.

. The areas surrounding the school, school accessory buildings, and new barn structure
shall not be included in the residential density calculations for the site, currently
estimated at 48 units plus one additional unit. Bonuses, if any, for density otherwise
permitted in the City Code, including, but not limited to, flexibility allowed through a
PUD submission, historic barn preservation, or other means, shall be taken into account
before establishing the overall density for the project.

The preliminary (development stage) plans shall include a PUD agreement that will
incorporate the following provisions:

1) The new barn, existing farm structures, and storm water facilities shall be
permitted within open space/conservation land.

2) The applicant will provide an accurate description of the proposed agricultural
activities that will take place on the site.




3) The applicant will provide information concerning the farm school structure, the
operation of the school, the state licensing requirements for preschools, the size of
the proposed facility, and the qualifications for the instructors within the school.

4) The overall residential density (expressed in number of dwelling units) permitted
on the site shall be specified.

s. Detailed submissions for the preliminary {sketch) plan review phase will include, but not
be limited to, plans addressing architectural design and materials, lighting, landscaping,
grading, and storm water and erosion control, all of which are subject to review and
approval by the City of Lake Elmo.

t. The foregoing conditions shall be performed according to the satisfaction of the City of
Lake Elmo.

Minnesota.

Passed and duly adopted this 20™ day of Juiy 2010 by ﬁCoun ilof the Ci
e

-ﬁa"\_

Dean Johnston, Mayor

Bruce Messelt, C;zi'ty Administrator
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To: Mayor and Council

From: Ed Nielsen and Larry Weiss L CITY OF Laks
Date:July 18, 2011

[
Min LR

First — We heard that these are the reasons why the Council approved Tammy's project last July:

1.

2,
3.
4.

Ln

& 9.

10.

11.

12,

Immediate need for low maintenance, high density housing to serve a mixture of City residents
~over 55 who need to move, and want a rural feel,

Land not available in New Village soon enough to allow for fast-track development.

Anticipated market will not want to live in Old Village.

Fulfilf a dream of longtime property owner Irv Friedrich to have his farmland developed and

used for a place where residents over 55 could inferact with toddlers.

Need for more and better early childhood learning,

Provide a mechanism for the heirs to the 23 acres to realize greater financial gain than allowed

by the underlying zoning of either continued agriculture or subdivision for 2 houses on

minimum 10 acre lots, '

Support from all adjacent property owners except one in a zoning dispute with the City.

July 2010 letter to City from DNR about requirement to remediate loss of 110 acres adjacent to

Sunfish Lake Park confiscated by MPCA was set aside,

The council did not have the dimensions of the primary structure when the building was given

Concept Plan approval.

Sound financial and engineering plans promised to enable groundbreaking by October 2010, if

immediate Council approval of the Concept Plan was given, even though the Concept Plan was

inadequate to meet Zoning Code requirements,

The applicant stated that the traffic on Hwy 5 would be partially “calmed” by the completion of

the traffic circle at Jamaca, _

The applicant met with most adjacent property owners and informed the Council that the nearby

residents support her project.

Second — the existing application should be terminated per the following:

1.
2.

Market has dried up for proposed project at required sales prices.
New Village now being planned with Committee created by Council with senior housing a priority,
particularly since most of the interested parties currently live in single family housing in the Old
Village and the Committee is anticipating substantially more land in open space than some were
suggesting last year.
The most interested buyers are now known to be in their 70's, not 50's and will need aceess to goods
and services not available on isolated farmland,
Story about Irv Friedrich now known to be made up and falge.
Efforts by Mahtomedi and Stillwater Area school districts to create early childhood centers has
focused attention to the need for mind stimulating pre-school education rather than old fashioned
day care that does not prepare children for Kindergarten. Model farm school is in West Lakeland
where staff has college degrees and at least one has a teaching certificate. The overwhelmin g
majority of nearby City residents now oppose this project. They see the project as a "bait and
switch",where they were promised no change in neighborhood character and no chan ge in traffic
impacts and now we have learned that the final approved concept plan calls for a very visible
complex with significant traffic concerns.
An example of misleading information follows:

In early April, 2010 Tammy Malmquist asked to come to Ed and Vicki Nielsen's home to
explain her senior living center. She pointed to a large oak tree approximately 100 yards away on a
hill and said the land drops behind the tree, the parking garages will be below ground, and said “you
will barely see the building”. I asked for the length, width, and height of the apariment building,
Tammy said the building dimensions are not set, but she will provide them.

About 3 months later, at the 7/13/2010 Council Workshop I again asked Tammy for the
length, width and height of the apartment building; Tammy gave no answer. At the meeting,




Councilman Delapp estimated that the building would be longer than the new City Maintenance
Building. I said to Councilman Emmons, during a meeting break, that if the apartment building is
the size defined by Councilman DeLapp, I am strongly opposed to the Project,

About 6 months later, on October 26, 2010 Larry Wiess asked Tammy Malmquist to meet
with us to answer lingering questions we have. She suggested we attend her sales event at Gormans.
At the end of the program Ed asked for the length, width and height of the apartment building, Her
engineer said the building would be 1 % times as long as the Maintenance Building (450 feet). The
height would be between 42 and 52 fect and the width would be 62 feet. The engineer agreed this
building would be very obvious. Tammy Tied and deceived us and other residents for her gain.

7. July 2010 letter from DNR was reviewed in June 2011 and the City is now learning the
consequences that can be expected to have the MPCA pay Lake Elmo to purchase an additional 110
acres of land adjacent to Sunfish Lake Park to remediate the loss of 110 acres due to the quarantined
landfill. There are only 3 undeveloped properties adjacent to Sunfish Lake Park, and the one
proposed for high density development is one of them. Obviously, the adjacent property owners
would prefer this land to become parkland and Irvin Friedrich's heirs would have a guaranteed
compensation.

8. 'The soils ability to "perk” were questioned before concept plan approval was given. In the
subsequent year, no testing has been accomplished at the site.

9. The applicant was asked to demonstrate to adjacent property owners the location and height
of the proposed apartment complex by use of helium balloons or a truck with a 50 foot
ladder. There was not enough time in summer 2010, but in the past 12 months nothing has
been demonstrated.

10. The traffic circle at Jamaca has been completed and adjacent property owners do not detect
any significant speed reduction at the location of the proposed highway access.

11. From the time of approval to October, 2010, the applicant did not accomplish a single
promised part of the development. '

12. Not only was work never started on the Preliminary Plat, needed before any construction or
buyer down payments accepted, but the incomplete, but approved Concept Plan was not
finished.

13. The apartment and townhouse buildings sizes and locations are not known and the size and
scope of the daycare facilities is not known.

14. In the 12 months since Concept Plan approval was granted, the applicant has not contacted
the City once.

15. The only reason the applicant is before the Council today is that the City contacted the
applicant to inform her that her time to submit an accepted Preliminary Plat was about to
expire.

Third — Recommendation
I, No ground has been broken on this land. We recommend this land be incorporated into
Sunfish Lake Park for landfill remediation purposes.
2. City Staff can find an appropriate location for Tammy Malmquist's development,
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To: Mayor and Council July 19, 2011

I POLLED ALL THE NEIGHBORS RELATIVE TO THIS ISSUE, THE
OVERWHELMING MAJORITY ARE AGAINST THIS PROJECT.

Here we are one year later and not as naive as we were
when we were deceived with this senior living concept
plan. The original concept plan was rushed by the
people before anyone had any idea of what it all
entailed.

We definitely know at this time we do not want this
project in our neighborhood. This project will ruin our
rural lifestyle.

This 450’ long by 62’ wide by 53’ tall building will be
intrusive in the country landscape. This building will
be 1%: times the size of the LE Maintenance Bldg.

The light created by this 53’ tall building will be easily
in sight looking over our backyards. How does the
landscape remain peaceful with this monstrosity in
our area?

We do not need the excessive amount of traffic this
type of project will bring to our neighborhood. A
project of this magnitude belongs nearer to the city,
not in our backyards.

[ urge you to listen to our points of view and reject the
request for an extension permanently. Stop playing
games and giving special privileges to certain people.

The residents near this proposed project deserve to
have the rural character of their neighborhood kept in
tact.,

| Larry E. Weiss
Lake Elmo, MN resident
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S SENIOR LIVING / FARM SCHOQL PROQIECT

The project is surrounded on three sides by long established residential dwellings. Can
vou believe the main building is expected to be three stories high? That would be a lot of
infrusive light in our quiet, rural neighborhood. 54 ft. tall — 48 units. How did that
happen?  What about buffers? 30 ft., 10ft. We can’t let this go any further.

Come on give us some real numbers, :

The wraffic. .. We can expect to see as many as 400 cars and trucks increase per day.
Can you image that on an already busy Highway 57 How is it acceptable to also burden a
peaceful cul-de-sac with any extra traffic? Think aboutit. .. .. You would not like it if
you lived there. -

The City Council has to open their eyes. The applicant has manipulated the City Council
into supporting this incompatible development. Pretty pictures of the preject but way too
vague. (ive some real facts and numbers.- Not just promises that don’t seem to mean

anything &t this point.

We have io show the City Council our DISCONTENT with Ieﬁﬁg this Senior Living /
Farm School Project be built on these 24 acres in Lake Elmo.

Ifvou are in agreement with this objection to this Senior Living Project,
. Please list vou game and address below:

Ww% 2 28] %/N GIED S Mhaln 5/14%’

_,é;f/ / % A é*”/ Zoiy / Ky s Lo Lt r B o A

f'l::*w(/@ Z. I A 4 YZAOD L_,Cig,&r’)/’_.:’::;‘f'; L/:ufi;);" 3,
«a{/,'//’ Gt 16971 B9 5F- Ao,
//)}% c‘h&?ﬁ j@mgﬁ\\) 7950 r//ﬂMw@u Kﬁfw/y}
f\{;”{?’m%m ‘Jw@f’@ r U

‘/l"’@ Qx——f/u\// ﬁ‘f?i éfﬁl/wﬂ%r A)w A,
\N B, ‘{ N ARSI S A
s Y e *”"5’6 . S /,.f_,w 00 N

C,Zz{{uz&/’,f,i// 5%(/&4/// ) ST lp e TR /jZ// ///

545
,Wm‘m@* iy %56,-4:;) Sty Bnd A

(\z/ﬂf_ﬂﬁi “ / [

o,

i

7~ ) ﬁ%?*/// A

&1 :‘f i P Q/f/ffﬁ/ffj/[%

S—




] s P |
( (

4 are in agreament with this objection to this Senior Liviag Project,
please list you name and address below:
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SENIOR LIVING / FARM SCHOQL PROJECT

The project is surrounded on three sides by long established residential dwellings. Can
you believe the main building is expected to be three stories high? That would be a lot of
intrusive light in our quiet, rural neighborhood. 54 ft. tall — 48 units. How did that
happen? ~ What about buffers? 30 ft., 10 ff. We can’t let this go any further.

Come on give us some real numbers.

The traffic. .. We can expect to see as many as 400 cars and trucks increase per day.
Can you image that on an already busy Highway 5? How is it acceptable to also burden a
peaceful cul-de-sac with any extra traffic? Think about it. . . .. You would not like it if
you lived there.

The City Council has to open their eyes. The applicant has manipulated the City Council
into supporting this incompatible development. Pretty pictures of the project but way too
vague. (ive some real facts and numbers. Not just promises that don’t seem to mean
anything at this point.

We have to show the City Council our DISCONTENT with 1ettmg this Senior Living /
Farm School Project be built on these 24 acres in Lake Elmo.

If you are in agreement with this objection to this Senior Living Project,
please list you name and address below: |
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if you are m agn @emem wnth thie @hg@@m@m fo this Senior Living Project,
f@ﬂease list you name and address below:
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MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM #: 15
RESOLUTION

AGENDA ITEM:  Accessory Building Variance — 5761Keats Avenue
SUBMITTED BY: Kyle Klatt, Planning Director
THROUGH; Bruce Messelt, City Administrator %{?\\p\\

REVIEWED BY:  Planning Commission
Kelli Matzek, City Planner

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: The City Council is respectfully requested to
consider a variance request from Steve and Joan Ziertman, 5761 Keats Avenue, to allow the
construction of a second 2,400 square foot accessory building on their property. A variance has
been requested because the applicants already have built a 2,310 square-foot building on their
property, and the RR — Rural Residential Zoning District only allows one such accessory
building on their property.

The proposed building would be used to house equipment related to the growing and selling of
agricultural products (primarily pumpkins). The recommended motion to act on this is as
follows:

“Move adopt Resolution Number 2011-028 approving a variance to allow the construction of a
new 2,400 square foot accessory building at 5761 Keats Avenue in addition to an existing
2,310 square foot building on the property”

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The attached Staff report includes a detailed review of
the application along with a description of the Staff and Planning Commission recommendation.

For variance applications, the burden is on the applicant to demonstrate why this situation is
unique and necessitates flexibility to code requirements. To make this case, a variance can only
be granted by the city when strict enforcement would cause practical difficulties because of
circumstances unique to the individual property under consideration and then only when it is
demonstrated that such actions will be in keeping with the spirit and intent of this chapter. The
criteria that are included in the City Code for making such a decision include the following:
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City Council Meeting %, ' ¢ 5761 Keats Ave. Variance
July 19th, 2011 Regular Agenda Item # 15

Practical Difficulties. A variance to the provision of this chapter may be granted by the
Board of Adjustment upon the application by the owner of the affected property where the
strict enforcement of this chapter would cause practical difficulties because of circumstances
unique to the individual property under consideration and then only when it is demonstrated
that such actions will be in keeping with the spirit and intent of this chapter.

= Definition of practical difficulties. “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection
with the granting of a variance, means that the property owner proposes to use
the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control.

Unigue Circumstances. The plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the
property not created by the landowner

Character of locality. The proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the
jocality in which the property in question is located.

Adjacent properties and traffic. The proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of
light and air to property adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the
congestion of the public streets or substantially diminish or impair property values within the
neighborhood.

In reviewing the request against the four criteria listed above, staff determined that not of all of
these criteria were met and recommended denial of the request based on the suggested findings
included in the attached Staff report.

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT: The Planning Commission reviewed the variance
request at its Julyl1, 2011 meeting and conducted a public hearing at this time. The Commission
received four letters/emails in support of the variance prior to the meeting, and received two
addifional letters/emails of support that were read at the meeting, All of these comments are
attached for consideration by the City Council.

Because this application is the first that has been submitted under the updated variance standards,
the Planning Commission spent a fair amount of time reviewing the application against the new
criteria and findings that must be made before a variance can be granted. The Commission
received a detailed presentation from the applicants describing their current operation and
offering suggested findings to approve the variance.

The Commission debated whether or not the proposed application met the new variance
standards, and ultimately recommended approval of the request with the findings for approval as
drafted by Staff and with two additional findings to support this recommendation. These
findings specifically noted that the size of the produce being grown on the premises and the
history of the farm in this area were factors unique fo the applicants’ site.

-- page 2 -




City Council Meeting 5761 Keats Ave. Variange
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The Planning Commission recommended approval of the variance request with two conditions of
approval. Because she owns the land that is subject to the variance with her husband,
Commissioner Ziertman excused herself from the proceedings, and therefore did not vote on this
matter. The final vote of the Commission on this matter was 5 ayes and 1 nay.

PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Based upon the above background
information, staff report and Planning Commission recommendation, it is recommended that the
City Council approve the variance request from Steve and Joan Ziertman, 5761 Keats Avenue, to
allow the construction of a second 2,400 square foot accessory building on their property by
undertaking the following action:

“Move adopt Resolution Number 2011-028 approving a vaviance to allow the construction of a
new 2,400 square foot accessory building at 5761 Keats Avenue in addition to an existing
2,310 square foot building on the property”

Alternatively, the City Council may table taking action on the application and direct either staff
or the applicant to provide additional information concerning the request.

The Council may also consider denying the variance and should develop findings of fact to
support a motion for denial based on the evidence presented during the course of the City review
and could use the draft findings for denial outlined in the staff report as a basis for this action.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution No 2011-028
Staff Report

Application form

Applicants narrative and proposed findings (with Comprehensive Plan excerpts)
Site Plan

Site photographs

Aerial image of site

Comments and maintenance change worksheet from City Assessor

D S N R

Letters of support (6)

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction of Item «..vvvveeveecviccecsesenn ... Clty Administrator
- Report/Presentation......c.coeiieviiereeecesieeeseeeeee e seesenes e, City Planner
- Questions from Council to Staff..........c..cccceeieeririrrernnrnncce.... Mayor Facilitates
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City Council Meeting % é 5761 Keats Ave. Variance

July 19th, 2011 Regular Agenda Item # 15
Public Input, if Appropriate .......coimvmmimivsnmie, Mayor Facilitates
Call for MOON ...ccvervverieienrereeaenreniisrecstsseesoreeaeresansnnes Mayor & City Council
DISCUSSION .eevrrvrrerieeereserissse s ss e senereesteseesaasnns Mayor & City Council
Action on MOtION ..o siesnos Mayor Facilitates
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-028

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE TO ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A
SECOND DETACHED ACCESSORY BUILDING IN A RURAL RESIDENTIAL
ZONING DISTRICT

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, Steve and Joan Ziertman, 5761 Keats Avenue (the “Applicants™) have
submitied an application to the City of Lake Elmo (the “City”) for a variance to allow the
construction of a second 2,400 square foot detached accessory building on their property zoned
RR - Rural Residential, a copy of which is on file with the City; and

WHEREAS, notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake Elmo
Zoning Ordinance, Section 154.017; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission held a public hearing on said matter
on July 11, 2011; and

WHEREAS, the Lake Elmo Planning Commission has submitted its report and
recommendation to the City Council as part of a Staff Memorandum dated July 19, 201 1; and

WHEREAS, the City Council considered said matter at its July 19, 2011 meeting.
NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, the
City Council makes the following:
FINDINGS

1) That the procedures for obtaining said Variance are found in the Lake Eimo Zoning
Ordinance, Section 154,017,

2) That all the submission requirements of said 154.017 have been met by the Applicant.

3) That the proposed variance is to allow the construction of a second 2,400 square foot
accessory building on their property. A variance has been requested because the
applicants already have built a 2,310 square-foot building on their property, and the RR —
Rural Residential Zoning District only allows one such accessory building on their




property. The proposed building would be used to house equipment related to the
growing and selling of agricultural products.

4) 'That the Variance will be located on property legally described as the North 425 feet of
the South 1550 feet of the West 1100 feet of the Northwest Quarter of Section 2,
Township 29, Range 21, Washington County, Minnesota. Subject to an easement over
the West 33 feet thereof for Keats Avenue. Commonly known as 5761 Keats Avenue.

5) That the strict enforcement of Zoning Ordinance would cause practical difficulties and
that the property owner proposes to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted
by an official control. Specific findings:

a) The proposed use is reasonable because the applicants have demonstrated the
need for additional agricultural storage on their property beyond what can be
accommodated in the current buildings on the site.

b) The accessory building is located on a portion of the site that is not directly
visible from the any roads, and would be well screened from adjacent
properties.

¢} Because most of the site is being used to grow agricultural products, the
property functions as an operating farm which has different usage and storage
requirements than a property that is only used for residential purposes.

6) That the plight of the landowner is due to circumstances unique to the property not
created by the landowner. Specific findings:

a) The applicants are using the property for agricultural purposes and have been
classified as such by the Washington County Assessor’s office. Very few
properties that are less than 20 acres in size are used and/or classified in this
manner.

b) Because nearly all of the property is being actively farmed, the equipment and
storage needs for this parcel are much greater than other sites that are not
under active agricultural production.

¢) The produce that is grown on the applicants’ site, including pumpkins, is larger
than typical agricultural crops and therefore has unique storage needs.

d) The applicants’ parcel was part of a larger, established family farm that has
been in continuous operation for nearly 40 years.

7) That the proposed variance will not alter the essential character of the locality in which
the property in question is located. Specific findings:

a) The area surrounding the applicants’ property has historically been used for
active farming, including open space land that is part of an open space
development to the north and east of this praperty.

b) The proposed building will be located in such a manner that it will not be
directly visible from surrounding properties, and will be located behind a row of
evergreen trees that will provide year round buffering.



¢} Former farm sites with multiple accessory buildings are not uncommon in this
area and many of these sites have been successfully incorporated into
residential subdivisions.

8) That the proposed variance will not impair an adequate supply of light and air to property

adjacent to the property in question or substantially increase the congestion of the public
streets or substantially diminish or impair property values within the neighborhood.

CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION

Based on the foregoing, the Applicants’ application for a Variance is granted with the following
conditions:

1) That the use of the proposed accessory building be restricted to agricultural activities
only, and that it not be used for the storage of personal automobiles, home based business
activities, or other non-agricultural equipment.

2) That a substantial portion of the acreage will continue to be used for farming,

Passed and duly adopted this 19™ day of July 2011 by the City Council of the City of Lake Elmo,
Minnesota.

Dean A. Johnston, Mayor
ATTEST:

Bruce Messelt, City Adminisirator




City of Lake Flmo Planning Department
Variance Request

To:

From:
Meeting Date:
Applicant:
Location:

Zoning:

City Council

Kyle Klatt, Planning Director
7/19/11

Steve and Joan Ziertman
5761 Keats Avenue

RR - Rural Residential

Introductory Information

Application
Summary:

Property
Information:

The City of Lake Elmo has received a variance request from Steve and Joan Ziertman,
5761 Keats Avenue, to allow the construction of a new 2,400 square foot accessory
building on their property. A variance has been requested because the applicants
already have built a 2,310 square-foot building on their property, and the RR — Rural
Residential Zoning District only allows one such accessory building on their property.
The proposed building would be used to house equipment related to the growing and
selling of agricultural products (primarily pumpkins).

The applicants’ property and neighboring property at 5699 Keats Avenue were split
from their family’s farm in 1989, with houses being constructed on these lots a short
time later. The original farmstead, including the house and barn, were later sold to the
organization that built the Rockpoint Church in 2006; which also received approval at
this time for a preliminary plat for an open space subdivision named Hidden
Meadows. This 25-lot development has not yet received final plat approval from the
City, and therefore, all property immediately to the north and west of the applicants’
property is either vacant or being rented out for agricultural production (except for the
church and parking lot). In the future, there will be residential Jots to the east of the
applicants’ property, with open space/conservation land planned to the north.

The applicants’ property at 5761 Keats Avenue is approximately 10.7 acres in size,
and in addition to the principal residential structure, there is a detached accessory
building that was built in two phases at different times. These accessory buildings are
now joined together by a breezeway, in which case they are viewed at one detached
structure in accordance with the Building Code and Zoning Ordinance. Most of the
property located to the rear of the house is used for the growing of agricultural
products, including pumpkins, gourds, hay, corn stalks, ornamental corn, and other
products, which are then sold on the premises as part of an agricultural sales operation.
There is currently some equipment being stored outside that does not meet the City
Code requirements for such exterior storage, but most of this equipment is located



Variance Reguest; Zieriman Accessory Building: 5767 Keats Avenue
City Counetl Repare: 7719787

Applicable
Codes:

behind a screening fence on near the northern property line, and because it is screened
from view, it does comply with the City requirements.

Because the Ziertmans requested time at the Planning Commission meeting to review
their request with the Commission, Staff will not be providing a detailed description of
the farming activity taking place on the site as part of this report.

Section 150.017 Variances.

(A-) Variances. Identifies procedures and requirements for the processing and
review of a variance application, Please note that this section was recently
updated by the City to comply with revisions to Minnesota State Statutes.

Section 154.036 RR- Rural Residential.

(A-F) RR — Rural Residential Zoning District. Specifies the permitted uses,
district requirements, and minimum district requirements for the RR zoning
district.

Section 154.092 Accessory Buildings and Structures.
Describes the types of accessory buildings and regulations based on building type.
Section 154.093 Number/Size of Accessory Buildings

Specifies the number and size of accessory buildings that are allowed in each
zoning district based on the size of the property.

Findings & General Site Overview

Site Data:

Lot Size: 10.7 acres

Existing Use: Residential/Agricultural

Existing Zoning: RR — Rural Residential;

Property Identification Number (PID): 02.029.21.22.0001

Application Review:

Applicable
Definitions:

BUILDING. Any structure either temporary or permanent, having a roof and
used or built for the shelter or enclosure of any person, animal, or movable property of
any kind. When any portion of a building is completely separate from every other part
of a building by area separation, cach portion of the building shall be deemed as a
separate building,

DETACHED RURAL STORAGE BUILDING. A 1-story accessory building
used or intended for the storage of hobby tools, garden equipment, workshop
equipment and the like. Exterior materjals shall match the principal structure in
extertor color or be of an earthen tone.

AGRICULTURAL FARM BUILDING. An accessory building used or intended

Snlatnd Tse Vorignees 5761 Keate ave - Ziceman Rep Council Zivrgman 4o Hdie Variancs 72101 { doc
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Variance Request; Zivriman Accessory 8 Hr’l{gi._@; 5161 Keats Avenue ( ‘
City Council Repar, 7719711

for use on .an active commercial food-producing farm operation of more than 20 acres,
a Minnesota Pollution Control Agency permit may be required.

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY. A residential structure designed for or used
exclusively as 1 dwelling unit of permanent occupancy.

PRACTICAL DIFFICULTIES “Practical difficulties,” as used in connection
with the granting of a variance, means that the property owner proposes to use the
property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control.

UNIQUE CIRCUMSTANCES. The plight of the landowner is due to
circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner

AGRICULTURAL SALES BUSINESS. The retail sale of fresh fruits, vegetables,
flowers, herbs, trees, or other agricultural, floricultural, or horticultural products.
produced on the premises. The operation may be indoors or outdoors, include pick-
your-own or cut-your-own opportunities include pick-your-own opportunities, and
may involve the ancillary sale of items considered accessory to the agricultural
products being sold or accessory sales of unprocessed foodstuffs; home processed
food products such as jams, jellies, pickles, sauces; or baked goods and homemade
handicrafts. The floor area devoted to the sale of accessory items shall not exceed
25% of the total floor area. No commercially packaged handicrafts or commercially
processed or packaged foodstuffs shall be sold as accessory items. No activities other
than the sale of goods as outlined above shall be allowed as part of the
AGRICULTURAL SALES BUSINESS.

WAYSIDE STAND. A temporary structure or vehicle used for the seasonal retail
sale of agricultural goods, floriculture, and horticulture produced by the operator of
the WAYSIDE STAND on site, which is clearly a secondary use of the premises and
does not change the character thereof.

AGRICULTURE. 'The production of livestock, dairy animals, dairy products, fur-
bearing animals, horticultural and floricultural nursery stock, fruits of all kinds,
vegetables, forage, grains, bees, and apiary products.

AGRICULTURAL BUILDING. A structure on agricultural land, as defined
below in the definition for FARM, RURAL of this section, designed, constructed, and
used to house farm implements, livestock, or agricultural produce or products grown
by the owner, lessee, or sublessee of the building and members of their immediate
families, their employees, and persons engaged in the pickup or delivery of
agricultural produce or products.

FARM, RURAL. The portion of a 10 or more acre parcel of land which is devoted
to agriculture by the property owner or by a lessee of the property owner.

Soiland UseiFariances S761 Keats Ave - Zierimersifep Connct! Zierman Ace Bdlg Vaviance 7-19-11.doc
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Fariance Request; Zieriman Accessors puilding, 3761 Keats Avenue

Cine Counctl Repore: 7719701

Variance
Review:

Variance
Criteria;

The applicants are proposing to construct a second accessory building on their
property that would be 2,400 square feet in size and located 25 feet off of the southern
property line. It would be situated in back of the existing buildings on the property
and at a lower elevation than the existing structures as well. There is a fairly
substantial buffer of evergreen trees between the proposed building location and
neighboring property, which would greatly reduce the visibility of the structure from
the south. The applicants have stated that they need additional space to store
agricultural equipment used as part of their farming operation, partially because they
are Josing the use of the historic barn that was part of their family’s original
homestead. No driveway is proposed to provide access to the structure since it will be
primarily be used to store equipment used in the adjacent fields.

The City’s Zoning regulations limit the number of accessory buildings that can be
established in a Rural Residential District to no more than one such building with
2,500 square feet for parcels that are between 10 and 15 acres in size. The proposed
accessory building would be the second such building on the site, and therefore would
not be allowed under the terms of the RR Zoning District regulations and Accessory
Building requirements,

Please note that the City Code does include differing definitions and requirements for
various agricultural buildings and activities. Specifically, the code contiins three
definitions that could fit this building, including AGRICULTURAL BUILDING,
DETACHED RURAL STORAGE BUILDING, and AGRICULTURAL FARM
BUILDING. Because the term used in the accessory building section of the Code is
“agricultural farm building”, it is Staff’s interpretation that a farming operation would
need to have at least 20 acres of land in order to be exempt from the City’s zoning
requirements (such agricultural buildings are exempt from the City’s zoning
requirements).

An applicant must establish and demonstrate compliance with the variance criteria set
forth in Lake Elmo City Code Section 154.017 before an exception or modification to
city code requirements can be granted. Because the City has not yet reviewed a
variance under the ordinance, some of these required findings will be new to both staff
and the City Council. These criteria are listed below, along with comments from Staff
regarding applicability of these criteria to the applicants’ request.

1. Practical Difficulties. A variance to the provision of this chapter may be granted
by the Board of Adjustment upon the application by the owner of the affected
property where the strict enforcement of this chapier would cause practical
difficulties because of circumstances unique to the individual property under
consideration and then only when it is demonstrated that such actions will be in
keeping with the spirit and intent of this chapter. Definition of practical
difficulties - “Practical difficulties” as used in connection with the granting of a
variance, means that the property owner proposes io use the property in a

Sband UsetPartanees 5761 Kes Ave - Zlvvmmarn Nep Council Zieviman dve Bl Vaviance 710 T doe
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reasonable manner not permitted by an official control.

The language concerning “practical difficulties” represents the bulk of the new
provisions that were amended in the City Code. Under this standard, the City
would need to find that the construction of a second accessory building at 5761
Keats Avenue is a reasonable use of the property not otherwise permitted under the
zoning ordinance. Staff has found that the proposed building would exceed the
number and size of permitied accessory buildings on the site, and therefore, the
Planning Commission will need to consider the “reasonableness™ of the proposal
as submitted by the applicants. Under this criteria, Staff would suggest the
following findings that could be made either in support or opposition to the
variance:

APPROVE: That the proposed use is reasonable because the applicants have
demonstrated the need for additional agricultural storage on their property beyond
what can be accommodated in the current buildings on the site. The accessory
building is located on a portion of the site that is not directly visible from the any
roads, and would be well screened from adjacent properties. Because most of the
site is being used to grow agricultural products, the property functions as an
operating farm which has different usage and storage requirements than a property
that is only used for residential purposes.

DENY: That the proposed use is not reasonable because the applicants already
have a large accessory building in use on the property in addition to an attached
garage. There are other alternatives to storing wagons and other agricultural
equipment on the site, including renting out space from another agricultural
property as they have been doing in the past. The operation of a farming operation
of ten acres in size can be accommodated within the allowed building size limits.

2. Unique Circumstances. The plight of the landowner is due to circumsiances
unique to the property not created by the landowner.

This standard is relatively unchanged from the previous variance provisions, but
represents the most problematic aspect of the variance request from Staff’s
perspective. In this case, the language is very specific 1o the “property” and not
the “use” of the property, and therefore, the City Council should be thinking about
how this site is different and unique from any other property that is zoned RR in
the City. Variances are typically used to address issues specific to the site, for
instance, a property with a large ravine or irregular lot lines that make compliance
with the zoning standards difficult. Again, some is suggesting some findings that
could be considered by the City Council either in support or opposition to the
variance:

APPROVE: That the applicants are using the property for agricultural purposes
and have been classified as such by the Washington County Assessor’s office.
Very few properties that are less than 20 acres in size are used and/or classified in
this manner. Because nearly all of the property is being actively farmed, the

SnLand Usel\Variances 5761 Keats dve - ZieromariRep Council Ziertmon Ace Bdle Variawee 7-19-71.doe
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equipment and storage needs for this parcel are much greater than other sites that
are not under active agricultural production.

DENY: That the plight of the land owner is no# due to circumstances unique to
the property (and not created by the landowner). There is very little that
differentiates the applicants’ 10.7 acre parcel from any other parcel of this size in
the community other than how this property is being used, which is something
directly under the applicants control. Any property owner in the RR ~ Rural
Residential District can use their property for agricultural purposes, and therefore,
the use of the property is not something that is unique to this parcel.

3. Character of locality. The proposed variance will not alter the essential character
of the locality in which the property in question is located.

Depending on how the City Council interprets the term “locality”, the proposed
building may or may not meet this criterion. Staff is suggesting that the
Commission focus on the land immediately surrounding the applicants® property
since these parcels would be most directly impacted by the construction of a larger
building on this site. If a broader view is used, the site may not be as appropriate
for a larger structure given the existing and proposed residential development that
ultimately will surround this land. Staff is again suggesting findings that could be
used either in support or opposition of the request.

APPROVE: The area surrounding the applicants’ property has historically been
used for active farming, including open space land that is part of an open space
development to the north and east of this property. The proposed building will be
located in such a manner that it will not be directly visible from surrounding
properties, and will be located behind a row of evergreen trees that will provide
year round buffering, Former farm sites with multiple accessory buildings are not
uncommon in this area and many of these sites have been successfully
incorporated into residential subdivisions.

DENY: The area surrounding the applicants’ property is guided for rural
agricultural density (open space) development, and land to the north, east, and
west of their property has already been developed in this manner. Large accessory
buildings are not consistent with the current or future expected character of this
area.

4. Adjacent properties and traffic. The proposed variance will not impair an
adequale supply of light and air to property adjacent to the property in question or
substantially increase the congestion of the public streets or substantially diminish
or impair property values within the neighborhood.

Staff has found that the proposed accessory building will comply with this
provision since it is located in a manner that will minimize direct impacts to
adjacent properties and will not create any additional traffic on the streets

Seiland UseiPavianesy' 5761 Keas dve - ZigramonRer Conncit Zieriman: dce Bdle Uariance 7191 .doc
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Uity Council Repory: 7719411

surrounding the applicants® property.

Considering the potential findings of fact as suggested in the preceding section, Staff
is recommending denial of the variance request based on the findings noted under
“denial” in items 1, 2, and 3 above. The most significant issue in this case concerns
the uniqueness of the property, and Staff is not able to identify any particular factors
associated with this site that are specific to the site under consideration and no other
property. Should the City Council disagree with this assessment based on the
information included with this report or other information presented and discussed the
public hearing, Staff has included draft findings in the report that could be used as a
basis for a recommendation of approval.

The Planning Commission reviewed the request at its July 11, 2011 meeting and
recommended approval of the request based on the findings for approval as drafted by
Staff. The Commission also added additional findings to note that the size of the
produce being grown on the premises and the fact that this farm has been in operation
for a long period of time are unique to this site.

Staff recommended at least two conditions of approval to help ensure that the intent of
the Zoning Ordinance is upheld once the building is constructed. The Commission did
not recommend one of these conditions related to screening, and instead suggested an
alternate condition that would require a substantial portion of the acreage on the
property continue to be used for farming. The recommended conditions therefore
include the following:

o That the use of the proposed accessory building be restricted to agricultural
activities only, and that it not be used for the storage of personal automobiles,
home based business activities, or other non-agricultural equipment.

e That a substantial portion of the acreage will continue to be used for farming,

Variance

. Based on the analysis of the review criteria in City Code, the Planning Commission
Conclusions:

recommends approval of the accessory building request for 5671 Keats Avenue
with two conditions of approval.

Resident Staff has received four letters/emails in support of the variance. Two additional letter
Concerns: were submitted and read at the public hearing. These are attached for review by the
City Council.

Additional The City Engineer has reviewed the proposed location of the building and has not

Information: expressed any concerns regarding the proposed construction site.

Siband Usoilariancey 5761 Kegix dve - Zicrimon\Rep Counctl Zierimon Ace Bdip Varianes 7-19-71 doc
tad
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City Council Repors: 7779711

Conclusion:

City Council
Options.

The applicants are seeking approval of a variance to allow the construction of a second
detached agricultural farm building on their property at 5761 Keats Avenue.

The City Council has the following options:

A) Approve of the variance request as per the Planning Commission
recommendation and based on the findings as drafted by the Commission;

B) Deny the variance request based on the findings suggested by Staff or other
findings as deemed appropriate by the Council.;

C) Table the request and direct staff or the applicant to provide additional
information concerning this application.

The deadline for a Council decision on this item is August 14, 2011, which can be
extended an additional 60-days if nceded.

Ree: | The Planning Commission is recommending approval of the variance to allow the
copstruction of a second detached agricultural farm building on their property at 5761
Keats Avenue based on the findings documented as part of this report and with two
conditions of approval,
Approval | To approve the request, you may use the following motion as a guide:
Motion
Template: | I move to approve of the request for a variance to allow the construction of a
second detached agricultural farm building on property at 5761 Keats Avenue
-«(please site reasons for the recommendation)
...with the conditions outlined in the staff report.
Approval | To deny the request, you may use the following motion as a guide:
Moftion
Template: I move to deny the request for a variance to allow the construction of a second
detached agricultural farm building on property at 5761 Keats Avenue ...(or cite
your own)
cer Steve and Joan Ziertman, 5761 Keats Avenue

S Land UselFarianrea 5767 Feats dve - Zieraan' Rep Connel] Zioriman dve Bdle Varlanes 71917 dos
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Fee §
City of Lake Eimo
DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION FORM

[_] Comprehensive Pian Amendment B Variance * (See below)

] Resideniial Subdivision
| Zoning District Amendment

Preliminary/Final Plat
[ Minor Subdivision O 01-10Lo
- s
] Text Amendment [] Lot Line Adjustrnent O 11-20 Lots

] Flood Plain C.U.P,
Conditional Use Permit

O 21 Lots or More
[ Bxcavating & Grading Permit

[] Appeal [ JPUD

[ Residential Subdivision
Sketch/Concept Plan

[] Conditional Use Permit (CUP)  []Site & Building Plan Review

appLicant: __Slewe & Nedn 2&@/@0’4’\ PHAR S Ave DSz

{Narme) {Malling Address

, {Zip)
TELEPHONES: "1 14 - 4(3Yy 225460 @M\ 245 4952 / jCCUﬂ\

{Home) {Work) (Mabile) (Fax)
FEE OWNER: Do - e
. [Name) {Mailing Address) Fm; %7.; i; "l'; g‘@ kiZhol :
TELEPHONES: '
" {Homa) (Work) {Mobile)

PROPERTY LOCATION (Address and Complete {Long) Legal Description): ;

See Muchod

DETAILED REASON FOR REQUEST:

See Mimekod

"VARIANCE REQUESTS; As outl

ined in Section 301.060 C. of the Lake Elmo Municipal Code, the Applicant must
demonstrate a hardship before a variance can be granted: The hardship related to this application is as follows:

~In signing this application, | hereby
Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances
outlined in the apnlication procedure
additional application expense.

acknowledge that | have read and fully

and current administrative procedures.
s and hereby agree to pay

understand the applicable provié’ions of the

| further acknowledge the fee explanation as
all statements received from the @It pertainine io

-

e SN AIIT
Signaturdt Applicani e/ [ Hae

1212004 City of Lake Eimo « 3800 Lavemne Avenue North+ Lake Eimo « 55040 - 65 1-777-5510 + Fax 651.777-5615




5761 Keats Avenue N Variance Application Information:
Written Statements:

A. Owners: Joan & Steve Ziertman

B. Legal Description: PT NW1/4 BEING THE N 425 FT OF THE S 1550 FT
OF THE W 1100 FT OF SD NW1/4 OF SEC 2 - SUBJ TO SUBJ TO
EASEMENT OVER W33FT THEREOF FOR KEATS AVE SECTION 02
TOWNSHIP 029 RANGE 021

PARCEL ID #02.029.21.22.0001

PARCEL SIZE: 10.78 Acres or 466,092 Sq Feet

Existing use of the land: Residential/Agricultural (Tax Class will be
agricultural as we meet the state statute requirements)

Current Zoning: Rural Residential

C. The provision of the code that we seek a variance from is: 154.092
Accessory Buildings and Structures

D. We are asking to build an additional 2400 Square foot building on
our property (see site plan). In our zoning district, we are only
allowed one 2500 square foot buiiding, and we currently have a 2310
square feet.

E. Ispoke with Kyle and Bruce regarding our situation. We have
been informed by Rockpoint Church that we can no longer store
anything in their building. In order to continue with our farm, we
need a building to store our farm equipment and produce. Staff
informed us that we had a couple of directions to go. We could go for
a zoning text amendment or a variance. At that time, the variance
was not going to happen because of strict criteria. | then thought




being rezoned might be an option and talked to staff about that. We
were going to go that direction until we heard that Governor Dayton
had signed the new criteria for varainces that gives us a better chance
to get the building that we need to stay viable. We feel this is a better
option as it doesn't make our lot non conforming.

F. We will speak to the practical difficulties of the new variance
standards.

1. Is the variance consistent with the comp plan? Yes. Very much so.
Our 2030 Comp plan states this: "The following general planning and
developement policies will guide developement in a manner that will
allow reasonable growth to take place, while preserving and
enhancing the rural character and features of Lake EImo that make
the City a unique and desireable community." The comp plan further
talks about agricultural preservation. "In keeping witht the general
policies enumerated above, existing operating agrucultural uses and

- qualifying alternative uses that preserve the open space within the
community shall be supported. These uses shall be encouraged to
continue operations and to retain large land holdings that contribute
to operating efficiency. In keeping with the general policies
enumerated above, the city shall affirmatively establish and pursue
specific strategies and seek resources to assist existing agricultural
uses in remaining a viable alternative to urbanization for landowners,
consistent with the concept of right to farm. The provisions of
municipal infrastructure and services to areas of the city where
operating agriculture exists shall not be in a manner that results in an
economic or operational disincentive to continue agricultural use of
the land." In summary, the Comp plan requires the city to help us
keep our farm viable which this building will do.

2. Does the proposal put the property to use in a reasonable manner?
Yes. This is a reasonable use for our property. Farming is an allowed
use in RR. It is logical that an agricultural use would need a building
to store farm equipment and produce. Every property in RR is



allowed certain sized buildings for personal property whether they
farm or not. It only makes sense that if someone farms and is allowed
to farm by our code and is classified as agriculture by the county, they
should be allowed to have an agricultural building. By state statute,
what we do meets the criteria of agriculture and Washington County
recently tax classified us as AG. The zoning in this city is somewhat
random and there are properties zoned RR that should be AG based
on size and AG properties that should be zoned RR based on size. If
we look at the future zoning map for our part of the City, all the
property whether it is currently AG or RR is all RAD and there was
even talk of combining AG and RR into one zoning for performance
zoning. | think in our situation it is reasonable to base this decision on
the use of our property and not the zone.

3. Will the variance if granted alter the essential character of the
neighborhood. No. The proposed building will not be seen from
Keats. There is an extensive tree line to the south as well as the
neighbors own building to screen from their view. There are other
parcels around us that either have more or larger buildings than is
currently allowed because the buildings were not required to be
taken down as property was subdivided. This is the rural portion of
our city and people expect to see barns and buildings.

4. Are there unique circumstances to the property? Our farm has
been around for a long time and is a unique part of the community. It
was part of a larger family farm that was also a pumpkin farm starting
in 1972. Without this building, we can't continue with the farm. We
are an integral part of the community and according to the comp plan,
the City needs to assist us in remaining viable, which is allowing us the
tools ie: the building to do so.




AT,

In addition to the points already made, | would like to make a few
more. | would like to speak to the point that is always brought up
when talking about variances which is will this set a precedent. I do
not feel that it will. We are truly asking to build an agricultural ,
building based on the fact that the use of our property is AG. This is
reaffirmed by state statute and Washington county agreed with us. In
- order for another RR parcel to ask for an additional "AG" building,
they would need to prove that they are a true and existing agricultural
use and be tax classified as such.

Another point is that currently AG parcels of 40 acres.or more can
have a 20,000 square foot building in addition to unlimited AG
buildings. That would equate to 5000 square feet on 10 acres without
unlimited AG buildings. This is only 1% or the total square footage of
the property which is pretty insignificant.

The character of the neighborhood will not be affected as there are
many other lots under 40 acres that have more than the currently
aliowed size or amount of buildings. We are in the rural part of the
city and to the north of us all the way to highway 36 will continue to
be open space with the Rockpoint church behind us.

I would like to mention that all of our produce is grown on site.
Therefore we have a lot of equipment we need to grow our produce.
In the fall, the produce needs to be stored inside, or it is suseptible to
damage from frost. Our property actually produces a lot of produce.
We had many many wagons of regular pumpkins, pie pumpkins,
squash, gourds, mini pumpkins, hay, corn stalks, ornamental corn etc.
We also produced enough to sell to a local farm that had crop failure.



The state spends alot of tax dollars every year for the Dept of
Agriculture and MN Grown (which we are part of) to ensure that the
small farm like ours remain viable. Buy local is huge!! We help to
make Lake Elmo unique and contribute to our community. We have
donated to the fall festival, regional arts center, regions hospital
pediatric burn unit, our church and schools, Susan G. Koman and
other organizations important to friends, family and neighbors. We
would like to be able to preserve our farm to be able to pay it forward
to our community. | think our situation is an example of why Cities,
City officials and the League of MN cities fought so hard to get the
variance standards changed. So that cities have a much greater say in
what is acceptable outside the big box code that is not a one size fits
all.




}_ake Elmo Comprehensive Flan ( Chapter I - City-w:‘d% ~fanning Folicy

CITY-WIDE PLANNING POLICY

The following general planning and development policies will guide development in a
manner that will allow reasonable growth to take place, while preserving and enhancing
the rural character and features of Lake Elmo that make the City a unique and desirable
community:

1. Develop land use and infrastructure plans corresponding to the 2030
population forecast of 24,000 in the 2030 Regional Development
‘Framework.

2. Encourage the majority of the new households created 1nra*reasnorth of
10" Street North, and outside of the Village Area to be &
developed inararal- Context-it inthe-formref Oper Space Pevelopiriont
cluster neighborhoods.

3. Guide new community growth in keeping with the geographic
assignments and decennial household, population, and employment targets
established by the Memorandum ‘of Understanding entered into by the City
“and the Metropolitan Council in January 2005. .

4, Limit Metropohtan Urban Service Area (MUSA) expansion to the area
that cai be served from the Regional Wastewater Interceptors specified, in
the wastewater volumes specified by the aforementioned Memorandurn of
Understanding, and staged consistent with a City adopted development
Staging Plan.

5. Adopt a MUSA expansion development Staging Plan/schedule that will
limit total annual City household and employment growth to a use, mix,
and scale that remains sustainable in the context of providing municipal
services/infrastrutture and local government fiscal responsibility.

Agricultural Preservation

In keeping with the general policies enumerated above, existing operating agricultural

{ises and qualifying alternative uses that preserve the open space within the community
shall be supported. These uses shall be encouraged to continue operations and to retain
large land holdings that contribute to operating efficiency.

In keeping with the general policies enumerated above, the City shall affirmatively
establish and pursue specific strategies and seek resources fo assist existing agricultural
uses in remaining a viable alternative to urbanization for landowners, consistent with the
concept of “a right to farm.” The provision of municipal infrastructure and services to
areas of the City where operating agriculture exists shall not be in a manner that results in
an economic or operational disincentive to continue agricultural use of the land.

Residential Development
All residential units will be designed, sited, and constructed to conserve energy in
lighting, cooling, and heating processes.

The primary style of residential dwelling unit within RAD, RED, RAD2, and NC land

-1
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Kyle Klatt

From: Frank Langer [Frank.Langer@co.washington.mn.us]

Sent; Fricay, July 08, 2011 12:29 PM

To: Kyte Klatt

Subject: AY11_LAKE ELMO_ZIERTMAN_02.029.21.22.0001_CBAE xIsx
Attachments: AY11_LAKE ELMO_ZIERTMAN_02.029.21.22.0001_CBAE.xlsx
Hi Kyle,

‘Regarding our conversation this morning, it is my understanding that the zoning of property Is the aliowed legal use of a
property. For property tax purpose the tax classification is based on the actual use of the property regardless of what
the zoning is. An example of this could be a large agriculturally zoned piece of property where part of it is used for a
gravel mining operation. This property would then have a split classification of commercial and agriculture for taxes.

The only time we ook at zoning as a guide to help determine the classification for taxes is when there is no use of a
property and then we look at the most likely future legal use of the property and use it as a guidefine for tax
classification.

Frank
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L
| & July 2, 2011
. Lake Elmo
To the City of Lake Elmo

In regard to the variance to build a 2400 square building on the Ziertman farm.

I believe the Ziertman family to be good stewards of their land and good
neighbors. If the building is not visible from Keats and all other requirements are
met I have no problem with this structure.

Thank you
Carolyn Flock
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Kyle Klatt

From:
Sent:
To:

Cc:
Subject:

Ronald Hawkins [hawkinsimpala@gmail.com)]
Wednesday, July 06, 2011 8:08 PM

Kyle Kiatt

Ziertman@msn.com

variance

Kyle, We have been informated that our neighbor Steve & Joan Ziertman at 5761 Keats Ave. No. would like to
build a building to house there farm equipment. They are very good neighbors and keep there property looking
very nice.] would much like to see them put the equipment in a building then setting outside.lIts nice that they
are keeping a little farm operations going along with the pumpkins. We as neighbor would hope that you can
give them a variance to build . Thank you Ron & Sue Hawkins 9924 59th St. Ct. No. Lake Elmo




Kyle Klatt

From: JOAN ZIERTMAN [ziertmén@msn.com]
Sent: Thursday, July 07, 2011 7:15 AM

To: Kyle Klatt

Cc: Kelli Matzek

Subject: Fw: variance for 2400 building

Kyle,'

Here is a coy of an email that our neighbor wrote regarding cur.variance. He had the wrong email for
you, so it bounced back. Thanks! '

. Joan _

----- Original Message -——-

From: Steve Chiebeck

To: kklah@lakeelmo.org

Cc: zieriman@msn.com

Sent: Thursday, July 07, 2011 6:40 AM
Subject: variance for 2400 building

{ just want to voice my concern that | am in favor to let the Ziertman's build another building on their
property.

| do purchase Pumpkins and Corn stalks every year from the pumpkin farm and it very nice to have a small
farm still left in our neighborhood. This would be a great lost for all of us if they would close the farm because
of a building that they need to store the wagons and other equipment was not allowed. | saw were this
building would be erected and this would not every be seen from Keats Ave.l hope the City see that giving the
Ziertman's the variance is the correct thing to do.

[ live at 9692 57™ just west of the Ziertman's. Thank you.

Steve Chlebeck
Territory Sales Manager

Phone: (612) 867-2345

Cell: (612) 867-2345

Fax: (952) 895-5312

E-mail: schlebeck@forceamerica.com

FORCE America Inc.
VariTech Industries
PreCise MRM

601 East Cliff Road
Burnsville MN 55337

www . forceamerica.com
www varitech-industries.com

WWW . precisemrm.com

The Leading innovafor in Mobile Hydraulic Solutions

The information contained in this message and any attachment may be proprietary, confidential, and
privileged or subject to the work product doctrine and thus protected from disclosure. If the reader of this
message Is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this

1



communication Is strictly prof._.ited. If you have received this co'mm(u.ucation in error, please notify me
immediately by replying to this message and deleting it and all copies and backups thereof. Thank you.

Disclaimer added by Code¥we Exchange Rules
www,codetwo,com

The information contained in this message and any attachment may be proprietary, confidential, and
privileged or subject to the work product doctrine and thus protected from disclosure. If the reader of this
message is not the intended recipient, or an employee or agent responsible for delivering this message to
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution or copying of this
communication is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please notify me
immediately by replying to this message and deleting it and all copies and backups thereof, Thank you.




Kyle Klatt

From: JOAN ZIERTMAN [ziertman@msh.com)
Sent: Monday, July 11, 2011 12:34 PM

To: Kyle Klatt; Kelli Matzek

Subject: FW: Variance

Kyle,

Here is another email that we received from a neighbor regarding our variance application. If you could share this with
the commission tonight. Thanks!

Joan

From: stevemoeller@hotmail.com

To: ziertman@msn.com

Subject: Variance

Date: Mon, 11 Jul 2011 17:19:14 4-0000

Dear Joan & Steve:

We recefved your letter about the building and the variance you will need, We have no issues with this, and hope that it
works out in your favor. We buy our pumpkins from you every year, and would like to confinue to do so. Please use this
email to show our support of the variance that is needed so you can continue your pumpkin farm.

Sincerely,
Heidi & Steve Moeller

9580 53rd Street North
Lake Eimo, MN 55042



Kyle Klatt

From: Idjuran@q.com

Sent; Sunday, July 10, 2011 9:10 PM
To: ‘ Kyle Kiatt

Ce: Steve Ziertman

Subject: Variance for Pumpkin Farm

City of Lake EImo

Mr. Kyle Klatt
Planning Directory
3800 Laverne Ave.
l.ake Elmo, MN. 55042

Dear Mr. Klatt & Planning Commission:

Please accept this letter as support for Joan & Steve Ziertman's request for a "Variance" for an
additional building on there property at 5761 Keats Avenue North. We understand that the new
building will be behind there existing home, and will conform in design to existing buildings already on
the property. This request is critcial to there continued effort to operate a farm in Lake Elmo, MN. The
Ziertman's need to store there machinery on there property especially now they have lost there
previous offsite location.

I you need additional information from us, please do not hesitation to let us know.

Sincerely;

Bonnie & Leonard Juran
0784-57th St. No.

Lake Elmo, MN. 55042
651-773-4883
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CITY OF

LAKE

mzmo MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011

REGULAR

ITEM #: 16

DISCUSSION Ordinance No, 08-047

AGENDA ITEM: Hotel/Motel Water Rates — Discussion & Proposed Ordinance No. 08-047
SUBMITTED BY: Tom Bouthilet, Finance Director

REVIEWED BY:  Bruce Messelt, City Administrator ﬁP\Uj\

'SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: It is respectfully requested that the City Council
receive an update on efforts to address issues related to water service to the Wildwood Lodge
and discuss, if appropriate, Staff’s evaluation of proposed alternatives to the City’s commercial
water rate structure to potentially address identified concerns with respect to hotel/motel water
users. Additionally, if appropriate, the City Council may wish to consider the following motion:

“Move to approve Ordinance No. 08-047A4 (or 08-047B), amending the 2011 fee
schedule to include a Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Rate.”

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: On July 5th, 2011, the City Council tabled discussion of
this item, pending additional discussion with the Wildwood Lodge relating to past and current
water service to the property. Additional discussions were held on July 14th, 2011, resulting in a
consensus to share further information and meet again, if necessary, during the week of July
18th. As such, Council action tonight may or may not be timely or appropriate, given ongoing
discussions.

On June 21st, 2011, the Lake Elmo City Council directed City Staff to evaluate two alternatives
to address identified concerns with respect to hotel/motel water users, Some large commercials
water users have reported significant increases in water bills, despite increased conservation
efforts, Other considerations included limiting the potential alternatives to non-irrigation water
consumption only and making any changes retroactive to January 2011, as well as reviewing the
commercial water rate structure later in 2011,

On April 19th, 2011, the City Council had directed Staff to evaluate and prepare for Council
review possible changes to the City’s Water rate structure to with respect to large Commercials

water users. The current Water Congervation rate structure has been in place since December,
2009,

--page 1 --
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City Council Meeting Hotclé.,, ﬁel Commercial Water Rates
July 19th, 2011 Regular Agenda Item # 16

STAFF REPORT: A majority of surveyed northern metro cities use the same Increasing Block
Rates structure that this City adopted in December, 2009. The two identified potential
alternatives for Hotel/Motel consumption include the following:

Modified Commercial Water Rate Structure - The new commercial Water Rate structure for

Hotels/Motels could be structured as follows:

0— 15,000 Gallons “$311 | | 0— 15,000 Gallons $3.11
15,001 — 30,000 Gallons $3.26 15,001 — 30,000 Gallons $3.11
30,001 — 50,000 Gallons $3.26 30,001 — 50,000 Galions $3.26
50,001 — 80,000 Gallons $3.77 50,001 — 80,000 Gallons $3.26
80,001 ~ 150,000 Gallons $3.77 80,001 — 150,000 Gallons $3.77
150,000+ $5.00 150,001 - 200,000 Gallons $3.77

Over 200,000 Gallons $5.00

{Quarterly domestic, non-irrigation usage only)

Scenario #1 applies a modified Water Conservation Rate structure, as presented to the City
Council on June 21st, with four tiers, versus the current five. Under Scenario #1, one customer
is currently identified at potentially benefitting from a separate commercial Hotel/Motel water
rate structure. The net revenue reduction is estimated to be $8,200 to the Utility for the 2011
billing period, or an approximately 25% reduction in currently-estimated revenues from this
customer for this period. The identified Hotel/Motel customer has seen an approximately 100%
increase in its water bill in both 2010 and 2011, as compared to 2009. With the rate adjustment
utilized in Scenario #1, this customer’s 2011 water bill is estimated to be 56% higher than 2009
(pre-water conservation rates).

Scenario #2 applies a slightly modified Water Conservation Rate structure than #1, with four
more evenly-dispersed tiers. Under Scenario #2, again with only one currently-identified
customer, the net revenue reduction is estimated to be $8,500 to the Utility for the 2011 billing
period, or an approximately 26% reduction in currently-estimated revenues from this customer
for this period. With the rate adjustment utilized in Scenario #2, this customer’s 2011 water bill
is estimated to be 53% higher than 2009 (pre-water conservation rates). Ordinance No. 08-
047A has been prepared for Council consideration, utilizing Scenario #2 and making billing
adjustments retroactive to January 2011.

“Multifamily” Commercial Water Rate Structure — According to the Minnesota Department of
Natural Resources, another acceptable Water Conservation Rate Structure exists for multiple-
family dwellings, While not specific to hotels/motels, this rate structure takes into consideration
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the independent consumptive nature of each unit within a larger single-metered facility, as well
as meeting space and offices. According to the MN DNR Guidelines:

Multiple-Family Dwellings: Total water use in a multiple-family dwelling,
which has only one water meter for the entire dwelling, may exceed that of a
single-family dwelling. The statute does not require individual water meters for
each residential unit within a multiple-family dwelling; however, the required
conservation rate at which the multiple-family dwelling’s water use is billed must
consider the number of residential units within that multiple-family dwelling,

Example: A four-plex uses a total of 18,000 gallons per month or approximately
4,500 gallons per residential unit. Water use for each residential unit falls within
the first block (0-6,000 gallons) of the above Excess Use Rate example. A rate of
$2.50/1000 gallons would apply up to a total use of 24,000 gallons for the
multiple-family dwelling. Thereafier, the rate increases according to the rate
schedule, always considering each residential unit as an individual user.

For this customer, a preliminary calculation, using the Metropolitan Council’s formula, yields 55
SAC (REC) Units, based upon the number of hotel rooms and square footage utilized for office
space and meeting rooms. Swimming pools for hotel users and mechanical rooms are exempt
from this calculation by the Metropolitan Council, It should be noted that the City does not
envision creating, at this time, a Multiple-Family Dwellings’ rate structure for other than
commercial hotels/motels. A more general commercial (and/or residential) rate structure for
Multiple-Family Dwellings would likely increase the number of affected customers,

Utilizing the Multiple-Family Dwellings’ approach for the only currently-identified hotel/motel
customer would yield an estimated net revenue reduction of $12,400 to the Utility for the 2011
billing period, or an approximately 40% reduction in currently-estimated revenues from this
customer for this period. With this rate adjustment, this customer’s 2011 water bill is estimated
to still be 29% higher than 2009 (pre-water conservation rates). Ordinance No. 08-047B has
been prepared for Council consideration, utilizing the Multiple-Family Dwellings® approach and
making billing adjustments retroactive to January 2011,

Original “Tiered — Bulk” Options — At the request of the customer, City staff has also analyzed
in greater detail the original options presented to the City Council for their consideration and
identified on June 21st, 2011 as Option A and Option B. These are shown below:

0-— 15 OOO GaHons $311 15 000 Gaﬂons il 7$3.11, on

15,001 — 30,000 Gallons $3.26 15,001 — 30,000 Gallons $3.26
30,001 — 50,000 Gallons $3.77 30,001 — 50,000 Gallons $3.77
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50,001 — 80,000 Gallons $£5.00 50,001 —- 80,000 Gallons $5.00
80,001 - 150,000 Gallons $6.63 80,001 — 150,000 Gallons $3.26
150,000+ $3.26 150,001 — 200,000 Gallons $3.26
Over 200,000 Gallons $3.26

{(Quarterly domestic, non-irrigation usage only)

Option A applies a modified Water Conservation Rate structure, as presented to the City Council
on June 21st, with four five tiers, before dropping back to the Bulk Rate for usage over 150,000
gallons, Under Option A, one customer is currently identified at potentially benefitting from a
separate commercial Hotel/Motel water rate structure. The net revenue reduction is estimated to
be $14,900 to the Utility for the 2011 billing period, or an approximately 46% reduction in
currently-estimated revenues from this customer for this period. The identified Hotel/Motel
customer has seen an approximately 100% increase in its water bill in both 2010 and 2011, as
compared to 2009. With the rate adjustment utilized in Option A, this customer’s 2011 water bill
is estimated to be 13% higher than 2009 (pre-water conservation rates).

Option B applies a slightly modified Water Conservation Rate structure than Option A, with four
tiers before dropping back to the Bulk Rate for usage over 80,000 gallons. Under Option B,
again with only one currently-identified customer, the net revenue reduction is estimated to be
$15,800 to the Utility for the 2011 billing period, or an approximately 49% reduction in
currently-estimated revenues from this customer for this period. With the rate adjustment
utilized in Option B, this customer’s 2011 water bill is estimated to be only 7% higher than 2009
(pre-water conservation rates).

A third similar option, Option C, was not further assessed, as it would have dropped back to a
Bulk Rate for usage over 50,000 gallons and only marginally reduces the customer’s water bill
and impact to the Utility over that assessed in Option B.

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the City Council receive a brief update on the
status of discussions with the Wildwood Lodge and, if appropriate, further discuss staff’s
evaluation of proposed alternatives to the City’s commercial water rate structure to potentially
address identified concerns with respect to hotel/motel water users. If appropriate, the City
Coungcil may also wish to consider the following:

“Move to approve Ordinance No. 08-0474, amending the 2011 fee schedule to
include a Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Rate, utilizing a new Water
Conservation Rate Structure.”

or

“Move to approve Ordinance No. 08-047B, amending the 2011 Jee schedule to
include a Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Rate Structure, utilizing a Multiple-
Family Dwellings’ calculation.”
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Alternatively, the City Council may reject, table, further discuss and/or modify this
recommendation, as appropriate. If the latter is undertaken, the suggested motion would be:

“Move to approve Ordinance No. 08-047A (or 08-047B), amending the 2011
fee schedule to include a Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Rate [as agreed upon
at tonight’s meetingl.”

ATTACHMENTS:

1.

DR W

Ordinance No. 08-047A

Ordinance NO. 08-047B

Minnesota DNR Water Conservation Rate Guidelines
Met Council SAC Calculations

Analysts of Identified Scenarios

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

- Introduction of [tem....c.ccoovivcnrrniiesncissneancssessenenn City Administrator
= Report/Presentation. ... ieseermveresiiineniesneissses s Finance Ditectot
- Questions from Council to Staff.......c...ccvvecrvirervenvesnnennen . Mayor Facilitates
= PUBLC INPUL oo e Mayor Facilitates
- Call for Motion ...ccecvveevevneenvreriesenneensererssesnseieenneen: Mayor & City Council
= DISCUSSION.etitevieeeeiite s e ssresenesesesreneneeeseneenenn . MBYOT Facilitates
- Action on Motion....ciereeiveseresnsrnesenniesesnonesveneenenen. Mayor & City Council
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 08-047A
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING MUNICIPAL FEES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2011
The Lake Elmo City Council hereby adopts the following fee scheduile for calendar year
2011, applicable as services outlined in Appendix A, and directs that it be added to the Lake
Elmo Municipal Code as Appendix A.

Appendix A: 2011 Fee Schedule — Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Quarterly Rate

ADOPTION DATE: Passed by the Lake Eimo City Council on the 5th day of July, 2011.

CITY OF LAKE ELMO
By:
Dean A. Johnston
Its; Mayor
ATTEST
Sharon Lumby
City Clerk

PUBLICATION DATE:
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Appendix A

City of Lake Eimo 2011 Fee Schedule
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2011

Escrow or Additional Charge

AL A i ==

] e e e e = ew e

=
Acces

<new or amended>

Amended $500.00

i ] ; T T s i - e )
sory Bldg Forward of Primary Strucmre
Administrative / Fines $0.00
Amateur Radio Antenna $875.00
Appeal (io Board of Adjustment and Appeals) 5150.00
Agsessment Search $25.00
Building Demolition
Fizst 1000 Square Feet $105.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Fach Addidonal 1000 sq feet or portion thereof $11.00 Phus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Buming Permits
Residential $45.00
Commercial $80.00
Illegal Burn $100.00
Comprehensive Plan Amendment $1,300.00
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) New $1,050.00 | Wireless Communication Facilities Escrow $6,000.00 Fiood

Plain Ordinance Escrow $500.00

CONTRACTOR LICENSE FEES

Blacktopping $75.00
BHxcavator License $76.00
Heating and A/C $75.00
Sign Insmller $50.00 Sign Reinspection Fee $25,00
Solid Waste Hanler $120.00
Tree Contract $70.00
|COPY SERVICES
Copies (B&W) $0.35
Copies (B&W) 11X 17 $L.00
Copier (Color) $0.50
Copies (Color) 11X 17 $2.00
City Map - colored $3.15
City Street Maps 36 X 40 $20.00
GI§ / Engineering Maps
Existing Maps $5.00 Provided electronically or paper
Custom. {Per Hour rate) $70.00 Provided electronically or paper
Plan Size Maps  Larger than 11 X 17 $20.00
Development Standards Specification & Details 555.00
Cude Book $160.00
Sections 1, 2, 4, 6-12, 14 $12.00
Section 3 $52,00
Section 5 and 13 $27.00
Cornprehensive Plan $125,00
OP Ordinance §12.00
Parks Plan $80.00
Culverts in Developments with Rural Section $160.80
Dog License 520,00
Service Dogs License {dogs with special trining to $5.00 Renew on expiration of rabies vaccination
assist individual with disabilities)
Uniicensed dog (first impound) $60.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Licensed dog (first impound) $42.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Cat Iropound (first impound) $42.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Subsequent dog/cat itnpound $85.00 Pius Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Duplicate License or Tag $1.00
Driveway
Residential $70.00 Phus 5,00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Cormmescial $160.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Eassment Encroaclunent

$100.00

Staff & Recording Fec

Fee & Transaction

Electronic Fund Withdrawal / Bill Payment Chatge
Erosi d, B . it: $1504.00
Excavating and Grading $125.00 rosion Control Bond, scro:;r:r Letter of Credit: $1600.00 per
False Alarm
1o 3 False alarms
In excess of 3 up w and inciuding 6 false
alanns within a twelve (12) month period
Residential $110.00
Commercizl $315.00
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City of Lake Elmo 2011 Fee Scheduie

Escrow or Additional Charge

2011
In excess of six false alarms within a twelve
(12} month period
Residential 185,00
Comtnercial $520.00
Fire
Daycare inspection Fee $60,00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Frie Alarm Systems $60.00 Plus 1% of Value
Fire Sprinkler System ({inspection Fee) 2% of value of work Minimum $100.00
Fire Sprinkler System (Reinspection Fec) $50.00
Flood Plain District Delineation $500.00
Fuel Tank Removal (Underground) $100.00 “Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Fuel Tank Install 2% of value of work Minimum $100.00

Heating ‘
New Residential $150.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Addition to Residential $75.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Commercial (New or Addition) .

Minimum $175.00
or 1% of total job

Plus minimuom 5.00 Surcharge

Interim Use Permit (IUM $1,050.00
Intcrim Use Permit (IUP)-Renewal $300.00
Interim‘Use Permit (TUP) AG Sales & $250.,00 2011 Only
Entertaintnent
Lawn Sprinklers $125.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Liquor

Club On Sale Intoxicating $100.00 per year

Off Sale Intoxicating $200.00 per year

Off-5ale Non-Intoxicating $150.00 per year

On-Sale Intoxicating $1500.00 per year

OneSale Intoxicating - 2nd Bldg $750.00 per year

On-Sale Investigation $350.00

On-8ale Non-Intoxicating $100.00 per year

On-5ale Sunday Intoxicating

$200.00 per year

Temporary Non-Intoxicating

$25.00 per event

Wine

$300.00 per year

Lot Line Adjustment $310.00
Manufactured Home Parks $1,000,00

New , $1,200.00 Plug 2500.00 Escrow

Move home out of City $100.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Move into City $150.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Minor Subdivision $500.00

Pl bond with amount to be determined by City
Moving House or Primary Structure into City $520.00 w/tecommendasion from Building Officiat
Plus Escrow to be determined by the City w/recommmendation from Building Ofiicial

Moving Accessory Structure into City $305.00
New Constroction Plan Review Per 1997 UBC (65%
Park Dedication (up to 3 lots) $3600.00 for each Fouwr or more lots per Section 400 Formula
Parking Lots

New Commercial $175.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Existing Commercial $100.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Platting

Concept (PUD or QP $1,250.00

Preliminary Plat (and Development Stage) $1,850.00

. ) Plus 2.5% Administrative Fee

Final Plat (and Final Plan) $1,250.00 Development Agreement
Plumbing

New Residential $150.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Addition to Residential $75.00 Plus 5,00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

, . Pius minimum 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Commetciat (New or Addition) 175
Private Roads (permitted only in AG zone) $150.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Restrictive Soils and Wetland Restoration :

$800.00 1500.00 escrow

Protection and Preservation Permit
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City of Lake Elmo 2011 Fee Schedule

Escrow or Additional Charge

2011
Right-of-Way Permits
Annual Registeation (1415.05 Subd. 1) $100.00
Excavation (141511 Subd. 1) $230.00
Each Additional Excavation $40,00
Trench Fee (boring or open eut) 60 per foot
Overhead Installation Fee 60 per foot
New Subdivisions {Alternate to per foot fee) $100.00
Street Obstruction Fee {1415,11 (Sub 2,) $100.00
Permit Extension $100.00
Delay Penalyy 25,00 per day
Sewage Disposal
Omn-Site Septic Systems
New Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandared)
Alterations or Repairs Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandared)
Bewer Availability Charge (SAC) $5,730.00

per SAC unit - 2230.00 to Met Council; 3500 to City

Sewer

$4.50 per 1,600 galions

Wetland Treamment

Hookup to Existing System $100.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Alteration /Repair $75.00 ) Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
201 Off-Site Maintenance Fee 75.00 per unit per
quarter
Signs Permanent $180.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (Stare Mandated)
Signs Temporary $75.00 Pius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Signs Temporary Renewal $25.00 Pius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)}
Site Plan Review (Chapter 520) $980.00
Special Events Support
Fire Deparment Egquipment/Petsonne $250/HR (Engine)
$350/HR (Ladder)
Fublic Safery WA As Per Washingtion County Sheriff's Dept, Fee Schedule
Public Works Support (Traffic Control/Other) $100.00 Plug Meterials ]
Street Cleaning Erosion Control
Escrow $5,006.00

Re-inspection

$50.00 per hour

Portal to Portal from City Hall. Minimum: 1 hour

Processing Fee

10% of Contractor’s Inveice to City

Surface Water

Residential

$50.00

Non-Residential (commercial, ag,, etc)

$50.00

Utility Rate Factor per code

‘Tennis Conrts

Per 1997 UBC

Fius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Vacations (Streets or Easements)

Basements $515.00 $500.00 Escrow
Streets 515,00 $500.00 Escrow
Variance $5750,00
'Video Reproduction $35.00
'Water
Residential ~ Quarterly Rate $25.00 Base
Plus Rate Per 1000 Gallons
0-15,000 Gallons $2.14
15,001 - 30,000 Gallons $2,86
30,007 - 50,000 Gallons $3.77
50,001 - 80,000 Gallons $5.00
80,001+ Gallons $6.63
Commercial — Quarterly Rate 525,00 Base
Plus Rate Per 1000 Galions
(-15.000 Gallons 3,11
15.001 - 30,000 Gallons $3.26
30,001 - 50,000 Gallons $3.77
50,041 - 80,000 Gallons $5.00
80007 +Gallons $6.63
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City of Lake Elmo

2011 Fee Schedule '

Escrow or Additional Charge

2011
“Commercial ~Hotél/Motdl Quartetly Rate = ~$25:00 Bage
Plus Rate Per1Q80:Gallons - -7+ 0 o oo e
- 0-15000:Gallens . C oAl
- 15001 - 30:000 Gallons - %51
- 30,001 £ 50,000:Gdlions P 7 %]
© 50001580000 Gallons - e e R0 T 9326
B0 = 150000 Gallons = L e = v S
2150,000-= 200000 Gillons - 5L a0 T . Jirir B ST
D000+ Gallons -~ -+ o ERA0 - |
All Connection Permits $140.00
Meters, MIU & Meter Instaliation Sets $300.00

Plus 25.00 or 8%, whichever is greater, if certified vo County for collection with taxes
Delinquent Accounts 6% per quarter
Digsconnect Service $80.00
Recomnect Service $80.00
Setvice Call
Water Storage Violation $15.00 per day

Bulk Water from Hydrant

$6L.20 for Erst 5,000 -

Plus 3.26 per addivonal 1000 Gals

gallons
Swimming Pool Fill F6L20 ;Z:lf;:t 5,000 Plus 3.26 per 1000 Gals & $15.00 per labor hour
Water Availability Charge (WAC)
Existing Structures within Old Village $800.00
New Development $3,900.00
Wind Generator 85000 $2000.00 Escrow
Wireless Communication Permit $500.00 $2000.00 Escrow
Z.oning Amendment { Text or Map) $1,245,00
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CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO. 08-047B
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING MUNICIPAL FEES FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2011

The Lake Elmo City Council hereby adopts the following fee schedule for calendar year

2011, applicable as services outlined in Appendix A, and directs that it be added to the Lake
Elmo Municipal Code as Appendix A.

Appendix A: 2011 Fee Schedule — Commercial Hotel/Motel Water Quarterly Rate

ADOPTION DATE: Passed by the Lake Elmo City Council on the 5th day of July, 2011.

CITY OF LAKE ELMO
By:
Dean A. Johnsion
Its: Mayor
ATTEST
Sharon Lumby
City Clerk

PUBLICATION DATE:
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2011

Escrow or Addidonal Charge

R e AT e e e T | PYSSTT i o S T B T e el R A e e g I R ot e E
|Accessory Bldg Forward of Primary Structure $80.00
Administrative / Fines $0.00
Amateur Radio Antenna $875.00
Appeal (to Board of Adjustment 2nd Appeals) $150.00
Assessment Search $25.00
Building Demolition
First 1000 Square Feet $105.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Hach Additional 100( sq feet or portion thereof F1L.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Buming Penmits
Residential $45.00
Commercial $80.00
llegal Burn $100.00
Comprehensive Plan Amendment $1,300.00

Conditional Use Permit (CUP)
<new or amended>

New $1,050,00

Amended $500.00

Wireless Communication Facilitics Escrow $6,000.00
Plain Ordinance Eserow $500.00

Flood

CONTRACTOR LICENSE FEES

Blacktopping $75.0¢
Excavator Licénse $75.00
Heating and A/C §75.008
Sign Installer $50.00 Sign Reinspection Fee $25.00
Solid Waste Hauler $120.00
Tree Conkract $70.00
COPY SERVICES
Copies (B&W) $0.35
Copies (B&W) 11 X 17 $1.00
Copies (Color) $0.50
Copies (Color) 11 X 17 $2.00
City Map - colored $3.15
Ciry Street Maps 36 X 40 $20,00
GIS / Engineering Maps
Existing Maps §5.00 Provided electronically or paper
Custorn (Per Hour rate) $70.00 Provided electronically or paper
Plan Size Maps Larger than 11 X 17 $20.00
Development Standards Specification & Details $55.00
Code Book $160.60
Sections 1, 2. 4, 6-12, 14 $12.00
Section 3 $52.00
Section 5 and 13 $27.00
Comprehensive Plan $125.00
OP Ordinance $12..00
Parks Plan $80.00
Culverts in Developments with Rural Section $160.00
Dog License $20.90
Service Dogs License {dogs with special training to $5.00 Remew on expiration of rabies vaccination
assist individuat with disabilities)
Unlicensed dog {first impound) §60.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Licensed dog (first impound) $42.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Cat Impound (first impound) $42.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Subsequent dog/cat impound $85.00 Plus Boarding Fee-20.00/Day
Duplicate License or Tag $1.00
Driveway
Residendal $70.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Commercia) $160.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Easement Encroachment

$100.00

Staff & Recording Fee

Fee & Transaction

Electronic Fund Withdrawal / Bill Payment Charge
Excavating and Grading $125.00 Erosion Control Bond, Escro:;:r:r Letter of Credit: $1500.00 per
False Alarm
1 to 3 False alarms
In excess of 3 up to and including 6 false
alarms within a twelve (12) month period
Residental $110.00
Commercia) $315.00
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C.. , of Lake Elmo 2011 Fee Schedule
011 Escrow or Additional Charge
In excess of six false afarms within a twelve
(12) month period
Residentizl $185.00
Commercial $520.00
Fire
Daycare inspection Fee 560.00 Pius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Frie Alarm Systems $60.00 Plus 1% of Value
Fire Sprinkler Svgtem (lnspection Fee) 2% of value of work Minimum $100.00
Fire Sprinkler System (Reinspection Fec) $560.00
Pload Plain District Delineation $500.00
Fuel Tank Removal (Underground) $100.00 Phus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Fuel Tanlk Install 2% of valuz of work Minimum $100.00
Heating
New Residentia) 5150.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharpe (State Mandated)
Addition to Residential $75.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Commetcial (New or Addition) Minimum $175,00 Plus minimuom 5.00 Surcharge
) or 1% of total job
Interim Use Permdt (YUP) ' $1,050,00
Interim Use Permit (TUP)-Renewal $300.00.
Interi.mlUse Permit (TUPY AG Sales & $250.00 ’ 2011 Oniy
Entertainment L
Lawn Sprinklers $125.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Liguor
Club On Sale Intoxicating $100.00 per year
Off Sale Intoxicating $200.00 per year
Off-Bale Non-Intoxicating ) $150.00 per vear
On-Sale Intoxicating $1500.00 per year
On-8ale Intoxicating - 2nd Bldg $750.00 per year
Cn-Sale Investiation $350.00
On-Sale Non-Intoxicating $100.00 per year
On-Sale Sunday Intoxicating $200.00 per year
Tempotary Non-Intoxicating $25.00 per event
Wine $300,00 per vear
Lot Line Adjustenent . $310.00
Manufactred Flome Parles $1,000.00
New $1,200.00 Pius 2500,00 Escrow
Move home out of City $100.00 Pius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Move into City $150.00 Pins 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Minor Subdivision $500.00
- \ , i X Plus bond with amount 1o be detenmined by City
Moving House or Primary Structure into City $520.00 w/secommendstion from Building Official
Moving Accessory Structure into City $305.00 Plug Bscrow 1o be determined by the Ciry w/recommendation from Building Official
MNew Construction Plan Review Per 1997 UBC (65%
Parik Dedication (up w3 Jots) $3600.00 for cach Four or more Jots per Scetion 400 Formula
Parking Lots
New Commercial $175.00 Flus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Existing Commercial $100.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Platting
Concept {PULS or OF) $1,250.00
Preliminary Plat (and Developrment Stage) $1,850.00
. . Plus 2.8% Administrative Fee
Final Plat {and Final Plan) $1,250.00
Development Asreement
Plumbing )
MNew Residentia) $150.00 Pius 5,00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Addition 1o Residential $75.00 Plus 5,00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Commercial (New or Additios) 75 Plas minimum 5.00 Surcharpe (State Mandated)
Private Roads (permitied only 1n AG zone) §150.00 Plus 5.00 Burcharge (State Mandated)
Restrictive Soils and Wetland Restoraton
, . . $800.00 1560.00 escrow
Protection and Preservation Permit
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City of, .ake Elmo 2011 Fee Schedule .
ot Escrow or Additional Charge
Right-of-Way Permits
Annual Repistration {1415.05 Subd.1) $100.00
Excavation (141511 Subd. 1) $230,00
Each Additional Excavaton $40.00
Trench Fee (boring or open cut) .60 per foor
Overhead Installation Fee .60 per foot

New Subdivisions (Alernate to per foot fec) $100.00

Street Obstruction Fee (1415.11 (Sub 2) $100.00

Pesmit Extension $100.00

Delay Penalty 25.600 per day

Sewage Disposal

On-Site Septic Systems
New Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Alterations or Repairs Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

$5,730.00

Sewer Availability Charge (SAC)

per SAC nnit - 2230,00 to Met Council; 3500 to Ciry

Sewer $4.50 per 1,000 galions
'Wetland Treatment .

Hockup to Existing Systemn $100.66 Pius 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)

Alteration/Repair §75.00 Pius.5.00 Surcharge (Statc Mandated)
201 Off-Site Maintenance Fee 75.00 per unit per

quarter

Signs Permanent $180.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Signs Temporary $75.00 Plus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Signs Temporary Renewal $25.00 Phus 5.00 Surcharge (State Mandated)
Site Plan Review (Chapier 520) $980.00

Special Events Support

Fire Deparment Equipment/Personnel

$250/HR (Engine)

$350/HR (Ladder)
Public Safety NA As Per Washingtion County Sheriff's Dept. Fee Schedule
Public Works Support (Traffic Control/Other) $100.00 Plus Meterials
Street Cleaning Erosion Control
Escrow $5,000.00
Re-inspection §50.00 per hour Portal to Portal from City Hall. Minimum: 1 haur
Processing Fee 10% of Contractor's Inveice to Chty
Surface Water '
Residential $50.00
Non-Residential (commercial, ag,, etc.) $50.06 Ultility Rate Factor per code
'Tennis Covrts Per 1997 UBC Plus 5.00 Svrcharge (State Mandated)
Vacations (Streets or Hasements)
Easements $515.00 $500.00 Escrow
Streets §515.00 $500.06 Escrow
Vatiance $750.00
Video Reproduction $35.00
Water
Residential -~ Quarterdy Rate $25.00 Base
Plus Rate Per 1000 Gallons
0-15,000) Gallons $2.14
15,001 - 30,000 Gallons $2.86
30,001 - 50,000 Gallgns $3.77
50,001 - 80,000 Gallons $5.00
80,001 +Galions $6.63
Commercial — Quarterly Rate $25.00 Base
Plus Rate Per 1000 Gallons
0-15,000 Gallons $3.11
15,007 - 30000 Gallons $3.26
30,001 - 50,000 Gallons $3.77
50,001 - 80,000 Gallons $5.00
80,001+ Gallons $6.63
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Appendix A

C.., of Lake Elmo

2011 Fee Schedule -

2011

Escrow or Additional Charge

Lommercidl —Hotel/Motel:Quarieriv Rate

. $25.00-Bage

“Plus:Commercial Rate Per: 1000 Gallons -

- ;| Uddlizing:Multiple Family Dwellings' Calculat

Based Upon REC-(EAC)
i e T

All Connection Permits $140.00
Meters, MIU 8 Meter Ingtaliation Sets $300.00
- > : . o -
Definquent Accounts 6% pos quarter Plus 25.00 or 8%, whicheverl is grc?ater, if certified to County for
collection with taxes
Disconnect Service $80.00
Reconnect Service $80,00
Service Call
Water Storage Violation $15.00 per day
GL20 for first 5,000 tH
Bull Water from Hydrant 5 g:;b:t 400 Plus 3.24 per additional 1000 Gals
.20 for first 5,000
Switming Pool Fill 861 Zﬂgzlrlu:;t Plus 3.26 per 1000 Gals & $15.00 per labor hour
Water Availability Charge (WAC)
Existing Structures within Old Village 580000
New Development $3,500.00
Wind Generator $850.00 $2000.00 Escrow
Wireless Communication Permit $500.00 $2000,00 Escrow
Zoning Amendment ( Text or Map) $1,245.00
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Conservation Rates

Minnesota Statutes, section 103G.291, was amended in 2008 to include a requirement for public water
suppliers serving more than 1,000 people to adopt a water rate structure that encourages conservation:

Minnesota Statutes, section 103G.291, subd. 4. Conservation rate structare required. (a) For the purposes of
this section, "conservation rate structure" means a rate structure that encourages conservation and may include
increasing block rates, seasonal rates, time of use rates, individualized goal rates, or excess use rates, The tate
structure must consider each residential unit as an individual user in multiple-family dwellings,

(b) To encourage conservation, 2 public water supplier serving more than 1,000 people in the metropolitan area, as
defined in section 473,121, subdivision 2, shall use a conservation rate structure by January 1, 2010. All remzining
public water suppliers serving mare than 1,000 people shall use & conservation rate structure by Jamuary 1, 2013.

(c) A public water rupplier without the proper measuting equipment to track the amount of water used by 1ts users, as of

the effective date of this act, is exennpt from this subdivision and the conservation rate stracture reguirement under
subdivision 3, paragraph (c).

In addition, Minnesota Statues, section 103G.291, was further amended to read:

Subd. 3. Water supply plans; demand reduction. (c) Public water suppliers serving more than 1,000 people must
employ water use demand reduction measures, mcluding 8 conservation rate structure. as defined in subdivision 4,
paragraph (a), unlegs exempied under subdivision 4, paragraph (c), before requesting approval from the
commissioner of health under section 144.383, paragraph (a), to consiruct a public water supply well or requesting
an increase in the authorized volume of appropriation, Demand reduction measures must include evaluation of

consetvation-tate structures and a public education program that may include a toilet and showerhead retrofit
program.

A conservation. rate structure must be employed before requesting well construction approval for a public
water supply well or before requesting an inerease in permitted volume for their water appropriation permit.

Examples of Conservation Rates:

Commercial and industria} rates can be based on cost of service and do not necessarily need io be the
same rate as that vsed for residential water nsers.

Below are exampies of rate structures that encourage conservation, Many variations and combinations of
these examples are possible.

NOTE: Rate structures often include 2 service charge (base rate) and a volume based charge. Service
charges may cover fixed costs (capital improvements) and the volume charge is often for operation and
maintenance costs. Volume charges usually use units of 1,000 galions or 100 cubic feet (748 galions).

Increasing Block Rates: Cost per unit increases s water use increases within specified “blocks” or

volumes. The increase in cost between each block should be significant enough (25% or more and 50%
between the last two steps) to encourage conservation.

Example: 0-6,000 gallons = $2.50/1000 gallons
6,000-12,000 gallons = $3.15/1000 gallons
12,000-24,000 gallons = $4.00/1000 galions
Above 24,000 gallons = $6.00/1000 gallons.

Seasonal Rates: The rate per unit increases in the summer to encourage the efficient use of water during
peak demand periods caused by outdoor water uses. Scasonal rates can take the form of a surcharge added
- to the normal rate or 2 separate fee schedule for winter and summer periods.

Example: Surcharge method - $1.00/1000 gallons is added on top of the regular fee schedule for ali

water use between May 1 and October 1.

Page 1



Conservation Rates
Page 2

Time of Use Rates: Water rates are higher at times of the day when water use demands are high. This rate

requires specialized meters that can monitor water use during specified segments of time, for instance,
every 15 minutes,

Example: Water rates are rednced by $0.75 for customers that agree not to use water for certain

purposes or over a set volume of water during certain times of the day or periods of high
water demands,

Individnalized Goal Rate (Water Budget Rate): A rate with tailored allocations developed for each
customer. The rates increase as the aliocation is used or exceeded by the customer. The allocation is
generally based upon winter or January use.

Brample: A family of four used 6,200 gallons in January. Summer use is higher than January use so a
factor is applied to determine a summer allocation (1.5 x 6,200 gallons = 9,300 gallons).

0-6,000 gallons = £2.50/1000 gallons

€¢,000-9,300 gallons = 32.75/1000 gallons

9,300-18,600 gaiions = $4.00/1000 gallons. (Allocation is exceeded.)
Above 18,600 gallons = $6.00/1000 gallons.

Excess Use Rates: Cost per unit increases greatly above an established leve] in order to trigger a strong

price signal that discourages excessive use. This rate is similar to an increasing block rate but with much
higher charges for the larger volume blocks.

Example: 0-6,00¢ gallons = §2.50/1000 gallons
6,000-12,000 gallons = £3.15/1000 gallons
12,000-24,000 galions = §5.00/1000 gallons (Excessive Use Rate)
Above 24,000 gallons=§7.50/1000 galions (Excessive Use Raig)

Multiple-Famity Dwellings: Total water use in a multiple-family dwelling, which has only one water
meter for the entire dwelling, may exceed that of a singe-family dwelling. The statte does not require
individual water meters for each residential unit within a muhtiple-family dwelling; however, the required

conservation rate at which the multiple-family dweiling’s water nse is billed must consider the mmber of
residential units within that muitiple-family dweliing,

Example: A four-plex uses a total of 18,000 gallons per month or approximately 4,500 callons per residential
unit. Water use for each residential unit falls within the first block (0-6,000 gallons) of the above Excess Use
Rate example. A rate of $2.50/1000 gallons would apply up to 2 total use of 24,000 gallons for the multiple-
family dwelling. Thereafter, the rate increases according to the rate schedule, always considering sach
residential vnit ag an individual user,

Non-conservation rate examples:

Declining (Decreasing) Block Rates: The cost per unit of water {cubic foot or gallon) decreases as the water

use increases beyond the basic block. This rate structure provides no incentive to conserve becange the cost
of water per unit decreases with increased use.

Flat Rates: A set fee allows the use of an indefinite amount of water. This rate structure is used where water
1s unmetered and provides no incentive to conserve water because cost is unrelated fo volume used,

Uniform Rates: The cost per unit is the same regardless of the volume used, This rate structure is considered
censervation neutral,

Service Charge (Base Rate) that includes a Minimum Water Volume: The inclusion of a minimom volume

of water in the service charge (base rate) discourages conservation especially if the minimum volume
exceeds average customer usage,

Conservation Rates 3 1 2010.pdf




ice Arena

Shower {if lockers use Locker Room criteria)

Teamn Room (plumbing fixture units) *17 fixture units

Bieachers , 110 seats

lce resuriacer (if discharge goes to the sanitary sewer) 1 resurfacer
Laundromat (required water volume for cycle time x 8 cycles/day x # of washers) 274 galions
Library (subtract book storage areas, file areas; charge for common plumbing fixture units in *17 fixture units
public areas)

Reception, book checkout, office 2,400 square feet

Meeting room, board room 1,850 square feet
Loading Dock . 7,000 square feet
Locker Room (if showers) : 14 lockers/hooks
Mianufacturing (for remainder use other criteria (i.¢, Office criteria) 7,000 square feet

Shower (if lockers use Locker Room criteria) , *17 fixdure units

Process Discharge Contact MCES for Determination
Martna (Dumping Station) 1 station

Areas Open to Public; see ofher criteria

Massage Room
Shower

5 stations
*17 fixture units
Meals to Go (prepared bulk meals)

# meals prepared in one day x 1.5 gallons/meal (no dishwashing) 274 galions

Meeting Room (conference room) 1,850 square feet

Memory Care (see Nursing Home)

Mini-storage (storage area - no charge)
Apartment

1 apariment
Public Ares

*17 fixture units
" Mobile Home

Motel and Hotel (assume 2 peoplefroom; no'charge for pools, saunias, whirlpools, game rooms, 2 rooms
or exercise rooms used exclusively by guests)

Breakfast only (compiimentary) ' 45 seats

Cocktail hour (complimentary) _ 55 seats

Kitchenette (number of kitchenettes x 10 galions/day) 274 gallons
WMuseum

2,400 square feet
Nail Salon (See Beauty Salon)

Nursing Home 2 beds
Office
General office (deduct mechanical rooms, elevator shafts, stairwells, and restroom areas) 2,400 square feet

Shower {if lockers use Locker Room criteria)

Meeting Room (conference room)

Dental and Doctor's office, see Hospital, Outpatient Clinic

Liquor License (see Banquet Room for the space covered under the liguor license)

*17 fixture units
1,650 square foet

Parking Garage (If connected to sanitary sewer) Minimum 1 SAC; Otherwise use Floar Drain ™7 fixture units
equivalent fixture units for Trench Drain base fixture unit assignments on outiet pipe(s) diameter,

Vehicle Washing Contact MCES for Determination
38




J
amjonns sjer jefp/oud 1e fiq Juecm]) www ¥

- aonns =y jejpaopd 1e g wwsHm0 EIT0GHE

smiongs sjel effaend 18 [ ERim) nmbn

fog

2JT)ONKS Sjel um—.«\homun e g JuaLim’) me.ﬁmm

UEERLI

6 98L'ES

is
£ somn

06 PRES
SYT0F'SS
00°03

o
<
=
&
cooo o

0518
Q0051

S+306'9%

I8
g somn

CLTEYS
0L'EL0°9S
4008
00°0%
00708
00708
0008
BL'BES
SHTLS

RN

96811
00051

fa

18
PSODE'SS £ Somiy

0
0
0008 0
0
0

7561
00061

95 L6F'ES

15
£¢ 2z

£9°TELS
£6'VITES
0603
00°0%
0008
000§
0008
00°0%

oo oco o

6rOIT

igTiady
wePmA mondo
pasodoid

000°050°T
00005
00002
G000E
[CiTvir4
00051
00051

006052
00005
0000
00008
00607
00053
00051

vIT 088
00005
0000
0000%
0000z
00051
00051

FO0TH98
PEOEHS
0L E86'5
£9900°0 00°05T5Y
£5900°0 053813
£0500°0 06 €978
00500°0 08263
LLEOOD 0T60%
9zE000 S99bg
11£00°0 $9'1L%
LTLTLEE Hiiednen
6T 187 LS
6CLEYS
0L'E86'9%
£9900°0 00°05T08
£9900°0 05°881%
£9900°0 06°£57%
050076 09263
LLEQDD 07558
STEDOD £O009%
116000 (=0 P14
POESEST
SEO0SEE
£8° 595§
LEPEISS
£9900°0 E00FYs
£9500°0 06°881%
£950070 06'£928
0050070 08'L6%
LLEDD 02598
STE00°D $O°0p8
[1£00°0 o148
SEGESAT
2 0ZE'9S
8L°07FS
QE006'5%
£9900°0 0r'001°6%
£0900°0 043218
£9500°0 06°€9TS
00500°0 08168
LLEODD sy
97£00°0 $9'9r3
11£00°0 o118
LTETTL AT
10}2B] D34 5§ 7-( uegdp
@ s3esn pesadorg

sjeTgam 1o 0 Paseq parafdig

G8TEE0NT
0004:¢%
000L
GO0OE
0000t
00051
GOOSE

opsnee
LLEOGO
LLEDOD
9ZEOO D
9zEOO0

[1E00°0

[1£00°0

£05000
LLEBOO
LLEROD
9ZEGO0
9TE000
110070
T1e000

0050070
LLEOOTO
LLEDDO
9ZEO00
9ZEOO0
11£00°0
11E60°0

05500°%
LLEOO
LLEDDO
9TEON 0
SZEOG'C
[TE000
[TE00°0

odreyo aseq oy SOPNOU] .

I-a
EDICE . 6007, LOL] IFEIINT 94
600L°9 SMONLNS 3]RL §OT WAL S5E3I0LL JEj10(]
&cﬁmm.. payjiq wmowe o3 1edun o

pajpq Nmowe 03 Joedien unowe 2o
(107 PS{ILG 90 O} NMOTLIE [ENLIUE pajoafoud [pjo L

80°€0$98 £ 6.9'8%
£ LCFS is ST LLSS 15
$§°GL0°9% $1°z01°88
007057°CS 006050 F 005000 0CT96°9% 000°0S0° T £9900°0 000°00Z 4280
00°0SZS 00005 005800 051 £ES 00005 £9900°0 000°00T - 1007051
06'£9Z% 00002 LLEBDD ol t9rS 0000L £9900°0 0007051 - 100708
OI£118 G000E LLEGOTD 000518 0000E 00500°0 000708 - 100708
arsLs an00t LLEOODD 0FSLS 0000 L1E00°0 400708 - 100°0¢
orLy$ 00061 91E000 06878 000ST STEB0D 000708 - 100751
SLOLS 40063 aLEC0D L SL0L8 00081 11€00°0 000SsI-0
Eipipied wmowy g 11-RD 000°05Z T pas(y suoed) AHNT
£EPLSLS 167660015
81°C05% IS 9.°TL9% IS
SCOLO'LE SI°8TF 68
O0°05T S 000°0SCT  QO0S00°0 0¢I8T 8% 000°05T°1  £5900°0 000'00Z 1300
0070528 06005 0050070 ag1Ees 20008 £6900°0 000°00Z - 100705t
06°€97% 00002 LLEODO 0L For% 00084 £9900°0 000°051 - 100°08
o1 gllg 0000€ LLEODD 0SS 0000¢ 0050070 000708 - 100705
0F5LS 0000 LLEODD 0F5LE 0008% LLEODD 000765 - 100798
O LFs 00051 950070 06°3¢8 000ST 9zE000 000°0E - 10G°SE
SL0LS 00081 31£00°0 + 52018 00051 11£00°0 000 - 0
Hunowy g FI-60 000! Pas[] Suo[[LL) 13U
GE'E€65°CS B1°ELF'LS
TOZLES 18 SO L678 1s
LETZTSS ¥1°9.6°08
800VFS  v9T088 0050070 6P SER'SS £51°088 £9%00°0 D00 00T 340
a0r0szs 00008 005600 05 1£E8 60008 £9960°0 0O060Z - 1007051
06'£9Z8 00002 LLEBOD 01'v97% 0000L £9900°0 0007051 - L00°08
DIELLS Q00GE LLEGD® 0070513 0000 505000 000708 - 100°08
0V SLS 40062 LLEDOG oL 0000E LLEGOD 0G006 - 10G°0E
0¥ L¥S $0081 SIE00¢ 06875 00081 9TE00°0 000°0€ - 100751
SL0L% 00051 SLE00G « S0 Q0081 T1E00°8 000s1-0
LETEEESL EEosaEBIEE unowy g 1170 VOTOS0] Pas[] SWOJIEL 1Y
LE50F 95 8900583
LO9THS 15 8E695% 18
0660665 QE166°LS
05991758 08TEEO'T 005000 £9°0£8°9% DRT'EEC'T  £9900°0 000°00T 4240
00°05T3 00008 005000 85 1S 0000¢ £5900°0 000°00Z - 100°05|
06'£5T% 0000L LLEODD 0149 0000L £9900°0 0007051 - 100°0E
T ET1E 0000 LLEQDD 000518 0600 0050070 800708 - 100'08
07595 0O00T STEO00 jTAS 0000 118000 000°08 - 100°0%
06°8F3 00051 SZTEO00 0673738 00051 9Z£00°0 000°0£ - 100°51
Ly 00051 T1E00°0 « SL0LS 060ST F1E00°0 000751 -0
o *= U0 I 23N
LA TuRsWY 13g ORTEEL Pasjy SUOfes 130g
- wendo e
pasedosg

3-00-TZL00B007ED



npans $187 jejyoud 12 [[iq Juarmy)

Tyonns ajerjepaond i JIq JaImy) i1 | hm_,

tushiS Al 1By 12 ({lq JIRIm T

TOTAS 9184 JE[F0rd 18 [[1 URLm ) mmr G : .

D
Beliteisy

PIO

T

wie 3Py wondo

-a
SALBE
£LP85°CS

WEL Tt

E£1°85L°58

85°TRES
STCLESS

00708
00°0%
60°0%
G008
6008
B0'9Z§
[SUNFAS

I PoF 58

£6'67r8
SHPED'9S
Q003
200§
00°0%
0008
00°0%
LO°8ES
Co1LE

080ZLSS
6508ES
GEOPESE

00°0%
0008
0008
0008
0008
3 ATAY
SY1LE

95°LaY'ES

£9°7EL%
£579Z'cS
0603
o00%
0008
00°9%

pasodoig

¢ s

0
0
0
¢
0

0%E8
G081

§¢ soumy

(== = Ry =1

96811
£0081

SC sonm)

0
0
0
0
0

Z56L
0005t

£ sowp

oo ocooco

EF0TT

0£900°0
05900°0
0£900°0
064000
0LEQU0
0TE00°0
£0E00°0

IS6VI'ET

0$3007%
05509°¢
05900°0
06¥00°0
0L£00°0
0ZE0d 0
SOE000

1£°968'92

0£900°%
0490070
0590070
0640070
OLEGOD
0TE000
£GE000

£ETS6TT

DS800°0
0590070
BES00°D
0670070
0480070
07EQ00
$0EQ00

SE'6H0'TT
101E] 291 §§
@) 288y

UL
LULTSLE

Yt8 VT

£F¥ES9S
19°%EF3

T 6609
T 99858
05°881%
06°e9T8
0§°L63
0T'59%
998
£9°1L8

12°8€9°28
£0°805%
61°0E1°LS
64965798
05°881%
058'¢€928
08°L63
0T°65%
£9oF8
§91LY

PEOLY' 03

CLOEPS
65°CFD'0S

CZT'ELO'T Q05000

booes
G000L
G000E
0006T
00051
00051

LLEDOO
LLEDOTO
QTELOD
9TEQ00
TTEQ00
11€00°0

L6Z°6LZ°T 005000

00008
0000L
0000E
00L0T
000¢T
00081

LLEOOD
LLEDOO
9zTLO00
9TE000
E1£00°0
1Te000

6T T1ECSH BLETI0T  00SDO0

058818
06°£9T8
08°L63
0Z'55%

0%°695°7S

TELETS
STTLLES

86°820°CS

0578818
067€9Z%
03L68
0T 598
So9¥8

pasodorg

00005
0000L
00008
0090T
00081
DODET

9TL'LOY

00005
0900L
0J00E
6300t

00081
00081

LLEDOO
LLEDOTO
9TEO00
9zE000
[1EODC
TLEGOG

0Qs00°0
LLEODD
LLEDDO
STED0D
9TEOO0
T1E60°0
T1£G0°0

SF.eqd 358q 7§ SSPOIAT 4

1-a
%ET'SS
CURS6'LS

00S00°0
00500°0
LLEODO
LLEQDD
LLEOOO
418000
S1£00°0

BY96E DS L6T6LTY 005000

9F'L9°98

08°6FFS

L5581°9§
TI59ESE  ETTELO']
00°6528  000GS
06°€9Z% 0000
OTETIT  0000%
OFSLS BO00T
oF L¥$ 00051
SL0LS 00051
Lo8TaR!
STIELLS

1THISE

FOLITLY

00055 0000%
06°E9TS  00GOL
OI'EIS  0000%
(TR 00002
OF LPS 000ST
SLOLE 0005§
LI
8689598
59T

PP TE198

68 TIE ST BLETIO':
00°05T8  0000S
06'E978  0000L
eIy 00gog
OrSLS 0000Z
o' L3S 000ST
SLOLE 00gsT

6T550°ES

1TE0TS
80'758°CS

85°8E0°TS  STLLOV

00°05T8
06°€9T§
oT°ct1%
DT'E%8
0685
[Uardis

pasodoly

06005
0000L
0300E
G300
005t
06051

£0500°0
LLEGOTO
LLEDOD
LLEODO
91e000
000

050070
00500°0
LLEQDD
LLEQDC
LLEOTO
9TE0d 0
91006

005000
0046070
LLECDD
LEEGDTD
9ZT£00°0
9TEO'D
THECDD

| Lapilens
HECEOL
68'S68FI

7577L9'8%
780168 is
04°660°8%
CECLEDS ETTELOT] 05906°0
00°575% 00065 0$900°0
00°55¥5 0000~ 059000
00°Lr1§ 0000€ 06¥00°G
00°FLS Q000T 0LEORD
00°8+% 000§ 0TE00 G
+ 5L0LS 20051 SOE00C
i wnowymd 01D
P LOT0TS
9TTLIS 18
SUSEK'6S
TrS1E8s  L6TBLTT 059600
00°STES 0000S G5900°0
00°§SS 0000L 05060°0
00°LYIS 0000% 06760°0
0L 00002 OLE00°0
00°8FS 00GST 0zEe00
« SL0LS 00051 SO£000
wmewy g Q-0
00°L65°88
08153 18
1757088
9P 50695 SLETI0N 859000
00°5TES 00005 053000
00°SS¥S 0000L 4590070
0 LIS 0000€ 0680070
00bLS 0000T QL0070
00°ErS 00051 0Z£00'0
« SLOLE 00051 $0£00'0
WEBEORTR ymowyig 0120
TS RE0FS
19°80Z% 1s
06'69L°CS
CI'0g9°Ts  9IL'tOF 05500°0
00°STES 0600s 05500°0
B0SEFS 0600L 05900°0
00°LPIS 0000E 06+00°0
Q0PLS 00002 OLEOO0
02y 00081 0ZE00'D
£ SL'0LS 000§ T SOE00°0
AT IAUE 430
et se ymomy ma
DAINE [ET0Y 0F-10

. 6007 WO asealdul o
SEINES 1 G(7, WO 5L Je[[00

PA[11q NMOUE O] el %
palirg Jmowe 03 Joedun aejjo
Pa111q FRSUIE [BNUE |23 ]

000°04T 1340
000°00€ - [0070%1
0907081 - 14908
000768 - 1OG0S
DOO°GE - 100°0€
000°0€ - 106°51
000°¢1 -0

§CLELTE pas[] SUDJ|BS) 13U

0087007 40
000°00Z - 1607061
004'0S1 - 100708
000708 - 100728
00005 - 10070
000°0€ - 100°5#
006°61 -0

LETELY'T Pas() suoj ey 13juy

0047C0T a0

G0 00T - 10U°05T
0607051 - 100°08
000708 - 100708
000708 - 100°0€
000°0% - 100°ET
6Q0°51 - §

SLETIZ'T pasy] suoqeD 1330g

0007007 1340
00000 - 1007051
000°051 - 100'08
000°08 - 100°0S
00008 - [00°0%
000°0% ~ 100°5Y
000°SE- 0

2147109

pas(] SUO[|ES) A1

ALIAILOV ¥91VAL NOILVOREI"NON
5-00-1ZL00000-£0




=IRSNIS 3181 u.mdw.nbnﬂ Je g uﬂv..r._.—.o
F6984'CS
06" YRES
SOZ0F'CS

18
£5 seuun

4008
Q008
00’08
GO0%
[
LS9ZE
£9'iis

[ =i =

Qcig
00051

590598
TLTERS 18
GLEL'SS 5 soum
00°0% 0
000s 0
008 0

0

0

0003
o008
8L°8ES
SSILE

amyongs s3e1 jepyond 38 [rq Jusimy] i

16°8PLCS

LETBES
G003
4008
40'0%
0008
00°0%

[ 54y
SOTLS

Is
§gowR

==

TS6L
00051

SRS

9 LEV'ES
£9'ZEC3
S6H9TES
00’03
0070%
a0°0%
0008

18
&g sewn

0008
0008
9£'658

(=N = =N~ = =]

6¥0TT

SIMoNNS 208y Jefzaoud I8 Iq Jusum)
ety 3&& nouno
pasodolg

a3rew a5eq C7S SepRIA

N 600Z EBM SERINE B
mh:uEum STRI g7 WOL SSEIIIUL JB[O(]

PoIN sunowe o) yoedu 9,
pa[Iq JUnowe ) 1oedunl IO R0
110T Peiftq 29 o1 mnowrs pmmme pasefoxd E10],

9L GSEPS OES0LFS CFGLO°8S
1+ 9625 18 HEE 18 87°iL5S is
$1001°4% SIE6E' S STIO18S
£9900°0 COEZFES 09070551 O0ETFES  000HSOT 0519658 000°0SD'Y  £998C°0 H0000T Toa0
99000 GOE0is 06005 0a0°esls 0000% QSTIES 0000S £9900°0 000°00Z - 1007051
SOO0G°D 07'827% 0400Z 01 ¥5F% 0000L Q1 pOTE anoaL £9900°0 000°0ST ~ 100708
05000 0O0sTE G000E 000518 00065 000s1S GO0OE 05060 006°0% - 100705
LLEDDD 0000T [T L:S 0057 Ot'sLs GO00T PLE00°0 006°0¢ - [80°08
9TEOH'D 00051 cm.m& o008t 06883 00051 STEO0D 0060 - 106°C1
11E00°0 00051 0005 T E1£00°0 » SLOLS aonst 1160 0001 -0
LTLTLTT ooy g T1-R0 PAS() STOIEL) )R
0SS5 94'60¢'5% 16660013
L8TFES 1$ 196558 9L 1098 18
STTIBFS [T $T°375'65 .
£9909°0 00°SL0FS 900°0STT 00O 00005T 05°L8T°8% 000°0ST L £9900°0 0087007 10A0
£9900°C 00'E91% G000S areeig o008 05'16E% 00008 £9500°0 000°002 - 100051
£9900°0 [iTg o 0oL oL F9Es 0800L 0L 5918 00002 £9900°0 BOK'0ET - 10G'08
D0S600 000518 00005 Bl kY 0000 000sEg 0000E 003000 00008 - 100°08
LLEBOD 0v'5is 00002 O%SLS 0000 G7'SLS 0000z LEE000 060°08 - 100°0E
Erasviy 06875 G00ST 'z 06°8¥S GOOST 06°%+S 000sT 9TENOG 000°0€ - 100°CT
TiS60°0 59148 00051 Ti€66'0 SLBLS 0a0st 116079 = §L70L8 GHoST [1£00°0 000°5L-0
YO E9E°0T €D Q0005 . pasy) SUo[[esy Iy
S EOR°CE S16I1°%8 SUELY' LS
96 9523 188 18 SOL6YS 1S
8F'509°CS 3F 14878 194698
£9900°0 CLEO8TS 1088 69878 91088 6FCER'SY 91088 £9900°0 000'00Z Le40
£9900°0 0075913 a000s 00918 00008 05°TEES 00005 £9900°0 000°00Z - 100°051
£9900°0 028273 0000L 01 79v3 0000L 0T F5+8 00002 £9900°C 000°0ST - 10008
005000 00°051$ 0000€ 0005 0000E 00°05T$ 0000€ 005000 000°08 - 100°08
LLEDOD or'ELs 00002 GreLs £000T LLEDDTD" OF'sLS 0000 LLEOD'G 000°0¢ - 10008
9ZEO00 06'818 00051 06845 00081 9TE000 06°8+S 00051 9TE£000 000°0€ -~ 100°CT
[1€00°0 SO°TLS 08051 SL0L8 20081 11000 * SL0L% 00051 T1£00°0 000510
££'6£9%6E [ finnowy [ 1170 Pas[} SUO[IEL) Sopu
LTB6EYS 29°15'%5 89709583
€5 T6TS 18 65°60ES 18 2€°695% 18
950145 6T TPEYS 0E166°LS
£9900°0 [ T a2 92E00°0 G6F8UE°ES  O8T'EC0T  STE000 Co058°98 08T'EC0'T  £9900°0 000007 22a0
£9%00°0 00°E9LS 00008 9ZE00°0 Q€918 20005 9ZE00°0 05°1£E3 00065 £9900°0 $00°00Z - 100°051
£9900°0 0T8I 00002 9ZENO'0 gt G006 £09500°0 0T POYS 00004 £9900°0 000'08T - 100°08
005000 0070513 0000€ 00500°0 00'051$ 0000% 4050070 800518 0006¢€ 0050070 000°02 - 100°05
LLEDOD orsLs 0900¢ LLEDOQ or'sLs 0000T LLEODO oveLg 0000Z LLECOD 000°05 - 100°0E
9ZLO00 06843 0005T 9ZE00°0 06'87% 00051 9ZEOO0 06'8%% 000$T 9ZEH00 000°0€ - 100°S1
T1£00°0 €O 1LE 00051 F1€00°0 0rELs Q00s 115000 * SL0LS 00051 11£00°0 000°CT -0
-+ ATUO JSISW SN
LTETTT 5 yemotry” (il 08TEETL. Pasq) SUOeD) Tajuy
I0}0E) 031 G g nounO 110
® s8es) pasodoly pasodolg XIATIDY 9LV A NOLLVOTEI-NON

9-00-12£00000-£0
PATq TOSPOH TTCH
S[EMoE (147 ©O peseq paiesfory



g . (-

CITY OF

LAKE

l"ELMD MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMUNICATION

DATE: 7/19/2011
REGULAR

ITEM #: 17
DISCUSSION

AGENDATITEM: Update Re: Library Service Considerations
SUBMITTED BY: City Council (Follow-up from July 5th, 2011 Staff Report)
THROUGH:  Bruce A. Messelt, City Administrato%ﬁ&

REVIEWED BY: -NA-

SUMMARY AND ACTION REQUESTED: This item has been scheduled at the request of the
City Council in order to update the Council and public on efforts to retain and enhance library
services for the Lake Elmo community.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Several formal meetings and informal discussions among
City and County officials have led to an understanding that long-term provision of County
library services in Lake Elmo remains highly vulnerable to both budgetary considerations and
County-wide consolidation of services to address identified efficiencies, economies of scale and
customer preferences.

On June 29th, 2010, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2010-031 establishing a Public
Library System, authorizing a Library Levy, and establishing a Public Library Board for the City
of Lake Elmo. However, this Resolution could be dissolved by action of the City Council, if
sufficient progress was made in discussions directed at “maintaining and improving existing
library services or fransferring library services from the County to the City . . .

On August 17th, 2010, the City Council approved Resolution 2010-041 “staying establishment
of a Public Library System, authorizing a Library Levy, and Establishing a Public Library Board
for the City of Lake Elmo,” pending outcome of further discussions with the County.

In May 2011, the City Council directed City staff to explore the feasibility of the City
undertaking library service provision, within some form of continued affiliation or association
with Washington County. Since that time, City staff has also engaged the assistance of the
Friends of the Rosalic E. Wahl Library in exploration of alternative service models.

On July 5th, 2011, the City Council directed that County Library representatives be invited to
attend an upcoming Council Workshop to further discuss this item. The County respectfully
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City Council Meeting @ . Update from Washington County Re: L@mﬂl’}’ Service Considerations
July 5th, 2011 Regular Agenda Item # 17

declined this invitation, pending County Board discussion of future Library services at its July
12th, 2011 Meeting and a stated desire for Lake Elmo to prepare a position statement for the
County to consider.

On July 12th, the County Board received a report from Library Director Conley (attached),
which outlined budget scenarios for 2012, The County Board did not take further action on this
item.

STAFF REPORT: The Mayor, City Council Members, City Administrator, City Attorney and
others have formally met and/or spoken with County officials on several different occasions, and
have continued to research and discuss applicable legal, operational and financial implications
with various representatives from the County, state and regional library authorities, and local
library supporters.

Based upon the County’s 2011 Library budget, efforts have been taken to structure the retention
of library services at minimum maintenance levels (generally current operations) at the four
smaller branch libraries for 2011. However, ongoing State budget discussions seem to imperil
even completion of 2011 at current operating levels (please note County White Paper).

In addition, the County has begun discussions with each of the four communities hosting these
branch libraries regarding long-term service options, alternative future service models (such as
Hugo’s new Kiosk system) and the possibility of transition to a new service model (please see
the attached Marine on St. Croix proposal). Recent discussions and Tuesday’s Board
presentation indicate a potential tramsition lo non-County affiliated “reading rooms” and
County-run kiosks in two of these communities as early at autumn 2011 — even without service
adjustments emanating from the State budget.

City action would be required by the end of July to allow for the County to prepare for Truth-in-
Taxation hearings in September. For information, here is the 2009, Payable 2010, Levy
collected by Washington County for Library operations and debt service.

Library $ 12,580,838 1.97180655% | $ 248,070
Library debt | § 12,580,838 0.23896744% | $ 30,064

RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended the City Council briefly review and discuss the
actions, decisions and research undertaken, to date, as presented at the earlier Workshop.
Appropriate staff direction is also recommended, should the City Council wish to proceed
with a specific action. In particular, two follow-on activities are noted for Council
consideration:

-- page 2 --
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* Review and potential advancement of a City of Lake Elmo proposal to Washington
County, based upon Council direction, for the continued provision of library

services; and

» Consideration of Council action — through adoption of draft Resolution No. 2011-
024 — to establish a Public Library System, authorizing a Library Levy, and
establishing a Public Library Board for the City of Lake Elmo and directing staff to
work with Washington County on an affiliation/ association agreement and related

transition efforts.

ATTACHMENTS:
1, Washington County Board Briefing Paper — July 12th, 2011

Resolution 2010-031 & Resolution 2010-041
“Public Library Service in Washington County” — March 2011

A i o

Drafi Resolution No. 2011-024

SUGGESTED ORDER OF BUSINESS:

Draft Position Paper (fo be sent separately — still under preparation)

Marine Library Committee Recommendation to Marine City Council — March 2011

- Introduction of Item & Brief Staff Report....oc.oovvveeevinninnne City Administrator
- Questions from Council to Staff.............ccccovevereeeerennnn. Mayor & City Council
- Public Input, if Appropriate.......cccverereriersrencnrresiessenieneenneen. Mayor Facilitates
- DISCUSSION..coiiiisiicccirirevcinrinreins s e s ssasessess e Mayor Fagilitates
- Direction or ACtion? .......cccvvevirevceireccmnincnereneineninnnnenn, Mayor & City Council
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Patricia Coniey
Director

DRAFT—FOR DISCUSSION ONLY

Financially Sustainable Library Service Models

2012 Library open hour options
July 12, 2011

Goal

Based on 1} a 2012 levy target that is the same as 2011 or 2) a 3% reduction from the 2012 levy
target, there will be insufficient staff to support current library service at 9 branches at 349 open
hours per week. The Library recommends that open hours be based on the number of staff that can
be afforded.

The challenge is to offer sufficient access to library resources and services, promote customer self-
service and retain high staff productivity.

Within an environment of a shrinking workforce due to budget reductions, the library will...
Meet the library service needs of customers to greatest degree possible

Use technology and innovation to maintain access to the library whenever possible
Preserve essential library services

Preserve access to the library and to good customer service

Provide security for customers and employees

Adjust branch open hours to utilize available staff hours and preserve user access
Provide adequate staff coverage for customer service during library open hours

Create public access and staffing parity among geographic regions within County

Staffing patterns

Staffing patterns for public service are based on 2010 activity levels for each branch, Branches are
organized into three service areas or regions. Activity levels include number of visits, loans,
reference transactions and pubiic computer use, al! of which require various staff responsibilities
and customer assistance. Staffing patterns are also based on customer activity levels during
particular times of the day, e.g. afternoons are busier than mornings and evenings. In addition,
activities such as story times, programs, classes, school visits, tours, marketing, collection
maintenance and professional development require planning, community outreach and dedicated
time away from public service desks.

8595 Central Park Place, Woodbury, Minnesota 55126
Phone: 651-275-8500 + Fax: 651-275-8509 « TTY: 651-430-6246
www.co.washington.mn.us
Equal Employment Opportunity / Affirmative Action



Washington County Libr;{* “inancially Sustainable Service Models: 2({"
July 12, 2011

2010 Performance measures by branch and Group

Library activity per hour by branch, 2010
RH Statord e

Hardwood Creek 8 Hugo Express

Park Grove

Qakdate

Wildwood

Valey

!

Marine

RE Wahi

Newport %

B Visits  # Louns & Reference @ PC Use

f 50 100 150 200 250 300 350

Source: Horizon Report, 2010; Cybrarian Report, 2010; Washington County Library Gate Count Report, 2010

DS

FL 1161 58 2052}  0.20] 178,932 61 97,065 5.25

158 5.36 7 14313 . 9.5
wWw 4.65 46) 2349 0.10] 86,226 37 41,931 2.5 80 216 10,020 4.3 8360 3.6
MA 0.56 20) 956 0.03] 15,318 15 7,942 0 23 0.56 3,949 4.0 403 0.4

wa 13.40 58/  2852| 0.23| 427,335 145 139,855 695! 909,671

VA 142 20 996 0.07[ 22,655 23 13,410 0.5 39473

N E 0.53] 20 996] 0.03 3_,745
57

PG 7.30 46 2349 0.16] 158659 3.77] 286,333

QA 5.94 46 23489  0.13[ 105,704 259 202,921

4.4

16,87

WCL 46.24 334 16,935 0.14 1,009,446 60 444,350 23,76 2,154,220 127 3

A 87,554 v
NOTE: 2010 branch stutistics reffect a reduction of 35 open hours a week from May 30 through September 4,
2010 (Summer Schedule).

7.

131,345




Washington County Library FinanciaPv Sustainable Service Models; 2012
July 12, 2011 % @

Current 2011 Open Hours

9 locations/7days/349 open hours

HOURS/

BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY WEEK
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-5 9:30-5 61
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 9;30-8 9:30-8 9:30-5 9:30-5 61
Park Grove 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 | 12:30-5 5:30-5 49
Oakdale 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 49
Wildwood 1-5 2:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 49
Valley closed 10-2 - 2-6 26 2-6 10-2 closed 20
RE Wahl closed 10-2 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 closed 20
Marine closed 10-2 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 closed 20
Newport closed 10-2 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 closed 20

HOURS/DAY

Five of nine branches open 7 days a week/52 weeks per year offering day, evening and weekend
access to services,
RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek branches each open 61 hours.
Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood branches each open 49 hours.
Valley, RE Wah!, Marine and Newport branches each open 20 hours, Monday through Friday.
¢ Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Open hour options

In order to maintain library operations and preserve essential functions, the library proposes to
adjust locations, days and hours to levels that can sustain staffing levels that the 2012 budget
scenarios support, The fewer open hours, the more staff can be deployed at larger branches.
Staffing larger branches is preferable because of the ability to allocate resources more efficiently

and offer services to a greater number of people.



Washington County Libraf" Financially Sustainable Service Models: 2(%”“'-
July 12, 2011, .

Option A1--2012 levy target
9 locations/é days/297.5 open howrs

HOURS/
WEDNESDAY THUSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY  WEEK

BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY

RH Stafford 1-5 closed - 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-5 9:30-5 50.5
Hardwood Creek 1-5 closed 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-8 9:30-5 9:30-5 50.5
Park Grove 1-5 closed 9:30-8 - 12:30-8 12;30-8 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 41.5
Oakdale closed closed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 37.5
Wildwood closed closed 9.30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 375
Valley closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
Lake Elmo closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
Marine closed closed 26 2-6 2-6 10-2 i0-2 20
Newport closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
HOURS/DAY 12 0 68.5 59,5 59.5 44.5 3.5 297.5

Branches open 6 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

s Al branches closed Mondays.

* RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 10.5 hours per week. Open Sundays.
» Park Grove open hours reduced 7.5 hours, Open Sundays. :

e Qakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 11.5 hours per week. Closed Sundays.

» Valley, Rosalie E Wahl, Marine and Newport branches open Saturdays.

e Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Option A2— Levy minus 3% target
9 locations/5 days/243.5 open hours

HOURS/
WEEK

BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THUSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

RH Stiafford closed closed 9:30-8

Hardwoed Creek closad ciosed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 1| 12:30-5 9:30-5 34,5
Park Grove closed closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 315
-Qakdale closed closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 315
Wildwood closed closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 315
Valley closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20

Lake Eimo closed closed 2-B 2-b 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
Marine closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
Newport closed closed 2-6 _ 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20

HOURS/DAY
Branches open 5 days a week offering day, evening and Saturday access to services.
s All branches closed Sundays and Mondays.
* RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced by 26.5 hours per week.
* Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 17.5 hours per week.
* Valley, Rosaiie E Wahl, Marine and Newport branches open Saturdays.
¢ Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Smaller branches serve 13% and larger branches 87% of library customers. Staffing the four smallest
branches means that fewer staff will be available at the five Jarger branches to serve a greater humber of
customers, ‘




Washingion County Library Financi

July 12, 2011

Option B1—2012 levy target

%J-'\{ Sustainable Service Models: 2012
?' ‘.

7 locations/7 days/249 open hours

BRA A ONDA DA ) DA RSDA RIDA i RDA
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 46
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 46
Park Grove closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 39
Oakdale closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 39
Wildwood closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 39
TBD closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
TBD closed closed -2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20

HOURS/DAY

8

43.5

45.5

45.5

30.5

30.5

Branches open 7 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 15 hours per week.

45.5

249

Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 10 hours per week. All are closed Sunday.
Two Boutique branches each open 20 hours per week. Both are closed Sunday and Monday and open
Saturday, :

¢ Two Boutique branches transitioned to alternative library service,

¢ Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Transitioning two small branches to alternative services that require fewer FTE allows available staff
members to be deployed at the five larger branches.

Option B2-- Levy minus 3% target
7 locations/7 days/222.5 open hours

BRA DA DNDA DA D DA RSDA RIDA A RDA
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 1-5 42.5
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 42.5
Park Grove closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 325
Cakdale closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 325
Wildwood closed 12:30-8 | 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 32.5
TBD closed closed 1-5 1-5 1-5 1-5 1-5 20

TBD closed closed 1-5 1-5 1-5

HOURS/DAY 8 43.5 45.5 30.5

Branches open 7 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

s RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 18.5 hours per week.

» Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 16.5 hours per week. All are closed Sunday.

» Two Boutique branches each open 20 hours per week, Both are closed Sunday and Monday and open
Saturday.

s Two Boutique branches transitioned to alternative library service.

e Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Transitioning two small branches to alternative services that require fewer FTE allows available staff
members to be deployed at the five larger branches.
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Option C1—2012 levy target
6 locations/7 days/236 open hours

HOURS/

BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY WEEK
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 46
Hardwood Creel 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 46
Park Grove 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 46
Oakdale closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 9:30-5 39
Wildwood closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 9:30-5 39
T8D closed closed 2-6 2-6 2-6 10-2 10-2 20
OURS/DA 46 i / 5 5 i 5

Branches open 7 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

* RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 15 hours per week.

¢ Park Grove open hours reduced 3 hours per week.

» Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 10 hours per week, Both are closed Sunday.
* One boutigues branch open 20 hours per week. Closed Sunday and Monday. Open Saturday.
* Three Boutigue branches transitioned to alternative library service,

» Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Transitioning three small branches to alternative services that require fewer FTE allows available staff
members to be deployed at the five larger branches,

Option €2— levy minus 3% target
6 locations/7 davs/208.5 open hours

HOURS/

BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY  WEEK

RH Stafford 15 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 42.5
Park Grove closed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 38.5
QOakdale closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 32.5
Wildwood closed 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 12:30-5 12:30-5 1-5 32.5
TBD closed closed 1-5 1-5 1-5 20
HOURS/DAY 8 46.5 41.5 26.5 '

Branches open 7 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

» RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 18.5 hours per week.

Park Grove open hours reduced 10.5 hours per week. Closed Sunday.

Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 16.5 hours per week. Both are closed Sunday.
One boutique branch open 20 hours per week. Closed Sunday and Monday. Open Saturday.
Three Boutique branches transitioned to alternative library service.

s Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Transitioning three small branches to alternative services that require fewer FTE allows available staff
members to be deployed at the five larger branches.




Washington County Library Financié‘“'t Sustainable Service Models: 2012 £
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Option D1—2012 levy target

5 tocations/7 days/230 open hours

HOURS
BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THUSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY WEEI(/
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 12:30-5 46
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 46
Park Grove 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5| 12:30-5 46
Qakdale 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 12:30-5 46
Wildwood 1-5 9:30-8 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 12:30-5 46

HOURS/DAY 52.5 52.5 37.5 22.5 22.5

Branches open 7 days a week for same hours offering day, evening and weekend access to services.
e RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 15 hours per week.

* Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 3 hours per week.

* Valiey, Rosalie £ Wahl, Marine and Newport branches transitioned to alternative library service.
e Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

Available staff is deployed to the five larger branches. Larger branches are preferable because of the ability
to allocate resocurces more efficiently and offer more services to a greater number of people. Deploying
available staff members during fewer open hours, allows a higher level of service and customer satisfaction.
Al branches would have the same hours. Consistency creates equitability across geographic regions and has
greater clarity for customers.

Option D2— Levy minus 3% target
5 locations/7 days/188.5 open hours

‘ HOURS/
BRANCH SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THUSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY WEEK
RH Stafford 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 1-5 42,5
Hardwood Creek 1-5 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 1-5 42.5
Park Grove closed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 closed 34.5
Oakdale closed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 closed 345
Wildwood closed 9:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-8 12:30-5 | 12:30-5 closed 34.5

HOURS/DAY 8 52.5 375 37.5 22.5 22,5

Branches open 7 days a week offering day, evening and weekend access to services.

RH Stafford and Hardwood Creek open hours each reduced 18.5 hours per week,

Park Grove, Oakdale and Wildwood open hours each reduced 14.5 hours per week.

Valley, Rosalie E Wahl, Marine and Newport branches transitioned to alternative library service.
Hugo Library Express is open 24/7.

.« & @

Available staff is deployed to the five larger branches, Larger branches are preferable because of the ability
to allocate resources more efficiently and offer more services to a greater number of people. Deploying
available staff members during fewer open hours, aliows a higher level of service and customer satisfaction.
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Distance from branches
Most county residents live within 5 miles of at least one branch and within 10 miles of at least two
branches or the libraries in Stillwater and Bayport.

Distance to branches from cities and townships
including Hugeo Experss and Associate Libraries

Woadhury
Willernine

White Bear Lake
West Lekeland Township
Stitbwater

Seandia

st Paul Park

St Mary's Poing
Pine Springs

Ouvk Park Hetghts
Cakdale

Newpror

Way Township
Marine on 8t Crokx
Mahtormerd
LeerrcHa]

Lake 5t Croix Beach
Lakeland Shoreas
Lakeland

Lake Bl

Hugo

Hastings

Grey Cloud sland... |
Grant |

Farest Lake
Denmark Township
Deltwood

Cottage Grove
Birchwood Village
Baytown Township
Bayport

Aften

i Branches within 5 mi

 Branches within 10 mi

Cities and townships

a 2 4 6 3

Nurrther of branches
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Open hours and FTE by metro-area libraries
Among the 8 metro-area libraries, Washington County Library ranked 5th in number of open hours
and 6th in number of employees (FTE} in 2010.

2010 open hours and employees by library

@ Total #t of Paicl FTE Employess  #& Hours Open Weekly

Henmnapin Coundy Libraty B 1841
St. Paul Public Library
Dakota County Library
Anoka County Library
Washingion County Libwary

Ramsey County Library

Scott County Library
Carver County Library

Source: Minnesota Public Multipie Library Report, 2010

FTE per hour by library
Among the 8 metro-area libraries, Washington County Library ranked 6th in FTE per open hours in

2010.

2010 FTE per open hour by library

Hennepin Caunty Library .34
Ramsey County tibrary
Rakota County Library
Anoka Cotmty Library
St Paul Public Library

Washington County Libwary

Carver County Library

Scott County Library B 011

¢ 005 01 015 02 025 03 035 04

Source: Minnesota Public Multiple Library Report, 2010



CITY OF LAKE ELMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO. 2010-31

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM, AUTHORIZING A LIBRARY
LEVY, AND ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD FOR THE CITY OF LAKE ELMO.

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and '

WHEREAS,' the residents of the City currently receive library services through
‘Washington County; and '

‘WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo desires to establish and operate a City Public Library
Service pursuant to Minnesota Statites § 134.07 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City of Lake Elmo to.provide well managed and
- quality library services for the residents of Lake Elmo; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo intends to set aside public property of the City for
the benefit of the Public Library Service; and -

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed the establishment and operation of a Public
Library Service at its June 29, 2010 meeting, B

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of

Lake Elmo hereby establishes a City Public Library Service under Minnesota Statutes § 134.07 et
seq., as follows: B '

1) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.09, the City Council hereby establishes a five-

person Library Board, with members to be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of
the City Council from among the residents of the City.

2) The initial Library Beard will have two residents of the City each appointed for a one-
year term, two residents of the City each appointed for a two-year term, and one resident
of the City appointed for a three-year term. Not more than one council member shall at
any time be a member of the Library Board.

3) Said appointments will be effective on J anuary 1, 2011, or a date to be determined by the
City Council.



4) Following the initial appointment of the Library Board, all terms will be for three years,

commencing on January 1 of the year the term begins, with Library Board members
allowed to serve no more than three.consecutive three-year terms,

5) The City Council will appoint an interim library director with the authority to organize
and manage the Public Library System until a library director is ‘appointed by the Library
Board. The Library Board shall appoint a qualified library director and other staff as
necessary, establish the compensation of employees, and remove any of them for cause.

6) The City Council will levy an ahnual-'tax upon all taxable property within the City for the
- support of the library and will place such money in a designated Library Fund.

7) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.11, the Library Board shall adopt bylaws and
regulations for the library, and shall have exclusive control of the expenditure of all
money collected for or placed to the credit of the Library Fund, of interest earned on all
money collected for or placed to the credit of the Library Fund, of the construction of
library buildings, and of the grounds, rooms, and buildings provided for library purposes.

8) The City shall set aside certain public property to be further specified by subsequent
- resolution for the benefit of the Public Library Service. With the approval of the couneil,
the Library Board may erect a library building thereon.

9) The City Council may create a citizens’ committee, to be comprised of residents from the
City of Lake Elmo, to advise the City Council and the Library Board. on issues of public
concern related to the City of Lake Elmo Public Library Service,

Notwithstanding the foregoing, subsequent to date of this Resolution, the City will continue good
faith negotiations with Washington County for the purposes of maintaining and improving
existing library services or transferring library services from the County to the City and adjusting
the special levy limits therefore in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 275.72. If within sixty
(60) days of the date of this Resolution, the City and Washington County resolve to provide
library services to the residents of Lake Elmo and the City Council determines that the Public
Library established herein is no-longer desirable for the City, the City Council may by resolution
dissolve the Public Library System and Library Board. Furthermore, the establishment of the
Public Library System and the Library Board herein shall be contingent upon the City's
determination that there is sufficient funding for the Public Library System. If within sixty (60)
days of the date of this Resolution, the City Council determines that fhere is not sufficient

funding for the Public Library System, the City Council may by resolution dissolve the Public
Library System and Library Board.




of

I

V o
Dean A. J ohustor; Mayor  /

Passed and duly adopted this 29th day of June 2010 by the City Courail
ATTEST:

Elmo, Minnesota.

Bruce Messelt, City Afiministrator




CITY OF LAKE FLMO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO, 2010-41

A RESOLUTION STAYING ESTABLISHMENT OF 4 PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM
AUTHORIZING A LIBRARY LEVY, AND ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD F OR
THE CITY OF LAKE ELMO. :

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and '
WHEREAS, the residents of the Cj

ty currently receive library services through
Washington County; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City of Lake Elmo to provide well managed and
quality library services for the residents of Lake Elmo; and

WHEREAS, the City Council passed Resolution No. 2010-031 regarding the
establishment and operation of a Public Library Service at its June 29, 2010 meeting; and

WHEREAS, subsequent discussions with Washington County have led to an acceptable
proposed timeline and process for advancing the objectives of the City of Lake Elmo.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of
Lake Elmo hereby undertakes the following: .

1) The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo hereby stays establishment of a Municipal

Public Library System pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.09, including establishment
of & Public Library Board.

2) The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo hereby stays authorization and imposition of a
library levy upon all taxable property within the City, as well as the sefting aside of
certain public property for the benefit of the Public Library Service.

3) The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo extends the sixty (60) day period for formal

dissolution of Resolutjon No. 2010-031 for an additional one hundred and twenty (120)
days.

4) The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo wiil continue good faith discussions with
Washington County for the purposes of maintaining and improving existing library




services or transferring library services from the County to the City and adjusting the
special levy limits therefore in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 275.72.

Dissolution of Resolution No. 2016-031 regarding establishment of the Public Library System
and the Library Board shall be contingent upon the City’s determination that there is sufficient
County funding for the host community’s Branch Library for 2011 or a viable alternative service
arrangement of transition plan is in place. If the City Council determines that there is not
sufficient funding for local library services for 2011 within either the County or City annual

budgets, the City Council may by resolution dissolve the Public Library System and Library
Board.

Passed and duly adopted this 17th day of August 2010 by the City Council o of Lake
Elmo, Minnesota; '
R R
Dean A. Johnston, Mayor ”

ATTEST:

Bruce Messelt, City /ﬁf‘xdministrator




Public Library Service in Washington County:

Maintaining Access & Quality in a2 Time of Fiscal Challenge, Changing Technology and User
‘ Exgectations

The mission of the Washington County LJbrary (WCL) is to enrich both the individual and the commumty
by assisting people in their search for mformatmn ideas, education and recreation.

As set forth in the Library's strategic framework, “2010 and Beyond,” the vision of WCL is to provide
leadership to preserve the best of the past and to provide access for all whiie seeking new ways to
prompte and maintain library services in Washington County.

Four strategic priorities or goals have been selected by the WCL Board that will further the Library’s
mission in a time of fiscal and sociai change. They are: 1) engage young readers; 2} provide entry to the
online world; 3} promote informed, knowledgeable users; and 4} inspire curiosity,

B B

Like all County departments, WCL finds itself in a difficult budget situation which results largely from the
state budget shortfall and its impact on county services. Like most other public iibraries, both local and
national, WCL knows that change is in the air and in the budget. This situation leads to a re-examination
of some of basic assumptions about what libraries are and what they do. From corﬁmunity surveys, we
know that Washington County residents reaiize how important library services are to them.

in light of the County’s financial éituétion, the rapid pace of technological changes that promote new
types of access and changing user expectations as a result of technological innovations, change at WCL is
inevitable. Fortunately, it does not mean that library service will cease or that access to the collection
needs to be [imited. ft does mean that WCL must take advantage of the tools that technology and
electronic resources have provided fo it. It does mean that WCL has fewer staff and less funding
available to provide traditionat services at its current nine branch library locations.

To this last point here are some facts:
In 2009 WCL began the vear with an adoptéd budget of $6.8 M
Of this amount $6.5 M (96%) was from property taxes
In 2011 WCL began the year with an adopted budget of $6.5 M
Of this amount $6.1 M {94%} is from property taxes
fn 2009 WCL had a staff of 113 people [66.9 FTE and 14 shelvers]

As of March 1, 2011 WCL has & staff 98 people including 3 vacant positions [61.7 FTE plus 8
shelvers]




During the Great Recession libraries nationwide have seen an increase in demand for services and
library materials. WCL's ability to meet even higher service level demands at its branches has been
reduced as a result of staff reductions and other budget reductions. As a result there are fewer fibrary

hours, less library staff in buildings to assist the public, fewer new materials and potential safety risks for
the pubiic and staff.

2011 is projected to see further funding reductions. Specifically, the 2011 WCL budget as autharized by
the County Board was constructed to include an increase in the County Program Aid from the State of
Minnesota. This state property tax aid is authorized in current statute at a certain amount; howevar, it
is very unlikely the County will receive the entire amount certified given the experience of the last few
years. If the 2010 State budget reductions in County Program Aid are made permanent or simply
extended for another year, the County will be forced to eliminate some of the library services funded by
this aid program and possibly more depending on the extent of the total cut in state aid to the county.
Baséd on current information about the state’s budget situation, the County and WCL are starting to

plan for this reduction in 2011; if it doesn’t happen, so much the better but the Library must have a plan
in place,

One final thought; In planning for the future of library services in Washington County, there are other
considerations of a more long term’nature that will impact the future of libraries in Washington County
and the nation other than the current financial situation. WCL's Iong—raﬁge facilities plan looks out to
2030 and attempts to set in place a vision that encompasses the changes and challenges anticipated.
First, the population growth and its various shifts must be accommodated. Second, the advances in
technology within the greater society will impact how people read, how they learn and what types of
virtual communities they will deveiop. All of these changes will also impact the public library world,
Unfortunately one can only guess at the impacts right now; so WCL needs to develop a flexible model or
models of service that encompass not only the traditional library but also new ways to meet demand for
service, especially from the younger generations. ' '

HhkkAr kR

Library Express Service Model: A Proposal for Partnerships

For a variety of reasons, there is a need to find new service models that can expand or maintain library
services that are in most demand while reducing the expense involved in staffing locations that have a
low volume of service. In some instances the new models can be transitional models until an area’s
population grows dense enough to require a new library building; in others the models may simply
expand services by providing access to library materials and programs in the more rural areas of the
County. While generally referred to as “Library Express” service models, they can take several forms
from automated locker systems to large vending machines {similar to Red Boxes) to other ideas stil! in
development. There is no one model that will fit all locations needing or demanding service.

in any case the Library must find partners who will support cooperative programming and house the
new service mode|,



A partnership could be hetwaen the County Library and another pubiic entity or between the County
Likrary and a private or non-profit enterprise.

in addition to the entire library collection, the County Library could provide:

delivery services at least once per week

programs, such as summer reading programs and author presentations, on ah occasional basis
public access computers with Internet connections

electronic access to the Library’s collection

materials’ return services.

The partner couid provide:

facility and all maintenance, e.g. refuse removal, cleaning, meeting or prograrﬁ space
telephoneé and other telecommunications services needead, such as a fiber or 71 connection
technical support for the computers if needed

staffing which could include volunteers

determine hours of availability

shared space and programs, e.g. community center or coffee shop.

These and other issues surrounding a new service model(s) are open for negotiation to ensure the best
service possibie in a time of fiscal challenge.

~-Patricia Conley, Washington County Library Director, March 2011




Marine Library Committee Recommendation to Marine City Council

Background

The Marine Library Committee (the Committee) has been asked to formulate
recommendations regarding possible changes to Iabrary services now available at
the Marine Branch Library of the Washington County library system. The
Committee sees an important role for a library within the extended community of
Marine on St. Croix/Scandia/May Township. It is recognized that use of library
services is changing, including the ability for patrons to use the internet to access
the County catalog and order books, the ability to download ebooks from the
County or commercial sites, access to free books on various web sites. These
recommendations are made with the understanding that the need to be flexible

and respond to changing interests must be a part of any plan for retaining llbrary
services in Marine on St. Croix.

We appreciate Washington County including us in their strategic process
reviewing the impact of potential budget reductions. While we recognize the
County is mandated to provide library services to all county residents and their
direction has been to place large libraries at locations accessible to many, we still
believe there is value to small libraries located within walking distance or short
vehicle rides from residents. Marine, being further away than most communities
from the larger county libraries, depends even more on its iocal library. We
recognize the County is facing increasing budget pressure, and want to work with
the County to help formulate a model to maintain library services.

The Committee is comprised of over thirty residents from May Township, Scandia
and Marine who are interested in heiping ensure the continuation of library
services in the Marine area. We have identified key benefits provided to the
Marine/May/Scandia area by a branch library, have gathered information on and
toured a variety of other small libraries, have met with County personnel to
understand the County requirements for library services and to discuss
anticipated budget changes. We have initiated a meeting with Marine area
residents and Pat Conley, Washington County Library Director and Jim Schug,

. County Administrator, to discuss library services in Marine. The recommendation
which follows incorporates the results of these activities.



Recommendation to the Marine Council for Retaining a Library

The Committee is suggesting a response be developed by the City and its
residents, in the event library services are reduced or eliminated at the Marine
Branch Library by the County. We are suggesting a short term (Phase 1), medium
term and long term plan (Phases 2 and 3) be identified. By considering a long
term solution in phases, local library supporters will be able to determine how
well the initial phase of a partnership with the City, the County and volunteers is
working, plus further evolution of library use and services, in general, will have
proceeded, and both library supporters and the County will be better able to
understand what library services will be needed in the future. Our
recommendation reflects the Village's interest in supporting and maintaining a
vital Village Center, as outlined in the Marine Comprehensive Plan, and is in
keeping with the current direction of the Village Center Task Force.

Overview: The Committee is proposing a partnership between the County, the

City of Marine on St. Croix and local volunteers who support the continuation of
library services in the area.

e The Community Library will be funded partially through a ‘Friends of the
Library’ type charitable organization, which will be formed to oversee the
operation of the Community Library and will raise and disperse funds in
support of the Community Library. In addition to the charitable
organization support, the Committee is suggesting the County continue to
use of the Jordan Bequest to support Marine area library services, with a
proposed 4 % per year of the total asset value of the bequest directed
toward annual operation.

¢ The City will initially provide space, cleaning of that space,
telecommunication lines, and City part-time employees who will be hired to
manage the Community Library and coordinate volunteer help (funding for
this position will come partially through the Friends of the Library
donations). The primary reason for the hiring of City staff is to satisfy the
County requirements for data privacy, although it is recognized paid
employees will help ensure success of the Community Library through
oversight/coordination of volunteers.

e The County will provide some book/media inventory, which will be shelved
at the community library and rotated on a regular basis, and will
deliver/pick-up books ordered by patrons from other libraries. Computers,
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shelving/tables and other depreciated assets currently in the Marine
Branch Library, and hardware for self-check out/check-in will remain at the
current library site in Marine. The County will also continue to provide
access to MELSA services.

* We are suggesting the County create a new role, that of a ‘Library
Extension Agent’ who will visit the Community Library periodically to
enhance the partnership between the City and the County Library system,
providing volunteer training (library catalog, checking books/media in and
out of system, shelving procedures, etc.),' information on new books, and
outreach activities (book clubs, children’s activities, etc).

* Voiunteers will help staff the Community Library, both to ensure safe
working conditions for a City employee (by being present during those
hours when the library is open but City offices are not), and to help with the
operation {shelving, book/media sorting, etc) of the Community Library.

Additional details of the Phase 1 concept:

A Friends of the Marine Library (FOML) will be formed to oversee the operation of
the Community Library, including some of the funding. This 501¢3 organization
will raise funds to create an endowment, and if necessary will raise annual
operating support, and will commit to directing funding to the City for the hiring
of a City part time employee to manage/coordinate the Community Library. Once
this recommendation is adopted by the City of Marine, the formation of the FOML
will proceed (by laws created, Board members identified, etc.) so that the
organization is ready to initiate Phase 1, when required.

The City will commit to allowing the Community Library to remain in some or all
of the space currently housing the Marine Branch Library in the Village Hall, at
least during Phase 1 of this recommendation. The City will provide
telecommunication service to the Community Library space on an annual basis.
The City will provide a part time City employee(s) to coordinate the Commu nity
Library operation, including helping operate the self-check terminal, signing up
new county library patrons, coordinate funding needs with FOML, coordinate the
volunteer scheduling, etc. i shouid be noted that a City employee(s) is primarily
being proposed in order to satisfy the County requirements for library data
privacy. If the County suggests that another solution to this issue is possible,
such as signed confidentiality waivers by volunteers, the need for a City
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employee(s) will be reduced. However, success of the Community Library
concept will be enhanced with paid staff, especially since in a small community
such as Marine on St. Croix volunteers are often over-committed and
coordination of volunteers will help ensure smooth operation.

Volunteers from May, Scandia and Marine will both serve as active members and
Trustees of the FOML. They will provide staffing hours and operational oversight

to the Community Library, as well as provide fund-raising ideas and manpower,
and critical financial support.

A partnership between a library sciences academic program, such as the one
offered by St. Catherine University in St. Paul, will be investigated by the FOML.
The hope is that an internship program might be developed to both help the
college program and its students, and the Community Library.

Proposed Operation

It is proposed the Community Library will be open for 20 hours a week, which is
same as the current number of branch iibrary operating hours. However, the
schedule will include hours on Saturday and evenings, to help encourage use by
families and patrons who work outside of the area. It is believed that this re-
configuration of operating hours will meet the needs of the community regarding
prompt picking-up of their book/media requests.

Budget

The estimated expenses for the annual operation of the Community Library is.as
follows: '

Compensation $18,200
'| Supplies/Misc. S 800
Total Expenses $19,000

*These estimated expenses do not include any new book/media purchases, it is
assumed those will continue to be provided by the County Library.




The estimated Sources of Funding for the annual operation of the Community
Library are as foliows:

Jordan Bequest (4% withdrawal rate) 512,000
Friends of Library Annual Contribution S 4,000
Washington County Support S 3,000
Total Funding 519,000

Savings-to the County

We recognize the County anticipates needing to cut or eliminate some libra ry
services, and their strategic direction has been to direct funding to larger libraries
within the County. While Committee members may question the strategic
direction, seeing a value in the continuance of local library services, we recognize
the difficult position the County is facing. The recommended partnership
between the County, the City and volunteers will allow the County to direct most
of the staffing dollars and operational budget previously directed to the Marine
Branch Library, toward other purposes. During the most recent tax year, the City
of Marine residents contributed about $32,000 in tax levy toward County library
services, with the contribution of residents who live in May Township and Scandia
but who are considered in the Marine Branch Library service area contributing
more, perhaps for a total contribution of between $100,000 - $150,000 {itis
difficult to identify the actual total as the figure is dependent upon property
values and a more careful analysis wouid be very labor intensive).. The County has
estimated the direct costs required to operate the Marine Branch Library are
around $100,000 { ‘overhead’ expenses not included). Ourrecommendation, if
accepted, would reduce the direct contribution from the Cou nty to only on-going
inventory support (used throughout the County library system by all patrons),
transportation costs associated with diivery/pick-up of books both ordered
through the catalog and for shelving purposes, and a Library Extension Agent
(estimated 6 hours including transportation, bi-weekiy).

Jordan Bequest

Mrs. Jordan’s generous gift to Washington County, to be used for the benefit of
the Marine Library, has been prudently managed by the County. We are
recommending the bequest be used to support the operation of the Community
Library during Phase 1, as we believe this use will be for a public good and would
be in keeping with Mrs. Jordan’s intent. The idea of using the bequest to



purchase and install a kiosk delivery system has been previously discussed, and
could be pursued. However, this idea is not currently a part of the Committee’s
recommendation, as it was felt the estimated $50,000 investment might be better
used to support the operation of the Community Library as outlined. We would
suggest the kiosk system be further tested at the Hugo location and the results of
this testing, along with a review of the success of the Community Library concept
in Marine, once implemented, will help the County and the FOML determine if
the kiosk approach is suitable for the Marine area in the future.

Phase 2

As part of this recommendation, the City will allow the current Branch Library
space to be used for the Community Library. The Restoration Society has retained
an engineering firm to complete a review of the Village Hall and make
recommendations regarding future maintenance and operation of the Hall. The
City has also recognized the need to improve storage of City property, including
historic City records, which are currentiy housed in the basement of the Village
Hall, and has indicated some desire to return to holding meetings, including the
monthly Council meeting, in the Council Chambers. When the information from
the structural review is available, it is anticipated the City and the Restoration
Society will develop a maintenance and use plan for the next twenty years of
Village Hall operation. If part of that plan requires a different use of the library
space, the FOML would work to identify another location for a Community
Library. At that time, the investment in a kiosk delivery system may be pursued.

Phase 3

The Committee has identified other possible models for a Community Library in -
Martine, and these discussions have included partnerships between a Community
Library and other entities such as the Stone House Museum, the Minnesota
Historical Society, commercial businesses, the Community Education department
of Stillwater Schools, and others. It appears the condition of the Stone House
Museum and its exhibits is of special concern. Once the operation of a
Community Library has been established, the FOML may work with other

community organizations o investigate other options for a future co-location of
the Community Library.

rwb 3/7/11




April 28th, 2011: Communication with Washington County Reparding Library Services

As explained in our prior meetings, the county’s 2011 Tibrary budget does call for the
continuation of all the existing library locations in the county. However, the 2011 library budget
as authorized by the County Board was constructed to include the state property tax aid that is
authorized in current statute at a certain amount; however, it is very unlikely the County will
receive the entire amount certified given the experience of the last few years, 1fthe 2010 State
budget reductions in County Program Aid-are made permanent or simply extended for another
year, the county will be forced to eliminate some of the library services funded by this aid -
program and possibly more library services depending on the extent of the total cut in state aid to

the county. As a result, the county has begun discussions with communities in which the smaller
branch libraries are located.

As you may have read in recent newspapers, elements of a mutual agreement are being discussed
in the cities of Marine and Newport. So, we thought it might be helpful to outline these elements
for your consideration.

The elements of an agreement with the Marine Library Association are that Marine remains part
of the county levy for library services and the county will provide certain library services at a

location determined and managed by the city estimated at this time to be approximately 20 hours
per week. ' '

Marine: pays for rent or provides space rent free, provides maintenance services for
space, provides location for an exterior access kiosk and book return, 2 part time city
staff to provide oversight of city volunteers; open on a schedule to be determined by the
city with at least one paid city staff at all times the location is open which is

supplemented by volunteers recruited and supervised by the city, and telecommunication
access. .

The county: draws down Jordan trust over time and provides kiosk and book return,
computers, fmancial oversight of Jordan trust, a small collection, and rotating or periodic
programming.

Both: Effective 8/1/2011 with an evaluation at the end of 12/2012.
The elements of an agreement with the City of Newport are not are far along as with Marine.

Even though the City of Lake Elmo has voted to create their own Iibrary in 2011, the county’s
current library budget does include funding to keep the library open throughout 2011, Again,

this budget is predicated upon the county receiving the full state allocation of County Program
Aid.

If' the City of Lake Elmo would like to consider something different than assumption of library
services in 2011, the Marine elements could be the foundation for an agreement. Such
a proposal would have a location in the City of Lake Elmo open on a schedule determined by the



city to which the county library system provides certain services and the city remains in the
county library levy tax.

The City of Lake Blmo: pays for rent or provides space rent free, provides maintenance
services for space, provides location for exterior access kiosk and book return for a xxx
number of years, city staff covering a schedule to be determined by the city with at least
one paid city staff on duty at all times the location is open, which is supplemented by
volunteers recruited and supervised by the city, and provide telecommunication access.

The county: continues library service to all Lake Elmo residents and provides kiosk and

book return, delivery and pick up of book orders through on-line catalog, computers, a
small collection, and rotating or periodic programming

Both: an evaluation at the end of a period to be determined but after at least one year of
operation of the new mode!,

I hope that this information will allow the City of Lake Elmo to provide more specific direction
at their Tuesday meeting for our future discussions. Should our team set another meeting as a
follow up to next Tuesday’s City Council discussion?

Molly O'Rourke,
Deputy Administrator
Washington County
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CITY OF LAKE EL.MO
WASHINGTON COUNTY, MINNESOTA

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-024

A RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING 4 PUBLIC LIBRARY SYSTEM, AUTHORIZING A LIBRARY
LEVY, AND ESTABLISHING A PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD FOR THE CITY OF LAKE ELMO.

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo is a municipal corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and

WHEREAS, the residents of the City currently receive library services through
Washington County; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo desires to establish and operate a City Public Library
Service pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.07 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, it is the intention of the City of Lake Elmo to provide well managed and
quality library services for the residents of Lake Elmo; and

WHEREAS, the City of Lake Elmo intends to set aside public property of the City for
the benefit of the Public Library Service; and

WHEREAS, the City Council discussed the establishment and operation of a Public
Library Service at its July 5th, 2011 meeting.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, the City Council of the City of
Lake Eimo hereby establishes a City Public Library Service under Minnesota Statutes § 134.07 et
seq., as follows:

1) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.09, the City Council hereby establishes a five-
person Library Board, with members to be appointed by the Mayor with the approval of
the City Council from among the residents of the City.

2) The initial Library Board will have two residents of the City each appointed for a one-
year term, two residents of the City each appointed for a two-year term, and one resident
of the City appointed for a three-year term. Not more than one council member shall at
any time be a member of the Library Board.



3) Said appointments will be effective on January 1, 2011, or a date to be determined by the
City Council.

4) Following the initial appointment of the Library Board, all terms will be for three years,
commencing on January 1 of the year the term begins, with Library Board members
allowed to serve no more than three consecutive three-year terms,

5} The City Council will appoint an interim library director with the authority to organize
and manage the Public Library System until a library director is appointed by the Library
Board. The Library Board shall appoint a qualified library director and other staff, as
necessary, establish the compensation of employees, and remove any of them for cause,

6) The City Council will levy an annual tax upon all taxable property within the City for the
support of the library and will place such money in a designated Library Fund.

7) Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes § 134.11, the Library Board shall adopt bylaws and
regulations for the library, and shall have exclusive control of the expenditure of all
money collected for or placed to the credit of the Library Fund, of interest earned on all
mouney collected for or placed to the credit of the Library Fund, of the construction of
library buildings, and of the grounds, rooms, and buildings provided for library purposes.

8) The City shall set aside certain public property to be further specified by subsequent
resolution for the benefit of the Public Library Service. With the approval of the council,
the Library Board may erect a library building thereon.

9) The City Council may create a citizens’ committee, to be comprised of residents from the
City of Lake Elmo, to advise the City Council and the Library Board on issues of public
concern related to the City of Lake Elmo Public Library Service.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, subsequent to date of this Resolution, the City will continue good
faith discussions with Washingion County for the purposes of maintaining and improving
existing library services through continuation of existing Washington County Library System
services or through the transfer of Hbrary services from the County to the City, subsequent
affiliation, association or collaboration with Washington County, and adjustment of special levy
limits therefore in accordance with Minnesota Statutes § 275.72.

Passed and duly adopted this 29th day of June 2010 by the City Council of the City of Lake
Elmo, Minnesota.

Dean A. Johnston, Mayor
ATTEST:

Bruce Messelt, City Administrator




CITY OF LAKE ELMO
COUNTY OF WASHINGTON
STATE OF MINNESOTA

ORDINANCE NO., 08-
AN ORDINANCE TO ALLOW THE CITY COUNCIL TO EXTEND THE “NO
WAKE” REQUIREMENTS UNDER THE WATER SURFACE USE
ORDINANACE FOR LAKE DEMONTREVILLE AND LAKE OLSON

Section 1. The City Council of the City of Lake Elmo hereby ordains that Section
97.21 subdivision (1) is hereby amended to read as follows:

(B)  Hours of operation.

(1) Normal Conditions - No person shall operate any motorboat at a speed
other than a slow, no-wake speed between sunset and noon the following
day.

(2) High Water Conditions - No person shall operate any motorboat at a speed
other than a slow, no-wake speed until, the lake level is six inches or less
above the ordinary hiph water mark.

(3) Other Conditions — Alternative no-wake time periods may be established
by the City Council by Resolution as part of a special event or other
condition,

Section 2, Adoption Date
This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon adoption and publication in the
official newspaper of the City of Lake Elmo.

This Ordinance No. 08- was adopted on this 19" day of July, 2011, by a vote of Avyes
and Nays.

Mayor Dean Johnston
ATTEST:

Bruce A. Messelt, City Administrator

This Ordinance No. was published on the 19t" day of July, 2011
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